
          

 

 

WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 

CITY OF NORTH PORT 
SARASOTA COUNTY 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
& PUBLIC HEARING 

AUGUST 18, 2022 
11:00 A.M. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

Special District Services, Inc. 
The Oaks Center 

2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

www.westvillagesid.org 
561.630.4922 Telephone 
877.SDS.4922 Toll Free 
561.630.4923 Facsimile 



AGENDA 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

Public Safety Building Training Room 
19955 Preto Blvd., Venice, Florida 34293 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING & PUBLIC HEARING 
August 18, 2022 

11:00 a.m. 
 

A. Call to Order 

B. Proof of Publication……………………………………………………………………….................Page 1 

C. Establish Quorum 

D. Additions or Deletions 

E. Comments from the Public on All Agenda Items 

F. Approval of Minutes 

1. July 14, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes………………………………………………….Page 2 

G. General District Matters 

1. Public Hearing – Fiscal Year 2022/2023 

a. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………….Page 13 

b. Receive Public Comments on Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget and Assessments 

c. Consider Resolution No. 2022-19 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget……..Page 14 

d. Consider Resolution No. 2022-20 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Assessment Roll…Page 64 

2. Public Hearing – Uniform Method 

a. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………….Page 70 

b. Receive Public Comments on Intent to Utilize the Uniform Method of Levying, Collecting, 
and Enforcing Non Ad Valorem Assessments 

c. Consider Resolution No. 2022-21 – Intent to Utilize the Uniform Method of Levying, 
Collecting, and Enforcing Non Ad Valorem Assessments…………………………………..Page 71 

3. Consider Resolution No. 2022-22 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting Schedule……Page 76 

4. Review of Meeting Notes for Irrigation Meeting with Gran Paradiso Property Owners 
Association Directors and Residents Held June 13, 2022……………………………………….Page 78 

5. Consider Approval of Agreement with Gravina Smith Matte & Arnold for Public Relations 
Services………………………………………………………………………………………….Page 80 

H. Unit of Development No. 1 

1. Public Hearing – Revised Plan of Improvements 

a. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………….Page 87 

b. Receive Public Comments on Adoption of Revised Plan of Improvements 

c. Consider Resolution No. 2022-23 – Adopting Revised Plan of Improvements and 
Setting Public Hearing on Adoption of Revised Assessment Report of Benefits…………...Page 88 

2. Consider Resolution No. 2022-24 – Approving Form of FDOT Maintenance Agreement……..Page 304 

3. Consider Approval of Change Order No. 12 to Garney Companies, Inc. for Village F Lift 
Stations and RCWM Extension (Final Change Order)………………………………………….Page 340 

 



 

I. Unit of Development No. 3 

1. Update on Use of Bonds Funds Relative to Irrigation Enhancements 

2. Update on Status of Unit 3 Bonds Requisition Audit  

J. Unit of Development No. 7  

1. Public Hearing – Imposing Special Assessments on Added Property 

a. Proof of Publication…………………………………………………………………………Page 342 

b. Receive Public Comments on Imposing Special Assessments on Added Property 

c. Consider Resolution No. 2022-25 – Imposing Special Assessments on Added Property…..Page 343 

K. Unit of Development No. 9 

1. Public Hearing – Imposing Debt Service Assessments 

a. Proof of Publication………………………………………………………………………….Page 465 

b. Consider Approval of Final Master Engineer's Report……………………………………...Page 468 

c. Consider Approval of Final Master Assessment Methodology Report……………………..Page 480 

d. Receive Public Comments on Imposing Debt Service Assessments 

e. Consider Resolution No. 2022-26 – Imposing Debt Service Assessments………………….Page 497 

L. Administrative Matters 

1. District Engineer 

2. District Attorney 

3. District Operations Manager 

4. District Manager 

M. Board Member Comments 

N. Adjourn 

  



Page 1



Page 1 of 12 
 

WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

JULY 14, 2022 
 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The July 14, 2022, Regular Board Meeting of the West Villages Improvement District (“WVID” 
or the “District”) was called to order at 11:20 a.m. in the Public Safety Bilding Training Room 
located at 19955 Preto Boulevard, Venice, Florida 34293. 
 
B. PROOF OF PUBLICATION 
 
Proof of publication was presented which showed the notice of the Regular Board Meeting had 
been published in the Sarasota Herald-Tribune on July 1, 2022, as legally required. 
 
C. ESTABLISH A QUORUM 
 
It was determined that the attendance of the following Supervisors constituted a quorum, and it 
was in order to proceed with the meeting: 
 
Chairman John Luczynski Present in person 
Vice Chairman Steve Lewis Present in person 
Supervisor Tom Buckley Present in person 
Supervisor Victor Dobrin Present in person 
Supervisor Christine Masney Present in person 
 
Staff members in attendance were: 
 
District Manager William Crosley Special District Services, Inc. 
District Manager Michelle Krizen Special District Services, Inc. 
District Counsel Lindsay Whelan  Kutak Rock LLP 
District Engineer Richard Ellis  Dewberry 
 
Also present were the following:  Kevin Shaughnessy, Lex Van Brero, Ghyll and Bruce Theurer 
and Mike Milak. 
 
D. ADDITIONS OR DELETIONS TO AGENDA 
 
There were no additions or deletions to the agenda. 
 
E. COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC  
 
Mr. Shaughnessy stated that he wanted to recognize the work and resource efforts related to the 
irrigation meeting held on June 13, 2022, with representatives of the Gran Paradiso Property 
Owners Association President, Steve Glunt and Board Member John Meisel.  Mr. Shaughnessy 
noted that he believed the effort to be a large volume of work, which was very informative and 
cleared up many questions.  Mr. Shaughnessy went on to request that if there was the opportunity 
to use any construction funds available in Unit 3 for irrigation upgrades, such as irrigation head 
replacements in order to enhance water conservation.  District staff will look into the possibility 

Page 2



Page 2 of 12 
 

of the use of bond issued construction funds as an approvable cost and what, if any funds 
currently exist versus these costs being a maintenance item which may not be an approvable 
expense.  Operations’ Manager Mike Smith requested that a proposal for this expense be 
provided to District staff while this matter was being researched.  Mr. Dobrin thanked Mr. 
Shaughnessy for bringing this matter to the attention of the District Board and indicated that he 
felt this should be approved as an improvement instead of being a maintenance item. Mr. 
Luczynski stated that he would support a vote approving this project, if it is determined to be an 
approvable bond construction expense. An update on this matter will be provided at the next 
meeting.   
 
Mr. Theurer suggested that a golf cart path be created from the Island Walk entrance down to the 
new Public Safety building on Preto Boulevard.  Mr. Luczynski asked the District Engineer and 
Operations’ Manager to look into this matter and report back at a future meeting.  
 
Mr. Milak commented on the fish kill matter in the Renaissance lakes and weed growth along the 
banks of the lakes. Operations’ Manager Mike Smith stated, pursuant to the current pond 
maintenance agreement between the District and the Renaissance Homeowners’ Association, it 
provides that the area above the water level is the HOA’s responsibility to maintain in addition to 
any fountains. Mr. Milak commented that he was unable to obtain a copy of the maintenance 
agreement from his HOA. District Manager Crosley reported to Mr. Milak that he had just the 
emailed him the agreement.    
 
F. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
 1.  June 9, 2022, Regular Board Meeting 
 
The minutes of the June 9, 2022, Regular Board Meeting were presented for consideration. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Ms. Masney approving the minutes of the 
June 9, 2022, Regular Board Meeting, as presented. 
 
G. GENERAL DISTRICT MATTERS 
 
 1.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-12 – Canvassing and Certifying Results of 
Boundary Amendment Referendum 
 
Resolution No. 2022-12 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
CANVASSING AND CERTIFYING THE RESULTS OF THE 
LANDOWNERS’ REFERENDUM REGARDING THE 
AMENDMENT TO CHAPTER 2004-456, LAWS OF 
FLORIDA, AND PROVIDING FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE 

 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Buckley, seconded by Ms. Masney and passed unanimously 
canvassing and certifying the results of the Boundary Amendment Referendum of 2,247 
affirmative votes and no opposing votes, thus adopting Resolution 2022-12, as presented.  

Page 3



Page 3 of 12 
 

 
2.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-13 – Regarding Intent to Utilize Uniform Method 

 
Resolution No. 2022-13 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-13 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF WEST 
VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT DESIGNATING A DATE, TIME 
AND LOCATION OF A PUBLIC HEARING REGARDING THE 
DISTRICT'S INTENT TO USE THE UNIFORM METHOD FOR THE 
LEVY, COLLECTION, AND ENFORCEMENT OF NON-AD VALOREM 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AS AUTHORIZED BY SECTION 197.3632, 
FLORIDA STATUTES; AUTHORIZING THE PUBLICATION OF THE 
NOTICE OF SUCH HEARING; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
The District desires to use the Uniform Method for the levy, collection and enforcement of non-
ad valorem special assessments.  This resolution sets a Public Hearing date that will be held to 
adopt the Uniform Method for August 18, 2022, at 11:00 a.m. in the Public Safety Building 
Training Room located at 19955 Preto Boulevard, Venice, Florida 34293. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis. Seconded by Mr. Dobrin and passed unanimously 
adopting Resolution No. 2022-13, as presented, setting a Public Hearing date to adopt the 
Uniform Method for August 18, 2022, at 11:00 a.m. in the Public Safety Building Training 
Room located at 19955 Preto Boulevard, Venice, Florida 34293. 
  
H. UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1 
 
 1.  Consider Boundary Amendment Agreement Adding Property to Unit No. 1 
(Diocese Property and Hospital Site) 
 
This Boundary Amendment Agreement adds the parcels known as the Diocese and Hospital 
Property with the landowners into the Unit of Development No. 1. 
 
Discussion ensued after which the following motion was made: 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Ms. Masney and passed unanimously 
approving the Boundary Amendment Agreement adding property to Unit No. 1 (Diocese 
Property and Hospital Site), as presented. 
 
 2.  Consider Boundary Amendment Agreement Adding Property to Unit No. 1 (Pine 
Street) 
 
This Boundary Amendment Agreement adds the parcels known as the Pine Street Right of Way 
property with the landowners into the Unit of Development No. 1. 
 

Page 4



Page 4 of 12 
 

A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Ms. Masney and passed unanimously 
approving the Boundary Amendment Agreement adding property to Unit No. 1 (Pine Street 
Right of Way Property), as presented. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-14 – Setting a Public Hearing for Consideration of 
Adoption of Proposed Revised Plan of Improvements 
 
 
 
Resolution No. 2022-14 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-14 
 

[UNIT NO. 1 2022 BOUNDARY AMENDMENT] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING ON THE DISTRICT’S 
CONSIDERATION OF THE REVISED PLAN OF 
IMPROVEMENTS FOR UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1 
RELATIVE TO THE AMENDMENT OF THE BOUNDARY 
OF SUCH UNIT; FILING THE PROPOSED REVISED 
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS WITH THE DISTRICT 
SECRETARY; PROVIDING FOR PUBLISHED AND 
MAILED NOTICE AS SET FORTH IN SECTION 298.301, 
FLORIDA STATUTES; SETTING A PUBLIC HEARING TO 
BE HELD ON AUGUST 18, 2022, AT 11:00 A.M. AT THE 
PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING ROOM 
LOCATED AT 19955 PRETO BOULEVARD, VENICE, 
FLORIDA 34293, FOR THE PURPOSE OF HEARING 
PUBLIC COMMENT ON THE CONSIDERATION OF THE 
REVISED PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. Luczynski and passed unanimously 
adopting Resolution 2022-14, as presented, setting public hearing for August 18, 2022, at 11:00 
a.m. in the Public Safety Building Training Room located at 19955 Preto Boulevard, Venice, 
Florida 34293. 
 
I. UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 3 
 
 1.  Consider Revised Gran Paradiso Gate Operations Policies 
 
At the request of the Gran Paradiso Property Owners’ Association, District staff was asked to 
review updates to the existing gate operations policy.  The District owns certain roadways and 
other public infrastructure within the community (the “Facilities”) that are located behind gates 
and gatehouse infrastructure that is operated and maintained by the Gran Paradiso Property 
Owners’ Association, Inc.  Accordingly, the District must ensure that access to the community 
by members of the public is afforded pursuant to State and Federal law.  With new upgraded 

Page 5



Page 5 of 12 
 

infrastructure, the gate policy needed to be revised.  District staff was agreeable with the 
requested policy changes.  This update primarily allows the rear gate to be accessible to residents 
with access to the general public only available at the front gate.  Mr. Dobrin requested an update 
to the Gran Paradiso Property Owners’ Association maintenance agreement.  Mr. Luczynski 
noted that the Gran Paradiso Property Owners’ Association has not, to date, officially requested 
that the agreement be amended.  District staff can amend that agreement, if requested.  
 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Masney, seconded by Mr. Dobrin and passed unanimously 
approving the Revised Gran Paradiso Gate Operations Policies, as presented. 
 
 2.  Consider Proposals for Unit 3 Bond Requisition Audit 
 
Mr. Luczynski noted that he had requested proposals for conducting a financial audit for Unit of 
Development No. 3.  The purpose of the audit was to definitively provide answers to exactly how 
bond funds were used.  
 
Questions have arisen over the years with answers provided that come back up again later.  The 
purpose of the audit was to definitively provide answers as to how Unit of Development No. 3 
bond funds were used for public improvements.    

 
Outside engineer firms were contacted so that the audit could be conducted by a company who 
has not performed work for the District in the past.  
 
Many firms were asked to provide a proposal for the audit however, only two responded.  The 
estimates provided by GAI Consulting Inc. and Giffels Webster Engineering Inc. were submitted 
after reviewing sample Unit of Development No. 3 bond requisitions.  The estimates were 
provided based on a time and material basis to provide a summary compilation of what was 
actually constructed pursuant to the engineer’s report for improvement projects such as roadway 
construction, stormwater management, irrigation, etc.  The greater preponderance will be 
confined to inside the Gran Paradiso community, but any claims or questions that bond funds 
were used outside of Unit of Development No. 3, which is specific to the Gran Paradiso 
community, can only be confirmed or denied.  Mr. Dobrin stated that he opposed approval 
because he felt there was plenty information for the District to delineate that.  
 
Mr. Luczynski commented that John Meisel recently stated publicly that Unit of Development 
No. 3 bond funds were used for the signalization of West Villages Parkway and U.S. 41, even 
though  District staff had provided him the information approximately two years ago, that was 
not accurate.  Mr. Meisel has also made the statement again within the last six weeks that Unit of 
Development No. 3 bonds funds were used for the signalization.  Mr. Luczynski also stated that 
Mr. Meisel impinged on his integrity just last month and included every one of the District’s 
Board Members except for Mr. Dobrin.  Mr. Luczynski further stated that he felt that the current 
Board has operated with a more cautious fiduciary position than ever before and this audit would 
eliminate “coffee clutch” discussion and innuendos of money being spent that Gran Paradiso 
residents paid for other people’s improvements outside of Gran Paradiso.  
 
Mr. Luczynski stated for the record that Mr. Dobrin opposed the audit so miscommunication can 
continue to be filtered and provided to residents by his group, Mr. Meisel’s, and others who 
continue to provide misinformation to the residents of the District.   
 

Page 6



Page 6 of 12 
 

Mr. Dobrin stated for the record that he refuted the personal attack and being bullied by such 
behavior in a unit of local government.  Mr. Luczynski indicated that Mr. Dobrin was on record 
making those comments.   
 
Ms. Masney indicated that she felt personally attacked by Mr. Meisel who continually publicly 
questions the integrity of the Board.  Ms. Masney further stated that she has taken an oath as 
Supervisor and feels attacked every time Mr. Meisel says that and she wants it to stop and that 
she has a family and life after this job and does not condone that type of behavior.  That dialogue 
needs to stop today and this audit will stop it.  The next time Mr. Meisel does this against her 
character she will take personal legal action. 
 
Mr. Luczynski commented that on numerous sources Mr. Dobrin specifically has said to 
numerous people in other neighborhoods and residents within Gran Paradiso that he knows Unit 
No. 3 expenses went to help other projects outside of Unit of Development No. 3 and we are 
going to find out if that is the truth.  Mr. Luczynski said that he believed that Mr. Dobrin 
opposed the audit because he liked the idea of having a “gray area.”  This audit will remove that 
“gray area” to “black and white,” while removing the significant misinformation that is out there 
regarding the use of Unit of Development No. 3 bond funds.  
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Luczynski, seconded by Mr. Lewis approving the proposal from 
Giffels Webster Engineering for the Unit 3 Bond Requisition Audit with expenses being paid 
from the Unit No. 3 operating account.  Upon being put to a vote, the MOTION carried 4 to 1 
with Mr. Dobrin dissenting. 
 
J. UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 6 
 

1. Consider Boundary Amendment Agreement Adding Property to Unit No. 6 
(Diocese Property) 

 
The landowner approached the District and requested that it amend the current boundary of Unit 
No. 6 to include a portion of property known as the Diocese  
Property, which consists of approximately 20 acres located within the jurisdictional boundaries 
of the District.  The landowner agreed to fund the District’s costs related to the Unit Amendment 
and accordingly, the District is amenable to approving the Unit Amendment pursuant to the 
terms hereof. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Buckley, seconded by Mr. Lewis and passed unanimously 
approving the Boundary Amendment Agreement, adding property to Unit No. 6 (Diocese 
Property), as presented. 
 
K. UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7 
 

1.  Consider Boundary Amendment Agreement Adding Property to Unit No. 7 
 
The landowner approached the District and requested that it amend the current boundary of Unit 
No. 7 to include a portion of property which consists of approximately 20 acres located within 
the jurisdictional boundaries of the District. The landowner agreed to fund the District’s costs 
related to the Unit Amendment and accordingly, the District is amenable to approving the Unit 
Amendment pursuant to the terms hereof.  The landowner has acknowledged and agrees that the 
property receives the same benefits as are reasonably available to it as similarly classified parcels 

Page 7



Page 7 of 12 
 

of real property within Unit No. 7, as set forth in more detail in the 2019 Plan of Improvements 
and the 2019 Assessment Report 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. Buckley and passed unanimously 
approving the Boundary Amendment Agreement, adding property to Unit No. 7, as presented. 
 
 2.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-15 – Declaring Intent to Impose Special 
Assessments on Added Property 
 
Resolution No. 2022-15 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-15 
 

[UNIT NO. 7 2022 BOUNDARY AMENDMENT] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT DECLARING SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS RELATIVE TO CERTAIN PROPERTIES 
ADDED TO UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7 WITHIN 
THE DISTRICT; INDICATING THE LOCATION, NATURE 
AND ESTIMATED COST OF THOSE INFRASTRUCTURE 
IMPROVEMENTS WHOSE COST IS TO BE DEFRAYED 
BY THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS; PROVIDING THE 
PORTION OF THE ESTIMATED COST OF THE 
IMPROVEMENTS TO BE DEFRAYED BY THE SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS; PROVIDING THE MANNER IN WHICH 
SUCH SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE MADE; 
PROVIDING WHEN SUCH SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS 
SHALL BE PAID; DESIGNATING LANDS UPON WHICH 
THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE LEVIED; 
PROVIDING FOR AN ASSESSMENT PLAT; ADOPTING A 
PRELIMINARY ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING FOR 
PUBLICATION OF THIS RESOLUTION. 

 
Resolution 2022-15 declares the District’s intent to impose assessments on the newly added 
property into Unit of Development No. 7. 
 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Ms. Masney and passed unanimously 
adopting Resolution No. 2022-15, as presented. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-16 – Setting a Public Hearing on Imposition of 
Special Assessments on Added Property 
 
Resolution No. 2022-16 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-16 
 

[UNIT NO. 7 2022 BOUNDARY AMENDMENT] 
 

Page 8



Page 8 of 12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT SETTING A PUBLIC 
HEARING TO BE HELD ON AUGUST 18TH, 2022, AT 11:00 
A.M. AT THE PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING 
ROOM LOCATED AT 19955 PRETO BOULEVARD, 
VENICE, FLORIDA 34293, FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
HEARING PUBLIC COMMENT ON IMPOSING SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS ON CERTAIN PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
DISTRICT GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS THE WEST 
VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF 
DEVELOPMENT NO. 7 IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
CHAPTERS 170 AND 197, FLORIDA STATUTES, AND 
CHAPTER 2004-456, LAWS OF FLORIDA. 

 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Ms. Masney and passed unanimously 
adopting Resolution No. 2022-16, as presented, setting the Public Hearing for August 18, 2022. 
 
L. UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 9 
 
 1.  Consider Preliminary Master Engineer’s Report 
 
Mr. Ellis presented the Preliminary Engineer’s Report, noting that infrastructure improvements 
may include public roadways, including thoroughfares, arterial, collector, or local streets; 
drainage and stormwater improvements; water and sewer facilities; irrigation facilities; public 
roadway landscape, lighting, signage, and furnishings; entry features; and consulting and 
contingencies. The total estimated cost of the construction of the project is $51,000,000. 
 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Masney, seconded by Mr. Lewis and passed unanimously 
approving the Preliminary Master Engineer’s Report, as presented. 
 
 2.  Consider Preliminary Master Assessment Methodology Report 
 
Mr. Crosley presented the Preliminary Master Assessment Methodology Report, which equitably 
allocates the costs being incurred by the District to provide improvements to all assessable lands 
within Unit No. 9.  The bonds issued to finance the project will be repaid through the levy of 
non-ad valorem special assessments on all assessable property within Unit No. 9.  There are 728 
planned units with several different types of product to be assessed.  The assessments will defray 
approximately $63,905,000, which includes the estimated cost plus financing-related costs, 
capitalized interest, and debt service reserve. 
 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Masney, seconded by Mr. Lewis and passed unanimously 
approving the Preliminary Master Assessment Methodology Report, as presented. 
 
 3.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-17 – Declaring Debt Services Assessments 
 
Resolution No. 2022-017 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-17 
 

Page 9



Page 9 of 12 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT DECLARING SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS RELATIVE TO UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT 
NO. 9 WITHIN THE DISTRICT; INDICATING THE 
LOCATION, NATURE AND ESTIMATED COST OF 
THOSE INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS WHOSE 
COST IS TO BE DEFRAYED BY THE SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS; PROVIDING THE PORTION OF THE 
ESTIMATED COST OF THE IMPROVEMENTS TO BE 
DEFRAYED BY THE SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS; 
PROVIDING THE MANNER IN WHICH SUCH SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE MADE; PROVIDING WHEN 
SUCH SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE PAID; 
DESIGNATING LANDS UPON WHICH THE SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS SHALL BE LEVIED; PROVIDING FOR AN 
ASSESSMENT PLAT; ADOPTING A PRELIMINARY 
ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING FOR PUBLICATION 
OF THIS RESOLUTION. 

 
Resolution 2022-17 declares the District’s intent to impose master assessments for the project 
described in the Preliminary Master Engineer's Report and Preliminary Master Assessment 
Methodology Report.  
 
A MOTION was made by Ms. Masney, seconded by Mr. Buckley and passed unanimously 
adopting Resolution No. 2022-17, as presented. 
 
 4.  Consider Resolution No. 2022-18 – Setting a Public Hearing on Debt Service 
Assessments 
 
Resolution No. 2022-18 was presented, entitled: 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-18 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT SETTING A PUBLIC 
HEARING TO BE HELD ON AUGUST 18, 2022, AT 11:00 
A.M. AT THE PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING TRAINING 
ROOM LOCATED AT 19955 PRETO BOULEVARD, 
VENICE, FLORIDA 34293 FOR THE PURPOSE OF 
HEARING PUBLIC COMMENT ON IMPOSING SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS ON CERTAIN PROPERTY WITHIN THE 
DISTRICT GENERALLY DESCRIBED AS THE WEST 
VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF 
DEVELOPMENT NO. 9 IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
CHAPTERS 170 AND 197, FLORIDA STATUTES, AND 
CHAPTER 2004-456, LAWS OF FLORIDA. 

 
A MOTION was made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Mr. Buckley and passed unanimously 
adopting Resolution No. 2022-18, as presented, setting the Public Hearing for August 18, 2022. 
 

Page 10



Page 10 of 12 
 

M. ADMINISTRATIVE MATTERS 
  
 1.  District Engineer 
 
  a. Stormwater Management Projection Report 
 
Mr. Ellis presented the Stormwater Management Projection Report.  This unbudgeted mandated 
report has been prepared to meet the requirements of Section 403.9302, Florida Statutes, and will 
be updated and submitted to the County every 5 years.  
 
 2.  District Attorney 
 
Ms. Whelan reported that the Unit 9 Bond Validation Hearing was scheduled for September 27, 
2022, at 10:00 a.m.  Ms. Whelan also reported that District staff and representatives of the 
developer’s legal team had a community meeting with residents from Gran Paradiso along with 
Gran Paradiso Property Owners Association board members, Steve Glunt, President and Director 
John Meisel.  An extensive PowerPoint was presented at the meeting.  The PowerPoint will be 
posted on the District’s website and also provided to the District Board Supervisors and Gran 
Paradiso POA board members.  The detailed meeting focused on water conservation, how the 
District’s water use permit operates, including the District’s water use rights, and irrigation water 
allocations specific to Gran Paradiso.  
 
 3.  District Operations’ Manager 
 
There was no District Operations’ Manager update at this time. 
 
 4.  District Manager 
 
Mr. Crosley reported that the next meeting was scheduled for August 18, 2022, at 11:00 a.m. for 
the final budget hearing and Public Hearings for Unit No. 9 matters.  He also advised that 
District meetings would move forward without utilizing Zoom video. A telephone line will be 
available only for District staff or other professionals.  
 
N. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS 
 
Mr. Dobrin noted that the entrance area to Gran Paradiso regularly floods in the area of the 
FDOT right of way and that he would be contacting FDOT to seek any help to resolve that 
matter.  
 
O. ADJOURNMENT 
 
There being no further business to come before the Board, the Regular Board Meeting was 
adjourned at 1:00 p.m. on a MOTION made by Mr. Lewis, seconded by Ms. Masney and passed 
unanimously. 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 11



Page 11 of 12 
 

 
_____________________________  ______________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 12



Page 13



1 
 

RESOLUTION 2022‐19 
 

THE  ANNUAL  APPROPRIATION  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  WEST  VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT  DISTRICT  (“DISTRICT”)  RELATING  TO  THE  ANNUAL 
APPROPRIATIONS  AND  ADOPTING  THE  BUDGETS  FOR  THE  FISCAL  YEAR 
BEGINNING  OCTOBER  1,  2022,  AND  ENDING  SEPTEMBER  30,  2023; 
AUTHORIZING BUDGET AMENDMENTS; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
  WHEREAS, the District Manager submitted to the Board of Supervisors (“Board”) of the 
West Villages Improvement District (“District”) proposed budgets (“Proposed Budget”) for the 
fiscal year beginning October 1, 2022 and ending September 30, 2023 (“Fiscal Year 2022/2023”) 
along with an explanatory and complete financial plan for each fund of the District, pursuant to 
the provisions of Chapter 2004‐456(16), Laws of Florida; and 
 
  WHEREAS, at  least  sixty  (60) days prior  to  the adoption of  the Proposed Budget,  the 
District  filed  a  copy  of  the  Proposed  Budget  with  the  local  governing  authorities  having 
jurisdiction over the area  included  in the District pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 2004‐
456(16), Laws of Florida; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the Board set the date for a public hearing thereon and caused notice of such 
public hearing to be given by publication; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District Manager posted the Proposed Budget on the District’s website at 
least two days before the public hearing; and  

 
  WHEREAS, Chapter 2004‐456(16), Laws of Florida, requires that, prior to October 1st of 
each year, the Board, by passage of the Annual Appropriation Resolution, shall adopt a budget 
for the ensuing fiscal year and appropriate such sums of money as the Board deems necessary to 
defray all expenditures of the District during the ensuing fiscal year; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the District Manager has prepared a Proposed Budget, whereby the budget 
shall  project  the  cash  receipts  and  disbursements  anticipated  during  a  given  time  period, 
including reserves for contingencies for emergency or other unanticipated expenditures during 
the fiscal year. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE  IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

 
  SECTION 1.  BUDGET 
 

a.   The Board has reviewed the Proposed Budget, a copy of which is on file with the 
office of the District Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office, and hereby 
approves certain amendments thereto, as shown in Section 2 below. 

 

Page 14



2 
 

b.   The Proposed Budget, attached hereto as Exhibit “A,” as amended by the Board, 
is hereby adopted  in accordance with  the provisions of Chapter 2004‐456(16), 
Laws  of  Florida  (“Adopted  Budget”),  and  incorporated  herein  by  reference; 
provided, however, that the comparative figures contained in the Adopted Budget 
may be  subsequently  revised as deemed necessary by  the District Manager  to 
reflect actual revenues and expenditures. 

 
c.   The Adopted Budget, as amended, shall be maintained in the office of the District 

Manager and at the District’s Local Records Office and identified as “The Budget 
for the West Villages Improvement District for the Fiscal Year Ending September 
30, 2023.” 

 
d.  The Adopted Budget  shall be posted by  the District Manager on  the District’s 

official website within  thirty  (30) days after adoption, and  shall  remain on  the 
website for at least 2 years.   

 
  SECTION 2.  APPROPRIATIONS 
 
  There  is  hereby  appropriated  out  of  the  revenues  of  the  District,  for  Fiscal  Year 
2022/2023,  the  sum  of  $________________  to  be  raised  by  the  levy  of  assessments  and 
otherwise, which sum is deemed by the Board to be necessary to defray all expenditures of the 
District during said budget year, to be divided and appropriated in the following fashion: 
 

TOTAL GENERAL FUND        $______________________ 
 

DEBT SERVICE FUNDS         $______________________ 
 

TOTAL ALL FUNDS          $______________________ 
   
  SECTION 3.  BUDGET AMENDMENTS 
 
  Pursuant to Section 189.016, Florida Statutes, the District at any time within Fiscal Year 
2022/2023 or within 60 days  following  the end of  the Fiscal Year 2022/2023 may amend  its 
Adopted Budget for that fiscal year as follows: 
 

a. The  Board may  authorize  an  increase  or  decrease  in  line  item  appropriations 
within a fund by motion recorded in the minutes if the total appropriations of the 
fund do not increase. 

 
b. The District Manager or Treasurer may authorize an increase or decrease in line 

item appropriations within a fund  if the total appropriations of the fund do not 
increase and if the aggregate change in the original appropriation item does not 
exceed $10,000 or 10% of the original appropriation. 

 

Page 15



3 
 

c. By  resolution,  the Board may  increase  any  appropriation  item  and/or  fund  to 
reflect receipt of any additional unbudgeted monies and make the corresponding 
change to appropriations or the unappropriated balance. 

 
d. Any other budget amendments shall be adopted by resolution and consistent with 

Florida law. 
 
  The District Manager or Treasurer must establish administrative procedures  to ensure 
that any budget amendments are in compliance with this Section 3 and Section 189.016, Florida 
Statutes,  among  other  applicable  laws.    Among  other  procedures,  the  District  Manager  or 
Treasurer must ensure that any amendments to budget under subparagraphs c. and d. above are 
posted on the District’s website within 5 days after adoption and remain on the website for at 
least 2 years.   
 

SECTION 4.   EFFECTIVE  DATE.    This  Resolution  shall  take  effect  immediately  upon 
adoption.  
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 18th DAY OF AUGUST 2022.  
 
ATTEST:            WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT  
              DISTRICT 
 
 
                           
Secretary / Assistant Secretary       Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Exhibit A:  Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Budget 
   

Page 16



4 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Budget 
 

Page 17



                                    Prepared by

West Villages
Improvement District

Final Budget For
Fiscal Year 2022/2023

October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2023

Page 18



1 Final Budget - Recap By Unit

2 Final Infrastructure Maintenance Breakdown

3 Final Budget - District Proper

4 Final Budget - Unit 1

5 Final Budget - Unit 2

6 Final Budget - Unit 3

7 Final Budget - Unit 4

8 Final Budget - Unit 5

9 Final Budget - Unit 7

10 Final Budget - Unit 8

11 Final Budget - Unit 9

12 Budget Comparison

13 Final Debt Service Fund Budget - Unit 1

14 Final Debt Service Fund Budget - Unit 2

15 Final Debt Service Fund Budget - Unit 3

16 Final Debt Service Fund Budget - Unit 4

17 Final Debt Service Fund Budget - Unit 5

18 Final Debt Service Fund Budget - Unit 7

19 Final Debt Service Fund Budget - Unit 8

20 Assessment Recap - District Proper

21 Assessment Recap - Unit 1

22 Assessment Recap - Unit 2 Total Gross

23 Assessment Recap - Unit 2 Collection Method

24 Assessment Recap - Unit 3 Total Gross

25 Assessment Recap - Unit 4 Total Gross

26 Assessment Recap - Unit 4 Collection Method

27 Assessment Recap - Unit 7 Total Gross

28 Assessment Recap - Unit 7 Collection Method

29 Assessment Recap - Unit 8 Total Gross

30 Assessment Recap - Unit 8 Collection Method

31 Assessments - Islandwalk

32 Assessments - Gran Paradiso

33 Assessments - Renaissance, Oasis, Preserve 

34 Assessments - Unit 7 Villages

35 Assessments - Unit 8 Villages

36 Assessments - Thomas 167 & Other

A-1 Debt Assessment Methodology - Unit 1

A-2 Debt Assessment Methodology - Unit 2

A-3 Debt Assessment Methodology - Unit 3

A-4 Debt Assessment Methodology - Unit 4

A-5 Debt Assessment Methodology - Unit 7

A-6 Debt Assessment Methodology - Unit 8

TOC-1

Table of Contents

Appendix

Page 19



District Proper Unit 1 Unit 2 Unit 3 Unit 4 Unit 5 Unit 7 Unit 8 Unit 9 Total

REVENUES

O & M Assessments 334,602 2,161,960 55,683 284,282 105,718 0 15,486 0 0 2,957,730
O & M Direct Bill 24,330 43,405 1,513 0 -1,620 87,255 362,599 149,405 53,655 720,542
Debt Assessments 0 2,357,243 2,686,290 1,339,807 866,319 0 184,260 0 0 7,433,919
Debt Direct Bill 0 158,185 70,400 0 23,326 3,625,720 2,333,781 725,308 0 6,936,721
Interest / Other Income 1,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,000
Developer Funding 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
Carry Over From Prior Year 18,205 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 18,205
Total Revenues 378,137$          4,720,793$       2,813,886$       1,624,089$       993,744$          3,712,975$       2,896,126$       874,713$          53,655$           18,068,118$     

EXPENDITURES

Infrastructure Maintenance 0 1,967,143 0 100,620 40,650 10,000 283,500 60,250 0 2,462,163
GIS Project 40,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 40,000
Engineering 45,000 25,000 2,000 25,000 2,500 2,500 20,000 20,000 5,000 147,000
Management 60,586 12,005 12,005 12,005 12,005 12,005 12,005 12,005 12,005 156,626
Operations Administration 31,300 33,300 15,650 17,650 17,650 17,650 17,650 15,650 15,650 182,150
Legal 75,000 25,000 10,000 100,000 13,000 10,000 20,000 15,000 5,000 273,000
Assessment Roll 7,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 0 1,500 1,500 1,500 18,000
Audit Fees 6,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 3,000 30,000
Arbitrage Rebate Fee 0 1,500 1,500 1,500 1,500 0 1,500 1,500 1,000 10,000
Rents & Leases 15,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,000
Insurance 47,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 47,000
Legal Advertising 15,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 15,000
Miscellaneous 3,175 1,700 1,700 1,700 1,700 25,000 5,000 10,000 5,000 54,975
Postage 3,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,000
Office Supplies 8,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 8,000
Trustee Fees 0 5,000 5,000 3,750 3,750 5,600 12,000 10,000 5,000 50,100
Website 1,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,500
Continuing Disc Fee 0 500 1,500 500 500 1,500 1,000 500 500 6,500
Total Expenditures 358,061$          2,075,648$       53,855$           267,225$          97,755$           87,255$           377,155$          149,405$          53,655$           3,520,013$       

Excess / (Shortfall) 20,076$           2,645,146$       2,760,031$       1,356,864$       895,989$          3,625,720$       2,518,971$       725,308$          -$                 14,548,105$     

Payment to Trustee (Unit 1) 0 (2,373,994) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (2,373,994)
Payment to Trustee (Unit 2) 0 0 (2,595,513)       0 0 0 0 0 0 (2,595,513)
Payment to Trustee (Unit 3) 0 0 0 (1,259,419) 0 0 0 0 0 (1,259,419)
Payment to Trustee (Unit 4) 0 0 0 0 (837,666) 0 0 0 0 (837,666)
Payment to Trustee (Unit 5) 0 0 0 0 0 (3,625,720) 0 0 0 (3,625,720)
Payment to Trustee (Unit 7) 0 0 0 0 0 0 (2,506,985) 0 0 (2,506,985)
Payment to Trustee (Unit 8) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 (725,308) 0 (725,308)

BALANCE 20,076$           271,152$          164,518$          97,445$           58,322$           -$                 11,985$           -$                 -$                 623,499$          

County Appr & Tax Coll Fee (6,692)              (90,384)            (54,839)            (32,482)            (19,441)            -                       (3,995)              -                       -                       (207,833)
Discounts For Early Payments (13,384)            (180,768)          (109,679)          (64,964)            (38,881)            -                       (7,990)              -                       -                       (415,666)

Net Excess / (Shortfall) -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 -$                 

Page 1

Recap By Unit

   

Page 20



FY 2022 - 2023 Dist Proper Unit 1 Unit 2 Unit 3 Unit 4 Unit 5 Unit 7 Unit 8 Total

MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURE

Lake / Littoral Maintenance 0 110,000 0 0 38,400 10,000 2,250 3,000 163,650
Mitigation Maintenance 0 2,250 0 0 2,250 0 2,250 2,250 9,000
Road Maintenance / Resurface 0 78,865 0 100,620 0 0 0 0 179,485
Road Reconstruction / Widening 0 276,028 0 0 0 0 0 0 276,028
Landscaping 0 912,000 0 0 0 0 279,000 31,000 1,222,000
Security Services 0 26,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 26,000
Street Lighting 0 464,000 0 0 0 0 0 24,000 488,000
Canal Maintenance / Repayment 0 48,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 48,000
Misc Maintenance/Repairs 0 50,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 50,000

Total Maintenance Expenditure -$             1,967,143$  -$             100,620$     40,650$       10,000$       283,500$     60,250$       2,462,163$  

FY 2021 - 2022 Dist Proper Unit 1 Unit 2 Unit 3 Unit 4 Unit 5 Unit 7 Unit 8 Total

MAINTENANCE EXPENDITURE

Lake / Littoral Maintenance 0 50,000 0 0 38,400 8,000 20,700 3,000 120,100
Mitigation Maintenance 0 2,250 0 0 2,250 0 2,250 2,250 9,000
Road Maintenance / Resurface 0 248,000 0 102,000 0 0 0 0 350,000
Landscaping 0 660,000 0 0 0 0 322,000 31,000 1,013,000
Security Services 0 21,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 21,000
Street Lighting 0 100,500 0 0 0 0 111,000 24,000 235,500
Canal Maintenance / Repayment 0 73,500 0 0 0 0 0 0 73,500
Miscellaneous Maintenance/Repairs 0 3,000 0 0 0 0 0 0 3,000

Total Maintenance Expenditure -$             1,158,250$  -$             102,000$     40,650$       8,000$         455,950$     60,250$       1,825,100$  
NOTES:

Unit 1 Lake maintenance increase from treatments to PILI, II, Grand Lake, and additional ponds
Unit 4 lake maintenance increase from Rennaisance lake modifications to lake 8 additonal 4.25 acres, 
Road resurfacing from District Engineer road report 
Unit 1 Resurfacing from spreadsheet reviewd by board on 2/10/22
Unit 3 Road resurfacing from spreadsheet reviewed by board on 2/10/2022
Unit 1 Landscape and Street Lighting inlcudes current contract price and additon of West Villages Parkway and Preto extension,(previosly Unit 7 expenses) also 
               includes 6 months of Manasota Beach Rd,Preto Boulevard, and West Villages Parkway Extension II
Unit 7 landscape and Street Lighting includes annual expense of Mezzo Drive, Merlot Avenue, and six months of Mansota Beach Road, Preto Boulevard, and West Villages Parkway Extension 
Unit 1 increase to Security due to holiday pay 
Unit 1 Canal maintenance also inlcudes 2nd payment to devleoper $35,500 and annual chemical maintenance 
Misc repairs increase Paver repairs, sidewalk repairs, dog park repairs, playground repairs 

Page 2

Infrastructure Maintenance Breakdown

 

Page 21



Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2021/2022 2022/2023

Annual Budget Annual Budget

REVENUES
O & M Assessments 321,836 334,602
O & M Direct Bill 24,330 24,330
Debt Assessments 0 0
Debt Direct Bill 0 0
Developer Contribution 0 0
Interest Income 1,000 1,000
Other 0 0
Carry Over Revenues 18,205 18,205

Total Revenues 365,371$                      378,137$                      

EXPENDITURES
GIS Project 40,000 40,000
Engineering 40,000 45,000
Management 60,586 60,586
Operations Administration 31,300 31,300
Legal 70,000 75,000
Assessment Roll 7,500 7,500
Annual Audit 6,000 6,000
Arbitrage Rebate Fee 0 0
Rents & Leases 15,000 15,000
Insurance 45,000 47,000
Legal Advertising 15,000 15,000
Miscellaneous 3,175 3,175
Postage 3,000 3,000
Office Supplies 8,000 8,000
Trustee Fees 0 0
Continuing Disclosure Fee 0 0
Website 1,500 1,500
Contingency / Prev Shortfall 0 0

Total Expenditures 346,061$                      358,061$                      

EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) 19,310$                        20,076$                        

Payment to Trustee -                                    -                                    

BALANCE 19,310$                        20,076$                        

County Appraiser & Tax Collector Fee (6,437)                           (6,692)                           
Discounts for Early Payments (12,873)                         (13,384)                         

NET EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) -$                              -$                              

*  Fund Balance as of 2-28-22  = $5,564,543

Page 3

District Proper

 

Page 22



Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2021/2022 2022/2023

Annual Budget Annual Budget

REVENUES
O & M Assessments 1,153,527 2,161,960
O & M Direct Bill 43,405 43,405
Debt Assessments 2,356,406 2,357,243
Debt Direct Bill 158,185 158,185
Developer Contribution 0 0
Other Revenues 0 0
Carry Over Revenues 124,035 0

Total Revenues 3,835,557$                   4,720,793$                   

EXPENDITURES
Infrastructure Maintenance 1,158,250 1,967,143
Engineering 20,000 25,000
Management 12,005 12,005
Operations Administration 33,300 33,300
Legal 15,000 25,000
Assessment Roll 1,500 1,500
Audit Fees 3,000 3,000
Arbitrage Rebate Fee 1,500 1,500
Rents & Leases 0 0
Insurance 0 0
Legal Advertising 0 0
Miscellaneous 1,700 1,700
Postage 0 0
Office Supplies 0 0
Trustee Fees 5,000 5,000
Continuing Disclosure Fee 500 500
Website 0 0
Continuing / Prev Shortfall 0 0

Total Expenditures 1,251,755$                   2,075,648$                   

EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) 2,583,802$                   2,645,146$                   

Payment to Trustee (2,373,206) (2,373,994)

BALANCE 210,596$                      271,152$                      

County Appraiser & Tax Collector Fee (70,199)                         (90,384)                         
Discounts for Early Payments (140,397)                       (180,768)                       

NET EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) -$                              -$                              
As of 2/28/22
   General Fund Balance :    $802,904

   Road Resurfacing Fund Balance:                        $458,063

For Infratructure Maintenance Detail see page 2
Page 4

Unit 1

 

Page 23



Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2021/2022 2022/2023

Annual Budget Annual Budget

REVENUES
O & M Assessments 3,986 55,683
O & M Direct Bill 108 1,513
Debt Assessments 2,687,138 2,686,290
Debt Direct Bill 71,708 70,400
Developer Contribution 0 0
Other Revenues 0 0
Carry Over Funds from Prior Year 50,000 0

Total Revenues 2,812,940$                   2,813,886$                   

EXPENDITURES
Infrastructure Maintenance 0 0
Engineering 2,000 2,000
Management 12,005 12,005
Operations Administration 15,650 15,650
Legal 10,000 10,000
Assessment Roll 1,500 1,500
Audit Fees 3,000 3,000
Arbitrage Rebate Fee 1,500 1,500
Rents & Leases 0 0
Insurance 0 0
Legal Advertising 0 0
Miscellaneous 1,700 1,700
Postage 0 0
Office Supplies 0 0
Trustee Fees 5,000 5,000
Continuing Disclosure Fee 1,500 1,500
Website 0 0
Contingency / Prev Shortfall 0 0

Total Expenditures 53,855$                        53,855$                        

EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) 2,759,085$                   2,760,031$                   

Payment to Trustee (2,597,617)                    (2,595,513)                    

BALANCE 161,467$                      164,518$                      

County Appraiser & Tax Collector Fee (53,822)                         (54,839)                         
Discounts for Early Payments (107,645)                       (109,679)                       

NET EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) -$                              -$                              

*  Fund Balance as of 2-28-22  = $155,229

Page 5

Unit 2

 

Page 24



Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2021/2022 2022/2023

Annual Budget Annual Budget

REVENUES
O & M Assessments 179,772 284,282
O & M Direct Bill 2,619 0
Debt Assessments 1,316,180 1,339,807
Debt Direct Bill 22,210 0
Developer Contribution 0 0
Other Revenues 0 0
Carry Over Funds from Prior Year 0 0

Total Revenues 1,520,781$                   1,624,089$                   

EXPENDITURES
Infrastructure Maintenance 102,000 100,620
Engineering 13,000 25,000
Management 12,005 12,005
Operations Administration 17,650 17,650
Legal 15,000 100,000
Assessment Roll 1,500 1,500
Audit Fees 3,000 3,000
Arbitrage Rebate Fee 1,500 1,500
Rents & Leases 0 0
Insurance 0 0
Legal Advertising 0 0
Miscellaneous 1,700 1,700
Postage 0 0
Office Supplies 0 0
Trustee Fees 3,750 3,750
Continuing Disclosure Fee 500 500
Website 0 0
Contingency / Prev Shortfall 0 0

Total Expenditures 171,605$                      267,225$                      

EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) 1,349,176$                   1,356,864$                   

Payment to Trustee (1,259,419)                    (1,259,419)                    

BALANCE 89,757$                        97,445$                        

County Appraiser & Tax Collector Fee (29,919)                         (32,482)                         
Discounts for Early Payments (59,838)                         (64,964)                         

NET EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) -$                              -$                              
As of 2/28/22
     General Fund Balance:     $669,546

     Road Resurfacing Fund Balance:                      $387,482

Engineering increase cost to address POA representative questions
Legal increase cost to address POA representative questions

Page 6

Unit 3

 

Page 25



Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2021/2022 2022/2023

Annual Budget Annual Budget

REVENUES
O & M Assessments 80,074 105,718
O & M Direct Bill 22,486 -1,620
Debt Assessments 640,330 866,319
Debt Direct Bill 235,756 23,326
Developer Contribution 0 0
Other Revenues 0 0
Carry Over Funds from Prior Year 0 0

Total Revenues 978,646$                      993,744$                      

EXPENDITURES
Infrastructure Maintenance 40,650 40,650
Engineering 2,500 2,500
Management 12,005 12,005
Operations Administration 17,650 17,650
Legal 13,000 13,000
Assessment Roll 1,500 1,500
Audit Fees 3,000 3,000
Arbitrage Rebate Fee 1,500 1,500
Rents & Leases 0 0
Insurance 0 0
Legal Advertising 0 0
Miscellaneous 1,700 1,700
Postage 0 0
Office Supplies 0 0
Trustee Fees 3,750 3,750
Continuing Disclosure Fee 500 500
Website 0 0
Contingency / Prev Shortfall 0 0

Total Expenditures 97,755$                        97,755$                        

EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) 880,891$                      895,989$                      

Payment to Trustee (837,666)                       (837,666)                       

BALANCE 43,224$                        58,322$                        

County Appraiser & Tax Collector Fee (14,408)                         (19,441)                         
Discounts for Early Payments (28,816)                         (38,881)                         

NET EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) -$                              -$                              

*  Fund Balance as of 2-28-22  = $289,677

Page 7

Unit 4

 

Page 26



Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2021/2022 2022/2023

Annual Budget Annual Budget

REVENUES
O & M Assessments 0 0
O & M Direct Bill 62,755 87,255
Debt Assessments 0 0
Debt Direct Bill 3,625,720 3,625,720
Developer Contribution 0 0
Other Revenues 0 0
Carry Over Funds from Prior Year 0 0

Total Revenues 3,688,475$                    3,712,975$                   

EXPENDITURES
Infrastructure Maintenance 8,000 10,000
Engineering 2,500 2,500
Management 12,005 12,005
Operations Administration 17,650 17,650
Legal 10,000 10,000
Assessment Roll 0 0
Audit Fees 3,000 3,000
Arbitrage Rebate Fee 0 0
Rents & Leases 0 0
Insurance 0 0
Legal Advertising 0 0
Miscellaneous 2,500 25,000
Postage 0 0
Office Supplies 0 0
Trustee Fees 5,600 5,600
Continuing Disclosure Fee 1,500 1,500
Website 0 0
Contingency / Prev Shortfall 0 0

Total Expenditures 62,755$                         87,255$                        

EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) 3,625,720$                    3,625,720$                   

Payment to Trustee (3,625,720)                     (3,625,720)                    

BALANCE -$                              -$                              

County Appraiser & Tax Collector Fee -                                    -                                    
Discounts for Early Payments -                                    -                                    

NET EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) -$                              -$                              

*  Fund Balance as of 2-28-22  = ($342,267)

Misc expense increase due to Fitch 

Page 8

Unit 5

 

Page 27



Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2021/2022 2022/2023

Annual Budget Annual Budget

REVENUES
O & M Assessments 0 15,486
O & M Direct Bill 532,105 362,599
Debt Assessments 0 184,260
Debt Direct Bill 2,506,985 2,333,781
Developer Contribution 0 0
Other Revenues 0 0
Carry Over Funds from Prior Year 0 0

Total Revenues 3,039,090$                    2,896,126$                   

EXPENDITURES
Infrastructure Maintenance 455,950 283,500
Engineering 10,000 20,000
Management 12,005 12,005
Operations Administration 17,650 17,650
Legal 15,000 20,000
Assessment Roll 1,500 1,500
Audit Fees 3,000 3,000
Arbitrage Rebate Fee 1,500 1,500
Rents & Leases 0 0
Insurance 0 0
Legal Advertising 0 0
Miscellaneous 10,000 5,000
Postage 0 0
Office Supplies 0 0
Trustee Fees 5,000 12,000
Continuing Disclosure Fee 500 1,000
Website 0 0
Contingency / Prev Shortfall 0 0

Total Expenditures 532,105$                       377,155$                      

EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) 2,506,985$                    2,518,971$                   

Payment to Trustee (2,506,985)                     (2,506,985)                    

BALANCE -$                              11,985$                        

County Appraiser & Tax Collector Fee -                                    (3,995)                           
Discounts for Early Payments -                                    (7,990)                           

NET EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) -$                              -$                              

*  Fund Balance as of 2-28-22  = $601,451

Page 9

Unit 7

 

Page 28



Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2021/2022 2022/2023

Annual Budget Annual Budget

REVENUES
O & M Assessments 0 0
O & M Direct Bill 126,405 149,405
Debt Assessments 0 0
Debt Direct Bill 725,308 725,308
Developer Contribution 0 0
Other Revenues 0 0
Carry Over Funds from Prior Year 0 0

Total Revenues 851,713$                       874,713$                      

EXPENDITURES
Infrastructure Maintenance 60,250 60,250
Engineering 2,000 20,000
Management 12,005 12,005
Operations Administration 15,650 15,650
Legal 15,000 15,000
Assessment Roll 1,500 1,500
Audit Fees 3,000 3,000
Arbitrage Rebate Fee 1,500 1,500
Rents & Leases 0 0
Insurance 0 0
Legal Advertising 0 0
Miscellaneous 10,000 10,000
Postage 0 0
Office Supplies 0 0
Trustee Fees 5,000 10,000
Continuing Disclosure Fee 500 500
Website 0 0
Contingency / Prev Shortfall 0 0

Total Expenditures 126,405$                       149,405$                      

EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) 725,308$                       725,308$                      

Payment to Trustee (725,308)                        (725,308)                       

BALANCE -$                              -$                              

County Appraiser & Tax Collector Fee -                                    -                                    
Discounts for Early Payments -                                    -                                    

NET EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) -$                              -$                              

*  Fund Balance as of 2-28-22  = ($12,099)

Page 10

Unit 8

 

Page 29



Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2021/2022 2022/2023

Annual Budget Annual Budget

REVENUES
O & M Assessments 0 0
O & M Direct Bill 0 53,655
Debt Assessments 0 0
Debt Direct Bill 0 0
Developer Contribution 0 0
Other Revenues 0 0
Carry Over Funds from Prior Year 0 0

Total Revenues -$                              53,655$                        

EXPENDITURES
Infrastructure Maintenance 0 0
Engineering 0 5,000
Management 0 12,005
Operations Administration 0 15,650
Legal 0 5,000
Assessment Roll 0 1,500
Audit Fees 0 3,000
Arbitrage Rebate Fee 0 1,000
Rents & Leases 0 0
Insurance 0 0
Legal Advertising 0 0
Miscellaneous 0 5,000
Postage 0 0
Office Supplies 0 0
Trustee Fees 0 5,000
Continuing Disclosure Fee 0 500
Website 0 0
Contingency / Prev Shortfall 0 0

Total Expenditures -$                              53,655$                        

EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) -$                              -$                              

Payment to Trustee -                                    -                                    

BALANCE -$                              -$                              

County Appraiser & Tax Collector Fee -                                    -                                    
Discounts for Early Payments -                                    -                                    

NET EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) -$                              -$                              

*  Fund Balance as of 2-28-22  = $0

Page 11

Unit 9

 

Page 30



Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year

2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023

Actual Annual Budget Annual Budget

REVENUES

O & M Assessments 1,984,430 1,739,194 2,957,730

O & M Direct Bill 342,976 814,213 720,542

Debt Assessments 5,831,326 7,000,053 7,433,919

Debt Direct Bill 915,292 7,345,872 6,936,721

Interest / Other Income 5,068,078 1,000 1,000

Bond Prepayments 107,399 0 0

Bond Prepayments Sent to Trustee (107,399) 0 0

Developer Funding 4,524,782 0 0

Carry Over Funds from Prior Year 0 192,240 18,205

Total Revenues 18,666,884$          17,092,573$               18,068,118$               

EXPENDITURES

Infrastructure Maintenance 2,876,965 1,825,100 2,462,163

GIS Project 72,985 40,000 40,000

Engineering 150,689 92,000 147,000

Management 141,619 144,621 156,626

Operations Administration 140,850 166,500 182,150

Legal 142,342 163,000 273,000

Assessment Roll 15,000 16,500 18,000

Audit Fees 24,417 27,000 30,000

Arbitrage Rebate Fee 4,550 9,000 10,000

Rents & Leases 14,400 15,000 15,000

Insurance 40,754 45,000 47,000

Legal Advertising 13,592 15,000 15,000

Miscellaneous 35,746 32,475 54,975

Postage 1,062 3,000 3,000

Office Supplies 1,054 8,000 8,000

Trustee Fees 33,308 33,100 50,100

Continuing Disclosure Fee 6,000 5,500 6,500

Website 1,500 1,500 1,500

Contingency / Construction Cost 3,036,441 0 0

Total Expenditures 6,753,274 2,642,296 3,520,013

EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) 11,913,610$          14,450,277$               14,548,105$               

Debt Payment to Trustee (All Units) (6,436,093) (13,925,922)                    (13,924,605)                    

BALANCE 5,477,517$            524,355$                    623,499$                    

County Appraiser & Tax Collector Fee (75,234)                      (174,785)                         (207,833)                         

Discounts for Early Payments (303,519)                    (349,570)                         (415,666)                         

NET EXCESS / (SHORTFALL) 5,098,764$            -$                           -$                           

Page 12

Budget Comparison

 

Page 31



Fiscal Year

2022/2023

Annual Budget

REVENUES

Interest Income 0

Debt Collections 2,373,994

Total Revenues 2,373,994$                 

EXPENDITURES

Principal Payments 1,200,000

Interest Payments 1,173,994

Miscellaneous / Extra Redemption 0

Total Expenditures 2,373,994$                 

Excess / (Shortfall) -$                                

Original Par Amount = $32,165,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Avarage Interest Rate = 4.47% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = July 2017

Maturity Date = May 2038

Page 13

Series 2017 Bond Information

Unit 1 - Debt Service

 

Page 32



Fiscal Year

 2022/2023

Annual Budget

REVENUES

Interest Income 0

Net Debt Collections 1,407,406

Total Revenues 1,407,406$                  

EXPENDITURES

Principal Payments 645,000

Interest Payments 753,106

Miscellaneous / Extra Redemption 9,300

Total Expenditures 1,407,406$                  

Excess / (Shortfall) -$                             

Series 2019A-1 Bifurcated Bond Information (Performing)
Original Par Amount = $15,190,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Interest Rate = 5.750% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = October 2019

Maturity Date = May 2036

Fiscal Year

 2022/2023

Annual Budget

REVENUES

Interest Income 0

Net Debt Collections 1,188,107

Total Revenues 1,188,107$                  

EXPENDITURES

Principal Payments 545,000

Interest Payments 639,831

Miscellaneous / Extra Redemption 3,275

Total Expenditures 1,188,107$                  

Excess / (Shortfall) -$                             

Original Par Amount = $12,830,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Interest Rate = 5.750% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = October 2019

Maturity Date = May 2036

Page 14

Series 2019A-2 Bifurcated Bond Information (Non Performing)

Unit 2 - Debt Service

Series 2019A-2 (Non Performing)

Series 2019A-1 (Performing)

Page 33



Fiscal Year

 2022/2023

Annual Budget

REVENUES

Interest Income 0

Net Debt Collections 1,259,419

Total Revenues 1,259,419$                 

EXPENDITURES

Principal Payments 650,000

Interest Payments 604,810

Miscellaneous / Extra Redemption 4,609

Total Expenditures 1,259,419$                 

Excess / (Shortfall) -$                                

Original Par Amount = $16,550,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Average Interest Rate = 4.66% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = July 2017

Maturity Date = May 2037

Page 15

Unit 3 - Debt Service

Series 2017 Bond Information

Page 34



Fiscal Year

 2022/2023

Annual Budget

REVENUES

Interest Income 0

Net Debt Collections 837,666

Total Revenues 837,666$                    

EXPENDITURES

Principal Payments 275,000

Interest Payments 561,675

Miscellaneous / Extra Redemption 991

Total Expenditures 837,666$                    

Excess / (Shortfall) -$                                

Original Par Amount = $13,090,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = November 1st

Average Interest Rate = 4.88% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = October 2016

Maturity Date = November 2046

Page 16

Unit 4 - Debt Service

Series 2016 Bond Information

Page 35



Fiscal Year
 2022/2023

Annual Budget

REVENUES

Direct Assessments - State of Florida 1,000,000

Direct Assessments - Atlanta Braves 2,625,720

Total Revenues 3,625,720$                       

EXPENDITURES

2017A Principal Payments 570,000

2017A Interest Payments 424,011

2017B Principal Payments 1,421,569

2017B Interest Payments 1,167,027

Other / Extra Redemption 43,114

Total Expenditures 3,625,720$                       

Excess / (Shortfall) -$                                      

Original Par Amount = $13,955,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = February 1st & August 1st

Average Interest Rate = 3.72% Annual Interest Payments Due = February 1st & August 1st

Issue Date = December 2017

Maturity Date = February 2038

Original Par Amount = $27,500,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = June 30th & December 30th

Average Interest Rate = 5.39% Annual Interest Payments Due = June 30th & December 30th

Issue Date = December 2017

Maturity Date = December 2033

Page 17

Unit 5 - Debt Service

Series 2017A Bond Information

Series 2017B Bond Information

Page 36



Fiscal Year

 2022/2023

Annual Budget

REVENUES

Interest 0

Net Master Debt Collections 1,974,499

Net Village B Debt Collections 86,602

Net Village F1 & F5 Debt Collections 445,884

Total Revenues 2,506,985$                 

EXPENDITURES

2019 Master Principal Payments 540,000

2019 Master Interest Payments 1,433,138

2019 Village B Principal Payments 25,000

2019 Village B Interest Payments 61,025

2021 Village F1 & F5 Principal Payments 165,000

2021 Village F1 & F5 Interest Payments 279,225

Other / Extra Redemption 3,598

Total Expenditures 2,506,985$                 

Excess / (Shortfall) -$                                

Original Par Amount = $31,040,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Average Interest Rate = 4.90% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = April 2019

Maturity Date = May 2050

Original Par Amount = $1,320,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Average Interest Rate = 4.90% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = April 2019

Maturity Date = May 2050

Original Par Amount = $7,975,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Average Interest Rate = 3.79% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = April 2021

Maturity Date = May 2051

Page 18

Unit 7 - Debt Service

Series 2019 Village B Bond Information

Series 2019 Master Bond Information

Series 2021 Village F1 & F5 Bond Information

Page 37



Fiscal Year

 2022/2023

Annual Budget

REVENUES

Interest 0

Net Master Debt Collections 725,308

Total Revenues 725,308$                     

EXPENDITURES

2021 Master Principal Payments 270,000

2021 Master Interest Payments 455,269

Other / Extra Redemption 39

Total Expenditures 725,308$                     

Excess / (Shortfall) -$                                 

Original Par Amount = $13,000,000 Annual Principal Payments Due = May 1st

Average Interest Rate = 3.79% Annual Interest Payments Due = May 1st & November 1st

Issue Date = April 2021

Maturity Date = May 2051

Page 19

Unit 8 - Debt Service

Series 2021 Master Bond Information

Page 38



A B C F G F G

Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year
Lot 2021/2022 2021/2022 2022/2023 2022/2023
Type Units Assessment Assessment Per Unit  Projected Assessment  Projected Assessment Per Unit

Developed Administrative 8,284.29$                 15.84$                    7,761.08$                  14.84$                                    
Lots In Unit 1 Only Debt 523 -$                          -$                        -$                           -$                                       

Sub-Total 8,284.29$                 15.84$                    7,761.08$                  14.84$                                    

Developed Administrative 29,589.00$               15.84$                    27,720.25$                14.84$                                    
Lots In Unit 2 Debt 1,868 -$                          -$                        -$                           -$                                       

Sub-Total 29,589.00$               15.84$                    27,720.25$                14.84$                                    

Developed Administrative 28,939.56$               15.84$                    27,111.82$                14.84$                                    
Lots In Unit 3 Debt 1,827 -$                          -$                        -$                           -$                                       

Sub-Total 28,939.56$               15.84$                    27,111.82$                14.84$                                    

Developed Administrative 12,450.19$               15.84$                    11,663.87$                14.84$                                    
Lots In Unit 4 Debt 786 -$                          -$                        -$                           -$                                       

Sub-Total 12,450.19$               15.84$                    11,663.87$                14.84$                                    

Developed Lots Administrative -$                          15.84$                    0 14.84$                                    
In Sarasota County Debt 0 -$                          -$                        -$                           -$                                       

Sub-Total -$                          15.84$                    -$                           14.84$                                    

Undeveloped Administrative 163,705.73$             15.84$                    153,366.56$              14.84$                                    
Land In Unit 1 Debt 10,335 -$                          -$                        -$                           -$                                       

Sub-Total 163,705.73$             15.84$                    153,366.56$              14.84$                                    

Undeveloped Administrative 3,247.19$                 15.84$                    3,042.10$                  14.84$                                    
Land In Unit 2 Debt 205 -$                          -$                        -$                           -$                                       

Sub-Total 3,247.19$                 15.84$                    3,042.10$                  14.84$                                    

Undeveloped Administrative 1,441.43$                 15.84$                    1,350.40$                  14.84$                                    
Land In Unit 3 Debt 91 -$                          -$                        -$                           -$                                       

Sub-Total 1,441.43$                 15.84$                    1,350.40$                  14.84$                                    

Undeveloped Administrative 3,769.90$                 15.84$                    3,531.81$                  14.84$                                    
Land In Unit 4 Debt 238 -$                          -$                        -$                           -$                                       

Sub-Total 3,769.90$                 15.84$                    3,531.81$                  14.84$                                    

Undeveloped Land Administrative 115,679.05$             15.84$                    108,373.10$              14.84$                                    
In Sarasota County Debt 7,303 -$                          -$                        -$                           -$                                       

Sub-Total 115,679.05$             15.84$                    108,373.10$              14.84$                                    

Total 23,176 321,835.81$             334,601.77$            

Administrative Assessment Includes 1% County Tax Collector Fee, a 1% County Property 
Appraiser Fee and a 4% discount for early payment of taxes.

Note: The Assessment is calculated by the assessable units.  1 unit = 1/2 acre or less portion. 

There are 22,548.00 assessable units in the District.

Page 20

Assessment Recap - District Proper

 

Page 39



A B C F G F G

Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year
Lot 2021/2022 2021/2022 2022/2023 2022/2023

Type Units Assessment Assessment Per Unit Projected Assessment Projected Assessment Per Unit

Developed Administrative 40,721.86$               77.86$                     69,428.04$                132.75$                                  
Lots In Unit 1 Only Debt 523 83,185.97$               159.06$                   75,699.27$                144.74$                                  

Sub-Total 123,907.83$             236.92$                   145,127.31$              277.49$                                  

Developed Administrative 145,446.35$             77.86$                     247,976.27$              132.75$                                  
Lots In Unit 2 Debt 1,868 297,115.47$             159.06$                   270,375.21$              144.74$                                  

Sub-Total 442,561.82$             236.92$                   518,351.47$              277.49$                                  

Developed Administrative 142,254.01$             77.86$                     242,533.53$              132.75$                                  
Lots In Unit 3 Debt 1,827 290,594.20$             159.06$                   264,440.85$              144.74$                                  

Sub-Total 432,848.20$             236.92$                   506,974.38$              277.49$                                  

Developed Administrative 61,199.59$               77.86$                     104,341.19$              132.75$                                  
Lots In Unit 4 Debt 786 125,017.54$             159.06$                   113,766.01$              144.74$                                  

Sub-Total 186,217.12$             236.92$                   218,107.20$              277.49$                                  

Undeveloped Admin / Maint 804,704.51$             77.86$                     1,371,967.19$           132.75$                                  
Land In Unit 1 Debt 10,335 1,643,837.45$          159.06$                   1,495,892.80$           144.74$                                  

Sub-Total 2,448,541.96$          236.92$                   2,867,859.99$           277.49$                                  

Undeveloped Administrative 15,961.72$               77.86$                     27,213.67$                132.75$                                  
Land In Unit 2 Debt 205 32,606.35$               159.06$                   29,671.80$                144.74$                                  

Sub-Total 48,568.08$               236.92$                   56,885.47$                277.49$                                  

Undeveloped Administrative 7,085.45$                 77.86$                     12,080.21$                132.75$                                  
Land In Unit 3 Debt 91 14,474.04$               159.06$                   13,171.38$                144.74$                                  

Sub-Total 21,559.49$               236.92$                   25,251.60$                277.49$                                  

Undeveloped Administrative 18,531.17$               77.86$                     31,594.41$                132.75$                                  
Land In Unit 4 Debt 238 37,855.18$               159.06$                   34,448.23$                144.74$                                  

Sub-Total 56,386.36$               236.92$                   66,042.64$                277.49$                                  

Total Admin / Maint 1,153,526.60$                2,161,960.11$           
Total Debt 2,356,405.60$                2,357,243.36$           

Total 15,873 3,509,932.19$          4,519,203.47$       

Admin / Maint Assessment Includes 1% County Tax Collector Fee, a 1% County Property 
Appraiser Fee and a 4% discount for early payment of taxes. 159

Note: The Assessment is calculated by the assessable units as shown in Exhibit D of the
Unit 1 Report Of Engineer.

There are 16,286.00 assessable units in Unit 1.

Page 21

Assessment Recap - Unit 1

Page 40



A B C E F I H I

Methodology Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year

Lot Maximum Admin / Maint Assessment 2021/2022 2022/2023 2022/2023

Type Percentage Allocation Units Per Unit Projected Assessment Projected Per Unit

Island Walk Admin / Maint 1,799 0.55$                   13,732.22$                    7.63$                             
Single Debt 23.97% 13,732.22 1,796 379.89$               682,282.44$                  379.89$                         

Family Sub-Total 380.44$               696,014.66$                  387.52$                         

Island Walk Admin / Maint 0.54$                   531.90$                         7.60$                             
Multi Debt 0.93% 531.90 70 378.22$               26,475.40$                    378.22$                         

Family Sub-Total 378.76$               27,007.30$                    385.82$                         

Gran Paradiso Admin / Maint 1,439 0.61$                   12,262.55$                    8.52$                             
Single Debt 21.40% 12,262.55 1,414 424.10$               599,677.40$                  424.10$                         

Family Sub-Total 424.71$               611,939.95$                  432.62$                         

Gran Paradiso Admin / Maint 0.52$                   2,032.95$                      7.26$                             
Multi Debt 3.55% 2,032.95 280 361.34$               101,175.20$                  361.34$                         

Family (3 BDR) Sub-Total 361.86$               103,208.15$                  368.60$                         

Gran Paradiso Admin / Maint 280 0.46$                   1,812.57$                      6.47$                             
Multi Debt 3.16% 1,812.57 272 322.17$               87,630.24$                    322.17$                         

Family (2 BDR) Sub-Total 322.63$               89,442.81$                    328.64$                         

Preserve Admin / Maint 0.55$                   839.68$                         7.63$                             
Single Debt 1.47% 839.68 110 -$                     -$                               -$                              

Family Sub-Total 0.55$                   839.68$                         7.63$                             

Preserve Admin / Maint 0.54$                   683.84$                         7.60$                             
Multi Debt 1.19% 683.84 90 -$                     -$                               -$                              

Family Sub-Total 0.54$                   683.84$                         7.60$                             

Thomas 167 * Admin / Maint 0.53$                   563.36$                         7.41$                             
Multi Debt 0.98% 563.36 76 368.91$               28,037.16$                    368.91$                         

Family (3 BDR) Sub-Total 369.44$               28,600.52$                    376.32$                         

Thomas 167 * Admin / Maint 0.47$                   927.58$                         6.63$                             
Multi Debt 1.62% 927.58 140 329.74$               46,163.60$                    329.74$                         

Family (2 BDR) Sub-Total 330.21$               47,091.18$                    336.37$                         

Thomas 167 * Admin / Maint 18.50$                 23,905.87$                    258.47$                         
Commercial Debt 41.73% 23,905.87 92.49 12,863.47$          1,189,742.34$               12,863.47$                    

Sub-Total 12,881.97$          1,213,648.21$               13,121.94$                    

57,292.52$                    
2,761,183.78$               

Total 100.00% 57,292.55$                   4,376 2,816,952.78$           

Admin / Maint Assessment Includes 1% County Tax Collector Fee, a 1% County Property 

Appraiser Fee and a 4% discount for early payment of taxes.

Notes: 

* Thomas 167 was originally referred to as the "Town Center" in the Unit 2 Methodology and included Town Center Residential and Town Center Commercial

The Debt Assessment is calculated by the WVID Unit 2 Amended & Restated Final MR Rev 09-25-19

The Admin / Maint Assessment is calculated by the WVID Unit 2 Amended & Restated Final MR Rev 09-25-19 percentages

Methodology Report Attached.

There are 36 units with pre-paid bonds. 

           3 unit in Island Walk Single Family 

           25 unit in the Gran Paradiso Single Family 

           8 unit in the Gran Paradiso Multi Family 

Page 22

2019 A-1 (Performing)

2019 A-2 (Non Performing)

Assessment Recap - Unit 2 (Total Gross)

 

Page 41



A B C D E F G H I

Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year

Lot 2022/2023 2022/2023

Type Units Projected Assessment Projected Per Unit

Island Walk Admin / Maint 1,799 13,732.22$                     7.63$                             
Single Debt 1,796 682,282.44$                   379.89$                         

Family Sub-Total 696,014.66$                   387.52$                         

Island Walk Admin / Maint 531.90$                          7.60$                             
Multi Debt 70 26,475.40$                     378.22$                         

Family Sub-Total 27,007.30$                     385.82$                         

Gran Paradiso Admin / Maint 1,439 12,262.55$                     8.52$                             1,090 9,288.52$        8.52$            2,974.03$                                     
Single Debt 1,414 599,677.40$                   424.10$                         1,075 455,907.50$    424.10$       143,769.90$                                 

Family Sub-Total 611,939.95$                   432.62$                         465,196.02$    432.62$       146,743.93$                                 

-$                                -$                               

Gran Paradiso Admin / Maint 2,032.95$                       7.26$                             1,423.06$        7.26$            609.88$                                        
Multi Debt 280 101,175.20$                   361.34$                         196 70,822.64$      361.34$       30,352.56$                                   

Family (3 BDR) Sub-Total 103,208.15$                   368.60$                         72,245.70$      368.60$       30,962.44$                                   

Gran Paradiso Admin / Maint 280 1,812.57$                       6.47$                             585 3,786.98$        6.47$            (1,974.41)$                                    
Multi Debt 272 87,630.24$                     322.17$                         580 186,858.60$    322.17$       (99,228.36)$                                 

Family (2 BDR) Sub-Total 89,442.81$                     328.64$                         190,645.58$    328.64$       (101,202.77)$                               

14,498.56$      1,609.51$                                     
713,588.74$    74,894.10$                                   

Gran Paradiso Direct Bill Net

1,512.94$                                     
70,400.45$                                   

Preserve Admin / Maint 839.68$                          7.63$                             839.68$           7.63$            -$                                              
Single Debt 110 -$                                -$                               110 -$                 -$             -$                                              

Family Sub-Total 839.68$                          7.63$                             839.68$           7.63$            -$                                              

Preserve Admin / Maint 683.84$                          7.60$                             858.60$           7.60$            (174.76)$                                       
Multi Debt 90 -$                                -$                               113 -$                 -$             -$                                              

Family Sub-Total 683.84$                          7.60$                             858.60$           7.60$            (174.76)$                                       

1,698.28$        (174.76)$                                       
-$                 -$                                              

Preserve Direct Bill Net

(164.27)$                                       
-$                                              

Thomas 167 * Admin / Maint 563.36$                          7.41$                             563.36$           7.41$            -$                                              
Multi Debt 76 28,037.16$                     368.91$                         76 28,037.16$      368.91$       -$                                              

Family (3 BDR) Sub-Total 28,600.52$                     376.32$                         28,600.52$      376.32$       -$                                              

-$                               

Thomas 167 * Admin / Maint 927.58$                          6.63$                             927.58$           6.63$            -$                                              
Multi Debt 140 46,163.60$                     329.74$                         140 46,163.60$      329.74$       -$                                              

Family (2 BDR) Sub-Total 47,091.18$                     336.37$                         47,091.18$      336.37$       -$                                              
-$                               

Thomas 167 * Admin / Maint 23,905.87$                     258.47$                         23,905.87$      258.47$       -$                                              
Commercial Debt 92 1,189,742.34$                12,863.47$                    92 1,189,742.34$ 12,863.47$  -$                                              

Sub-Total 1,213,648.21$                13,121.94$                    1,213,648.21$ 13,121.94$  -$                                              

57,292.52$                     25,396.81$      -$                                              
2,761,183.78$                1,263,943.10$ -$                                              

-$                                          

Total 4,376 2,816,952.78$          Town Center Direct Bill Net
-$                                              
-$                                              

Admin / Maint Assessment Includes 1% County Tax Collector Fee, a 1% County Property 

Appraiser Fee and a 4% discount for early payment of taxes.

Notes: 

* Thomas 167 was originally referred to as the "Town Center" in the Unit 2 Methodology and included Town Center Residential and Town Center Commercial

The Debt Assessment is calculated by the WVID Unit 2 Amended & Restated Final MR Rev 09-25-19

The Admin / Maint Assessment is calculated by the WVID Unit 2 Amended & Restated Final MR Rev 09-25-19 percentages

Methodology Report Attached.

There are 36 units with pre-paid bonds. 

           3 unit in Island Walk Single Family 

           25 unit in the Gran Paradiso Single Family 
           8 unit in the Gran Paradiso Multi Family 

Page 23

Assessment Recap - Unit 2 (Collection Method)

TOTAL GROSS

GRAN PARADISO ON 
ROLL GROSS

GRAN PARADISO 
DIRECT BILL GROSS

TOWN CENTER ON ROLL 
GROSS

TOWN CENTER 
DIRECT BILL GROSS

2019 A-1 (Performing)

2019 A-2 (Non Performing)

PRESERVE ON ROLL 
GROSS

PRESERVE DIRECT 
BILL GROSS

Page 42



A B C D G F G

Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year

2021/2022 2022/2023 2022/2023

Product Total Projected Projected 
Category Type Units Assessment Per Unit Assessment Assessment Per Unit

Pre Lennar 2 Bdr Sam 35 Admin / Maint 5 96.08$                                 742.25$               148.45$                           
Debt 4 1,093.10$                            4,372.40$            1,093.10$                        

Sub-Total 1,189.18$                            5,114.65$            1,241.55$                        

3 Bdr Sam 70 Admin / Maint 6 96.08$                                 890.70$               148.45$                           
Debt 5 1,432.12$                            7,160.60$            1,432.12$                        

Sub-Total 1,528.20$                            8,051.30$            1,580.57$                        

3 Bdr Sam 80 Admin / Maint 5 96.08$                                 742.25$               148.45$                           
Debt 4 1,559.05$                            6,236.20$            1,559.05$                        

Sub-Total 1,655.13$                            6,978.45$            1,707.50$                        

3 Bdr Lee 45 Admin / Maint 96.08$                                 593.80$               148.45$                           
Debt 4 1,227.41$                            4,909.64$            1,227.41$                        

Sub-Total 1,323.49$                            5,503.44$            1,375.86$                        

3 Bdr Lee 65 Admin / Maint 10 96.08$                                 1,484.50$            148.45$                           
Debt 8 1,380.47$                            11,043.76$          1,380.47$                        

Sub-Total 1,476.55$                            12,528.26$          1,528.92$                        

Total Pre Lennar 30 Gross 4,453.50$            
33,722.60$          

Lennar 35' Admin / Maint 333 96.08$                                 49,433.88$          148.45$                           
Debt 326 521.28$                               169,937.28$        521.28$                           

Sub-Total 617.36$                               219,371.16$        669.73$                           

Townhome Admin / Maint 252 96.08$                                 37,409.42$          148.45$                           
Debt 251 521.28$                               130,841.28$        521.28$                           

Sub-Total 617.36$                               168,250.70$        669.73$                           

Coach Admin / Maint 96.08$                                 35,628.02$          148.45$                           
Debt 240 627.66$                               150,638.40$        627.66$                           

Sub-Total 723.74$                               186,266.42$        776.11$                           

45' Admin / Maint 96.08$                                 8,758.56$            148.45$                           
Debt 59 627.66$                               37,031.94$          627.66$                           

Sub-Total 723.74$                               45,790.50$          776.11$                           

52' Admin / Maint 337 96.08$                                 50,027.68$          148.45$                           
Debt 334 734.04$                               245,169.36$        734.04$                           

Sub-Total 830.12$                               295,197.04$        882.49$                           

62' Admin / Maint 289 96.08$                                 42,902.07$          148.45$                           
Debt 279 840.42$                               234,477.18$        840.42$                           

Sub-Total 936.50$                               277,379.25$        988.87$                           

65' Admin / Maint 53 96.08$                                 7,867.85$            148.45$                           
Debt 52 840.42$                               43,701.84$          840.42$                           

Sub-Total 936.50$                               51,569.69$          988.87$                           

70' Admin / Maint 56 96.08$                                 8,313.20$            148.45$                           
Debt 55 840.42$                               46,223.10$          840.42$                           

Sub-Total 936.50$                               54,536.30$          988.87$                           

75' Admin / Maint 201 96.08$                                 29,393.12$          148.45$                           
Debt 198 946.81$                               187,468.38$        946.81$                           

Sub-Total 1,042.89$                            216,861.50$        1,095.26$                        

80' Admin / Maint 65 96.08$                                 9,649.26$            148.45$                           
Debt 64 946.81$                               60,595.84$          946.81$                           

Sub-Total 1,042.89$                            70,245.10$          1,095.26$                        

Total Lennar 1,885 Gross 279,383.06$        
1,306,084.60$     

TOTAL GROSS 1,915 Total Gross 284,281.91$        

1,339,807.20$     

TOTAL NET 1,915 Total Net 267,225.00$        

1,259,418.77$     

Assessment is calculated by the 2014 Revised Unit 3 Special Methodology Report

Revised Methodology Report Tables 2 & 3 Attached 

There are 33 units with pre-paid bonds. 

Page 24

  1 unit is a Gran Paradiso 2 BDR Sam 35,  1 unit is a Gran Paradiso 3 BDR Sam 70,  1 unit is a Gran Paradiso 3 BDR Sam 80,  2 units are Wetherington 3 BDR Lee 65, 3 units are SF 
52', 11 units are SF 62', 1 unit is a SF 65', 3 units are SF 75', 7 units are SF 35', 1 unit is a Townhome, 1 Unit is a 70', and 1 unit is a SF 80'.

Assessment Recap - Unit 3 (Total Gross)

Gross

Total Gross

Total Net

Gross

Page 43



A B C D G F G

Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year

 2021/2022 2022/2023 2022/2023

Product Total Projected Projected 

Subdivision Type Units Assessment Per Unit Assessment Assessment Per Unit

Renaissance 35' Villas Admin / Maint 101.36$                              22,704.49$          101.36$                          
Debt 224 678.03$                              151,879.15$        678.03$                          

Sub-Total 779.39$                              174,583.64$        779.39$                          

50' SF Admin / Maint 273 101.36$                              27,671.10$          101.36$                          
Debt 272 998.94$                              272,709.57$        998.94$                          

Sub-Total 1,100.30$                           300,380.67$        1,100.30$                       

60' SF Admin / Maint 101.36$                              19,562.35$          101.36$                          
Debt 193 1,212.87$                           234,084.36$        1,212.87$                       

Sub-Total 1,314.23$                           253,646.71$        1,314.23$                       

Total Renaissance 690 Gross 69,937.94$          
658,673.09$        

Oasis 60' SF Admin / Maint 101.36$                              9,325.06$            101.36$                          
Debt 92 829.89$                              76,350.21$          829.89$                          

Sub-Total 931.25$                              85,675.27$          931.25$                          

70' SF Admin / Maint 101.36$                              4,459.81$            101.36$                          
Debt 44 980.00$                              43,120.00$          980.00$                          

Sub-Total 1,081.36$                           47,579.81$          1,081.36$                       

Total Oasis 136 Gross 13,784.87$          
119,470.21$        

Preserve 33' Villas Admin / Maint 101.36$                              9,122.34$            101.36$                          
Debt 90 424.61$                              38,214.57$          424.61$                          

Sub-Total 525.97$                              47,336.91$          525.97$                          

50' SF Admin / Maint 101.36$                              11,149.53$          101.36$                          
Debt 110 679.79$                              74,776.60$          679.79$                          

Sub-Total 781.15$                              85,926.12$          781.15$                          

Total Preserve 200 Gross 20,271.87$          
112,991.17$        

TOTAL GROSS 1,026 Total Gross 103,994.68$        
891,134.47$        

TOTAL NET 1,026 Total Net 97,755.00$          
837,666.40$        

Assessment is calculated by the 2016 Unit 4 Special Methodology Report

Methodology Report Table F Data Attached 

There is 1 unit with pre-paid bonds. 
      1 unit is a Renaissance 50'

Page 25

Assessment Recap - Unit 4 (Total Gross)

Gross

Gross

Total Gross

Total Net

Gross

Page 44



A B C D E F G H I J

Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year
2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023

Product Total Projected Projected Platted Platted Total Platted Per Unit
Subdivision Type Units Assessment Assessment Per Unit Units Assessments Assessments

Renaissance 35' Villas Admin / Maint 22,704.49$          101.36$                          27,975.18$      101.36$                (5,270.69)$           
Debt 224 151,879.15$        678.03$                          276 187,136.81$    678.03$                (35,257.66)$         

Sub-Total 174,583.64$        779.39$                          215,111.99$    779.39$                (40,528.35)$         

50' SF Admin / Maint 273 27,671.10$          101.36$                          251 25,441.19$      101.36$                2,229.91$            
Debt 272 272,709.57$        998.94$                          250 249,734.04$    998.94$                22,975.53$          

Sub-Total 300,380.67$        1,100.30$                       275,175.24$    1,100.30$             25,205.44$          

60' SF Admin / Maint 19,562.35$          101.36$                          15,609.34$      101.36$                3,953.01$            
Debt 193 234,084.36$        1,212.87$                       154 186,782.34$    1,212.87$             47,302.02$          

Sub-Total 253,646.71$        1,314.23$                       202,391.68$    1,314.23$             51,255.04$          

Total Renaissance 690 69,937.94$          681 69,025.71$      912.23$               
658,673.09$        623,653.19$    35,019.89$          

Oasis 60' SF Admin / Maint 9,325.06$            101.36$                          7,703.31$        101.36$                1,621.75$            
Debt 92 76,350.21$          829.89$                          76 63,071.91$      829.89$                13,278.30$          

Sub-Total 85,675.27$          931.25$                          70,775.22$      931.25$                14,900.05$          

50' SF Admin / Maint -$                    101.36$                          1,723.11$        101.36$                (1,723.11)$           
Debt 0 -$                    691.58$                          17 11,756.86$      691.58$                (11,756.86)$         

Sub-Total -$                    792.94$                          13,479.97$      792.94$                (13,479.97)$         

70' SF Admin / Maint 4,459.81$            101.36$                          4,662.53$        101.36$                (202.72)$              
Debt 44 43,120.00$          980.00$                          46 45,080.00$      980.00$                (1,960.00)$           

Sub-Total 47,579.81$          1,081.36$                       49,742.53$      1,081.36$             (2,162.72)$           

Total Oasis 136 13,784.87$          122 14,088.95$      (304.08)$              
119,470.21$        119,908.77$    (438.56)$              

Preserve 33' Villas Admin / Maint 9,122.34$            101.36$                          11,453.61$      101.36$                (2,331.26)$           
Debt 90 38,214.57$          424.61$                          113 47,980.52$      424.61$                (9,765.95)$           

Sub-Total 47,336.91$          525.97$                          59,434.13$      525.97$                (12,097.21)$         

50' SF Admin / Maint 11,149.53$          101.36$                          11,149.53$      101.36$                -$                     
Debt 110 74,776.60$          679.79$                          110 74,776.60$      679.79$                -$                     

Sub-Total 85,926.12$          781.15$                          85,926.12$      781.15$                -$                     

Total Preserve 200 20,271.87$          223 22,603.13$      (2,331.26)$           
112,991.17$        122,757.12$    (9,765.95)$           

TOTAL GROSS 1,026 103,994.68$        1,026 105,717.79$    (1,723.11)$           

891,134.47$        866,319.08$    24,815.38$          

TOTAL NET 1,026 97,755.00$          1,026 99,374.72$      (1,619.72)$           

837,666.40$        814,339.94$    23,326.46$          

Assessment is calculated by the 2016 Unit 4 Special Methodology Report

Methodology Report Table F Data Attached 

There is 1 unit with pre-paid bonds. 
      1 unit is a Renaissance 50'

Page 26

Assessment Recap - Unit 4 (Collection Method)

TOTAL GROSS PLATTED ON ROLL GROSS DIRECT BILL GROSS

Gross
 Platted On Roll 
Gross 

 Direct Bill 
Gross 

Gross  Platted On Roll 
Gross 

 Direct Bill 
Gross 

Total Net
 Total Platted On 
Roll Net 

 Total Direct 
Bill Net 

Gross
 Platted On Roll 
Gross 

 Direct Bill 
Gross 

Total Gross
 Total Platted On 
Roll Gross 

 Total Direct 
Bill Gross 

Page 45



A B C D E F

Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year

2021/2022 2022/2023 2022/2023

Product Total Projected Projected 

Type Units Assessment Per Unit Assessment Assessment Per Unit

50' Single Family Admin / Maint 196.83$                                264,649.13$        139.51$                           
Debt 1,897 830.00$                                1,574,510.00$     830.00$                           

Sub-Total 1,026.83$                             1,839,159.13$     969.51$                           

74' Single Family Admin / Maint 196.83$                                10,742.22$          139.51$                           
Debt 77 1,228.40$                             94,586.80$          1,228.40$                        

Sub-Total 1,425.23$                             105,329.02$        1,367.91$                        

Coach Admin / Maint 196.83$                                30,134.01$          139.51$                           
Debt 216 622.50$                                134,460.00$        622.50$                           

Sub-Total 819.33$                                164,594.01$        762.01$                           

2-Story Units Admin / Maint 196.83$                                41,294.75$          139.51$                           
Debt 296 456.50$                                135,124.00$        456.50$                           

Sub-Total 653.33$                                176,418.75$        596.01$                           

4-Story Units Admin / Maint 196.83$                                54,408.62$          139.51$                           
Debt 390 415.00$                                161,850.00$        415.00$                           

Sub-Total 611.83$                                216,258.62$        554.51$                           

Total 2,876 401,228.72$        
2,100,530.80$     

50 ' Single Family Admin / Maint
Debt 111 830.00$                                92,130.00$          830.00$                           

Sub-Total 830.00$                                92,130.00$          830.00$                           

Total 111
92,130.00$          

F1 - 37 ' Single Family Admin / Maint
Debt 102 622.50$                                63,495.00$          622.50$                           

Sub-Total 622.50$                                63,495.00$          622.50$                           

F1 - 50 ' Single Family Admin / Maint
Debt 92 830.00$                                76,360.00$          830.00$                           

Sub-Total 830.00$                                76,360.00$          830.00$                           

F1 - 60 ' Single Family Admin / Maint
Debt 76 996.00$                                75,696.00$          996.00$                           

Sub-Total 996.00$                                75,696.00$          996.00$                           

F5 - Dup/Paired Villa Admin / Maint
Debt 158 498.00$                                78,684.00$          498.00$                           

Sub-Total 498.00$                                78,684.00$          498.00$                           

F5 - 40 ' Single Family Admin / Maint
Debt 115 664.00$                                76,360.00$          664.00$                           

Sub-Total 664.00$                                76,360.00$          664.00$                           

F5 - 50 ' Single Family Admin / Maint
Debt 125 830.00$                                103,750.00$        830.00$                           

Sub-Total 830.00$                                103,750.00$        830.00$                           

Total 668
474,345.00$        

Page 27

Assessment Recap - Unit 7 (Total Gross)

Gross

Gross

Unit 7 Master

Unit 7 Village B

Unit 7 Village F1 & F5

Gross

Page 46



A B C E F G H I J

Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year

2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023

Product Total Projected Projected Platted Platted Platted

Type Units Assessment Assess Per Unit Units Assessment Assess Per Unit

50' Single Family Admin / Maint 264,649.13$        139.51$                 15,485.53$            139.51$                 249,163.60$        
Debt 1,897 1,574,510.00$     830.00$                 111 92,130.00$            830.00$                 1,482,380.00$     

Sub-Total 1,839,159.13$     969.51$                 107,615.53$          969.51$                 1,731,543.60$     

74' Single Family Admin / Maint 10,742.22$          139.51$                 -$                       139.51$                 10,742.22$          
Debt 77 94,586.80$          1,228.40$              0 -$                       1,228.40$              94,586.80$          

Sub-Total 105,329.02$        1,367.91$              -$                       1,367.91$              105,329.02$        

Coach Admin / Maint 30,134.01$          139.51$                 -$                       139.51$                 30,134.01$          
Debt 216 134,460.00$        622.50$                 0 -$                       622.50$                 134,460.00$        

Sub-Total 164,594.01$        762.01$                 -$                       762.01$                 164,594.01$        

2-Story Units Admin / Maint 41,294.75$          139.51$                 -$                       139.51$                 41,294.75$          
Debt 296 135,124.00$        456.50$                 0 -$                       456.50$                 135,124.00$        

Sub-Total 176,418.75$        596.01$                 -$                       596.01$                 176,418.75$        

4-Story Units Admin / Maint 54,408.62$          139.51$                 -$                       139.51$                 54,408.62$          
Debt 390 161,850.00$        415.00$                 0 -$                       415.00$                 161,850.00$        

Sub-Total 216,258.62$        554.51$                 -$                       554.51$                 216,258.62$        

TOTAL GROSS 2,876 401,228.72$        111 15,485.53$            385,743.19$        

2,100,530.80$     92,130.00$            2,008,400.80$     

TOTAL NET 2,876 377,155.00$        111 14,556.40$            362,598.60$        

1,974,498.95$     86,602.20$            1,887,896.75$     

50 ' Single Family Debt 111 92,130.00$          830.00$                 111 92,130.00$            830.00$                 -$                     

Sub-Total 92,130.00$          830.00$                 92,130.00$            830.00$                 -$                     

TOTAL GROSS 111 111 -$                     

92,130.00$          92,130.00$            -$                     

TOTAL NET 111 -$                    111 -$                       -$                     

86,602.20$          86,602.20$            -$                     

F1 - 37 ' Single Family Debt 102 63,495.00$          622.50$                 0 -$                       622.50$                 63,495.00$          

Sub-Total 63,495.00$          622.50$                 -$                       622.50$                 63,495.00$          
F1 - 50 ' Single Family Debt 92 76,360.00$          830.00$                 0 -$                       830.00$                 76,360.00$          

Sub-Total 76,360.00$          830.00$                 -$                       830.00$                 76,360.00$          
F1 - 60 ' Single Family Debt 76 75,696.00$          996.00$                 0 -$                       996.00$                 75,696.00$          

Sub-Total 75,696.00$          996.00$                 -$                       996.00$                 75,696.00$          

F5 - Dup/Paired Villa Debt 158 78,684.00$          498.00$                 0 -$                       498.00$                 78,684.00$          

Sub-Total 78,684.00$          498.00$                 -$                       498.00$                 78,684.00$          
F5 - 40 ' Single Family Debt 115 76,360.00$          664.00$                 0 -$                       664.00$                 76,360.00$          

Sub-Total 76,360.00$          664.00$                 -$                       664.00$                 76,360.00$          
F5 - 50 ' Single Family Debt 125 103,750.00$        830.00$                 0 -$                       830.00$                 103,750.00$        

Sub-Total 103,750.00$        830.00$                 -$                       830.00$                 103,750.00$        

TOTAL GROSS 668 0

474,345.00$        -$                       474,345.00$        

TOTAL NET 668 0

445,884.30$        -$                       445,884.30$        

Page 28

TOTAL GROSS DIRECT BILL GROSSPLATTED ON ROLL GROSS

Unit 7 Master

Assessment Recap - Unit 7 (Collection Method)

Total Net  Total Platted On 
Roll Net 

 Total Direct 
Bill Net 

Total Gross  Total Platted On 
Roll Gross 

Total Gross  Total Platted On 
Roll Gross 

 Total Direct 
Bill Gross 

 Total Direct 
Bill Gross 

Total Net  Total Platted On 
Roll Net 

 Total Direct 
Bill Net 

Unit 7 Village B

Unit 7 Village F1 & F5

Total Gross  Total Platted On 
Roll Gross 

 Total Direct 
Bill Gross 

Total Net  Total Platted On 
Roll Net 

 Total Direct 
Bill Net 

Page 47



A B C D E F

Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year

2021/2022 2022/2023 2022/2023

Product Total Projected Projected 

Type Units Assessment Per Unit Assessment Assessment Per Unit

50' Single Family Admin / Maint 102.18$                               30,194.05$          120.78$                           
Debt 250 697.38$                               174,345.00$        697.38$                           

Sub-Total 799.56$                               204,539.05$        818.16$                           

75' Single Family Admin / Maint 102.18$                               16,908.67$          120.78$                           
Debt 140 875.66$                               122,592.40$        875.66$                           

Sub-Total 977.84$                               139,501.07$        996.44$                           

Coach Admin / Maint 102.18$                               32,368.02$          120.78$                           
Debt 268 613.49$                               164,415.32$        613.49$                           

Sub-Total 715.67$                               196,783.34$        734.27$                           

2-Story Units Admin / Maint 102.18$                               32,368.02$          120.78$                           
Debt 268 524.34$                               140,523.12$        524.34$                           

Sub-Total 626.52$                               172,891.14$        645.12$                           

4-Story Units Admin / Maint 102.18$                               47,102.72$          120.78$                           
Debt 390 435.20$                               169,728.00$        435.20$                           

Sub-Total 537.38$                               216,830.72$        555.98$                           

Total 1,316 158,941.49$        
771,603.84$        

Page 29

Assessment Recap - Unit 8 (Total Gross)

Unit 8 Master

Gross

Page 48



A B C E F G H I J

Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year

2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023

Product Total Projected Projected Platted Platted Platted

Type Units Assessment Assessment Per Unit Units Assessment Assessment Per Unit

50' Single Family Admin / Maint 30,194.05$          120.78$                          -$                       120.78$                          30,194.05$          
Debt 250 174,345.00$        697.38$                          0 -$                       697.38$                          174,345.00$        

Sub-Total 204,539.05$        818.16$                          -$                       818.16$                          204,539.05$        

75' Single Family Admin / Maint 16,908.67$          120.78$                          -$                       120.78$                          16,908.67$          
Debt 140 122,592.40$        875.66$                          0 -$                       875.66$                          122,592.40$        

Sub-Total 139,501.07$        996.44$                          -$                       996.44$                          139,501.07$        

Coach Admin / Maint 32,368.02$          120.78$                          -$                       120.78$                          32,368.02$          
Debt 268 164,415.32$        613.49$                          0 -$                       613.49$                          164,415.32$        

Sub-Total 196,783.34$        734.27$                          -$                       734.27$                          196,783.34$        

2-Story Units Admin / Maint 32,368.02$          120.78$                          -$                       120.78$                          32,368.02$          
Debt 268 140,523.12$        524.34$                          0 -$                       524.34$                          140,523.12$        

Sub-Total 172,891.14$        645.12$                          -$                       645.12$                          172,891.14$        

4-Story Units Admin / Maint 47,102.72$          120.78$                          -$                       120.78$                          47,102.72$          
Debt 390 169,728.00$        435.20$                          0 -$                       435.20$                          169,728.00$        

Sub-Total 216,830.72$        555.98$                          -$                       555.98$                          216,830.72$        

TOTAL GROSS 1,316 158,941.49$        0 -$                       158,941.49$        

771,603.84$        -$                       771,603.84$        

TOTAL NET 1,316 149,405.00$        0 -$                       149,405.00$        

725,307.61$        -$                       725,307.61$        

Page 30

Unit 8 Master

Assessment Recap - Unit 8 (Collection Method)

TOTAL GROSS PLATTED ON ROLL GROSS DIRECT BILL GROSS

Total Gross
 Total Platted On Roll 
Gross 

 Total Direct Bill 
Gross 

Total Net
 Total Platted On Roll 
Net 

 Total Direct Bill Net 

Page 49



District Proper Unit 1 Unit 2 Unit 3 through 9 All Units
Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Change +/(-)

Product 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2021/2022 2022/2023 From Previous
Type  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment Year

 Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit

Single Admin / Maint 14.84$                132.75$              7.63$                  -$                    155.22$              
Family Debt -$                    144.74$              379.89$              -$                    524.63$              

Sub-Total 14.84$                277.49$              387.52$              -$                    679.85$              633.20$              679.85$              46.66$                

Multi Admin / Maint 14.84$                132.75$              7.60$                  -$                    155.19$              
Family Debt -$                    144.74$              378.22$              -$                    522.96$              

Sub-Total 14.84$                277.49$              385.82$              -$                    678.15$              631.52$              678.15$              46.62$                

Any Lot Outside Admin / Maint 14.84$                132.75$              -$                    -$                    147.59$              
Unit 2 Boundary Debt -$                    144.74$              -$                    -$                    144.74$              

Sub-Total 14.84$                277.49$              -$                    -$                    292.33$              252.76$              292.33$              39.57$                

Admin / Maint Assessment Includes 1% County Tax Collector Fee, a 1% County Property Appraiser Fee and a 4% discount for early payment of taxes.

Page 31

Island Walk Assessment Breakdown Island Walk Assessment Changes

Assesments - Island Walk

Page 50



District Proper Unit 1 Unit 2 Unit 3 Unit 4 Through 9 All Units
Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Change +/(-)

Product 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2021/2022 2022/2023 From Previous
Type  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment Year

 Per Unit  Per Unit Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit

2 Bdr Sam 35 Admin / Maint 14.84$                 132.75$               8.52$                   148.45$               -$                     304.56$               
Debt -$                     144.74$               424.10$               1,093.10$             -$                     1,661.94$             

Sub-Total 14.84$                 277.49$               432.62$               1,241.55$             -$                     1,966.50$             1,866.65$             1,966.50$             99.85$                 

3 Bdr Sam 70 Admin / Maint 14.84$                 132.75$               8.52$                   148.45$               -$                     304.56$               
Debt -$                     144.74$               424.10$               1,432.12$             -$                     2,000.96$             

Sub-Total 14.84$                 277.49$               432.62$               1,580.57$             -$                     2,305.52$             2,205.67$             2,305.52$             99.85$                 

3 Bdr Sam 80 Admin / Maint 14.84$                 132.75$               8.52$                   148.45$               -$                     304.56$               
Debt -$                     144.74$               424.10$               1,559.05$             -$                     2,127.89$             

Sub-Total 14.84$                 277.49$               432.62$               1,707.50$             -$                     2,432.45$             2,332.60$             2,432.45$             99.85$                 

3 Bdr Lee 45 Admin / Maint 14.84$                 132.75$               8.52$                   148.45$               -$                     304.56$               
Debt -$                     144.74$               424.10$               1,227.41$             -$                     1,796.25$             

Sub-Total 14.84$                 277.49$               432.62$               1,375.86$             -$                     2,100.81$             2,000.96$             2,100.81$             99.85$                 

3 Bdr Lee 65 Admin / Maint 14.84$                 132.75$               8.52$                   148.45$               -$                     304.56$               
Debt -$                     144.74$               424.10$               1,380.47$             -$                     1,949.31$             

Sub-Total 14.84$                 277.49$               432.62$               1,528.92$             -$                     2,253.87$             2,154.02$             2,253.87$             99.85$                 

35' Admin / Maint 14.84$                 132.75$               6.47$                   148.45$               -$                     302.51$               
Debt -$                     144.74$               322.17$               521.28$               -$                     988.19$               

Sub-Total 14.84$                 277.49$               328.64$               669.73$               -$                     1,290.70$             1,192.76$             1,290.70$             97.95$                 

Townhome Admin / Maint 14.84$                 132.75$               6.47$                   148.45$               -$                     302.51$               
Debt -$                     144.74$               322.17$               521.28$               -$                     988.19$               

Sub-Total 14.84$                 277.49$               328.64$               669.73$               -$                     1,290.70$             1,192.76$             1,290.70$             97.95$                 

Coach Admin / Maint 14.84$                 132.75$               7.26$                   148.45$               -$                     303.30$               
Debt -$                     144.74$               361.34$               627.66$               -$                     1,133.74$             

Sub-Total 14.84$                 277.49$               368.60$               776.11$               -$                     1,437.04$             1,338.36$             1,437.04$             98.68$                 

45' Admin / Maint 14.84$                 132.75$               8.52$                   148.45$               -$                     304.56$               
Debt -$                     144.74$               424.10$               627.66$               -$                     1,196.50$             

Sub-Total 14.84$                 277.49$               432.62$               776.11$               -$                     1,501.06$             1,401.21$             1,501.06$             99.85$                 

52' Admin / Maint 14.84$                 132.75$               8.52$                   148.45$               -$                     304.56$               
Debt -$                     144.74$               424.10$               734.04$               -$                     1,302.88$             

Sub-Total 14.84$                 277.49$               432.62$               882.49$               -$                     1,607.44$             1,507.59$             1,607.44$             99.85$                 

62' Admin / Maint 14.84$                 132.75$               8.52$                   148.45$               -$                     304.56$               
Debt -$                     144.74$               424.10$               840.42$               -$                     1,409.26$             

Sub-Total 14.84$                 277.49$               432.62$               988.87$               -$                     1,713.82$             1,613.97$             1,713.82$             99.85$                 

65' Admin / Maint 14.84$                 132.75$               8.52$                   148.45$               -$                     304.56$               
Debt -$                     144.74$               424.10$               840.42$               -$                     1,409.26$             

Sub-Total 14.84$                 277.49$               432.62$               988.87$               -$                     1,713.82$             1,613.97$             1,713.82$             99.85$                 

70' Admin / Maint 14.84$                 132.75$               8.52$                   148.45$               -$                     304.56$               
Debt -$                     144.74$               424.10$               840.42$               -$                     1,409.26$             

Sub-Total 14.84$                 277.49$               432.62$               988.87$               -$                     1,713.82$             1,613.97$             1,713.82$             99.85$                 

75' Admin / Maint 14.84$                 132.75$               8.52$                   148.45$               -$                     304.56$               
Debt -$                     144.74$               424.10$               946.81$               -$                     1,515.65$             

Sub-Total 14.84$                 277.49$               432.62$               1,095.26$             -$                     1,820.21$             1,720.36$             1,820.21$             99.85$                 

80' Admin / Maint 14.84$                 132.75$               8.52$                   148.45$               -$                     304.56$               
Debt -$                     144.74$               424.10$               946.81$               -$                     1,515.65$             

Sub-Total 14.84$                 277.49$               432.62$               1,095.26$             -$                     1,820.21$             1,720.36$             1,820.21$             99.85$                 

Admin / Maint Assessment Includes 1% County Tax Collector Fee, a 1% County Property Appraiser Fee and a 4% discount for early payment of taxes.

Page 32

Gran Paradiso Assessment Breakdown Gran Paradiso Assessment Changes

Assessments - Gran Paradiso

Page 51



District Proper Unit 1 Unit 2 Unit 3 Unit 4 Unit 7 All Units
Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Change +/(-)

Product 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2021/2022 2022/2023 From Previous
Type  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment Year

 Per Unit  Per Unit Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit

Renaissance Admin / Maint 14.84$                    132.75$                  -$                        -$                        101.36$                  -$                        248.95$                  
35' Villa Debt -$                        144.74$                  -$                        -$                        678.03$                  -$                        822.77$                  

Sub-Total 14.84$                    277.49$                  -$                        -$                        779.39$                  -$                        1,071.72$               1,032.15$                   1,071.72$                   39.57$                        

Renaissance Admin / Maint 14.84$                    132.75$                  -$                        -$                        101.36$                  -$                        248.95$                  
50' Debt -$                        144.74$                  -$                        -$                        998.94$                  -$                        1,143.68$               

Sub-Total 14.84$                    277.49$                  -$                        -$                        1,100.30$               -$                        1,392.63$               1,353.06$                   1,392.63$                   39.57$                        

Renaissance Admin / Maint 14.84$                    132.75$                  -$                        -$                        101.36$                  -$                        248.95$                  
60' Debt -$                        144.74$                  -$                        -$                        1,212.87$               -$                        1,357.61$               

Sub-Total 14.84$                    277.49$                  -$                        -$                        1,314.23$               -$                        1,606.56$               1,566.99$                   1,606.56$                   39.57$                        

Oasis Admin / Maint 14.84$                    132.75$                  -$                        -$                        101.36$                  -$                        248.95$                  
60' Debt -$                        144.74$                  -$                        -$                        829.89$                  -$                        974.63$                  

Sub-Total 14.84$                    277.49$                  -$                        -$                        931.25$                  -$                        1,223.58$               1,184.01$                   1,223.58$                   39.57$                        

Oasis Admin / Maint 14.84$                    132.75$                  -$                        -$                        101.36$                  -$                        248.95$                  
70' Debt -$                        144.74$                  -$                        -$                        980.00$                  -$                        1,124.74$               

Sub-Total 14.84$                    277.49$                  -$                        -$                        1,081.36$               -$                        1,373.69$               1,334.12$                   1,373.69$                   39.57$                        

Preserve Admin / Maint 14.84$                    132.75$                  7.63$                      -$                        101.36$                  -$                        256.58$                  
33' Villa Debt -$                        144.74$                  -$                        -$                        424.61$                  -$                        569.35$                  

Sub-Total 14.84$                    277.49$                  7.63$                      -$                        525.97$                  -$                        825.93$                  779.27$                      825.93$                      46.66$                        

Preserve Admin / Maint 14.84$                    132.75$                  7.60$                      -$                        101.36$                  -$                        256.55$                  
50' Debt -$                        144.74$                  -$                        -$                        679.79$                  -$                        824.53$                  

Sub-Total 14.84$                    277.49$                  7.60$                      -$                        781.15$                  -$                        1,081.07$               1,034.45$                   1,081.07$                   46.62$                        

*Note: Oasis is introducing a 50' catagorey in Phase II of contruction. The methodology will be updated in the future to reflect this. For now, based on the fact that all other 50' lots in Unit 4 are 1 ERU, and based on the calculated amount of  1 ERU for the 60' and 70', Unit 4 Debt for an Oasis 50' will be $650.08 NET and $691.58 GROSS 

        

Admin / Maint Assessment Includes 1% County Tax Collector Fee, a 1% County Property Appraiser Fee and a 4% discount for early payment of taxes.

Page 33

Renaissance, Oasis, & Preserve Assessment Breakdown Renaissance, Oasis, & Preserve 
Assessment Changes

Assessments - Renaissance, Oasis, and Preserve 

Page 52



District Proper Unit 1 Unit 2 Unit 3 Unit 4 Unit 7 All Units
Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Change +/(-)

Product 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2021/2022 2022/2023 From Previous
Type  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment Year

 Per Unit  Per Unit Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit

50' Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       139.51$                 287.10$                 
Debt -$                       144.74$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       830.00$                 974.74$                 

Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       969.51$                 1,261.84$              1,279.59$              1,261.84$              (17.75)$                  

74' Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       139.51$                 287.10$                 
Debt -$                       144.74$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       1,228.40$              1,373.14$              

Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       1,367.91$              1,660.24$              1,677.99$              1,660.24$              (17.75)$                  

Coach Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       139.51$                 287.10$                 
Debt -$                       144.74$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       622.50$                 767.24$                 

Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       762.01$                 1,054.34$              1,072.09$              1,054.34$              (17.75)$                  

2-Story Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       139.51$                 287.10$                 
Debt -$                       144.74$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       456.50$                 601.24$                 

Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       596.01$                 888.34$                 906.09$                 888.34$                 (17.75)$                  

4-Story Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       139.51$                 287.10$                 
Debt -$                       144.74$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       415.00$                 559.74$                 

Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       554.51$                 846.84$                 864.59$                 846.84$                 (17.75)$                  

Village B Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       139.51$                 287.10$                 
50' Debt -$                       144.74$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       1,660.00$              1,804.74$              

Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       1,799.51$              2,091.84$              2,109.59$              2,091.84$              (17.75)$                  

Village F1 Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       139.51$                 287.10$                 
37' Debt -$                       144.74$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       1,245.00$              1,389.74$              

Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       1,384.51$              1,676.84$              1,694.59$              1,676.84$              (17.75)$                  

Village F1 Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       139.51$                 287.10$                 
50' Debt -$                       144.74$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       1,660.00$              1,804.74$              

Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       1,799.51$              2,091.84$              2,109.59$              2,091.84$              (17.75)$                  

Village F1 Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       139.51$                 287.10$                 
60' Debt -$                       144.74$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       1,992.00$              2,136.74$              

Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       2,131.51$              2,423.84$              2,441.59$              2,423.84$              (17.75)$                  

Village F5 Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       139.51$                 287.10$                 
Dup/Paired Villas Debt -$                       144.74$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       996.00$                 1,140.74$              

Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       1,135.51$              1,427.84$              1,445.59$              1,427.84$              (17.75)$                  

Village F5 Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       139.51$                 287.10$                 
40' Debt -$                       144.74$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       1,328.00$              1,472.74$              

Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       1,467.51$              1,759.84$              1,777.59$              1,759.84$              (17.75)$                  

Village F5 Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       139.51$                 287.10$                 
50' Debt -$                       144.74$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       1,660.00$              1,804.74$              

Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       1,799.51$              2,091.84$              2,109.59$              2,091.84$              (17.75)$                  

Admin / Maint Assessment Includes 1% County Tax Collector Fee, a 1% County Property Appraiser Fee and a 4% discount for early payment of taxes.

Page 34

Unit 7 Villages Assessment ChangesUnit 7 Villages Assessment Breakdown

Assessments - Unit 7 Villages 

Page 53



District Proper Unit 1 Unit 2 Unit 3 Unit 4 Unit 7 Unit 8 All Units
Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Change +/(-)

Product 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2021/2022 2022/2023 From Previous
Type  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment Year

 Per Unit  Per Unit Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit

50' Admin / Maint 14.84$                    132.75$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        120.78$                  268.37$                  
Debt -$                        144.74$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        697.38$                  842.12$                  

Sub-Total 14.84$                    277.49$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        818.16$                  1,110.49$               1,052.32$               1,110.49$               58.16$                    

75' Admin / Maint 14.84$                    132.75$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        120.78$                  268.37$                  
Debt -$                        144.74$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        875.66$                  1,020.40$               

Sub-Total 14.84$                    277.49$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        996.44$                  1,288.77$               1,230.60$               1,288.77$               58.16$                    

Coach Admin / Maint 14.84$                    132.75$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        120.78$                  268.37$                  
Debt -$                        144.74$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        613.49$                  758.23$                  

Sub-Total 14.84$                    277.49$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        734.27$                  1,026.60$               968.43$                  1,026.60$               58.16$                    

2-Story Admin / Maint 14.84$                    132.75$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        120.78$                  268.37$                  
Debt -$                        144.74$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        524.34$                  669.08$                  

Sub-Total 14.84$                    277.49$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        645.12$                  937.45$                  879.28$                  937.45$                  58.16$                    

4-Story Admin / Maint 14.84$                    132.75$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        120.78$                  268.37$                  
Debt -$                        144.74$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        435.20$                  579.94$                  

Sub-Total 14.84$                    277.49$                  -$                        -$                        -$                        -$                        555.98$                  848.31$                  790.14$                  848.31$                  58.16$                    

Admin / Maint Assessment Includes 1% County Tax Collector Fee, a 1% County Property Appraiser Fee and a 4% discount for early payment of taxes.

Page 35

Assessments - Unit 8 Villages 

Unit 8 Villages Assessment Breakdown Unit 8 Villages Assessment Changes

Page 54



District Proper Unit 1 Unit 2 Unit 3 Unit 4 Unit 7 All Units
Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Change +/(-)

Product 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2021/2022 2022/2023 From Previous
Type  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment Year

 Per Unit  Per Unit Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit

Thomas 167 * Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 7.41$                     -$                       -$                       -$                       155.00$                 
Multi Debt -$                       144.74$                 368.91$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       513.65$                 

Family (3 BDR) Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 376.32$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       668.65$                 622.20$                         668.65$                         46.45$                                          

Thomas 167 * Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 6.63$                     -$                       -$                       -$                       154.22$                 
Multi Debt -$                       144.74$                 329.74$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       474.48$                 

Family (2 BDR) Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 336.37$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       628.70$                 582.97$                         628.70$                         45.72$                                          

Thomas 167 * Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 258.47$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       406.06$                 
Commercial Debt -$                       144.74$                 12,863.47$            -$                       -$                       -$                       13,008.21$            

Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 13,121.94$            -$                       -$                       -$                       13,414.27$            13,134.73$                    13,414.27$                    279.54$                                        

District Proper Unit 1 Unit 2 Unit 3 Unit 4 Unit 7 All Units
Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Fiscal Year Total Change +/(-)

Product 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2022/2023 2021/2022 2022/2023 From Previous
Type  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment  Assessment Year

 Per Unit  Per Unit Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit  Per Unit

Land Inside U1 Admin / Maint 14.84$                   132.75$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       147.59$                 
Boundary Debt -$                       144.74$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       144.74$                 

Per 1/2 Acre or Less Sub-Total 14.84$                   277.49$                 -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       292.33$                 252.76$                         292.33$                         39.57$                                          

Land Outside U1 Admin / Maint 14.84$                   -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       14.84$                   
Boundary Debt -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       

Per 1/2 Acre or Less Sub-Total 14.84$                   -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       -$                       14.84$                   15.84$                           14.84$                           (1.00)$                                          

Admin / Maint Assessment Includes 1% County Tax Collector Fee, a 1% County Property Appraiser Fee and a 4% discount for early payment of taxes.

Notes: 
* Thomas 167 was originally referred to as the "Town Center" in the Unit 2 Methodology and included Town Center Residential and Town Center Commercial

Page 36

Thomas 167 Assessment ChangesThomas 167 Assessment Breakdown

Undeveloped and/or Unassigned Land Assessment Breakdown Undeveloped and/or Unassigned Land Assessment Changes

Assessments - Thomas 167 & Other 

Page 55



Column 1 Column 2 Column 3 Column 4 Column 5 Column 6 *

Owner of Property
Description of 

Property

Assessable Half-
Acre or Less 

Portions

Amount of 
Determined 

Benefits

Amount of 
Determined 
Damages

Number of Acres to 
be Taken of Right-

of-Way, ect

Amount of Benefits 
per Assessable Half-
Acre or Less

Fourth Quarter 
Properties, XXXII, 
LLC

Exhibit D-1 of WVID 
Unit 1 Engineers 

Report 12,101  $      36,816,162.00 $0 0 3,042.41$                

DiVosta and 
Company, Inc

Exhibit D-2 of WVID 
Unit 1 Engineers 

Report 1,200  $        3,650,887.89 $0 0 3,042.41$                

Divosta Homes, LP

Exhibit D-3 of WVID 
Unit 1 Engineers 

Report 962  $        2,926,795.13 $0 0 3,042.41$                

Gran Paradiso I, 
LLC

Exhibit D-4 of WVID 
Unit 1 Engineers 

Report 1,432  $        4,356,726.22 $0 0 3,042.41$                

Gran Paradiso II, 
LLC

Exhibit D-5 of WVID 
Unit 1 Engineers 

Report 621  $        1,889,334.48 $0 0 3,042.41$                

Lee Weatherington 
Development, Inc.

Exhibit D-6 of WVID 
Unit 1 Engineers 

Report 84  $           255,562.15 $0 0 3,042.41$                

* Total 16,400 49,895,467.87$  -$                 0 3,042.41$           

* Note: These Columns / Rows are not a part of Exhibit D. These columns / Rows show a completely equal benefit per assessable 1/2 acre or less. 

A-1

Exhibit D of WVID Unit 1
Engineers Report

Debt Assessment Methodology - Unit 1

Page 56



Property Units

Original 
Number of 

Units in Area 
1

Number of 
Units True-
up or Paid 

Off (a)

Number of 
Units in Area 

1 Par

Total 
Maximum 

Annual 
Assessment 

per Unit*

Total 
Maximum 

Annual 
Assessment* Par Per Unit

Total Par Per 
Category

Island Walk
  Single Family Residents DU 1,799 3 1,796 $379.89 $682,282.44 $3,830.73 $6,879,991.08
  Multi Family 3BDR or larger DU 70 0 70 $378.22 $26,475.40 $3,813.87 $266,970.90
  Multi Family 2BDR or smaller DU 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
  Assessable Commercial/Office AC 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total Island Walk $708,757.84 $7,146,961.98

Grand Paradiso
  Single Family Residents DU 1,439 8 1,431 $424.10 $606,887.10 $4,276.51 $6,119,685.81
  Multi Family 3BDR or larger DU 280 0 280 $361.34 $101,175.20 $3,643.65 $1,020,222.00
  Multi Family 2BDR or smaller DU 280 2 278 $322.17 $89,563.26 $3,248.67 $903,130.26
  Assessable Commercial/Office AC 0 0 0 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
Total Grand Paradiso $797,625.56 $8,043,038.07

Town Center*
  Single Family Residents DU 0 0 0 $235.00 $0.00 $0.00 $0.00
  Multi Family 3BDR or larger DU 76 0 76 $368.91 $28,037.16 $3,744.72 $284,598.86
  Multi Family 2BDR or smaller DU 140 0 140 $329.74 $46,163.60 $3,347.12 $468,596.24
  Assessable Commercial/Office AC 92.49 0 92.49 $12,863.47 $1,189,742.35 $130,574.17 $12,076,804.91
Total Town Center* $1,263,943.11 $12,830,000.00

GRAND TOTAL $2,770,326.51 $28,020,000.05

Notes: 
* This property is no longer reffered to as the "Town Center" . This property is curretley reffered to as the "Thomas 167" area. 

A-2

Debt Assessment Methodology - Unit 2

Combined Annual Assessments After Issuance of Bonds

2019 A-1 (Performing)

2019 A-2 (Non Performing)

 

Page 57



Table 2

Product Type Number of Units

Total Maximum 
Annual 

Assessment per 
Unit *

Total Maximum 
Annual 

Assessment per 
Product Type

35' 179 $490 $87,710
Town 420 $490 $205,800
Coach 116 $590 $68,440

45' 59 $590 $34,810
52' 513 $690 $353,970
62' 131 $790 $103,490
65' 79 $790 $62,410
70' 56 $790 $44,240
75' 252 $890 $224,280
80' 65 $890 $57,850

Totals 1870 $1,243,000

* Does not include county fees and discounts.

Table 3
Revised Methodology Maximum Annual Assessment $1,243,000
Pre Lennar Annual Assessment* $34,343
Total Maximum Annual Assessment $1,277,343

A-3

The Bonds currently has a maximum annual debt service requirement of 
$1,274,100.  The maximum annual debt service shown in Table 2 to be 
derived from the revised plan proposed by Lennar, together with a maximum 
annual assessment amount of $29,543 derived from the twenty-six (26) 
existing residential units, is sufficient to retire the outstanding debt as shown 
in Table 3.

Debt Assessment Methodology - Unit 3

Page 58



RENAISSANCE SUBDIVISION

Product Type Number of Units
Net M.A.D.S. 

Assessment Per Unit 
After Contribution

Gross M.A.D.S. 
Assessment Per Unit 

After Contribution* 

Total Net M.A.D.S. 
Assessment Per Product 
Type After Contribution*

Total Gross M.A.D.S. 
Assessment Per Product 
Type After Contribution*

35' Villas 224 637$                              678$                              142,766$                        151,879$                        

50' SF 273 939$                              999$                              256,347$                        272,710$                        

60' SF 193 1,140$                           1,213$                           220,039$                        234,084$                        

Totals 690 619,153$                        658,673$                        

OASIS SUBDIVISION

Product Type Number of Units

Net M.A.D.S. 
Assessment Per Unit 

After Contribution

Gross M.A.D.S. 
Assessment Per Unit 

After Contribution* 

Total Net M.A.D.S. 
Assessment Per Product 
Type After Contribution*

Total Gross M.A.D.S. 
Assessment Per Product 
Type After Contribution*

60' SF 92 780$                              830$                              71,769$                          76,350$                          

70' SF 44 921$                              980$                              40,533$                          43,120$                          

Totals 136 112,302$                        119,470$                        

Note: Oasis is introducing a 50' catagorey in Phase II of contruction. The methodology will be updated in the future to reflect 

        this. For now, based on the fact that all other 50' lots in Unit 4 are 1 ERU, and based on the calculated amount of 

        1 ERU for the 60' and 70', Unit 4 Debt for an Oasis 50' will be $650.08 NET and $691.58 GROSS 

PRESERVE SUBDIVISION

Product Type

Number of Units
Net M.A.D.S. 

Assessment Per Unit 
After Contribution

Gross M.A.D.S. 
Assessment Per Unit 

After Contribution* 

Total Net M.A.D.S. 
Assessment Per Product 
Type After Contribution*

Total Gross M.A.D.S. 
Assessment Per Product 
Type After Contribution*

33' Villas 90 399$                              425$                              35,922$                          38,215$                          

50' SF 110 639$                              680$                              70,290$                          74,777$                          

Totals 200 106,212$                        112,991$                        

TOTAL PROJECT

Product Type Number of Units

Net M.A.D.S. 
Assessment Per Unit 

After Contribution

Gross M.A.D.S. 
Assessment Per Unit 

After Contribution* 

Total Net M.A.D.S. 
Assessment Per Product 
Type After Contribution*

Total Gross M.A.D.S. 
Assessment Per Product 
Type After Contribution*

33' Villas 90 399$                              425$                              35,922$                          38,215$                          

35' Villas 224 637$                              678$                              142,766$                        151,879$                        

50' SF 110 639$                              680$                              70,290$                          74,777$                          

50' SF 273 939$                              999$                              256,347$                        272,710$                        

60' SF 193 1,140$                           1,213$                           220,039$                        234,084$                        

60' SF 92 780$                              830$                              71,769$                          76,350$                          

70' SF 44 921$                              980$                              40,533$                          43,120$                          

Totals 1026 837,666$                        891,134$                        

M.A.D.S. = Maximum Annual Debt Service

*Grossed up includes 1% collection fee of County Tax Collector, 1% service fee of County Property Appraiser and 4% for early payment of taxes.

A-4

Debt Assessment Methodology - Unit 4

Page 59



Unit 7 Master Bond

Product Type Number of Units ERU Factor Total ERU
Gross Assessment 

Per ERU *
Gross Assessment Per 

Unit
Gross Assessment 
Per Product Type *

50' SF 1,897 1.00 1,897 830$                          830$                            1,574,510$              

74' SF 77 1.48 114 830$                          1,228$                         94,587$                   

Coach 216 0.75 162 830$                          623$                            134,460$                 

2-Story 296 0.55 163 830$                          457$                            135,124$                 

4-Story 390 0.50 195 830$                          415$                            161,850$                 

Totals 2,876 . 2,531 2,100,531$              

Unit 7 Village B

Product Type

Number of Units ERU Factor Total ERU
Gross Assessment 

Per ERU *
Gross Assessment Per 

Unit
Gross Assessment 
Per Product Type *

50' SF 111 1.00 111 830$                          830$                            92,130$                   

Totals 111 . 111 92,130$                   

Unit 7 Village F1 & F5

Product Type

Number of Units ERU Factor Total ERU
Gross Assessment 

Per ERU *
Gross Assessment Per 

Unit
Gross Assessment 
Per Product Type *

F1 - 37' SF 102 0.75 76.50 830$                          622.50$                       63,495.00$              

F1 - 50' SF 92 1.00 92.00 830$                          830.00$                       76,360.00$              

F1 - 60' SF 76 1.20 91.20 830$                          996.00$                       75,696.00$              

F5 - Duplex/Paired Villa 158 0.60 94.80 830$                          498.00$                       78,684.00$              

F5 - 40' SF 115 0.80 92.00 830$                          664.00$                       76,360.00$              

F5 - 50' SF 125 1.00 125.00 830$                          830.00$                       103,750.00$            

Totals 668 . 571.50 474,345.00

*Grossed up includes 1% collection fee of County Tax Collector, 1% service fee of County Property Appraiser and 4% for early payment of taxes.

A-5

Debt Assessment Methodology - Unit 7

Page 60



Unit 7 Master Bond

Product Type Number of Units ERU Factor Total ERU
Gross Assessment 

Per ERU *
Gross Assessment Per 

Unit
Gross Assessment 
Per Product Type *

50' SF 250 1.00 250.00 697.38$                     697.38$                       174,345.00$            

75' SF 140 1.26 175.79 697.38$                     875.66$                       122,592.40$            

Coach 268 0.88 235.76 697.38$                     613.49$                       164,415.32$            

2-Story 268 0.75 201.50 697.38$                     524.34$                       140,523.12$            

4-Story 390 0.62 243.38 697.38$                     435.20$                       169,728.00$            

Sub Totals 1,316 . 1,106.43 771,603.84

Golf Course (Acres) 128 0.15 19.20 697.38$                     -$                                 -$                            

Totals 1,444 . 1,125.63 -$                        

*Grossed up includes 1% collection fee of County Tax Collector, 1% service fee of County Property Appraiser and 4% for early payment of taxes.

A-5

Debt Assessment Methodology - Unit 8

Page 61



West Villages
Improvement District

Unit 6 - Master Irrigation Utility

Final Budget For
Fiscal Year 2022/2023

October 1, 2022 - September 30, 2023

Page 62



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT - UNIT  6
MASTER IRRIGATION UTILITY BUDGET

FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023

FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR FISCAL YEAR 

2020/2021 2021/2022 2022/2023

REVENUES ACTUAL BUDGET BUDGET COMMENTS

Well Availability Charge 139,241.52$         218,000.00$         260,212.86$         Rate = $4.40 per Unit

Capital Recovery 46,413.84$           73,000.00$           86,916.44$           Rate = $1.47 per Unit

Water Usage 223,853.16$         432,524.00$         605,324.00$         Rate = Tier 1 = $0.77, Tier 2 = $1.54 (both per 1,000 gallons)

Interest / Other Income 320.01$                -$                     -$                     

Total Revenues 409,828.53$         723,524.00$         952,453.30$         

Developer Subsidy 899,945.97$         782,681.00$         422,875.00$         

Total Funds Available 1,309,774.50$      1,506,205.00$      1,375,328.30$      

EXPENDITURES

Engineering 288,216.83$         150,000.00$         150,000.00$         Increase for rate study

Management 29,604.96$           34,605.00$           39,999.00$           Admin for 7 new pump stations

Operations Administration 128,599.92$         138,600.00$         148,000.00$         Consideration for new employee

Legal 3,099.90$             10,000.00$           10,000.00$           

Audit 3,082.75$             3,000.00$             3,000.00$             

Miscellaneous 12.75$                  5,000.00$             5,000.00$             

Utility System - Repairs & Maintenance 107,699.67$         180,000.00$         260,000.00$         

Electricity 81,427.06$           94,000.00$           137,200.00$         Adding PS for Village E,G, and J

Water 54,540.91$           145,000.00$         145,000.00$         $45,000 for reclaimed water from CONP

Fuel & Oil -$                     5,000.00$             5,000.00$             Generators, if needed 

Well Availability Payment 139,425.66$         218,000.00$         260,212.86$         

Capital Recovery Payment -$                     73,000.00$           86,916.44$             

Mechanical Integrity Testing (MIT) -$                     25,000.00$           -$                     

Infrastructure Improvements / Maintenance 373,873.15$         425,000.00$         125,000.00$         

Total Expenditures 1,209,583.56$      1,506,205.00$      1,375,328.30$      

Excess / (Shortfall) 100,190.94$         -$                     -$                     

Page 63



1 
 

RESOLUTION 2022‐20 
 

A  RESOLUTION  OF  THE  BOARD  OF  SUPERVISORS  OF  THE  WEST  VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT  DISTRICT  MAKING  A  DETERMINATION  OF  BENEFIT  AND 
IMPOSING SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023; PROVIDING FOR 
THE COLLECTION AND ENFORCEMENT OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS,  INCLUDING 
BUT  NOT  LIMITED  TO  PENALTIES  AND  INTEREST  THEREON;  CERTIFYING  AN 
ASSESSMENT ROLL; PROVIDING FOR AMENDMENTS TO THE ASSESSMENT ROLL; 
PROVIDING A SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
  WHEREAS, the West Villages Improvement District (“District”)  is a  local unit of special‐
purpose government established pursuant to Chapter 2004‐456, Laws of Florida, as amended, 
for the purpose of providing, operating and maintaining infrastructure improvements, facilities 
and services to the lands within the District; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the District  is  located  in the City of North Port, Florida and unincorporated 
Sarasota County, Florida (“County”); and 
 
  WHEREAS, the District has constructed or acquired various infrastructure improvements 
and provides certain services in accordance with the District’s adopted capital improvement plan 
and Chapter 2004‐456, Laws of Florida; and 
 
  WHEREAS,  the  Board  of  Supervisors  (“Board”)  of  the  District  hereby  determines  to 
undertake various operations and maintenance and other activities described  in  the District’s 
budget (“Adopted Budget”) for the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2022 and ending September 
30, 2023 (“Fiscal Year 2022/2023”), attached hereto as Exhibit “A;” and 
 
  WHEREAS,  the District must obtain  sufficient  funds  to provide  for  the operation  and 
maintenance of the services and facilities provided by the District as described in the Adopted 
Budget; and 
 
  WHEREAS, the provision of such services, facilities, and operations is a benefit to lands 
within the District; and 
 
  WHEREAS, Chapter  2004‐456,  Laws of  Florida, provides  that  the District may  impose 
special assessments on benefitted lands within the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, it is in the best interests of the District to proceed with the imposition of the 
special assessments  for operations and maintenance  in  the amount  set  forth  in  the Adopted 
Budget; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District has previously  levied an assessment for debt service, which the 

District desires to collect for Fiscal Year 2022/2023; and 
 

Page 64



2 
 

  WHEREAS, Chapter 197, Florida Statutes, provides a mechanism pursuant to which such 
special  assessments  may  be  placed  on  the  tax  roll  and  collected  by  the  local  tax  collector 
(“Uniform Method”), and the District has previously authorized the use of the Uniform Method 
by, among other things, entering into agreements with the Property Appraiser and Tax Collector 
of the County for that purpose; and 
 
  WHEREAS,  it  is  in  the  best  interests  of  the  District  to  adopt  the  assessment  roll 
(“Assessment Roll”) attached to this Resolution as Exhibit “B,” and to certify the portion of the 
Assessment Roll related to certain developed property (“Tax Roll Property”) to the County Tax 
Collector pursuant to the Uniform Method and to directly collect the portion of the Assessment 
Roll relating to the remaining property (“Direct Collect Property”), all as set forth in Exhibit “B;” 
and 
 
  WHEREAS,  it  is  in  the best  interests of  the District  to permit  the District Manager  to 
amend the Assessment Roll adopted herein,  including that portion certified to the County Tax 
Collector by this Resolution, as the Property Appraiser updates the property roll for the County, 
for such time as authorized by Florida law. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE  IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

 
  SECTION 1.  BENEFIT & ALLOCATION FINDINGS.  The provision of the services, facilities, and 
operations as described in Exhibit “A” confers a special and peculiar benefit to the lands within 
the District, which benefit exceeds or equals the cost of the assessments. The allocation of the 
assessments to the specially benefitted  lands  is shown  in Exhibits “A” and “B,” and  is hereby 
found to be fair and reasonable. 
 
  SECTION 2.  ASSESSMENT IMPOSITION.  Pursuant to Chapter 2004‐456, Laws of Florida, and 
using the procedures authorized by Florida law for the levy and collection of special assessments, 
a special assessment for operation and maintenance is hereby imposed and levied on benefitted 
lands within the District and  in accordance with Exhibits “A” and “B.”   The  lien of the special 
assessments  for operations and maintenance  imposed and  levied by  this Resolution  shall be 
effective upon passage of this Resolution.  Moreover, pursuant to Section 197.3632(4), Florida 
Statutes, the lien amount shall serve as the “maximum rate” authorized by law for operation and 
maintenance assessments. 
 
  SECTION 3.  COLLECTION AND ENFORCEMENT; PENALTIES; INTEREST.   
 

A. Tax Roll Assessments.    The operations  and maintenance  special  assessments  and 
previously levied debt service special assessments imposed on the Tax Roll Property 
shall  be  collected  at  the  same  time  and  in  the  same  manner  as  County  taxes  in 
accordance with the Uniform Method, as set forth in Exhibits “A” and “B.”   
 

Page 65



3 
 

B. Direct Bill Assessments.   The operations and maintenance special assessments and 
previously  levied  debt  service  special  assessments  imposed  on  the  Direct  Collect 
Property shall be collected directly by the District in accordance with Florida law, as 
set forth  in Exhibits “A” and “B.” Assessments directly collected by the District are 
due in full on December 1, 2022; provided, however, that, to the extent permitted by 
law,  the  assessments  due may  be  paid  in  several  partial,  deferred  payments  and 
according to the following schedule:  50% due no later than December 1, 2022, 25% 
due no later than February 1, 2023 and 25% due no later than May 1, 2023.  In the 
event  that  an  assessment  payment  is  not made  in  accordance with  the  schedule 
stated  above,  the  whole  assessment  –  including  any  remaining  partial,  deferred 
payments for Fiscal Year 2022/2023, shall immediately become due and payable; shall 
accrue interest, penalties in the amount of one percent (1%) per month, and all costs 
of collection and enforcement; and shall either be enforced pursuant to a foreclosure 
action, or, at the District’s sole discretion, collected pursuant to the Uniform Method 
on  a  future  tax  bill,  which  amount  may  include  penalties,  interest,  and  costs  of 
collection and enforcement. Any prejudgment  interest on delinquent assessments 
shall accrue at the rate of any bonds secured by the assessments, or at the statutory 
prejudgment interest rate, as applicable.  In the event an assessment subject to direct 
collection  by  the  District  shall  be  delinquent,  the  District  Manager  and  District 
Counsel,  without  further  authorization  by  the  Board,  may  initiate  foreclosure 
proceedings pursuant  to Chapter 170,  Florida  Statutes, or other applicable  law  to 
collect and enforce the whole assessment, as set forth herein.   
 

C. Future  Collection Methods.    The  decision  to  collect  special  assessments  by  any 
particular method – e.g., on the tax roll or by direct bill – does not mean that such 
method will be used to collect special assessments  in future years, and the District 
reserves the right in its sole discretion to select collection methods in any given year, 
regardless of past practices.   

 
  SECTION 4.  ASSESSMENT  ROLL.    The  Assessment  Roll,  attached  to  this  Resolution  as 
Exhibit “B,” is hereby certified for collection.  That portion of the Assessment Roll which includes 
the Tax Roll Property is hereby certified to the County Tax Collector and shall be collected by the 
County Tax Collector  in the same manner and time as County taxes.   The proceeds therefrom 
shall be paid to the District. 
 
  SECTION 5.  ASSESSMENT ROLL AMENDMENT.  The District Manager shall keep apprised of 
all updates made to the County property roll by the Property Appraiser after the date of this 
Resolution, and shall amend the Assessment Roll in accordance with any such updates, for such 
time as authorized by Florida  law,  to  the County property  roll.   After any amendment of  the 
Assessment Roll, the District Manager shall file the updates in the District records. 
 
  SECTION 6.   SEVERABILITY.    The  invalidity  or  unenforceability  of  any  one  or  more 
provisions  of  this  Resolution  shall  not  affect  the  validity  or  enforceability  of  the  remaining 
portions of this Resolution, or any part thereof. 

Page 66



4 
 

 
  SECTION 7.  EFFECTIVE DATE.    This Resolution  shall  take  effect  upon  the  passage  and 
adoption of this Resolution by the Board. 
 
 
  PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of August 2022. 
 
ATTEST:            WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  
 
 
_____________________________                   
Secretary / Assistant Secretary      Chairperson, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Exhibit A:  Budget 
Exhibit B:  Assessment Roll (Uniform Method) 

Assessment Roll (Direct Collect) 
   

Page 67



5 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Budget 
 

   

Page 68



6 
 

Exhibit B 
 

Assessment Roll (Uniform Method) 
Assessment Roll (Direct Collect) 

 

Page 69



�������������	�
� ������������������������������
����������

����������� !������������������ ��" ���

#$%&'(()*'+,%�-+.$&'%/01234567�38�9:;:4<=:�>6;:27?@;31086�<8�A0B04=�CD�EFEEGHIJKLHM9:;:4<=:�N<08=ODPHKLIQ�RQSKTU9@�VWXXAYU9�WZ/[\VUZU]@�̂W9@[WN@]\@WNU�\_�@>U�̂W9@[WN@�9�W]@U]@�@\�̀9U�@>U�̀]W_\[Z�ZU@>\̂\_�N\XXUN@W\]�\_�]\]?Â �VAX\[UZ�A99U99ZU]@9]<=3a6�34�56;61O�B3b68�=5:=�=56�T64=�V322:B64�Wcd;<b6c68=�̂34=;3a=�e=56�̂34=;3a=fg�38=6874�=<�046�=56�083h<;c�c6=5<7�<ha<226a=38B�8<8?:7�b:2<;6c�:44644c68=4�=<�16�26b367�1O�=56�̂34=;3a=�d0;40:8=�=<�96a=3<8�ijklmnmED�_2<;37:�9=:=0=64l�@56�o<:;7<h�90d6;b34<;4�<h�=56�̂34=;3a=�p322�a<870a=�:�d0123a�56:;38B�<8�A0B04=�iqD�EFEED�:=�iirFF�:lclD�:=�=56�/0123a�9:h6=O�o032738B@;:3838B�[<<c�2<a:=67�:=�ijjss�/;6=<�o2b7lD�V683a6D�_2<;37:�mCEjml@56�d0;d<46�<h�=56�d0123a�56:;38B�34�=<�a<84376;�=56�:7<d=3<8�<h�:�;64<20=3<8�:0=5<;3t38B�=56�̂34=;3a=�=<�046�=56�083h<;cc6=5<7�<h�a<226a=38B�8<8?:7�b:2<;6c�:44644c68=4�=<�16�26b367�1O�=56�̂34=;3a=�<8�d;<d6;=364�2<a:=67�<8�2:87�38a20767�38�=563̂4=;3a=l@56�̂34=;3a=�c:O�26bO�8<8?:7�b:2<;6c�:44644c68=4�h<;�=56�d0;d<46�<h�h38:8a38BD�:au03;38BD�c:38=:3838B�:87v<;�<d6;:=38Bd0123a�h:a323=364D�46;b3a64�:87�3cd;<b6c68=4�p3=538�:87�p3=5<0=�=56�1<087:;364�<h�=56�̂34=;3a=D�=<�a<8434=�<hD�:c<8B�<=56;=538B4D�p:=6;D�46p6;D�7;:38:B6D�3;;3B:=3<8�:87�p:=6;�c:8:B6c68=�3cd;<b6c68=4D�d:;w4�:87�;6a;6:=3<8:2�h:a323=364D�;<:7p:O3cd;<b6c68=4D�:87�<=56;�3cd;<b6c68=4�:87�:8O�<=56;�2:ph02�d;<x6a=4�<;�46;b3a64�<h�=56�̂34=;3a=l\p86;4�<h�=56�d;<d6;=364�=<�16�:4464467�:87�<=56;�38=6;64=67�d:;=364�c:O�:dd6:;�:=�=56�d0123a�56:;38B�:87�16�56:;7;6B:;738B�=56�046�<h�=56�083h<;c�c6=5<7�<h�a<226a=38B�40a5�8<8?:7�b:2<;6c�:44644c68=4l�@534�56:;38B�34�<d68�=<�=56�d0123a:87�p322�16�a<870a=67�38�:aa<;7:8a6�p3=5�=56�d;<b343<84�<h�_2<;37:�2:p�h<;�4d6a3:2�734=;3a=4l�@56�d0123a�56:;38B�c:O�16a<8=38067�=<�:�7:=6D�=3c6�:87�2<a:=3<8�=<�16�4d6a3h367�<8�=56�;6a<;7�:=�=56�56:;38Bl�@56;6�c:O�16�<aa:43<84�p56890d6;b34<;4�<;�4=:hh�c:O�d:;=3a3d:=6�1O�4d6:w6;�=626d5<86l/0;40:8=�=<�d;<b343<84�<h�=56�Ac6;3a:84�p3=5�̂34:1323=364�Aa=D�:8O�d6;4<8�;6u03;38B�4d6a3:2�:aa<cc<7:=3<84�=<�d:;=3a3d:=6�38=56�56:;38B�:87v<;�c66=38B�34�:4w67�=<�a<8=:a=�=56�̂34=;3a=�\hh3a6�:=�esnig�nmF?CjEED�:=�26:4=�h<;=O?63B5=�eCqg�5<0;4�16h<;6=56�56:;38B�:87v<;�c66=38Bl�Wh�O<0�:;6�56:;38B�<;�4d66a5�3cd:3;67D�d26:46�a<8=:a=�=56�_2<;37:�[62:O�96;b3a6�:=�eqFFg�jss?qkkFD�p5<�a:8�:37�O<0�38�a<8=:a=38B�=56�̂34=;3a=�\hh3a6lU:a5�d6;4<8�p5<�76a3764�=<�:dd6:2�:8O�76a343<8�c:76�1O�=56�o<:;7�p3=5�;64d6a=�=<�:8O�c:==6;�a<84376;67�:=�=56�56:;38B�34:7b3467�=5:=�d6;4<8�p322�8667�:�;6a<;7�<h�=56�d;<a66738B4�:87�=5:=�:aa<;738B2OD�=56�d6;4<8�c:O�8667�=<�6840;6�=5:=�:b6;1:=3c�;6a<;7�<h�=56�d;<a66738B4�34�c:76D�38a20738B�=56�=64=3c<8O�:87�6b3768a6�0d<8�p53a5�40a5�:dd6:2�34�=<�16�1:467lT3223:c�N;<426O3̂4=;3a=�Z:8:B6;TU9@�VWXXAYU9�WZ/[\VUZU]@�̂W9@[WN@/01r�y02O�EiD�EqD�A0B04=�C�z�iiD�EFEE
Page 70



 
 

1 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-21 
 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
EXPRESSING ITS INTENT TO UTILIZE THE UNIFORM 
METHOD OF LEVYING, COLLECTING, AND 
ENFORCING NON AD VALOREM ASSESSMENTS 
WHICH MAY BE LEVIED BY THE WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT IN ACCORDANCE WITH 
SECTION 197.3632, FLORIDA STATUTES; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; CONFLICTS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
 WHEREAS, the West Villages Improvement District (the “District”) was established 
pursuant to the provisions of Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as amended (the “Act”), which 
authorizes the District to levy certain assessments which include benefit and maintenance 
assessments and further authorizes the District to levy special assessments pursuant to Chapters 
170 and 197, Florida Statutes, for the acquisition, construction, or reconstruction of assessable 
improvements authorized by the Act; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the above referenced assessments are non-ad valorem in nature and, 
therefore, may be collected under the provisions of Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes, in which 
the State of Florida has provided a uniform method for the levying, collecting, and enforcing 
such non-ad valorem assessments; and 
 

WHEREAS, The District has previously adopted Resolutions 2004-16, 2016-16, and 
2022-03 for said purpose regarding its intent to utilize the uniform method for the levying, 
collecting, and enforcing of such non-ad valorem assessments within certain of the lands within 
the District, which resolutions shall be superseded upon the adoption of this Resolution; and 
 
 WHEREAS, pursuant to Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes, the District has caused 
notice of a public hearing to be advertised weekly in a newspaper of general circulation within 
the City of North Port and Sarasota County for four (4) consecutive weeks prior to such hearing. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 
 

 SECTION 1. The West Villages Improvement District, upon conducting its public 
hearing as required by Section 197.3632, Florida Statutes, hereby expresses its intent to use the 
uniform method of collecting assessments imposed by the District as provided in the Act, and 
Chapters 170 and 197, Florida Statutes, each of which are non-ad valorem assessments which 
may be collected annually pursuant to the provisions of the Act for the purpose of paying 
principal and interest on any and all of its indebtedness and for the purpose of paying the cost of 
operating and maintaining its assessable improvements.  The legal description of the boundaries 
of the real property subject to a levy of assessments is attached and made a part of this 

Page 71



 
 

2 
 

Resolution as Exhibit A.  The non-ad valorem assessments and the District’s use of the uniform 
method of collecting its non-ad valorem assessment(s) may continue in any given year when the 
Board of Supervisors determines that use of the uniform method for that year is in the best 
interests of the District. 
 
 SECTION 2. The District’s Secretary is authorized to provide the Property Appraiser 
and Tax Collector of Sarasota County and the Department of Revenue of the State of Florida 
with a copy of this Resolution and enter into any agreements with the Property Appraiser and/or 
Tax Collector necessary to carry out the provisions of this Resolution. 
 
 SECTION 3. If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other 
provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 4. This Resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain 
in effect unless rescinded or repealed.  Furthermore, upon its passage this Resolution shall 
supersede any resolution adopted relative to the District’s utilization of the Uniform Method, 
specifically Resolutions 2004-16, 2016-16 and 2022-03. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of August, 2022. 
 
 
ATTEST:     WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 
      DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________  __________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
       
 
Exhibit A: Legal Description of District Boundaries 
 
 
 

Page 72



 
 

 

Exhibit A 
 

Legal Description of District Boundaries 
 
THE TERRITORIAL BOUNDARIES OF THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT SHALL BE AS 
FOLLOWS, TO WIT: 
LANDS LOCATED IN TOWNSHIP 39 SOUTH, RANGE 20 EAST, SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
That part of Section 21, lying Southwesterly of County Road No. 777 (West River Road). 
All that part of Section 28, lying West of lands described in official Records Book 2008060371, Public Records of 
Sarasota County, Florida, (County Road No.777 West River Road). 
All of Section 29, less and except the following: Right-of-way for U.S. Highway No. 41 (State Road No. 45). 
All of Section 30 less and except the following: Right-of-way for U. S. Highway No. 41 (State Road No. 45); That 
portion conveyed to Florida Power and Light Company consisting of approximately 4.66 acres in the SW 1/4 as 
described in Official Record Book 1036, Page 802, Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida; That portion lying 
West of lands described in Official Record Book 1036, Page 802, South of the westerly extension of the North line 
of said lands described in Official Records Book 1036, Page 802 and North of the northerly Right of Way line of 
U.S. Highway No. 41. 
All of Section 31 less and except the following: Right-of-way of U. S. Highway 41 (State Road No. 45). 
All of Section 32 less and except the following: Right-of-way of U. S. Highway No. 41 (State Road No. 45) That 
portion conveyed in Official Record Book 1571, Page 2172 of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida, 
(College). 
That Portion of Section 33 lying North of U.S. Highway No. 41 (State Road No.45) and West of County Road #777 
(West River Road); also, that portion of Section 33, lying South of U.S. Highway No. 41 (State Road No. 45). LESS 
AND EXCEPT: That portion described in Official Records Book 1571, Page 2172 of the Public Records of Sarasota 
County, Florida, (College); That portion described in Official Records Book 2389, Page 529, of the Public Records 
of Sarasota County, Florida, (Sarasota County Fire Station). 
All that part of Section 34 described as follows: The North Half of the Northwest Quarter of the Southwest Quarter 
lying South of U.S. Highway #41 (State Road #45) and West of the right of way of County Road #777 (as realigned) 
in Official Records Book 2679 at Pages 2750-2574, LESS AND EXCEPT: That portion described in Official 
Records Instrument #2010051294, of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida; That portion described as 
follows: 
Commence at the Southeast Corner of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 34, Township 39 South, Range 20 East, Sarasota 
County, Florida; thence N89°24'59"W, along the South line of the Southwest 1/4 of said Section 34, a distance of 
204.95 feet to a point on the baseline of survey, as shown on the Sarasota County Right-of-Way Map for River Road 
(Project No. 95790), same being a point on a curve to the left having a radius of 5729.58 feet, a central angle of 
05°13'19", a chord bearing of N16°30'08"W, and a chord length of 522.02 feet; thence along said base-line of 
Survey, and the arc of said curve, an arc length of 522.20 feet; thence S70°53'13"W, perpendicular to said baseline 
of Survey, a distance of 110.00 feet to the Westerly Right-of-Way Line of South River Road per Official Records 
Book 2679, Page 2750, Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida, same being a point on a curve to the left having 
a radius of 5619.32 feet, a central angle of 15°31'30", a chord bearing of N26°52'28"W, and a chord length of 
1517.98 feet; thence along said Westerly Right-of-Way Line the following four (4) courses: (1) along the arc of said 
curve an arc length of 1522.64 feet; (2) thence S55°21' 4 7"W, a distance of 20.00 feet to a point on a curve to the 
left having a radius of 5599.32 feet, a central angle of 02°00'54", a chord bearing of N35°38'40"W, and a chord 
length of 196.90 feet; (3) thence along the arc of said curve an arc length of 196.91 feet; (4) thence N36°39'07"W, a 
distance of 71.08 feet to the South line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 34; 
thence N89°37'27"W, along the South line of said Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of 
Section 34, a distance of 4.10 feet to the Point of Beginning, same being the Southwest corner of the North 1/4 of 
the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 34, Township 39 South, Range 20 East, Sarasota County, Florida; 
thence N89°37'27"W, along the South line of the North 1/4 of the Northwest 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of said 
Section 34, a distance of 108.43 feet; thence N36°45'48"W, a distance of 427.04 feet to the Southerly Right-of-Way 
Line of U.S. Highway No. 41 (State Road No.45), per Florida Department of Transportation Right-of-Way Map 
Section 17010-2508, same being a point on a curve to the left having a radius of 3031.73 feet, a central angle of 
01°56'33", a chord bearing of N81°26'05"E, and a chord length of 102.78 feet; thence along said South-erly Right-
of-Way Line of U.S. Highway No. 41 (State Road No. 45) and the arc of said curve an arc length of 102.78 feet to 
the intersection of said Southerly Right-of-Way Line of U.S. Highway No. 41 (State Road No. 45) and the Westerly 

Page 73



 
 

 

Right-of-Way Line of South River Road per Official Records Book 2695, Page 1438, Public Records of Sarasota 
County, Florida; thence S36°39'07"E, along said Westerly Right-of-Way Line of South River Road, a distance of 
439.57 feet to a point on the West line of the Northwest¼ of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 34; 
thence S00°09'58"W, along said West line of the Northwest 1/4 of the Northeast 1/4 of the Southwest 1/4 of Section 
34, a distance of 5.47 feet to the Point of Beginning.  
All that part of the NE 1/4 of the SW 1/4 of Section 34, lying easterly of right of way for County Road #777 (as 
realigned) as per Official Records Book 2679, at Pages 2750-2754, Less lands described in Official Records 
Instrument Number 1999111833 of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida; Also all that part of the West 
Half of the SE 1/4 of Section 34, lying westerly of maintained right of way for South River Road (Old River Road), 
and northerly of lands described in Official Records Instrument Number 1999111833, of the Public Records of 
Sarasota County, Florida, (Right of way for County Road #777). 
All that part of the North Half of the Southwest quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 34 lying (West of lands 
described in Official Records Instrument Number 2008060371, of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida, 
River Road County Road No. 777). 
All that portion of the Southeast Quarter of Section 34, lying West of the Myakka River, South of the South line of 
lands described in Official Record Instrument No. 2000002794, Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida (River 
Road Office Park, Inc.), and easterly of the maintained right of way line of a paved road running from River Road to 
the South line of the Northeast Quarter of said Section 34 (Old River Road), less and except the following: That 
portion described in Official Record Instrument No. 1999111833, of the Public Records of Sarasota Florida (Right 
of Way for County Road No. 777). 
All of Section 35 lying West of the Myakka River. 
 
 
LANDS LOCATED IN TOWNSHIP 40 SOUTH, RANGE 20 EAST, SARASOTA COUNTY, FLORIDA: 
All of Section 3, less and except the following: That portion conveyed in Order of Taking recorded in Official 
Record Book 2679, Page 2750-2754, of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida (County Road No 777); The 
maintained right-of-way of County Road No. 777 (South River Road). 
All of Section 4. 
All of Section 5. 
All of Section 6. 
All of Section 7. 
All of Section 8. 
All of Section 9. 
All of Section 10, less and except the following: The maintained right-of-way for County Road No. 777 (South 
River Road). 
All of section 15, less and except the following: The maintained right-of-way for County Road #777 South River 
Road); Right-of-way Conveyed in Official Record Instrument Number 2000163556, of the Public Records of 
Sarasota County, Florida; Parcel 202, as described in Official Record Instrument #2008060371, described as 
follows: 
Commence at the Southwest Corner of Section 15, Township 40 South, Range 20 East, Sarasota County, Florida; 
thence S89°21'19"E, along the South Line of said Section 15, a distance of 49.10 feet, to a point on the baseline of 
survey as shown on the unrecorded Sarasota County Maintained Right-of-Way Map for River Road; thence 
N45°58'14"E, along said baseline of survey, a distance of 3284.46 feet, thence S44°01'46"E, perpendicular to said 
baseline of survey, a distance of 39.75 feet to the Point of Beginning; thence N45°58'39"E, a distance of 102.13 feet; 
to a point on a curve to the left having a radius of 706.58 feet, a central angle of 45°29'01", a chord bearing of 
N23°13'07"E, and a chord length of 546.30 feet; thence along the arc of said curve an arc length of 560.91 feet; 
thence N00°28'37"E, a distance of 615.74 feet; thence S89°31'23"E, a distance of 178.13 feet; thence S60°22'18"E, 
a distance of 188.25 feet; thence S32°42'31"E, a distance of 144.47 feet, to a point on a curve to the left having a 
radius of 150.00 feet, a central angle of 65°32'10", a chord bearing of S12°01'25"E, and a chord length of 162.37 
feet; thence along the arc of said curve an arc length of 171.57 feet; to a point on a curve to the right having a radius 
of 50.00 feet, a central angle of 48°24'34", a chord bearing of S20°35'14"E, and a chord length of 41.00 feet; thence 
along the arc of said curve an arc length of 42.25 feet; to a point on a curve to the left having a radius of 55.00 feet, a 
central angle of 53°04'13", a chord bearing of S22°55'03"E, and a chord length of 49.14 feet; thence along the arc of 
said curve an arc length of 50.94 feet; to a point on a curve to the right having a radius of 50.00 feet, a central angle 
of 69°28'55", a chord bearing of S14°42' 42"E, and a chord length of 56.99 feet; thence along the arc of said curve 
an arc length of 60.63 feet; thence S20° 01' 46''W, a distance of 165.04 feet; thence S09°45'21"E, a distance of 

Page 74



 
 

 

198.48 feet; thence Sl0°32'59''W, a distance of 77.82 feet; thence S24°01'29''W, a distance of 246.18 feet; thence 
S16°16'56''W, a distance of 52.07 feet; thence S35°57'16"E, a distance of 117.85 feet; thence S87°27'37''W, a 
distance of 86.98 feet; thence S45°58'19''W, a distance of 25.22 feet; thence S05°31'58''W, a distance of 149.54 feet; 
thence S45°58'39''W, a distance of 223.39 feet; thence N44°01'21''W, a distance of 622.74 feet, to the Point of 
Beginning. 
All of section 17.  
All of section 18. 
All of section 19, less and except parcel 301, as described in Official Record Instrument #2008060371, of the Public 
Records of Sarasota County, Florida. 
All of section 20, less and except the following: Maintained right-of-way for County Road #777 (South River 
Road); Right of way conveyed for County Road #777, described in Official Record Instrument #2008060371, of the 
Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida. 
All of Section 21, less and except the following: Maintained right-of-way for County Road #777 (South River 
Road); The SW 1/4 of the SE 1/4; The North 50 feet of the South 380 feet of the SW 1/4 lying East of County Road 
#777 (South River Road); Right-of-way conveyed in Official Record Book 2097, Page 396, of the Public Records of 
Sarasota County, Florida (Winchester Boulevard); Right-of-way conveyed in Official Records Instrument Number 
2000163556 of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida; Parcels 101.A, 101.B, 101.C and 201, described in 
Official Record Instrument #2008060371, of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida. 
 
Overall area of lands = 12,444.0475 Acres or 542,062,710 Square Feet. 

Page 75



 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-22 
 
A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST 
VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, ESTABLISHING A REGULAR 
MEETING SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 AND SETTING 
THE TIME AND LOCATION OF SAID DISTRICT MEETINGS; AND 
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, it is necessary for the West Villages Improvement District ("District") to 

establish a regular meeting schedule for fiscal year 2022/2023; and 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Supervisors of the District has set a regular meeting schedule, 

location and time for District meetings for fiscal year 2022/2023 which is attached hereto and 

made a part hereof as Exhibit “A”. 

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS 
OF THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, SARASOTA COUNTY, 
FLORIDA, AS FOLLOWS: 
 

Section 1. The above recitals are hereby adopted. 

 

Section 2. The regular meeting schedule, time and location for meetings for fiscal 

year 2022/2023 which is attached hereto as Exhibit “A” is hereby adopted and authorized to be 

published. 

 
PASSED, ADOPTED and EFFECTIVE this 18th day of August, 2022. 

 
ATTEST: WEST VILLAGES  
 IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
 
 
By:                                                                       By:                
 Secretary/Assistant Secretary Chairman/Vice Chairman 
 

Page 76



 

 

WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
FISCAL YEAR 2022/2023 REGULAR MEETING SCHEDULE 

 

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Supervisors of the West Villages Improvement 
District (the “District”) will hold Regular Meetings at 11:00 a.m. at the Public Safety Building 
Training Room located at 19955 Preto Blvd., Venice, Florida 34293. 

 
 

October 13, 2022 
November 10, 2022 
December 8, 2022 
January 12, 2023 
February 9, 2023 

March 9, 2023 
April 13, 2023 
May 11, 2023 
June 8, 2023 
July 13, 2023 

August 10, 2023 
September 14, 2023 

 
 
The purpose of the meetings is to conduct any business coming before the Board.  The meetings 
are open to the public and will be conducted in accordance with the provisions of Florida law.  
Copies of the Agendas for any meeting may be obtained from the District’s website or by 
contacting the District Manager at 941-244-2805 and/or toll-free at 1-877-737-4922 prior to the 
date of the particular meeting.   
 
From time to time one or more Supervisors may participate by telephone; therefore, a speaker 
telephone will be present at the meeting location so that Supervisors may be fully informed of the 
discussions taking place.  Meetings may be continued as found necessary to a time and date 
specified on the record.   
 
If any person decides to appeal any decision made with respect to any matter considered at these 
meetings, such person will need a record of the proceedings and such person may need to insure 
that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made at his or her own expense and which record 
includes the testimony and evidence on which the appeal is based. 
 
In accordance with the provisions of the Americans with Disabilities Act, any person requiring 
special accommodations or an interpreter to participate at any of these meetings should contact the 
District Manager at 941-244-2805 and/or toll free 1-877-737-4922 at least seven (7) days prior to 
the date of the particular meeting. 
 
 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
www.westvillagesid.org 
 
PUBLISH:   SARASOTA HERALD TRIBUNE    00/00/2022 

Page 77



Page 1 of 2 
 

WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
IRRIGATION MEETING WITH GRAN PARADISO PROPERTY OWNERS 

ASSOCIAITON REPRESENTATIVES  
JULY 13, 2022 

 
 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
The July 13, 2022, Irrigation Meeting of the West Villages Improvement District (“WVID” or 
the “District”) and Gran Paradiso Property Owners Association was called to order at 3:00 a.m.  
in the Public Safety Building Training Room  located at 19955 Preto Boulevard, Venice, Florida 
34293 
 
Notice of Meeting: 
 
Proof of notice was posted on the District website westvillagesid.org 
 
C. Representatives Attending: 
 
 
WVID Chairman John Luczynski 
WVID Counsel  Lindsay Whelan  
WVID Manager  William Crosley 
WVID Operations Manager Mike Smith 
WVID Engineer  Richard Ellis 
Developer Counsel  Laura Donaldson 
 
Gran Paradiso POA board members in attendance were:  
 
Steve Glunt, GP POA President, John Meisel, GP POA board member  
 
 
Also present were approximately 25 Gran Paradiso residents  
 
 
Workshop was called to order by WVID Chairman John Luczynski at 3 PM on 7/13 
 
Staff introductions 
 
Staff presentation on Wellen Park irrigation program and irrigation program within GP 
 
Q&A: 
 
John Meisel: asked a variety of questions on the specifics of the staff presentation which were 
addressed by WVID staff. 
 
Kevin Shaughnessy: questions on how much irrigable acreage within GP is owned by WVID, 
and how much of that is actually irrigated. WVID staff indicated that they would look in to this 
calculation. 
 

Page 78



Page 2 of 2 
 

Lex Van Brero: questions on where is the GP water actually being utilized; suggestion of 
installation of flow meters.  
 
Rich Bando: root cause of over usage of irrigation water in GP is due to the mismanagement of 
water resources by the management company; stressed that the GPHOA needs to get a water 
conservation plan in place; stressed that residents need to understand appropriate irrigation 
techniques. 
 
Elaine Nix: stressed that the GPHOA needs to establish a water conservation plan and focus on 
important issues such as water conservation rather than wasting HOA and WVID resources 
looking into the history of the water use permit, etc.; stressed that prior HOA had irrigation 
allocation under control so current GPHOA needs to go back to doing what prior HOA board 
did. 
 
Phil Stokes: thanked presenters; stressed that the GPHOA needs to get the water usage back in 
line to prior GPHOA practices; stressed the need to conserve finite resources; stressed that 
irrigation water over usage is an important issue for the GPHOA. 
 
John Luczynski: discussed that WVID has received proposals for a unit 3 bond requisition audit 
for consideration at July board meeting; discussed that GP is the only community that is over 
their allocation for this year; discussed that prior resident GPHOA board was able to stay within 
allocation and stressed the need for the current GPHOA board to utilize those practices to get 
back in line w/r/t allocation; stressed that the master developer is invested in the community and 
is fair. 
 
 
 
_____________________________  ______________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary   Chair/Vice Chair 

Page 79



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT 
 
This agreement is made the 18th day of August 2022, between Gravina, Smith, Matte & Arnold 
Marketing and Public Relations, hereinafter referred to as “Agency,” and the West Villages 
Improvement District referred to as “Client.”  
 
1.  TERMS OF EMPLOYMENT/SCOPE OF SERVICES  
Client hereby retains and appoints Agency to provide services as outlined in our proposal’s scope 
of work attached hereto as Exhibit A, and as otherwise directed by the Client, subject to the terms 
and conditions of this Agreement. Said services will commence upon acceptance of this 
agreement and generally include strategic communications, public relations, and marketing 
services. 
 
2.  COMPENSATION  
The Agency’s hourly fee schedule is as follows: $250 per hour for partner services, $200 for director 
services, $150 for manager/specialist services, $125 per hour for coordinator services, and $70 per 
hour for assistant services. Services provided will be billed at the appropriate level, as deemed by 
the Agency. The Agency shall invoice the Client monthly for hours billed, at the beginning of the 
month for the services provided in the prior month and is payable no later than 30 days after the 
invoice date. Hours will be tracked monthly to account for services provided. 
 
3. COSTS AND EXPENSES 
In addition to the service fees provided herein, Client agrees to reimburse Agency for approved 
out-of-pocket expenses incurred by the firm on behalf of the Client in discharging the obligations 
herein. Items may include but not limited to graphic design, print production costs, postage, etc.  
 
4.  NOTICE OF TERMINATION  
Either party may terminate this Agreement without cause by giving the other party written notice 
thereof at least 30 days prior to the effective date of termination. Either party may terminate this 
Agreement immediately for cause. All other rights and duties of the parties shall continue during 
the notice period, including the requirement of the Client to remit payment for compensation, 
costs and expenses incurred by it prior to the date of termination, and Client shall be responsible 
to the Agency for the payment of any such costs notwithstanding the termination of the 
Agreement.  
 
 
 

 
 

Page 80



 

Professional Services Agreement | West Villages Improvement District 
Page 2 

 
5.  ASSIGNMENT AND DELEGATION  
Neither party may assign any rights or delegate any duties hereunder (except Agency’s employees 
or independent consultants as it deems appropriate to discharge the obligation of this Agreement 
as long as Agency has control of the final work product) without the express prior written consent 
of the other.  
 
6. INSURANCE 
 

A. The Agency shall, at its own expense, maintain insurance during the performance 
of the Services under this Agreement, with limits of liability not less than the following: 
 
Workers Compensation      Statutory 
 
General Liability (including Independent Contractor’s Coverage for bodily injury and 
property damage in connection with any subcontractors’ operation, if any.) 
   Bodily Injury (including contractual)   $1,000,000 
   Property Damage (including contractual)  $1,000,000 
 
B. The Agency shall name the Client, its agents, staff, consultants and supervisors, as 
additional insureds (except for Workers’ Compensation coverage). The Agency shall 
furnish the Client with the Certificate of Insurance evidencing compliance with this 
requirement.  No certificate shall be acceptable to the Client unless it provides that any 
change or termination within the policy periods of the insurance coverages, as certified, 
shall not be effective without prior written notice to the Client. Insurance coverage shall 
be from a reputable insurance carrier, authorized to conduct business in the State of 
Florida, and such carrier shall have a Best’s Insurance Reports rating of at least A-VII. 
 
C. If the Agency fails to have secured and maintained the required insurance, the 
Client has the right (without any obligation to do so, however), to secure such required 
insurance in which event the Agency shall pay the cost for that required insurance and 
shall furnish, upon demand, all information that may be required in connection with the 
Client’s obtaining the required insurance. 

 
7.  INDEMNIFICATION 
Agency shall at all times indemnify and hold Client harmless against and from all losses, liability, 
expense and other detriments of every nature and description to which Client may be subjected 
by reason of any act or act of omission of Agency, its subcontractors, consultants, agents, officers, 
directors and employees where such loss, liability, expense or other detriment arises from or in 
connection with the performance of the work including, but not limited to, personal injury 
(including death) and losses for damage to property of Client.  Further, Agency acknowledges and 
agrees that nothing in this Agreement shall be deemed as a waiver of immunity or limited liability 
of the Client beyond any statutory limited waiver of immunity or limits of liability which may have 
been adopted by the Florida Legislature in Section 768.28, Florida Statutes, or other statute, and  

 

Page 81



 

Professional Services Agreement | West Villages Improvement District 
Page 3  

 
nothing in this Agreement shall inure to the benefit of any third party for the purpose of allowing 
any claim which would otherwise be barred under the Doctrine of Sovereign Immunity or by 
operation of law. 
 
8. INDEPENDENT AGENCY 
It is understood and agreed that at all times the relationship of Agency and its employees, agents, 
subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Agency to the Client is the 
relationship of an independent Agency and not that of an employee, agent, joint venturer or 
partner of the Client. Nothing in this Agreement shall be interpreted or construed as creating or 
establishing the relationship of employer and employee between the Client and Agency or any of 
its employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or indirectly employed by Agency. The 
Parties acknowledge that Agency is not an employee for state or federal tax purposes. Agency 
shall hire and pay all of Agency's employees, agents, subcontractors or anyone directly or 
indirectly employed by Agency, all of whom shall be employees of Agency and not employees of 
the Client and at all times entirely under Agency's supervision, direction and control.   
 
In particular, the Client will not: i) Withhold FICA (Social Security) from Agency’s payments; ii) Make 
state or federal unemployment insurance contributions on Agency’s behalf; iii) Withhold state or 
federal income tax from payment to Agency; iv) Make disability insurance contributions on behalf 
of Agency; or v) Obtain workers’ compensation insurance on behalf of Agency. 
 
9. DEFAULT AND PROTECTION AGAINST THIRD PARTY INTERFERENCE   
A default by either party under this Agreement shall entitle the other to all remedies available at 
law or in equity, which may include, but is not limited to, the right of actual damages and/or 
specific performance. The Client shall be solely responsible for enforcing its rights under this 
Agreement against any interfering third party. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall limit or 
impair the Client’s right to protect its rights from interference by a third party to this Agreement.  
 
10. ENFORCEMENT OF AGREEMENT   
In the event that either party is required to enforce this Agreement by court proceedings or 
otherwise, then the parties agree that the substantially prevailing party shall be entitled to recover 
from the other all fees and costs incurred, including reasonably attorney’s fees, paralegal fees, and 
expert witness fees and costs for trial, alternative dispute resolution, or appellate proceedings. 
 
11.  CONTROLLING LAW; VENUE  
The validity, interpretation and performance of this Agreement shall be controlled by and 
construed under the laws of the state of Florida. Venue shall be in Sarasota County, Florida. 
 
12. THIRD PARTY BENEFICIARIES   
This Agreement is solely for the benefit of the Client and the Agency and no right or cause of 
action shall accrue upon or by reason, to or for the benefit of any third party not a formal party 
to this Agreement. Nothing in this Agreement expressed or implied is intended or shall be 
construed to confer upon any person or corporation other than the Client and the Agency any  

 

Page 82



 

Professional Services Agreement | West Villages Improvement District 
Page 4 

 
right, remedy, or claim under or by reason of this Agreement or any of the provisions or conditions 
of this Agreement; and all of the provisions, representations, covenants, and conditions contained 
in this Agreement shall inure to the sole benefit of and shall be binding upon the Client and the 
Agency and their respective representatives, successors, and assigns. 
 
13. PUBLIC RECORDS   
Agency understands and agrees that all documents of any kind provided to the Client in 
connection with this Agreement may be public records, and, accordingly, Agency agrees to 
comply with all applicable provisions of Florida law in handling such records, including but not 
limited to Section 119.0701, Florida Statutes. Agency acknowledges that the designated public 
records custodian for the Client is William Crosley (“Public Records Custodian”). Among other 
requirements and to the extent applicable by law, the Agency shall (1) keep and maintain public 
records required by the Client to perform the service; (2) upon request by the Public Records 
Custodian, provide the Client with the requested public records or allow the records to be 
inspected or copied within a reasonable time period at a cost that does not exceed the cost 
provided in Chapter 119, Florida Statutes; (3) ensure that public records which are exempt or 
confidential, and exempt from public records disclosure requirements, are not disclosed except as 
authorized by law for the duration of the contract term and following the contract term if the 
Agency does not transfer the records to the Public Records Custodian of the Client; and (4) upon 
completion of the contract, transfer to the Client, at no cost, all public records in Agency’s 
possession or, alternatively, keep, maintain and meet all applicable requirements for retaining 
public records pursuant to Florida laws. When such public records are transferred by the Agency, 
the Agency shall destroy any duplicate public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt 
from public records disclosure requirements. All records stored electronically must be provided 
to the Client in a format that is compatible with Microsoft Word or Adobe PDF formats. 
 
IF THE AGENCY HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE APPLICATION OF CHAPTER 119, 
FLORIDA STATUTES, TO THE AGENCY’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS RELATING TO 
THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT (561) 630-4922, 
WCROSLEY@SDSINC.ORG, OR 2501A BURNS ROAD, PALM BEACH GARDENS, FLORIDA 
33410. 
 
14. E-VERIFY   
The Agency shall comply with and perform all applicable provisions of Section 448.095, Florida 
Statutes. Accordingly, to the extent required by Florida Statute, Agency shall register with and use 
the United States Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system to verify the work 
authorization status of all newly hired employees. The Client may terminate this Agreement 
immediately for cause if there is a good faith belief that the Agency has knowingly violated Section 
448.091, Florida Statutes. 
 
If the Agency anticipates entering into agreements with subcontractors for the Work, the Agency 
will not enter into the subcontractor agreement without first receiving an affidavit from the 
subcontractor regarding compliance with Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, and stating that  

 

Page 83



 

Professional Services Agreement | West Villages Improvement District 
Page 5 

 
the subcontractor does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with an unauthorized alien. 
Agency shall maintain a copy of such affidavit for the duration of the agreement and provide a 
copy to the Client upon request.  
 
In the event that the Client has a good faith belief that a subcontractor has knowingly violated 
Section 448.095, Florida Statutes, but the Agency has otherwise complied with its obligations 
hereunder, the Client shall promptly notify the Agency. The Agency agrees to immediately 
terminate the agreement with the subcontractor upon notice from the Client. Further, absent such 
notification from the Client, the Agency or any subcontractor who has a good faith belief that a 
person or entity with which it is contracting has knowingly violated Section 448.09(1), Florida 
Statutes, shall promptly terminate its agreement with such person or entity. 
 
By entering into this Agreement, the Agency represents that no public employer has terminated 
a contract with the Agency under Section 448.095(2)(c), Florida Statutes, within the year 
immediately preceding the date of this Agreement. 
 
15. COMPLIANCE WITH SECTION 20.055, FLORIDA STATUTES    
The Agency agrees to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida Statutes, to cooperate with the 
inspector general in any investigation, audit, inspection, review, or hearing pursuant such section 
and to incorporate in all subcontracts the obligation to comply with Section 20.055(5), Florida 
Statutes. 
 
16.  ENTIRE AGREEMENT  
This writing contains the entire Agreement of the parties. No agent, employee or other 
representative of either party is empowered to alter any of the terms hereof except by written 
agreement signed by the parties.  
 
 
___________________________________ ___________________________________ 
BY: (Client)      Date  
John Luczynski 
Chairman, Board of Supervisors  
West Villages Improvement District 
 
___________________________________  ___________________________________ 
BY: (Agency)      Date  
Jennifer Hamilton, Partner 
Gravina, Smith, Matte & Arnold Marketing and Public Relations 
 

Page 84



 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

��������	�
 
 
 
 
August 9, 2022 
 
Proposal: West Villages Improvement District Strategic Communications 
 
Description:  Develop strategic messaging and communications materials to support the 

mission of the West Villages Improvement District 
 
 

������ �
�
Gravina, Smith, Matte & Arnold Marketing and Public Relations (GSMA) is a full-service public 
relations and marketing agency that has served Southwest Florida for nearly 40 years. Our firm 
has extensive experience in and a successful record of developing results-oriented public 
relations and marketing programs for local, regional and national organizations.  
 
Our strategic approach sets us apart. We understand each client relationship is unique and that 
our work product must always serve to support the goals of the organization we represent. 
Creativity, combined with our applied experience, helps ensure success on behalf of the clients 
with whom we have the opportunity to partner.  
 
We understand the West Villages Improvement District (WVID) is seeking strategic 
communications services to develop messaging to inform and educate residents and community 
members. It is essential to clearly communicate the role and impact the WVID has in the 
community and provide a comprehensive understanding of the WVID to its stakeholders.  
 
��������
 
GSMA will work closely with the WVID to develop strategic messaging and communication 
materials that inform and educate community members and key stakeholders about the role and 
responsibilities of the WVID. 
 
We are prepared to begin work immediately, coordinating with the WVID on background 
information and developing the necessary messaging and communications materials.  
 
���������� ���
�
Based on initial conversations, we anticipate the scope of work to include the following: 

 Website content, including general FAQs 
 Communications to residents, including outreach letters and informational articles 
 Additional collateral, including informational one-pagers and presentations 

Page 85



 

 Any other communications and public relations assistance as requested by WVID 
 
 
 
�����������������������
�
Our professional hours are billed at $250 per partner hour, $200 per director staff hour, $150 
per specialist/manager hour, $125 per coordinator hour and $70 per clerical hour. Hours are 
billed at the end of the month in which the services were provided.  
 
Notice of Confidentiality 
The contents of this proposal are offered in response to a request from the West Villages Improvement 
District. The contents contained herein are strictly confidential and proprietary and are not to be viewed, 
discussed, shared, distributed or disclosed to anyone, person or entity, outside of the West Villages 
Improvement District without prior written authorization from Gravina, Smith, Matte & Arnold Marketing 
and Public Relations, except as required by Florida State Statute. 

�
���� ������
 
We are confident we have the expertise and experience to successfully partner with the West 
Villages Improvement District. GSMA is prepared to commence work immediately with the time 
and resources needed to implement the scope of work outlined.  
 
Should you have any questions or need additional information, please let me know. Thank you 
for the consideration.  
 
Sincerely,  

 
 
 
 

Jennifer Hamilton 
Partner 
jennifer@gsma.pro 
 

Page 86



�������������	�
� ������������������������������
����������

����������� !������������������ ��" ���

#$%&'(()*'+,%�-+.$&'%/01234567�38�9:;:4<=:�>6;:27?@;31086�<8�A0B04=�CD�EFEEGHIJKLHM9:;:4<=:�N<08=ODPHKLIQ�RQSKTU9@�VWXXAYU9�WZ/[\VUZU]@�̂W9@[WN@]\@WNU�\_�/̀aXWN�>UA[W]Y�\]�@>U]�N\]9ŴU[A@W\]�\_�[UVW9Û�/XA]�\_�WZ/[\VUZU]@9�_\[�̀]W@�\_ÛVUX\/ZU]@�]\b�c@<�=56�<d86;4�:87�:22�e6;4<84�38=6;64=67�38�=56�2:874�f<;e<;:=6D�:87�<=56;�e;<e6;=O�38�:87�:7g:f68=�=<�̀83=�<h�̂6i62<ej68=]<b�c�d3=538�=56�T64=�V322:B64�Wje;<i6j68=�̂34=;3f=�k=56�̂34=;3f=�lmn<0�:;6�8<=3h367�=5:=�=56�̂34=;3f=�5:4�h3267�38�=56�<hh3f6�<h�=56�96f;6=:;O�<h�=56�̂34=;3f=�:�;64<20=3<8�=<�f<84376;�:ee;<i:2�<h�3l=5:=�f6;=:38�Aj687j68=�=<�Aj68767�̀83=�<h�̂6i62<ej68=�]<b�c�/2:8�<h�Wje;<i6j68=4D�7:=67�o02O�cCD�EFEED�;62:=3i6�=<�3=496;364�EFFp�/;<g6f=�:87�33l�=5:=�f6;=:38�Aj687j68=�=<�/2:8�<h�Wje;<i6j68=4�h<;�EFcp�[6h38:8f38BD�7:=67�o02O�cCD�EFEE;62:=3i6�=<�3=4�96;364�EFcp�/;<g6f=�kf<226f=3i62OD�=56�Aj687j68=4�=<�=56�/2:8�<h�Wje;<i6j68=4�l@56�̂34=;3f=�5:4�e;6i3<042O�:7<e=67�3l�=5:=�f6;=:38�Aj68767�̀83=�<h�̂6i62<ej68=�]<b�c�/2:8�<h�Wje;<i6j68=4�7:=67]<i6j16;�EFD�EFcq�;62:=3i6�=<�=56�96;364�EFFp�/;<g6f=D�:87�33l�=5:=�f6;=:38�/2:8�<h�Wje;<i6j68=4�h<;�EFcp�[6h38:8f38BD�7:=67o086�ErD�EFcpD�;62:=3i6�=<�=56�96;364�EFcp�kf<226f=3i62OD�=56�/2:8�<h�Wje;<i6j68=4D�:87�=<B6=56;�d3=5�=56�Aj687j68=4�=<�=56/2:8�<h�Wje;<i6j68=4D�=56�[6i3467�/2:8�<h�Wje;<i6j68=4�lb�@56�[6i3467�/2:8�<h�Wje;<i6j68=4�46=4�h<;=5�=56�4f<e6�<h�=56e0123f�38h;:4=;0f=0;6�3je;<i6j68=4�=<�16�f<84=;0f=67�:87s<;�:ft03;67�d3=5�:�e<;=3<8�<h�=56�e;<f6674�<h�=56�̂34=;3f=�4�T64=V322:B64�Wje;<i6j68=�̂34=;3f=�9e6f3:2�A44644j68=�[6i6806�[6h08738B�a<874D�96;364�EFcp�k̀83=�<h�̂6i62<ej68=�]<b�clb\8�<;�16h<;6�3=4�4f5670267�j66=38B�<h�A0B04=�cuD�EFEED�:=�ccmFF�AbZb�:=�=56�/0123f�9:h6=O�a032738B�@;:3838B�[<<j�2<f:=67�:=crrqq�/;6=<�a<026i:;7D�V683f6D�_2<;37:�vCErvb�T;3==68�<1g6f=3<84�=<�=56�e;<e<467�[6i3467�/2:8�<h�Wje;<i6j68=4�j:O�16h3267�:=�=56�̂34=;3f=�4�<hh3f64b�A�e0123f�56:;38B�<8�=56�e;<e<467�[6i3467�/2:8�<h�Wje;<i6j68=4�d322�16�f<870f=67�:=�=564f5670267�j66=38BD�:87�d;3==68�<1g6f=3<84�d322�16�f<84376;67�:=�=5:=�=3j6bA=�=56�f<8f2043<8�<h�=56�56:;38BD�=56�a<:;7�<h�90e6;i34<;4�k=56�a<:;7�l�j:O�76=6;j386�=<�e;<f667�d3=5�=56�e;<f644�h<;:ee;<i:2�<h�=56�e;<e<467�[6i3467�/2:8�<h�Wje;<i6j68=4�:87�73;6f=�=56�e;6e:;:=3<8�<h�:8�68B3866;�4�;6e<;=�3768=3hO38B�:8Oe;<e6;=O�=<�16�=:w68D�76=6;j3838B�1686h3=4�:87�7:j:B64D�:87�64=3j:=38B�=56�f<4=�<h�3je26j68=38B�=56�3je;<i6j68=4:44<f3:=67�d3=5�=56�e;<e<467�[6i3467�/2:8�<h�Wje;<i6j68=4bA�h38:2�56:;38B�<8�:ee;<i:2�<h�=56�e;<e<467�[6i3467�/2:8�<h�Wje;<i6j68=4�:87�:44644j68=�;6e<;=�<;�1686h3=4�45:22�16�702O8<=3f67�:87�5627�:=�:�;6B02:;2O�4f5670267�a<:;7�j66=38B�:=�26:4=�Eq�7:O4�10=�8<�2:=6;�=5:8�xF�7:O4�:h=6;�=56�2:4=�4f5670267e0123f:=3<8�<h�=56�8<=3f6�<h�h3238B�<h�=56�68B3866;�4�;6e<;=�d3=5�=56�96f;6=:;O�<h�=56�̂34=;3f=bo<58�X0fyO84w3N5:3;j:8D�a<:;7�<h�90e6;i34<;4T64=�V322:B64�Wje;<i6j68=�̂34=;3f=N3=O�<h�]<;=5�/<;=�:87�9:;:4<=:�N<08=OD�_2<;37:TU9@�VWXXAYU9�WZ/[\VUZU]@�̂W9@[WN@dddbd64=i322:B6437b<;B/̀aXW9>m�9A[A9\@A�>U[AX̂�@[Wà]U�FpsEusEED�FusFCsEE�z�FusccsEE
Page 87



1 
 

RESOLUTION 2022-23 
 

[UNIT NO. 1 2022 BOUNDARY AMENDMENT] 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF 
THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
APPROVING CONSIDERATION OF THE ADOPTION OF 
THE REVISED PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR UNIT OF 
DEVELOPMENT NO. 1 RELATIVE TO THE AMENDMENT 
OF THE BOUNDARY OF SUCH UNIT; FILING THE 
PROPOSED REVISED ASSESSMENT REPORT OF 
BENEFITS WITH THE DISTRICT SECRETARY; 
PROVIDING FOR PUBLISHED NOTICE AS SET FORTH IN 
SECTION 298.301, FLORIDA STATUTES; SETTING 
PUBLIC HEARINGS TO BE HELD ON OCTOBER 13, 2022, 
AT 11:00 A.M. AT THE PUBLIC SAFETY BUILDING 
TRAINING ROOM LOCATED AT 19955 PRETO 
BOULEVARD, VENICE, FLORIDA 34293, FOR THE 
PURPOSE OF HEARING PUBLIC COMMENT ON THE 
CONSIDERATION OF THE FINAL ADOPTION OF THE 
REVISED PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS AND THE REVISED 
ASSESSMENT REPORT OF BENEFITS; PROVIDING FOR 
SEVERABILITY; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 
WHEREAS, the West Villages Improvement District (the “District”), is a local unit of 

special-purpose government created and existing pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, 
as amended (the “Act”), and is situated in the City of North Port, Florida and unincorporated 
Sarasota County, Florida; and 

 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 11 of the Act, the District previously adopted 
Resolution 2004-13 establishing Unit of Development No. 1 relative to approximately 8,194 acres 
within the District (“Unit No. 1”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, on August 3, 2006, the Circuit Court of the Twentieth Judicial Circuit of 
Florida, in and for Sarasota County, Florida, rendered its final judgment validating the District’s 
proposed issuance of up to $44,905,000 aggregate principal amount of special assessment bonds, 
the proceeds of which bonds were to be applied to finance certain infrastructure improvements to 
be undertaken by the District within Unit No. 1; and  
 
 WHEREAS, on August 31, 2017, the District issued its West Villages Improvement District 
Special Assessment Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 (Unit of Development No. 1),  in the 
aggregate principal amount of $32,165,000 (the “Series 2017 Bonds”), to finance the design, 
construction, and/or acquisition of certain master public infrastructure improvements and facilities 
within Unit No. 1 i) as more particularly identified in that certain Amended Unit of Development 
No. 1 Plan of Improvements dated November 20, 2015 relative to the “Series 2007 Project”, and 

Page 88



2 
 

ii) as more particularly identified in that certain Plan of Improvements for 2017 Refinancing, dated 
June 29, 2017 relative to the “Series 2017 Project” (collectively, the “Plan of Improvements”); 
and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District previously levied and imposed special assessments on the 
developable lands within Unit No. 1 (the “Debt Assessments”) for the purposes of securing the 
Series 2017 Bonds in accordance with i) that certain Unit 1 Report of Engineer, dated March 14, 
2006 and that certain First Amendment, dated April 25, 2006 relative to the Series 2007 Project, 
and ii) that certain Assessment Methodology Report of Benefits for 2017 Refinancing, dated August 
18, 2017 relative to the Series 2017 Project (collectively, the “Assessment Report of Benefits”); 
and  
 

WHEREAS, the District has entered into that certain i) Agreement Regarding the Inclusion 
of Certain Real Property in Unit of Development No. 1 (Diocese Property and Hospital Property), 
by and between the District, Manasota Beach Ranchlands, LLLP, and Main Street Ranchlands, 
LLLP, and ii) Agreement Regarding the Inclusion of Certain Real Property in Unit of Development 
No. 1 (Pine Street Property), by and between the District, DD Sunglow Blvd, LLC, Rodney A. 
Short, Widewaters Magnum 2020 Company, LLC, American Equities Partners, LLC, WP Venice 
LLC, Fulbright Holdings LLC, Twenty Three Realty LLC, Main Street Ranchlands, LLLP, Toll 
Southeast LP Company Inc., Manasota Beach Ranchlands, LLLP, and Lennar Homes, LLC, each 
dated July 14, 2022, together approving the inclusion of approximately 289 acres to the boundary 
of Unit No. 1 (hereinafter, the “Boundary Amendment Property”); and 
 
 WHEREAS, the District now has a need to levy and impose the Debt Assessments on the 
Boundary Amendment Property in proportion to the property’s benefit from such improvements 
and to reallocate the Debt Assessments on the existing lands within Unit No. 1; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District has determined that it is in the best interest of the District and its 
residents and landowners to impose the Debt Assessments on the Boundary Amendment Property 
and to reallocate the Debt Assessments on the existing lands within Unit No. 1; and  

 
WHEREAS, as a result thereof, the District desires to accordingly adopt that certain i) 

Amendment to Amended Unit of Development No. 1 Plan of Improvements, dated July 14, 2022, 
relative to the Series 2007 Project, and ii) that certain Amendment to Plan of Improvements for 
2017 Refinancing, dated July 14, 2022 relative to the Series 2017 Project (the “Amendments to 
the Plan of Improvements,” and collectively, with the Plan of Improvements, the “Revised Plan 
of Improvements”); and 
 

WHEREAS, on July 14, 2022, the District’s Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) adopted 
Resolution 2022-14 approving a public hearing for the consideration of the adoption of the Revised 
Plan of Improvements; and 

 
WHEREAS, in accordance with such Resolution, the District previously caused the 

publication of a Notice of Public Hearing on the consideration of the adoption of the proposed 
Revised Plan of Improvements pursuant to Section 298.301(2), Florida Statutes, copies of which 
were mailed to required persons and/or entities in pursuant to Section 298.301(3), Florida Statutes, 

Page 89



3 
 

which public hearing was held on August 18, 2022; and 
 

WHEREAS, after public hearing and taking into account and written comments on the 
Revised Plan of Improvements, if any, the Board hereby desires to proceed with the approval of 
the proposed Revised Plan of Improvements; and 
 

WHEREAS, the Board accordingly desires to adopt this Resolution determining to proceed 
with the process for the adoption of the Revised Plan of Improvements, and to direct District staff 
to prepare, pursuant to the Act, an assessment report of benefits identifying property to be taken, 
assessing benefits and damages, and estimating the cost of improvements associated with the 
proposed Revised Plan of Improvements for Unit No. 1. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD 
OF SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

 
SECTION 1.  CONSIDERATION OF ADOPTION OF THE REVISED PLAN OF 

IMPROVEMENTS FOR UNIT NO. 1.  After public hearing and taking into account the written 
comments on the Revised Plan of Improvements, if any, the Board hereby desires to proceed with 
the process for the adoption of the proposed Revised Plan of Improvements.  The portion of the 
Revised Plan of Improvements relating to the Series 2007 Project is attached hereto as Composite 
Exhibit A.  The portion of the Revised Plan of Improvements relating to the Series 2017 Project 
is attached hereto as Composite Exhibit B.   

 
SECTION 2.  FILING OF THE PROPOSED REVISED ASSESSMENT REPORT 

OF BENEFITS WITH THE DISTRICT SECRETARY; NOTICE OF FILING OF SAME.   
 

A. The Board has previously adopted the Assessment Report of Benefits identifying any 
property to be taken, determining benefits and damages, and estimating the cost of 
implementing the improvements associated with the Series 2007 Project and Series 2017 
Project.  The Board hereby declares its intent to consider adoption of i) that certain Second 
Amendment to the Unit 1 Report of Engineer, dated July 14, 2022 relative to the Series 
2007 Project, and ii) that certain Amended and Restated Assessment Methodology Report 
of Benefits for 2017 Refinancing, dated July 14, 2022 relative to the Series 2017 Project 
(collectively, the “Amendments to the Assessment Report of Benefits,” and together 
with the Assessment Report of Benefits, the “Revised Assessment Report of Benefits”).  
The portion of the Revised Assessment Report of Benefits relating to the Series 2007 
Project is attached hereto as Composite Exhibit C.  The portion of the Revised Assessment 
Report of Benefits relating to the Series 2017 Project is attached hereto as Exhibit D.   
 

B. Upon the adoption of this Resolution, the Revised Assessment Report of Benefits shall 
have been filed with the Secretary of the District.  The Board hereby directs the preparation 
and publication of a Notice of the Filing of the Revised Assessment Report of Benefits 
with the District in accordance with Section 298.301(6), Florida Statutes, which shall be 
published once a week for two (2) consecutive weeks in a newspaper of general circulation 
in Sarasota County. 

Page 90



4 
 

 
SECTION 3.  PUBLIC HEARING ON FINAL ADOPTION OF REVISED PLAN OF 

IMPROVEMENTS AND REVISED ASSESSMENT REPORT OF BENEFITS.  A final 
hearing on approval of the proposed Revised Plan of Improvements and Amendments and the 
Revised Assessment Report of Benefits shall be duly noticed and held at a regularly scheduled 
Board meeting at least 25 days but no later than 60 days after the last scheduled publication of the 
Notice of Filing of the Revised Assessment Report of Benefits, as set forth in Section 2 herein.  
The Board hereby declares that public hearings shall be held at 11:00 A.M., on October 13, 2022, 
at the Public Safety Building Training Room located at 19955 Preto Blvd., Venice, Florida 34293 
for the purpose of hearing written comment and objection on the District’s proposed adoption of 
the Revised Plan of Improvements and the Revised Assessment Report of Benefits. 
 

SECTION 4.  SEVERABILITY.  If any provision of this Resolution is held to be illegal 
or invalid, the other provisions shall remain in full force and effect. 

 
SECTION 5. EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its 

passage and shall remain in effect unless rescinded or repealed. 
 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED, this 18th day of August, 2022. 
 
 
 

ATTEST:     WEST VILLAGES 
      IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
 
____________________________  _______________________________ 
Secretary     Chairman/Vice-Chairman 

 
 
 
Composite Exhibit A:  Revised Plan of Improvements for Series 2007 Project 
Composite Exhibit B: Revised Plan of Improvements for Series 2017 Project 
Composite Exhibit C: Revised Assessment Report of Benefits for Series 2007 Project 
Exhibit D:   Revised Assessment Report of Benefits for Series 2017 Project

Page 91



 
 

Composite Exhibit A 

 
Amended Unit of Development No. 1 Plan of Improvements dated November 20, 2015 

 
Amendment to Amended Unit of Development No. 1 Plan of Improvements dated July 14, 2022 

 
 
 

Page 92



6 
 

Composite Exhibit B 
 

Plan of Improvements for 2017 Refinancing, dated June 29, 2017 
 

Amendment to Plan of Improvements for 2017 Refinancing, dated July 14, 2022 
 

 
 

 
 
 

Page 93



7 
 

Composite Exhibit C 
 

Unit 1 Report of Engineer, dated March 14, 2006 
 

First Amendment, dated April 25, 2006 
 

Second Amendment to the Unit 1 Report of Engineer, dated July 14, 2022 
 
 
 
 

Page 94



8 
 

Exhibit D 
 

Amended and Restated Assessment Methodology Report of Benefits for 2017 Refinancing, dated July 
14, 2022 

 
 

Page 95



AMENDED UNIT OF 
DEVELOPMENT NO. 1

PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

Prepared for:
West Villages Improvement District
c/o Special District Services, Inc.
2501A Burns Road
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410

Prepared by:
Stantec Consulting Services Inc.
6900 Professional Parkway East
Sarasota, FL 34240

November 20, 2015

Page 16Page 96



AMENDED UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1

PLAN OF IMPROVEMENT

Table of Contents

ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATION..................................................................................................... 1 

AERIAL LOCATION MAP ........................................................................................................... 2

SECTION A. INTRODUCTIONS .................................................................................................... 4
1. General..................................................................................................................................................4
2. Purpose and Scope ............................................................................................................................4
3. Lands in Unit of Development No. 2 ................................................................................................4

SECTION B. EXISTING CONDITIONS...................................................................................... 5
1. Topography ..........................................................................................................................................5
2. Soils and Vegetation...........................................................................................................................5
3. Land Use and Zoning ..........................................................................................................................6

SECTION C. PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS.................................................................................. 7
1. Incorporation of Reference...............................................................................................................7
2. Public Infrastructure Improvements .................................................................................................7
3. Permitting ..............................................................................................................................................8
4. Estimated Cost of Improvements .....................................................................................................8

SECTION D. RIGHTS-OF-WAY/ PROPERTY INTERESTS .......................................................... 10

SECTION E. MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES ................................................................... 11

SECTION F. METHOD OF FINANCING................................................................................. 12

SECTION G. RECOMMENDATIONS ...................................................................................... 13

EXHIBIT "A" UNIT 1 SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION....................................................... 14

vj v:\2156\active\215612793\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_amended-unit-dev-1_plan-improvements_v-4_mak_20151120.docx Page 17Page 97



AMENDED UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATION
November 20, 2015

ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATION

I HEREBY CERTIFY, as a Professional Engineer in the State of Florida, that the information 
in this Plan of Improvements for West Villages Improvement District Unit of Development 
No. 1 was assembled under my direct responsible charge. The certifying Engineer 
cannot be responsible for added or deleted information once distributed. This report is 
not intended or represented to be suitable for any reuse without specific verification or 
adoption by the Engineer. This verification is provided in accordance with the Florida 
Board of Professional Engineers’ Rule on Certification under Chapter 61G15-18.011(4).

Michael A. Kennedy, P.E.
Florida License No.: 38120

Stantec Consulting Services Inc.
6900 Professional Parkway East
Sarasota, FL 34240
Tel: (941) 907-6900
Fax: (941) 907-6910

[Reproductions are not valid unless signed, dated 
and embossed with an Engineer’s seal]

vj v:\2156\active\215612793\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_amended-unit-dev-1_plan-improvements_v-4_mak_20151120.docx 1
Page 18Page 98



AMENDED UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

AERIAL LOCATION MAP
November 20, 2015

AERIAL LOCATION MAP

vj v:\2156\active\215612793\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_amended-unit-dev-1_plan-improvements_v-4_mak_20151120.docx 2
Page 19Page 99



Page 20

Page 100



AMENDED UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

SECTION A. INTRODUCTIONS
November 20, 2015

SECTION A. INTRODUCTIONS

1. General

The West Villages Improvement District (“WVID”) was created by and operates 
under Chapter 2004-458, Laws of Florida (the “Act”) and operates pursuant to the 
Act and applicable provisions of Chapter 298, Florida Statutes. WVID was created 
to construct and maintain public works and utilities including water, sewer, 
drainage, irrigation, water management, parks, recreational facilities, roadway or 
related activities, as more particularly described in Chapter 2004-456, Laws of 
Florida.

2. Purpose and Scope

The purpose of this Plan of Improvements is to present the nature and extend of 
the improvements which may be implemented by WVID for and on behalf of the 
Unit of Development, which improvements will thereafter be owned, operated 
and/or maintained by either WVID or another legally empowered governmental 
entity.

The text of this Plan of Improvements generally describes the existing land within 
Unit No. 1 and the proposed improvements and recommendations. The Plan of 
Improvements is not intended to be used for exact representation or for 
construction purposes since detailed construction documents for all of the 
proposed improvements have not yet been prepared.

3. Lands in Unit of Development No. 1

West Villages Improvement District Resolution No. 2008-08 designated 
approximately 8,193 acres of the West Villages Improvement District as the West 
Villages Improvement District Unit of Development No. 1 (“Unit 1”). Unit 1 consists of 
all of the property contained within WVID.

Aerial Location Map hereof shows the location of Unit of Development No. 1 in 
relation to the City of North Port and Sarasota County. The Legal Description and 
Sketch (Exhibit “A”) reflects the lands included in Unit of Development No. 1.

vj v:\2156\active\215612793\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_amended-unit-dev-1_plan-improvements_v-4_mak_20151120.docx 4
Page 21Page 101



AMENDED UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

SECTION B. EXISTING CONDITIONS
November 20, 2015

SECTION B. EXISTING CONDITIONS

1. Topography

The area within Unit of Development No. 1 is relatively flat with site elevations 
ranging from approximately 4.5 feet to 15 feet based on 1983 Southwest Florida 
Water Management District contour maps and U.S.C. & G.AS. Datum. The lower 
elevations occur in the wetlands along the east side of the site while the higher 
elevations are located near the southwest corner of the site. The Unit is primarily 
underdeveloped pasture and rangelands, upland pine flatwood, wetlands, and 
undeveloped woodlands.

2. Soil and Vegetation

Based on the 1991 Soil Survey of Sarasota County, Florida, prepared by the United 
States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Soil Conservation Service (SCS), the 
predominant surficial soil types within the Unit are identified as SCS Soil No. 10, 
EauGallie and Myakka Fine Sands and SCS Soils No. 31, Pineda Fine Sand. SCS Soil 
No. 10 is a nearly level, poorly drained soil that can be made up entirely of 
EauGallie and similar soils, entirely Myakka and similar soils, or a combination of 
EauGallie, Myakka and other soils. Typically, the EauGallie soil has a surface layer 
of black fine sand with a subsurface layer of gray fine sand to a depth of about 22 
inches. The surface layer of the Myakka soil is typically dark grayish brown fine 
sand about 6 inches thick while the subsurface layer is light gray fine sand about 
18 inches thick. Pineda Fine Sand is a nearly level, poorly drained soil. Typically, the 
surface and subsurface layers are grey fine sands totaling approximately 22 inches 
thick. The subsoil consists of an upper layer of 14 inches of brown fine sand and a 
lower layer of 12 inches of mottled, light brownish gray fine sandy loam.

The property within the Unit currently consists of 22 different vegetative 
communities comprised of both upland and wetland habitats. Several of the 
vegetation communities have been modified as a result of onsite agricultural 
activities including ditching and fire suppression. Areas that were historically 
extensive open forests or wiregrass prairies have since become heavily forested or 
have been cleared for cattle grazing and commercial nursery. Extensive ditching 
has also altered the hydrology of several of the wetland systems onsite, particularly 
where the ditches bisect wetlands or are adjacent to wetlands. These land altering 
activities have comprised, to a certain extent, the overall quality on several of the 
onsite vegetation communities. The predominate habitat types on the site are 
disturbed pine flatwoods, hardwood conifer mixed, wetlands, improved pastures, 
and mixed rangelands.

vj v:\2156\active\215612793\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_amended-unit-dev-1_plan-improvements_v-4_mak_20151120.docx 5
Page 22Page 102



AMENDED UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

SECTION B. EXISTING CONDITIONS
November 20, 2015

3. Land Use and Zoning

Unit 1 is located within the City of North Port, Florida (“City”). Parcels within Unit 1 
are currently in various stages of development review and approval with the City, 
however, it is expected that the parcels will receive a Village comprehensive plan 
and zoning designation from the City that is compatible with the comprehensive 
land use plan adopted by the City.

vj v:\2156\active\215612793\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_amended-unit-dev-1_plan-improvements_v-4_mak_20151120.docx 6
Page 23Page 103



AMENDED UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

SECTION C. PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS
November 20, 2015

SECTION C. PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

1. Incorporation by Reference

In compliance with Florida Statute 298.225(3), Section 189.415, Florida Statutes, as 
Facility Reports are prepared, they will be incorporated by reference and made 
part hereof. The Facility Reports will be available for inspection and copying at 
WVID’s administrative headquarters.

2. Public Infrastructure Improvements

Unit 1 was formed in order to finance District-wide improvements and also to 
finance standards development and master planning activities required to 
develop public infrastructure plans for the Unit (the “Project”).

The improvements as well as the standards development and master planning for 
the Unit will be consistent with the City of North Port Comprehensive Plan and 
Implementing Ordinances, studies, plans, and may include:

Preparation and Development of Regulatory Standards and Procedures

Master Planning for Public Infrastructure needs

Alignment of future Units and Allocation of Benefit methodologies and 
procedures

Roadways, including thoroughfares, arterial, collector, or local streets

Stormwater Improvements

Master Irrigation facilities

Roadways Landscape, Lighting, Signage, and Furnishings

Roadways Gateway features

Park and Recreation improvements

Fire/ Rescue, Law Enforcement, Solid Waste, and General Government 
related facilities contributions to the City of North Port

School sites

Engineering and Contingencies 

vj v:\2156\active\215612793\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_amended-unit-dev-1_plan-improvements_v-4_mak_20151120.docx 7
Page 24Page 104



AMENDED UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

SECTION C. PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS
November 20, 2015

3. Permitting

Required permits will be applied for as the design of various facilities progresses.

It is our opinion that there are no technical reasons existing at this time which 
would prohibit the implementation of the plan or permitting of the Plan of 
Improvements, subject to continued compliance with all agency criteria and 
conditions of the already approved plans and permits. 

Permits necessary to complete the Project have either been obtained as 
described above, or, in our opinion, are obtainable from the permitting agencies, 
subject to reasonable, normal and customary permit conditions.

4. Estimated Cost of Improvements 

Table 1 lists the components of the Plan of Improvements for Unit of Development 
No. 1, together with their estimated costs of design, implementation and 
construction. The Table also includes an estimate of administrative, engineering 
and legal fees, and contingencies associates with the improvements. The Table is 
divided into two sections, those being projects previously constructed and those 
planned for future construction.

Table 1
Estimated Cost of Improvements

A. Previously Constructed Projects

Element Cost

Master Planning $   1,407,452
Major Thoroughfare Landscape, Lighting, 
Signing, and Furnishings $   3,161,645

Gateway Features $      949,354
Regional Parks $   2,725,617
Fire Rescue/ Law Enforcement/ Solid Waste/ 
General Government Contributions $      487,675

Subtotal $   8,731,743

Engineering, Legal and Administrative $   4,000,957
Contingencies -0-

Subtotal $   4,000,957

Total $ 12,732,700

vj v:\2156\active\215612793\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_amended-unit-dev-1_plan-improvements_v-4_mak_20151120.docx 8
Page 25Page 105



AMENDED UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

SECTION C. PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS
November 20, 2015

B. Future Construction Projects

Element Cost

Master Planning $      50,000
Roadway Improvements and Enhancements $ 4,950,000
Gateway Features $    500,000
Regional Parks/ Recreation $ 2,500,000
General Government Contributions 
(Emergency Services, Education, other 
Government/ Public Facilities and Services)

$ 6,000,000

Subtotal $14,000,000

Engineering, Legal and Administrative $1,750,000
Contingencies $1,750,000

Subtotal $3,500,000

Total $17,500,000

Please note that estimated individual Element totals will vary and are only to establish
a Total Estimated Cost of Improvements.

vj v:\2156\active\215612793\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_amended-unit-dev-1_plan-improvements_v-4_mak_20151120.docx 9
Page 26Page 106



AMENDED UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

SECTION D. RIGHTS-OF-WAY/ PROPERTY INTERESTS
November 20, 2015

SECTION D. RIGHTS-OF-WAY/ PROPERTY INTERESTS

The WVID will be required to acquire certain real property interests, including fee simple 
title, rights-of-way, easements and access as necessary for the implementation, 
installation, operation, and maintenance of the Project. It is anticipated that some of 
said real property interests will be donated by the landowners in the Unit and some will 
be purchased by the WVID from the landowners within and outside the Unit. The above 
Estimated Costs of Improvements include allowances for such purchases.

vj v:\2156\active\215612793\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_amended-unit-dev-1_plan-improvements_v-4_mak_20151120.docx 10
Page 27Page 107



AMENDED UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

SECTION E. MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES
November 20, 2015

SECTION E. MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES

Maintenance and operational responsibilities of the Project will include the following:

1. Maintenance and updating of the Master Plans and Standards as the District 
develops. It is expected that this responsibility will remain with the WVID in 
cooperation with the Developer.

2. Maintenance and operation of the Gateway features and Landscaping and 
Irrigation associated with the roadway system. It is expected that this responsibility 
will remain with the WVID, although some may remain with the developer.

3. Maintenance and operation of the Regional Parks. It is expected that the Regional 
Parks may be turned over to the City of North Port upon its request and that the 
City of North Port may assume operation and maintenance responsibilities 
(although the District may retain ownership). Unless and until that time, the WVID 
will be responsible for operation and maintenance of the Regional Parks.

4. Maintenance and operation of the Fire Rescue and Law Enforcement facilities 
and equipment. Any Fire Rescue and Law Enforcement facilities and equipment 
will be turned over to the City of North Port for operation and maintenance.

vj v:\2156\active\215612793\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_amended-unit-dev-1_plan-improvements_v-4_mak_20151120.docx 11
Page 28Page 108



AMENDED UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

SECTION F. METHOD OF FUNDING
November 20, 2015

SECTION F. METHOD OF FUNDING

Several alternative methods of funding the implementation of improvements authorized 
in the Plan of Improvements which is to be constructed on existing or acquired rights-of-
way are available to the WVID in accordance with past policy and applicable State 
Statutes. These are as follows:

1. Donations by the landowners of the proposed improvements provided such 
improvements are constructed in accordance with plans and specifications 
approved by the WVID Engineer and designed by WVID Project Engineer(s).

2. Donation of funding by the landowners to the WVID for construction of required 
improvements.

3. Construction of required improvements utilizing available non-ad valorem 
assessments, loan or bond proceeds, with the loans or bonds being repaid from 
annual assessments to the benefitted lands within the Unit until the indebtedness 
are retired.

Combination of 1, 2 and 3 above, including the authority, if the WVID so determines, to 
reimburse the landowners for any funds previously advanced by them to the WVID or 
for improvements constructed by them and turned over to the WVID, to the extent said 
improvements, works or services are authorized in this Plan

vj v:\2156\active\215612793\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_amended-unit-dev-1_plan-improvements_v-4_mak_20151120.docx 12
Page 29Page 109



AMENDED UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

SECTION G. RECOMMENDATIONS
November 20, 2015

SECTION G. RECOMMENDATIONS

Based on the information presented in this Plan, the following recommendations are 
made:

1. That the West Villages Improvement District Board of Supervisors approve the Plan 
of Improvements.

2. That all lands, rights-of-way or easements required for the Plan be acquired by or 
furnished to the WVID, in fee simple title by perpetual easement, as the case may 
be.

3. That usage of the provisions of Chapter 170, Florida Statutes, or Chapter 298, 
Florida Statutes, and/or Chapter 2004-456, be authorized by the determination, 
assessment, apportionment, levy, collection, and repayment of such non-ad 
valorem assessments, connection charges or fees as the Board of Supervisors 
deems appropriate.

4. That the improvements presented in this Plan be implemented and upon their 
completion thereafter be either owned by the WVID or turned over to the 
appropriate unit of local government, which will maintain and operate same for 
the benefit of the lands within Unit of Development No. 1.

vj v:\2156\active\215612793\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_amended-unit-dev-1_plan-improvements_v-4_mak_20151120.docx 13
Page 30Page 110



AMENDED UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 1
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

EXHIBIT “A” UNIT 1 SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION
November 20, 2015

EXHIBIT “A” UNIT 1 SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION

vj v:\2156\active\215612793\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_amended-unit-dev-1_plan-improvements_v-4_mak_20151120.docx 14
Page 31Page 111



Page 32Page 112



Page 33Page 113



Page 34Page 114



Page 35Page 115



Page 36Page 116



Page 37Page 117



Page 38Page 118



Page 39Page 119



Page 40Page 120



Page 41Page 121



 

  

 

 

WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  
Unit of Development No. 1 

Amendment to Amended Unit No. 1 Plan of Improvements 
Engineer’s Report dated November 20, 2015  

JULY 14, 2022 

 

 

 
  

 

 

SUBMITTED BY 

Dewberry Engineers Inc. 

2201 Cantu Court 

Suite 107 

Sarasota, Florida 

Phone: 941.702.9672 

Contact: Richard Ellis 

SUBMITTED TO 

West Villages Improvement District 

19503 S. West Villages Parkway Suite #A3 
Venice, Florida 34293 

Phone: 941.244.2703   

Page 122



West Villages Improvement District Unit of Development No. 1 
Amendment to Engineer’s Report dated November 20, 2015 – Series 2022 Bonds 
July 14, 2022 
  

   1 
 

 

1. Purpose and Scope 

The purpose of this Amendment to the Amended Unit No. 1 Plan of Improvements Engineer’s Report 
prepared by Stantec Consulting Services Inc. on November 20, 2015, is to revise and update the area 
and boundary. The new area will be 8,480.7 acres. An updated sketch and legal description for the 
revised boundary is included in Exhibit 1. There are no additional changes to the original Engineer’s 
Report.   

Page 123



Page 124



Page 125



Page 126



Page 127



Page 128



Page 129



WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  
PLAN OF 
IMPROVEMENTS FOR 
UNIT 1 REFINANCING 

 
 

 

 

Prepared for: 
West Villages Improvement District 
c/o Special District Services, Inc. 
2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

 

Prepared by: 
Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
6900 Professional Parkway East 
Sarasota, FL 34240 

 
 

 

June 29, 2017 

Page 130



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR UNIT 1 REFINANCING

vj v:\2156\active\215613996\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_eng-rpt-unit-1_plan-improvements_mak_20170628.docx

Table of Contents

1. INTRODUCTION

2. GENERAL DESCRIPTION

3. INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

4. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

LIST OF TABLES
TABLE 1 PROPOSED IMPROVEMENT COSTS (SUMMARY)

LIST OF EXHIBITS
EXHIBIT 1 OVERALL BOUNDARY OF WVID
EXHIBIT 2 UNIT 1 BOUNDARY MAP
EXHIBIT 3 UNIT 2 BOUNDARY MAP
EXHIBIT 4 UNIT 3 BOUNDARY MAP
EXHIBIT 5 UNIT 4 BOUNDARY MAP
EXHIBIT 6 SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Page 131



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR UNIT 1 REFINANCING

vj v:\2156\active\215613996\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_eng-rpt-unit-1_plan-improvements_mak_20170628.docx

1. INTRODUCTIONS

The West Villages Improvement District (“WVID”) was created by and operates under 
Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida (the “Act”) and operates pursuant to the Act and 
applicable provisions of Chapter 298, Florida Statutes. WVID was created to construct 
and maintain public works and utilities including water, sewer, drainage, irrigation, water 
management, parks, recreational facilities, roadway or related activities, as more 
particularly described in Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida.

District has adopted a Plan of Improvements for the 2007 Project which remains in full 
force and effect. For those improvements, refer to adopted Plan.

The purpose of this Report is to present the nature and extent of the improvements 
intended to be funded, in part, by the District’s Series 2017 Refunding Bonds (Unit of 
Development No. 1) which may be implemented by WVID for and on behalf of the Unit 
of Development No. 1 (the 2017 Project), which improvements will thereafter be owned, 
operated and/or maintained by either WVID or other legally empowered governmental 
entities. The text generally describes the existing land within Unit No. 1 and the proposed 
improvements comprising the 2017 Project.

Aerial Location Maps (Exhibits “1 through 5”) hereof shows overall District Boundary and
the location of Unit of Developments Nos. 1 through 4. The Legal Description and Sketch 
(Exhibit “6”) reflects the lands included in Unit of Development No. 1.

2 GENERAL DESCRIPTION

A. Topography

The area within Unit of Development No. 1 (the Unit) is relatively flat with site 
elevations ranging from approximately 4.5 feet to 15 feet based on 1983 Southwest 
Florida Water Management District contour maps and U.S.C. & G.AS. Datum. The 
lower elevations occur in the wetlands along the east side of the site while the higher 
elevations are located near the southwest corner of the site. The Unit is primarily 
underdeveloped pasture and rangelands, upland pine flatwood, wetlands, and 
undeveloped woodlands.

Page 132



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR UNIT 1 REFINANCING

vj v:\2156\active\215613996\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_eng-rpt-unit-1_plan-improvements_mak_20170628.docx

B. Soil and Vegetation

Based on the 1991 Soil Survey of Sarasota County, Florida, prepared by the United 
States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Soil Conservation Service (SCS), the 
predominant surficial soil types within the Unit are identified as SCS Soil No. 10, 
EauGallie and Myakka Fine Sands and SCS Soils No. 31, Pineda Fine Sand. SCS Soil 
No. 10 is a nearly level, poorly drained soil that can be made up entirely of EauGallie 
and similar soils, entirely Myakka and similar soils, or a combination of EauGallie, 
Myakka and other soils. Typically, the EauGallie soil has a surface layer of black fine 
sand with a subsurface layer of gray fine sand to a depth of about 22 inches. The 
surface layer of the Myakka soil is typically dark grayish brown fine sand about 6 
inches thick while the subsurface layer is light gray fine sand about 18 inches thick. 
Pineda Fine Sand is a nearly level, poorly drained soil. Typically, the surface and 
subsurface layers are grey fine sands totaling approximately 22 inches thick. The 
subsoil consists of an upper layer of 14 inches of brown fine sand and a lower layer 
of 12 inches of mottled, light brownish gray fine sandy loam.

The property within the Unit currently consists of 22 different vegetative communities 
comprised of both upland and wetland habitats. Several of the vegetation 
communities have been modified as a result of onsite agricultural activities including 
ditching and fire suppression. Areas that were historically extensive open forests or 
wiregrass prairies have since become heavily forested or have been cleared for
cattle grazing and commercial nursery. Extensive ditching has also altered the 
hydrology of several of the wetland systems onsite, particularly where the ditches 
bisect wetlands or are adjacent to wetlands. These land altering activities have 
comprised, to a certain extent, the overall quality on several of the onsite 
vegetation communities. The predominate habitat types on the site are disturbed 
pine flatwoods, hardwood conifer mixed, wetlands, improved pastures, and mixed 
rangelands.

C. Land Use and Zoning

Unit 1 is located within the City of North Port, Florida (“City”). Parcels within Unit 1 are 
currently in various stages of development review and approval with the City, 
however, it is expected that the parcels will receive a Village comprehensive plan 
and zoning designation from the City that is compatible with the comprehensive 
land use plan adopted by the City.

Page 133



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR UNIT 1 REFINANCING

vj v:\2156\active\215613996\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_eng-rpt-unit-1_plan-improvements_mak_20170628.docx

3. INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS

A. Public Infrastructure Improvements

The improvements as well as the standards development and master planning for 
the Unit will be consistent with the City of North Port Comprehensive Plan and 
Implementing Ordinances, studies, plans, and may include:

Roadways, including thoroughfares, arterial, collector, or local streets
(including related drainage)

Master Irrigation Facilities

Gateway Features and Landscaping

Engineering and Contingencies 

B. Permitting

Required permits will be applied for as the design of various facilities progresses.

It is our opinion that there are no technical reasons existing at this time which would 
prohibit the implementation of the plan or permitting of the Plan of Improvements, 
subject to continued compliance with all agency criteria and conditions of the 
already approved plans and permits. 

Permits necessary to complete the 2017 Project have either been obtained as 
described above, or, in our opinion, are obtainable from the permitting agencies, 
subject to reasonable, normal and customary permit conditions.

C. Rights-of-Way

The WVID will be required to acquire certain real property interests, including fee 
simple title, rights-of-way, easements and access as necessary for the 
implementation, installation, operation, and maintenance of the 2017 Project. It is 
anticipated that some of said real property interests will be donated by the 
landowners in the Unit and some will be purchased by the WVID (subject to statutory 
approvals and satisfactory appraisals) from the landowners within and outside the 
Unit. The Estimated Costs of Improvements include allowances for such purchases.

Page 134



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR UNIT 1 REFINANCING

vj v:\2156\active\215613996\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_eng-rpt-unit-1_plan-improvements_mak_20170628.docx

D. MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES

Maintenance and operational responsibilities of the 2017 Project will include the 
following:

1. Maintenance and updating of the Master Plans and Standards as the District 
develops. It is expected that this responsibility will remain with the WVID in 
cooperation with the Developer.

2. Maintenance and operation of the roadways and Gateway features and 
Landscaping and Irrigation associated with the roadway system. It is expected that 
this responsibility will remain with the WVID.

3. Maintenance of other utilities such as water and sewer (including lines, pump 
stations, treatment plants, etc.) are expected to be turned over to the City of North 
Port.

4 SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

The 2017 Project as outlined is necessary for the functional development of the District. 
The 2017 Project is being designed in accordance with current governmental regulatory 
requirements. The 2017 Project will serve its intended function so long as the construction 
is in substantial compliance with the design. Items of construction for the 2017 Project are 
based upon concurrent development plans.

It is our professional opinion that the infrastructure costs provided herein for the District 
improvements for the 2017 Project are reasonable to complete the construction of the 
infrastructure described herein and that these infrastructure improvements will benefit 
and add value to the District. These estimated costs are based upon prices currently 
being experienced for similar items of work in Southwest Florida and expected inflation in 
the future. Actual costs may vary based on final engineering, planning and approvals 
from regulatory agencies.

Page 135



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR UNIT 1 REFINANCING

vj v:\2156\active\215613996\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_eng-rpt-unit-1_plan-improvements_mak_20170628.docx

LIST OF TABLES

TABLE 1 PROPOSED IMPROVEMENT COSTS (SUMMARY)

Page 136



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR UNIT 1 REFINANCING

vj v:\2156\active\215613996\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_eng-rpt-unit-1_plan-improvements_mak_20170628.docx

Table 1
Estimated Cost of Improvements for 2017 Project

Element Cost

Roadway Improvements and Enhancements $ 2,500,000
Master Irrigation Facilities $  800,000
Gateway Features and Landscaping $    300,000

Subtotal $ 3,600,000

Contingencies (10%) $    360,000
Engineering, Legal and Administrative (15%) $    540,000

Subtotal $    900,000

Total $ 4,500,000

Please note that estimated individual Element totals will vary and are only to establish 
a Total Estimated Cost of Improvements.

Page 137



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR UNIT 1 REFINANCING

vj v:\2156\active\215613996\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_eng-rpt-unit-1_plan-improvements_mak_20170628.docx

LIST OF EXHIBITS

Page 138



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR UNIT 1 REFINANCING

vj v:\2156\active\215613996\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_eng-rpt-unit-1_plan-improvements_mak_20170628.docx

EXHIBIT 1 OVERALL BOUNDARY OF WVID

EXHIBIT 2 UNIT 1 BOUNDARY MAP

EXHIBIT 3 UNIT 2 BOUNDARY MAP

EXHIBIT 4 UNIT 3 BOUNDARY MAP

EXHIBIT 5 UNIT 4 BOUNDARY MAP

EXHIBIT 6 SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION – UNIT 1

Page 139



Stantec Consulting Services Inc.
6900 Professional Parkway East

Sarasota, FL 34240
tel 941.907.6900
fax 941.907.6911

West Villages Improvement District
Boundary Map

June 2017

0 1,000 2,000

Feet

($$¯

\\U
S

1
22

7
-F

0
1

\V
:\

2
1

56
\a

ct
iv

e\
2

1
5

6
12

7
9

3
\g

is
\m

x
d

\B
o

u
n

d
ar

y_
M

a
p_

2
0

1
70

6
1

9
_v

0
1_

1
0

6
49

2
.m

xd
  

   
 R

e
vi

se
d

: 
2

01
7

-0
6

-1
9

 B
y:

 e
st

u
rm

Disclaimer: Stantec assumes no responsibility for data
supplied in electronic format. The recipient accepts
full responsibility for verifying the accuracy and
completeness of the data. The recipient releases 
Stantec, its officers, employees, consultants and
agents, from any and all claims arising in any way
from the content or provision of the data.

West Villages Boundary

L E G E N D

Prepared by: E.E.S. 06/19/17

Aerial: Sarasota County, 2016

EXHIBIT "1"

Page 140



EXHIBIT "2"

Page 141



EXHIBIT "3"

Page 142



EXHIBIT "4"

Page 143



Page 144



EXHIBIT "6"

Page 145



Page 146



Page 147



Page 148



Page 149



Page 150



Page 151



Page 152



Page 153



Page 154



 

 

  

 

 

WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  
Unit of Development No. 1 

Amendment to 2017 Plan of Improvements 

JULY 14, 2022 

 

 

 
  

 

 

SUBMITTED BY 

Dewberry Engineers Inc. 
2201 Cantu Court 
Suite 107 
Sarasota, Florida 
Phone: 941.702.9672 
Contact: Richard Ellis 

SUBMITTED TO 

West Villages Improvement District 
19503 S. West Villages Parkway Suite #A3 
Venice, Florida 34293 
Phone: 941.244.2703   

Page 155



West Villages Improvement District Unit of Development No. 1 
Amendment to 2017 Plan of Improvements 
July 14, 2022 

   1 
 

 

1. Purpose and Scope 

The purpose of this Amendment to the Unit 1 Plan of Improvements prepared by Stantec Consulting 
Services Inc. on June 29, 2017, is to revise and update the area and boundary. The new area will be 
8480.7 acres. An updated sketch and legal description for the revised boundary is included in Exhibit 1. 
There are no additional changes to the original Plan of Improvements.   

Page 156



Page 157



Page 158



Page 159



Page 160



Page 161



Page 162



A-1

Page 163



A-2

Page 164



A-3

Page 165



A-4

Page 166



A-5

Page 167



A-6

Page 168



A-7

Page 169



A-8

Page 170



A-9

Page 171



A-10

Page 172



A-11

Page 173



A-12

Page 174



A-13

Page 175



A-14

Page 176



A-15

Page 177



A-16

Page 178



A
-17

Page 179



A-18

Page 180



A-19

Page 181



A-20

Page 182



A-21

Page 183



A-22

Page 184



A-23

Page 185



A-24

Page 186



A-25

Page 187



A-26

Page 188



A-27

Page 189



A-28

Page 190



A-29

Page 191



A-30

Page 192



A-31

Page 193



A-32

Page 194



A-33

Page 195



A-34

Page 196



A-35

Page 197



A-36

Page 198



A-37

Page 199



A-38

Page 200



A-39

Page 201



A-40

Page 202



A-41

Page 203



A-42

Page 204



A-43

Page 205



A-44

Page 206



A-45

Page 207



A-46

Page 208



A-47

Page 209



A-48

Page 210



A-49

Page 211



A-50

Page 212



A-51

Page 213



A-52

Page 214



A-53

Page 215



A-54

Page 216



A-55

Page 217



A-56

Page 218



A-57

Page 219



A-58

Page 220



A-59

Page 221



A-60

Page 222



A-61

Page 223



A-62

Page 224



A-63

Page 225



A-64

Page 226



A-65

Page 227



A-66

Page 228



A-67

Page 229



A-68

Page 230



A-69

Page 231



A-70

Page 232



A-71

Page 233



A-72

Page 234



A-73

Page 235



A-74

Page 236



A-75

Page 237



A-76

Page 238



A-77

Page 239



A-78

Page 240



A-79

Page 241



A-80

Page 242



A-81

Page 243



A-82

Page 244



A-83

Page 245



A-84

Page 246



A-85

Page 247



A-86

Page 248



A-87

Page 249



A-88

Page 250



A-89

Page 251



A-90

Page 252



A-91

Page 253



A-92

Page 254



A-93

Page 255



A-94

Page 256



A-95

Page 257



A-96

Page 258



A-97

Page 259



A-98

Page 260



A-99

Page 261



A-100

Page 262



A-101

Page 263



A-102

Page 264



A-103

Page 265



A-104

Page 266



A-105

Page 267



A-106

Page 268



A-107

Page 269



A-108

Page 270



A-109

Page 271



A-110

Page 272



A-111

Page 273



A-112

Page 274



A-113

Page 275



A-114

Page 276



A-115

Page 277



A-116

Page 278



A-117

Page 279



A-118

Page 280



A-119

Page 281



A-120

Page 282



A-121

Page 283



A-122

Page 284



A-123

Page 285



A-124

Page 286



Page 287



Page 288



Page 289



Page 290



 

  

 

 

WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  
Unit of Development No. 1 

Second Amendment to the Engineer’s Report 

JULY 14, 2022 

 

 

 
  

 

 

SUBMITTED BY 

Dewberry Engineers Inc. 
2201 Cantu Court 
Suite 107 
Sarasota, Florida 
Phone: 941.702.9672 
Contact: Richard Ellis 

SUBMITTED TO 

West Villages Improvement District 
19503 S. West Villages Parkway Suite #A3 
Venice, Florida 34293 
Phone: 941.244.2703   

Page 291



West Villages Improvement District Unit of Development No. 1 
Second Amendment to the Engineer’s Report 
July 14, 2022 
  

   1 
 

 

1. Purpose and Scope 

The purpose of this Second Amendment to the Engineer’s Report prepared by Kimley Horn on March 14, 
2006, as amended by the First Amendment dated April 25, 2006, is to revise and update the area and 
boundary. The new area will be 8,480.7 acres. The cost of the Project, as described in the approved Plan 
of Improvements, as amended, is $49,896,395.31. This total benefit amount divided by 16,167 of half-
acre or less portions of lands that will be specially benefitted by the Project equals $3,086.31 of benefit 
per half-acre of less portion of land. An updated sketch and legal description for the revised boundary is 
included in Exhibit 1. There are no additional changes to the original Engineer’s Report.   

Page 292



Page 293



Page 294



Page 295



Page 296



Page 297



Page 298



 
 
 

WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
UNIT 1  

Series 2017 Refunding Bonds 
  
 

Amended and Restated Assessment Methodology Report of Benefits 
for 2017 Refinancing  

 
 
 
  

JULY 14, 2022 
  
  
  
 

   
Submitted by: 

  

Special District Services, Inc. 
2501A Burns Road 

Palm Beach Gardens, Fla. 33410 
         

 
 

Toll Free: 877.737.4922 
Fax: 561.630.4923 

www.sdsinc.org 
 
 
 
1.0 INTRODUCTION 

Page 299



1 
 

 
The West Villages is a development consisting of residential Neighborhoods and Villages with 
associated Neighborhood and Village Centers, and a proposed mixed-use Town Center containing 
approximately 12,440 acres located in the City of North Port, Florida.  The West Villages is 
contained within the West Villages Improvement District (the "District").  The West Villages 
Improvement District ("WVID") was created by and operates under Chapter 2004-456, Laws 
of Florida (the "Act") and operates pursuant to the Act and applicable provisions of Chapter 298, 
Florida Statutes.   Unit of Development No. 1 ("Unit 1") consists of all of the property currently 
contained within WVID that is located within the City of North Port, Florida. Unit 1 was 
designated to provide for Master Planning, Standards Development, plus the construction, 
financing, long-term administration, and management of certain public infrastructure required 
for the District.  The purpose of this Amended and Restated Report is to revise the acreage and 
half-acre or less calculations for the District and Unit 1, respectively, after a boundary amendment 
adding additional acreage to Unit 1. 
 
In accordance with that certain Report of Engineer, dated March 14, 2006, First Amendment to the 
Report of Engineer,  dated April 26, 2006, prepared by the then-current District Engineer, Kimley-
Horn and Associates, Inc., and the Second Amendment to the Report of Engineer, dated July 14, 
2022, prepared by Dewberry & Associates, Inc. (the “Original Reports”), along with other 
associated reports, the District levied and imposed special assessments securing its $34,895,000 in 
Special Assessment Bonds, Series 2007 (Unit of Development No. 1) (the “Series 2007 Bonds”) 
and its $33,000,000 in Special Assessment Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2017 (Unit of 
Development No. 1) (the “Series 2017 Bonds”).   

In such reports, the District Engineer specifically determined: 

“that allocating the benefits of the Project based on the number of portions of land 
of a half-acre or less is the basis selected for apportioning the special benefits.  
Planning studies prepared by the District Engineer for the Unit have established a 
projected number of half-acre or less portions of land within the Unit.  These half-
acre or less portions of land are employed in the special assessment methodology 
for the determination, allocation and apportionment of the benefits. 

For the purpose of this report, the total half-acre or less portions of land in the Unit 
is 16,167.  The District Engineer has determined that the total of 16,167 half-acre 
or less portions of land will be specially benefited by the Project. 
 
The District Engineer has estimated that the total benefits to be received by the 
lands in Unit 1 from the Project described in the proposed Plan of Improvements 
to be $49,896,395.31.  This amount of total benefits divided by 16,167 (the 
estimated and projected number half-acre or less portions of land in the Unit) 
equals $$3,086.31 of benefit per half-acre or less portion of land. 

Page 300



2 
 

 
For purposes of this Report, the District Engineer has determined that the 
calculation of the half-acre portions of land shall be as follows: 
 

a) Each parcel of land not subject to a legally constituted condominium and 
having an area less than or equal to one-half acre shall represent one 
“Half-Acre Portion of Land” 

b) Each parcel of land not subject to a legally constituted condominium and 
having an area (the “Total Area”) equal to or greater than one acre shall 
constitute a number of “Half-Acre Portions of Land” equal to the sum of (i) 
2 times the number of whole acres (the “Whole Acres”) included within the 
Total Area, plus (ii) that number of Half Acre Portions of Land equal to the 
result of (x) the Total Area minus the Whole Acres divided  by (y) 0.50, 
rounded up to the next higher whole number. 

c) Any land that is subject to a legally constituted condominium shall not be 
allocated benefits pursuant to (a) or (b) above, but each condominium unit 
shall constitute one Half Acre Portion of Land. 

d) The Determined Benefits allocated to each parcel of land or condominium 
unit in the Unit shall equal the total Determined Benefit multiplied by the 
number of Half-Acre Portions of Land represented by such parcel or 
condominium divided by the total Half-Acre Portions of Land for all parcels 
and condominium in the Unit. 

e) The allocation of benefits shall be performed annually based upon the final 
tax roll for the Unit.” 

 
The District has refunded the Series 2007 Bonds (the “Series 2017 Bonds”) to, among other things, 
take advantage of interest rate savings which will result in new capital to be used for newly-
contemplated infrastructure improvements while maintaining the same per parcel annual debt 
assessment.  The purpose of this report is to memorialize this refinancing and provide assurance 
there will be no change in the non-ad valorem assessments to secure the Series 2017 Bonds (the 
“Series 2017 Assessments”).   
 
Table 1 provides a computation of the annual non-ad valorem assessments assessed, imposed and 
levied against and peculiar to each assessable residential unit subject to the Series 2017 
Assessments and demonstrates that the Series 2017 Assessments provide sufficient revenue to 
meet the maximum annual debt service requirement for the Series 2017 Bonds.  The anticipated 
effect of the refunding of the Series 2007 Bonds will result in an increased par debt amount of 
outstanding District debt.  However, due to the reduced interest rate associated with the re-
issuance, the annual payment of debt assessments will stay the same and the new capital will be 
used for newly-contemplated infrastructure improvements. 

 

Page 301



3 
 

In order to ensure that there is sufficient special assessment revenue to pay the Series 2017 Bonds, 
the District is required to perform an analysis which requires a determination of the amount of 
non-ad valorem assessments assessed, imposed and levied against and peculiar to each product 
type in order to meet the required debt service on the Series 2017 Bonds.  Based on a Series 2017 
refunding bond size of $32,165,000, the maximum annual debt service for the Series 2017 Bonds 
is $2,377,180, which has not been adjusted to include a 4% discount for early payment of 
assessments, a 1% fee for the Tax Collector, and a 1% service fee for the Property Appraiser (see 
attached Table 1).   
 
Since the total amount of the Series 2007 Bonds and the Series 2017 Bonds new capital do not 
exceed $44,906,755.77, which is 90% of the total benefits number of $49,896,395.31 as described 
in the Original Reports, the benefit findings discussed in the report and Exhibit D as well as the 
16,167 units (the estimated and projected number half-acre or less portions of land in the Unit) and 
methodology described in the Original Reports do not change and are incorporated herein by 
reference relative to the Series 2017 Bonds.  In that regard, it is concluded that the allocation of 
special benefits remain unchanged as they flow peculiar to each acre, lot or unit within the District 
and that the apportionment of the special benefits for the Series 2017 Assessments remains fair 
and reasonable.  It is also concluded that the Series 2017 Assessments remain not in excess of the 
special benefits peculiar to the property as apportioned. 
 
Please note that Special District Services, Inc. is a management company and does not hold a 
certificate of authorization to perform engineering services in Florida.  As such, this report is not 
the Report of Engineer as referenced in Florida Statutes 298.     

  

Page 302



 
 
 

Table 1 
 

Series 2017 Bonds Summary – Note: Total Maximum Annual Assessment Per Unit Does NOT Change Due to the Refunding 

Product Type 
Number 
of Units 

Series 2007 
Bonds 

Maximum 
Annual 

Assessment 
per Unit* 

Total 
Maximum 

Annual 
Assessment  

Series 2007 
Existing Par 
Amount Per 
Unit Type 

Series 2007 
Existing Par 
Amount Per 

Unit 

Series 2017 
Future Par 
Amount Per 
Unit Type 

Series 2017 
Future Par 
Amount Per 

Unit 

Series 2017 
Bonds 

Maximum 
Annual 

Assessment 
per Unit* 

All 16,167 $144.56 $2,377,180 $29,575,000 $1,829 $32,165,000 $1,990 $144.56 
* Does not include discounts and fees 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Page 303



 

 

RESOLUTION 2022-24 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF SUPERVISORS OF THE 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT APPROVING A 
MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT WITH THE FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION RELATIVE TO U.S. 
HIGHWAY 41 IMPROVEMENTS; PROVIDING A 
SEVERABILITY CLAUSE; AND PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

  
 WHEREAS, the West Villages Improvement District (“District”) is a local unit of special-purpose 
government created and existing by the Florida Legislature pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, 
as amended; and  
 

WHEREAS, the District operates and/or maintains, or plans to operate and/or maintain, certain 
landscaping, irrigation, sidewalks, and paver improvements adjacent to U.S. Highway 41 that are owned 
by the Florida Department of Transportation (“FDOT”); and 

 
 WHEREAS, the District’s Board of Supervisors (the “Board”) accordingly desires to approve that 
that certain Master Maintenance Agreement and that certain First Amendment, both by and between the 
District and FDOT, in substantial form, which are attached hereto as Composite Exhibit A (hereinafter, 
collectively referred to as the “Agreement”); and  
 
 WHEREAS, the Board accordingly desires to adopt this Resolution to evidence its approval of the 
Agreement. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT: 

 
 SECTION 1. The recitals as stated above are true and correct and by this reference are 
incorporated into and form a material part of this Resolution. 
 

SECTION 2. The Board hereby approves the Agreement attached hereto as Composite Exhibit 
A.  The District’s Chairman and/or Vice Chairman and applicable District staff are authorized to execute 
the Agreement on behalf of the District. 
 
 SECTION 3.  If any provision of this resolution is held to be illegal or invalid, the other provisions 
shall remain in full force and effect. 
 
 SECTION 4. This resolution shall become effective upon its passage and shall remain in effect 
unless rescinded or repealed. 
 

PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of August, 2022. 
 
ATTEST:     WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
 
 
_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary     Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 
 
Exhibit A:  Form of the Agreement 

Page 304



 

 

EXHIBIT A 

 
 

Page 305



COUNTY: SARASOTA 
ROADWAY: US 41 / SR 45 
AGENCY: West Villages  

 

Page 1 of 5 
 

 
 

MASTER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 
THE STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF 

TRANSPORTATION AND 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 

 
THIS Agreement, made and entered into this __ day of  _________,2022, by and 

between the STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION, (hereinafter, 
“DEPARTMENT”) and, the WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  
(hereinafter, “AGENCY”) for the AGENCY to maintain, at the AGENCY’S expense, the Right-
of-Way, Facilities, Landscaping, and other improvements outlined within the area specified 
below. 

 
W I T N E S S E T H   

 

 WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT and the AGENCY wish to establish a Master 
Maintenance and Installation Agreement, (herein after “MASTER AGREEMENT”) to replace 
two existing agreements and to provide a mechanism for amendments to delineate specific 
maintenance geographical limits; and 

 WHEREAS, the DEPARTMENT has jurisdiction over and maintains SR 45 / US 41 
including Section 17010-000, MP 6.347 to MP 9.482, attached and incorporated by reference as 
Exhibit A; and 

 WHEREAS, the AGENCY, by Resolution No.________, dated ________, 2022 attached 
and incorporated by reference as Exhibit B, authorized its Chairman or Designee to execute 
this MASTER AGREEMENT on its behalf. 

 
NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual benefits to flow each to 

the other, the parties covenant and agree as follows: 
 

1. The DEPARTMENT and the AGENCY agree that this MASTER AGREEMENT will cause 
the previous maintenance agreements between the parties (Post Project Maintenance 
Agreement, executed on December 3, 2010; and Sidewalk Maintenance and Installation 
Agreement, executed on September 23, 2020) to be null and void upon execution of this 
MASTER AGREEMENT.  

2. The AGENCY hereby assures the DEPARTMENT, it has Complied with all permit 
requirements from the appropriate agencies (county, municipality, etc.) in connection with 
the activities described hereunder.  

3. The DEPARTMENT agrees to maintain, as it’s cost and expense, all asphalt pavement, curbs, 
gutters, stormwater systems, signage and pavement markings, and colorized concrete aprons 
within round-a-bouts. 

4. The AGENCY agrees to maintain, as it’s cost and expense, and in accordance with the 

Page 306



COUNTY: SARASOTA 
ROADWAY: US 41 / SR 45 
AGENCY: West Villages  

 

Page 2 of 5 
 

Technical Maintenance Plan attached and incorporated by reference as Exhibit C, all 
landscape and irrigation, sidewalks, and pavers, including but not exclusive of mowing, 
edging, and litter removal and fertilizing within the Right -of -Way pursuant to any 
Landscape Plan(s) submitted and approved by the DEPARTMENT. The AGENCY shall 
maintain all said improvements within the right of way so that they meet or exceed 
minimum Maintenance Rating Performance Standards (MRP) as defined by the 
DEPARTMENT.  

5. The maintenance activities performed by the AGENCY shall be subject to periodic 
inspections by the DEPARTMENT. The AGENCY shall not change or deviate from 
DEPARTMENT approved plan(s) without written approval of the DEPARTMENT. 

6. All maintenance activities undertaken by AGENCY shall be pursuant to the Work Zone 
Traffic Control Plan(s) using the FDOT Standard Plans Index 102, and incorporated into 
this Agreement, and Rule 14-40.003, Florida Administrative Code. 

7. The AGENCY may utilize its employees or third parties to accomplish its obligations under 
this Agreement. However, the AGENCY remains responsible for proper performance under 
this Agreement and shall take all steps necessary to ensure that its employees or third parties 
perform as required under this Agreement. 

8. It is understood between the parties hereto that the landscaping, irrigation and any other 
improvements covered by this Agreement may be removed, relocated or adjusted by 
the DEPARTMENT at any time in the future as determined to be necessary by the 
DEPARTMENT in order to widen, alter or otherwise change the state road to meet with 
future criteria or planning of the DEPARTMENT. The AGENCY shall be given sixty 
(60) calendar days notice to remove said landscaping and irrigation which time the 
DEPARTMENT may remove the same. 

9. The maintenance activities performed by the AGENCY shall be subject to periodic inspections 
by the DEPARTMENT. The AGENCY shall not change or deviate from DEPARTMENT 
approved plan(s) without written approval of the DEPARTMENT. If it shall come to the 
attention of the DEPARTMENT that the improvements  not properly maintained pursuant 
to the terms of this Agreement, the District Secretary or his designee may issue a written 
notice to the AGENCY that a deficiency or deficiencies exist(s). Upon receipt of the 
notice, the AGENCY shall have a period of thirty (30) calendar days within which to 
correct the cited deficiencies. If said deficiencies are not corrected within this time period, 
the DEPARTMENT may at its option, proceed as follows: 

a) The DEPARTMENT may take action to maintain the improvements which are the 
responsibility of the AGENCY as specified above, or a part thereof, with 
DEPARTMENT or its Contractor’s personnel and invoice the AGENCY for expenses 
incurred and the AGENCY shall promptly reimburse the DEPARTMENT for the 
costs, or 

b) The DEPARTMENT may terminate the MASTER AGREEMENT, or any 
amendments thereto, in which case the AGENCY shall at its own expense and within 
sixty (60) days after written notice by the DEPARTMENT, remove all improvements 

Page 307



COUNTY: SARASOTA 
ROADWAY: US 41 / SR 45 
AGENCY: West Villages  

 

Page 3 of 5 
 

that the DEPARTMENT directs be removed and return the right-of-way to its original 
condition. 

 

10. This Agreement shall remain in effect until such time the AGENCY or DEPARTMENT 
wishes to terminate this Agreement. Termination shall be done in writing giving the other 
party thirty (30) days’  notice. Upon notice of termination by either party, all 
improvements which  are  the  respons ib i l i ty  o f  the  AGENCY to  main ta in  shall 
be removed by the AGENCY and the DEPARTMENT’S right-of-way returned to its 
original condition. If, after thirty (30) days, the improvements have not been removed, the 
DEPARTMENT may, at its option, proceed as follows: 

a) Maintain said improvements within the limits of said project with DEPARTMENT’S 
contractor or personnel and the AGENCY shall promptly reimburse the 
DEPARTMENT upon receipt of an invoice for the reasonable values of such work; or 

b) Remove said improvements; return the right-of-way to its original condition with 
the DEPARTMENT’S contractor or personnel and the AGENCY shall promptly 
reimburse the DEPARTMENT upon receipt of an invoice for the reasonable values 
of such work. 

11. The AGENCY shall keep in force during the period of this Agreement public liability 
insurance and property damage insurance, listing the DEPARTMENT as co-insured for 
both, and worker’s compensation insurance through an insurance policy(ies) as evidenced 
by an ACCORD form which shall be submitted to the DEPARTMENT upon periodic 
updates or as requested. The DEPARTMENT shall also be listed as co-certificate holder on 
said form.  

12. When the DEPARTMENT receives a notice of claim for damages that may have been caused 
by the AGENCY in the performance of services pursuant to this Agreement, the 
DEPARTMENT will immediately forward the claim to AGENCY, and the DEPARTMENT 
will evaluate the claim and report their findings to each other within seven working days 
and will jointly discuss options in defending the claim. After reviewing the claim, the 
DEPARTMENT will determine whether to require the participation of the AGENCY in 
the defense of the claim or to require that the AGENCY defend the DEPARTMENT in 
such claim pursuant to this section. The DEPARTMENT'S failure to notify the AGENCY 
of a claim shall not release the AGENCY from any of the requirements of this section. 
The DEPARTMENT and the AGENCY will pay their own costs for the evaluation, 
settlement negotiations, and trial, if any. However, if only one party participates in the 
defense of the claim at trial, that party is responsible for all costs, but if the verdict 
determines that there is joint responsibility, the costs and liability for damages will be 
shared in the same percentage as that judicially established. 

13. To the extent permitted by law, AGENCY shall indemnify, defend and hold harmless 
DEPARTMENT against any actions, claims, or damages arising out of, relating to, or 
resulting from negligent or wrongful act(s) of AGENCY, or any of its officers, agents or 
employees, acting within the scope of their office or employment, in connection with the 
obligations and rights granted to or exercised by AGENCY hereunder, to the extent and within 

Page 308



COUNTY: SARASOTA 
ROADWAY: US 41 / SR 45 
AGENCY: West Villages  

 

Page 4 of 5 
 

the limitations of any applicable Florida Statute. The foregoing indemnification shall not 
constitute a waiver of sovereign immunity, if applicable, beyond the limits set forth in Florida 
Statutes, Section 768.28, nor shall the same be construed to constitute agreement by 
AGENCY to indemnify DEPARTMENT for the negligent acts or omissions of 
DEPARTMENT, its officers, agents or employees, or for the acts of third parties. Nothing 
herein shall be construed as consent by AGENCY to be sued by third parties in any manner 
arising out of this agreement. The AGENCY shall also require all contractors and 
subcontractors who conduct operations within the Project to indemnify and hold 
DEPARTMENT harmless against any actions, claims, or damages arising out of, relating to, 
or resulting from negligent or wrongful act(s) of said Contractor or Subcontractor or any of 
their officers, agents or employees, acting within the scope of their office or employment. The 
indemnities assumed by the AGENCY shall survive termination of this agreement.  

14. This writing embodies the entire Agreement and understanding between the parties hereto 
and there are no other agreements and understanding, oral or written, with reference to 
the subject matter hereof that are not merged herein and superseded hereby. 

15. This Agreement may not be assigned or transferred by the AGENCY in whole or 
part without the consent of the DEPARTMENT. 

16. This Agreement shall be governed by and construed in accordance with the laws of the State 
of Florida. 

 

17. All notices under this Agreement shall be directed to the following addresses: 

TO DEPARTMENT: 
District Maintenance Admin. 
801 North Broadway (MS 1-28) 
Bartow, FL 33830-1249  

STATE OF FLORIDA AUDITOR GENERAL: 
 Room 401, Pepper Building 
 111 West Madison Street 
 Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450 
  

 
 

 
Rest of this page intentionally left blank. 

Page 309



COUNTY: SARASOTA 
ROADWAY: US 41 / SR 45 
AGENCY: West Villages  

 

Page 5 of 5 
 

 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, has caused this 
Agreement to be executed in its behalf, by the Chairman or its designee, and the FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION has caused this Agreement to be executed in its behalf 
through its District Secretary or authorized designee. This Agreement shall become effective on: 

 
 

Department to enter date. 
 
 

 

 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

ATTEST 
(Not necessary if DocuSigned) 
 

  

CLERK (Seal) CHAIRMAN OR DESIGNEE 
 
 
 
 

  

DATE PRINT NAME DATE 
 

WEST VILLAGES IMP. DIST. LEGAL REVIEW: 

BY: 
 
 
 

DATE 
 

 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

ATTEST (Not necessary if DocuSigned)  
 

BY: 
 

  

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY (Seal) DISTRICT SECRETARY OR DESIGNEE 
DISTRICT ONE 

 
 

  

PRINT NAME DATE PRINT NAME DATE 

 
REVIEW & APPROVAL FLA. DEPT. OF TRANS. LEGAL REVIEW: 

 
BY BY: 

 
  

DISTRICT LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT DATE                       Don Conway, Senior Attorney DATE 

Page 310



EXHIBIT A

PAGE 1 OF 1
LOCATION MAP AND AGENCY MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES

SECTION 17010-000 FROM MP 6.347 TO MP 9.482

MP 6.347

MP 9.482

North

Sarasota County

17010-000

US 41
MP 9.482

MP 6.347

SR 45 (US 41)

SR
 777 (R

iver R
d.)

NORTH

Page 311



EXHIBIT A

PAGE 1 OF 1
LOCATION MAP AND AGENCY MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES

SECTION 17010-000 FROM MP 6.347 TO MP 9.482

MP 6.347

MP 9.482

North

Sarasota County

17010-000

US 41
MP 9.482

MP 6.347

SR 45 (US 41)

SR
 777 (R

iver R
d.)

NORTH

EXHIBIT B

(agency Resolution)

Page 312



EXHIBIT C 
 

PAGE 1 OF 2 
 

TECHNICAL MAINTENANCE PLAN 
 

 
ARCHITECTURAL PAVERS 
General:  The work specified in this Technical Maintenance Plan consists of maintenance and repair 
of architectural pavers in sidewalk areas.  Repair of pavers shall conform to the requirements of 
Section 526 of the Florida Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Road and 
Bridge Construction, dated 2010, except as amended herein. 
 
Tolerances:  Architectural pavers shall be repaired whenever any of the following conditions exist: 

a. Greater than ¼” unit-to-unit offset from flush 
b. Greater than ½” in 2’0” from level or slope as designed 
c. Pavers are loose, chipped, broken or otherwise damaged. 

 
Repair:  Repair shall consist of replacement of resetting of unit or units.  Provide new units to match 
adjoining units and install or re-set in same manner as original units with same joint treatment to 
eliminate evidence of replacement.  Repaired areas shall meet the following tolerances: 
 

a. Do not exceed 1/16” unit-to-unit offset from flush 
b. Do not exceed 1/8” in 2’ 0” from level or slope as designed. 

 
Cleaning:  Stained pavers shall be cleaned with potable water and stiff fiber brushes until all dirt, 
stains, and other blemishes are removed.  Use cleaner and procedures recommended by paver 
manufacturer.  Test small sample areas for acceptance of cleaning procedures.  Do not use wire 
brushes, metal scrapers or acids.  Protect adjacent surfaces from damage during cleaning and 
operations. 
 
STAMPED CONCRETE SIDEWALK: 
General:  The work specified in this Technical Maintenance Plan consists of maintenance and repair 
of stamped concrete crosswalks.  Repair of concrete crosswalks shall conform to the requirements of 
the Florida Department of Transportation Standard Specifications for Road and Bridge 
Construction, dated 2010, Section 353: Concrete Pavement Slab Replacement 

EXHIBIT C

Page 1 of 2
Page 313



E
X

H
IB

IT
 C

 
 

P
A

G
E

 1 O
F

 2 
 

T
E

C
H

N
IC

A
L

 M
A

IN
T

E
N

A
N

C
E

 P
L

A
N

 
 

 A
R

C
H

IT
E

C
T

U
R

A
L

 P
A

V
E

R
S

 
G

en
eral:  T

h
e w

ork
 sp

ecified
 in this T

ech
nical M

ainten
an

ce P
lan

 con
sists of m

ainten
ance an

d rep
air 

of arch
itectu

ral p
avers in

 sid
ew

alk
 areas.  R

epair of p
avers sh

all con
form

 to th
e req

uirem
ents of 

S
ection

 526 of th
e F

lorid
a D

ep
artm

ent of T
ran

sp
ortation

 Stan
d

ard
 S

p
ecification

s for R
oad

 an
d

 
B

rid
ge C

onstruction
, d

ated
 2010, excep

t as am
en

ded
 h

erein
. 

 T
olerances:  A

rchitectural p
avers sh

all b
e rep

aired
 w

h
en

ever any of th
e follow

ing con
dition

s exist: 
a. 

G
reater than ¼

” unit-to-un
it offset from

 flu
sh 

b
. 

G
reater than ½

” in 2’0” from
 level or slope as designed

 
c. 

P
avers are loose, chip

p
ed

, b
rok

en
 or otherw

ise d
am

aged
. 

 R
ep

air:  R
ep

air sh
all con

sist of rep
lacem

ent of resettin
g of u

nit or u
n

its.  P
rovid

e n
ew

 u
nits to m

atch
 

ad
joinin

g u
nits an

d
 install or re-set in sam

e m
an

n
er as origin

al u
nits w

ith
 sam

e join
t treatm

en
t to 

elim
in

ate evid
en

ce of replacem
en

t.  R
ep

aired
 areas sh

all m
eet th

e follow
in

g tolerances: 
 

a. 
D

o not exceed 1/16” unit-to-u
nit offset from

 flu
sh 

b
. 

D
o not exceed 1/8” in 2’ 0” from

 level or slope as designed. 
 C

lean
ing:  Stained

 p
avers sh

all b
e cleaned

 w
ith

 p
otab

le w
ater an

d stiff fib
er b

ru
sh

es u
ntil all dirt, 

stain
s, an

d
 oth

er b
lem

ish
es are rem

oved
.  U

se cleaner an
d

 p
roced

u
res recom

m
en

d
ed

 by p
aver 

m
an

u
facturer.  T

est sm
all sam

ple areas for accep
tan

ce of clean
in

g p
roced

u
res.  D

o n
ot use w

ire 
b

ru
sh

es, m
etal scrap

ers or acids.  P
rotect adjacen

t su
rfaces from

 d
am

age d
urin

g cleanin
g an

d
 

op
eration

s. 
 ST

A
M

P
E

D
 C

O
N

C
R

E
T

E
 SID

E
W

A
L

K
: 

G
en

eral:  T
h

e w
ork

 sp
ecified

 in this T
ech

nical M
ainten

an
ce P

lan
 con

sists of m
ainten

ance an
d

 rep
air 

of stam
ped

 concrete crossw
alk

s.  R
ep

air of concrete crossw
alk

s sh
all con

form
 to the req

uirem
ents of 

th
e F

lorida D
ep

artm
en

t of T
ran

sp
ortation

 S
tan

d
ard

 S
p

ecification
s for R

oad
 an

d
 B

rid
ge 

C
on

stru
ction

, d
ated

 2010, S
ection

 353: C
on

crete P
avem

ent Slab
 R

ep
lacem

ent 

EXHIBIT C

Page 2 of 2

4
129

4

Page 314



  STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 
AMENDMENT #1 

 
to the MASTER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
                 

ROW PERMIT NO.__n/a______ 
 
 
THIS AMENDMENT TO THE MASTER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT ("Amendment") is made and entered into 
on this ____ day of ______, 2022 by and between the STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION ("Department"), an agency of the State of Florida, and WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT (" Agency"). 
 
RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the Department and the  Agency on ____/____/2022 entered into a Master Maintenance and 
Installation Agreement ("Master Agreement"); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Master Agreement by specifying geographical areas within 
which the Agency will be responsible for maintaining; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agency, by Resolution No. ______dated ____/____/2022, attached and incorporated by 
reference as Exhibit B in the Master Agreement, authorized its Chairman or Designee to execute this 
Amendment on its behalf. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants in this Amendment, the Master Agreement is 
amended as follows: 
 
Exhibit D , WEST VILLAGES PARKWAY IMPROVEMENTS, is attached and incorporated by reference.  The 
agency is responsible for the maintenance, at its sole cost and expense, of all improvements within the 
geographical area of Exhibit A, as per the terms and conditions of the Master Agreement. 
 
Furthermore, it is agreed, except as expressly or by necessary implication modified hereby, all provisions, 
terms and conditions of the Master Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, but in the event of any 
inconsistency between the Master Agreement and this Amendment #1 , the latter shall prevail. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have executed this Amendment on the day, month and year 
set forth above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 315



  STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 
AMENDMENT #1 

 
to the MASTER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, has caused this 
Agreement to be executed in its behalf, by the Chairman or its designee, and the FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION has caused this Agreement to be executed in its behalf 
through its District Secretary or authorized designee. This Agreement shall become effective on: 

 
 

Department to enter date. 
 
 

 

 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

ATTEST 
(Not necessary if DocuSigned) 
 

  

CLERK (Seal) CHAIRMAN OR DESIGNEE 
 
 
 
 

  

DATE PRINT NAME DATE 
 

WEST VILLAGES IMP. DIST. LEGAL REVIEW: 

BY: 
 
 
 

DATE 

 

 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

ATTEST (Not necessary if DocuSigned)  
 

BY: 
 

  

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY (Seal) DISTRICT SECRETARY OR DESIGNEE 
DISTRICT ONE 

 
 

  

PRINT NAME DATE PRINT NAME DATE 

 
REVIEW & APPROVAL FLA. DEPT. OF TRANS. LEGAL REVIEW: 

 
BY BY: 

 
  

DISTRICT LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT DATE                       Don Conway, Senior Attorney DATE 

Page 316



EXHIBIT D WEST VILLAGES PARKWAY IMPROVEMENTS

Page 1 of 5

Page 317



EXHIBIT D WEST VILLAGES PARKWAY IMPROVEMENTS

Page 2 of 5

Page 318



EXHIBIT D WEST VILLAGES PARKWAY IMPROVEMENTS

Page 3 of 5

Page 319



EXHIBIT D WEST VILLAGES PARKWAY IMPROVEMENTS

Page 4 of 5

Page 320



EXHIBIT D WEST VILLAGES PARKWAY IMPROVEMENTS

Page 5 of 5

Page 321



  STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 
AMENDMENT #2 

 
to the MASTER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
                 

ROW PERMIT NO. 2019-D-194-00013 
 
 
THIS AMENDMENT TO THE MASTER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT ("Amendment") is made and entered into 
on this ____ day of ______, 2022 by and between the STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION ("Department"), an agency of the State of Florida, and WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT (" Agency"). 
 
RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the Department and the  Agency on ____/____/2022 entered into a Master Maintenance and 
Installation Agreement ("Master Agreement"); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Master Agreement by specifying geographical areas within 
which the Agency will be responsible for maintaining; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agency, by Resolution No. ______dated ____/____/2022, attached and incorporated by 
reference as Exhibit B in the Master Agreement, authorized its Chairman or Designee to execute this 
Amendment on its behalf. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants in this Amendment, the Master Agreement is 
amended as follows: 
 
Exhibit E, 2019-D-194-00013, is attached and incorporated by reference.  The agency is responsible for the 
maintenance, at its sole cost and expense, of all improvements within the geographical area of Exhibit A, as 
per the terms and conditions of the Master Agreement. 
 
Furthermore, it is agreed, except as expressly or by necessary implication modified hereby, all provisions, 
terms and conditions of the Master Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, but in the event of any 
inconsistency between the Master Agreement and this Amendment #2 , the latter shall prevail. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have executed this Amendment on the day, month and year 
set forth above. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 322



  STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 
AMENDMENT #2 

 
to the MASTER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, has caused this 
Agreement to be executed in its behalf, by the Chairman or its designee, and the FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION has caused this Agreement to be executed in its behalf 
through its District Secretary or authorized designee. This Agreement shall become effective on: 

 
 

Department to enter date. 
 
 

 

 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

ATTEST 
(Not necessary if DocuSigned) 
 

  

CLERK (Seal) CHAIRMAN OR DESIGNEE 
 
 
 
 

  

DATE PRINT NAME DATE 
 

WEST VILLAGES IMP. DIST. LEGAL REVIEW: 

BY: 
 
 
 

DATE 

 

 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

ATTEST (Not necessary if DocuSigned)  
 

BY: 
 

  

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY (Seal) DISTRICT SECRETARY OR DESIGNEE 
DISTRICT ONE 

 
 

  

PRINT NAME DATE PRINT NAME DATE 

 
REVIEW & APPROVAL FLA. DEPT. OF TRANS. LEGAL REVIEW: 

 
BY BY: 

 
  

DISTRICT LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT DATE                       Don Conway, Senior Attorney DATE 

Page 323



2019-D-194-00013EXHIBIT D

Page 1 of 14

EXHIBIT E

Page 324



2019-D-194-00013EXHIBIT D

Page 2 of 14

EXHIBIT E

Page 325



2019-D-194-00013EXHIBIT D

Page 3 of 14

EXHIBIT E

Page 326



2019-D-194-00013EXHIBIT D

Page 4 of 14

EXHIBIT E

Page 327



2019-D-194-00013EXHIBIT D

Page 5 of 14

EXHIBIT E

Page 328



2019-D-194-00013EXHIBIT D

Page 6 of 14

EXHIBIT E

Page 329



2019-D-194-00013EXHIBIT D

Page 7 of 14

EXHIBIT E

Page 330



2019-D-194-00013EXHIBIT D

Page 8 of 14

EXHIBIT E

Page 331



2019-D-194-00013EXHIBIT D

Page 9 of 14

EXHIBIT E

Page 332



2019-D-194-00013EXHIBIT D

Page 10 of 14

EXHIBIT E

Page 333



2019-D-194-00013EXHIBIT D

Page 11 of 14

EXHIBIT E

Page 334



2019-D-194-00013EXHIBIT D

Page 12 of 14

EXHIBIT E

Page 335



2019-D-194-00013EXHIBIT D

Page 13 of 14

EXHIBIT E

Page 336



2019-D-194-00013EXHIBIT D

Page 14 of 14

EXHIBIT E

Page 337



  STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 
AMENDMENT #___ 

 
to the MASTER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  

Page 1 of 2 
 

 
                         

ROW PERMIT NO. xxxxxxxx 
 
 
THIS AMENDMENT TO THE MASTER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT ("Amendment") is made and entered into 
on this ____ day of ______, 2022 by and between the STATE OF FLORIDA, DEPARTMENT OF 
TRANSPORTATION ("Department"), an agency of the State of Florida, and WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT (" Agency"). 
 
RECITALS 
 
WHEREAS, the Department and the  Agency on ____/____/2022 entered into a Master Maintenance and 
Installation Agreement ("Master Agreement"); and 
 
WHEREAS, the Parties have agreed to modify the Master Agreement by specifying geographical areas within 
which the Agency will be responsible for maintaining; and 
 
WHEREAS, the Agency, by Resolution No. ______dated ____/____/2022, attached and incorporated by 
reference as Exhibit B in the Master Agreement, authorized its Chairman or Designee to execute this 
Amendment on its behalf. 
 
NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants in this Amendment, the Master Agreement is 
amended as follows: 
 
Exhibit ___, ______________, is attached and incorporated by reference.  The agency is responsible for the 
maintenance, at its sole cost and expense, of all improvements within the geographical area of Exhibit A, as 
per the terms and conditions of the Master Agreement. 
 
Furthermore, it is agreed, except as expressly or by necessary implication modified hereby, all provisions, 
terms and conditions of the Master Agreement shall remain in full force and effect, but in the event of any 
inconsistency between the Master Agreement and this Amendment #___ , the latter shall prevail. 
 
IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the undersigned parties have executed this Amendment on the day, month and year 
set forth above. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 338



  STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 

 
AMENDMENT #___ 

 
to the MASTER MAINTENANCE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

THE STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION AND 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  

Page 2 of 2 
 

 
 
 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT, has caused this 
Agreement to be executed in its behalf, by the Chairman or its designee, and the FLORIDA 
DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION has caused this Agreement to be executed in its behalf 
through its District Secretary or authorized designee. This Agreement shall become effective on: 

 
 

Department to enter date. 
 
 

 

 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT: 

ATTEST 
(Not necessary if DocuSigned) 
 

  

CLERK (Seal) CHAIRMAN OR DESIGNEE 
 
 
 
 

  

DATE PRINT NAME DATE 
 

WEST VILLAGES IMP. DIST. LEGAL REVIEW: 

BY: 
 
 
 

DATE 

 

 
 
STATE OF FLORIDA DEPARTMENT OF TRANSPORTATION 
 

ATTEST (Not necessary if DocuSigned)  
 

BY: 
 

  

EXECUTIVE SECRETARY (Seal) DISTRICT SECRETARY OR DESIGNEE 
DISTRICT ONE 

 
 

  

PRINT NAME DATE PRINT NAME DATE 

 
REVIEW & APPROVAL FLA. DEPT. OF TRANS. LEGAL REVIEW: 

 
BY BY: 

 
  

DISTRICT LANDSCAPE ARCHITECT DATE                       Don Conway, Senior Attorney DATE 

Page 339



Page 340



Page 341



����������	
��������������������������	������������	������������������	
��
�����������������������������������
���������������������������	���������������������������	
���������������������������	������������������������	
��
����������������������� !" #"��������������
���������������������������	���������������������������������������������������������	�����������������$%&�'()*+�(,�-./&*012(*2�34%&�5'()*+67�(,�4%&�8&24�91::);&2�<=/*(0&=&>4�?124*1@4�34%&�5?124*1@467�A1::�%(:+�)�/.B:1@�%&)*1>;�(>��CDCEF��G��������HF���I�������JK�LMNEOK�HF�FPM�	C#QJR��HSMFT��CJQUJKD��NHJKJKD��OOV�QORHFMU�HF����WW�	NMFO��QXU����MKJRM���QONJUH��!����4(�@(>21+&*�4%&�)+(/41(>�(,�)>�)22&22=&>4�*(::Y�4%&�1=/(2141(>�(,�2/&@1):�)22&22=&>42�4(�2&@.*&�&Z1241>;�)>+�,.4.*&�B(>+2�(>�)++141(>):�B&>&[4&+�:)>+2�A14%1>�\>14�(,�?&0&:(/=&>4�](̂�_�A14%1>�4%&�?124*1@4�35\>14�](̂�_67�4%)4�A&*&�*&@&>4:̀�)++&+�4(�2.@%�.>14�/.*2.)>4�4(�)�B(.>+)*̀�)=&>+=&>4�34%&�5'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀67Y�)>+�4(�/*(01+&�,(*�4%&�:&0̀Y�@(::&@41(>Y�)>+�&>,(*@&=&>4�(,�4%&�)22(@1)4&+�2/&@1):�)22&22=&>42̂�$%&�/.B:1@�%&)*1>;�12�B&1>;�@(>+.@4&+�/.*2.)>4�4(�c%)/4&*2�d_e�)>+�df_Y�g:(*1+)�-4)4.4&2Y�)>+�c%)/4&*�heeijiklY�m)A2�(,�g:(*1+)Y�)2�)=&>+&+̂��$%&�24*&&42�)>+�)*&)2�4(�B&�1=/*(0&+�A14%1>�*&012&+�\>14�](̂�_�)*&�;*)/%1@)::̀�+&/1@4&+�B&:(Â�a�+&2@*1/41(>�(,�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀�4(�B&�)22&22&+�)>+�4%&�)=(.>4�4(�B&�)22&22&+�4(�&)@%�/1&@&�(*�/)*@&:�(,�/*(/&*4̀�=)̀�B&�)2@&*4)1>&+�B̀�@(>4)@41>;�4%&�?124*1@4�n)>);&*Y�-/&@1):�?124*1@4�-&*01@&2Y�<>@̂Y�)4�hkedja�'.*>2�o()+Y�b):=�'&)@%�p)*+&>2Y�g:(*1+)�qqideY�3kld7�lqejifhĥ$%&�?124*1@4�12�)�.>14�(,�2/&@1):j/.*/(2&�:(@):�;(0&*>=&>4�*&2/(>21B:&�,(*�/*(01+1>;�1>,*)24*.@4.*&�1=/*(0&=&>42�,(*�:)>+2�A14%1>�4%&�?124*1@4̂��$%&�1>,*)24*.@4.*&�1=/*(0&=&>42�35<=/*(0&=&>4267�,(*�\>14�](̂�_�1>@:.+&Y�B.4�)*&�>(4�:1=14&+�4(Y�*()+A)̀2�)>+�24*&&4:1;%41>;�1=/*(0&=&>42Y�24(*=A)4&*�=)>);&=&>4�1=/*(0&=&>42Y�A)4&*�+124*1B.41(>�1=/*(0&=&>42Y�2&A&*�1=/*(0&=&>42Y�1**1;)41(>�,)@1:141&2Y�:)>+2@)/1>;Y�)>+�(4%&*�1=/*(0&=&>42Y�)::�)2�=(*&�2/&@1[@)::̀�+&2@*1B&+�1>�4%&�?124*1@4r2�\>14�(,�?&0&:(/=&>4�](̂�_�n)24&*�b:)>�(,�<=/*(0&=&>42Y�+)4&+�?&@&=B&*�dqY�hedsY�)2�)=&>+&+�B̀�4%)4�@&*4)1>�\>14�(,�?&0&:(/=&>4�](̂�_�a=&>+=&>4�4(�n)24&*�b:)>�(,�<=/*(0&=&>42Y�+)4&+Y�t.:̀�diY�hehhY�)2�2.//:&=&>4&+�B̀�4%&�b:)>�(,�<=/*(0&=&>42�,(*�'(>+�<22.&�](̂�dY�+)4&+�t)>.)*̀�hfY�hedfY�)2�)=&>+&+�B̀�4%)4�@&*4)1>�a=&>+=&>4�4(�b:)>�(,�<=/*(0&=&>42�,(*�'(>+�<22.&�](̂�dY�+)4&+�t.:̀�diY�hehhY�3@(::&@410&:̀Y�4%&�5b:)>�(,�<=/*(0&=&>4267Y�(>�[:&�)>+�)0)1:)B:&�+.*1>;�>(*=):�B.21>&22�%(.*2�)4�4%&�)++*&22�/*(01+&+�)B(0&̂�<>�,.*4%&*)>@&�4%&*&(,Y�4%&�?124*1@4�%)2�/*&01(.2:̀�122.&+�142�8&24�91::);&2�<=/*(0&=&>4�?124*1@4�-/&@1):�a22&22=&>4�o&0&>.&�'(>+2�3\>14�(,�?&0&:(/=&>4�](̂�_7Y�-&*1&2�hedf�3n)24&*�<>,*)24*.@4.*&7�1>�4%&�);;*&;)4&�/*1>@1/):�)=(.>4�(,�uqdYeieYeee�34%&�5-&*1&2�hedf�'(>+267̂$%&�?124*1@4�1>4&>+2�4(�1=/(2&�)22&22=&>42�(>�)::�)22&22)B:&Y�B&>&[4&+�:)>+2�A14%1>�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀�1>�4%&�=)>>&*�2&4�,(*4%�1>�4%&�?124*1@4r2�a=&>+&+�)>+�o&24)4&+�\>14�(,�?&0&:(/=&>4�](̂�_�n)24&*�-/&@1):�a22&22=&>4�n&4%(+(:(;̀�o&/(*4Y�+)4&+�t.:̀�diY�hehhY�)2�2.//:&=&>4&+�B̀�4%)4�@&*4)1>�a=&>+&+�)>+�o&24)4&+�g1>):�g1*24�-.//:&=&>4):�-/&@1):�a22&22=&>4�n&4%(+(:(;̀�o&/(*4�,(*�\>14�](̂�_Y�+)4&+�t.:̀�diY�hehhY�A%1@%�12�(>�[:&�)>+�)0)1:)B:&�+.*1>;�>(*=):�B.21>&22�%(.*2�)4�4%&�)++*&22�/*(01+&+�)B(0&̂��$%&�)>>.):�/*1>@1/):�)22&22=&>4�:&01&+�);)1>24�&)@%�/)*@&:�1>�\>14�](̂�_Y�1>@:.+1>;�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀Y�A1::�B&�B)2&+�(>�*&/)̀=&>4�(0&*�)�=)Z1=.=�(,�4%1*4̀�3qe7�̀&)*2�,(*�4%&�4(4):�+&B4�)::(@)4&+�4(�&)@%�/)*@&:̂��$%&�?124*1@4�&Z/&@42�4(�@(::&@4�2.,[@1&>4�*&0&>.&2�4(�*&41*&�>(�=(*&�4%)>�ud_iYeeeYeee�1>�+&B4�4(�B&�)22&22&+�B̀�4%&�?124*1@4�*&:)410&�4(�\>14�](̂�_Y�&Z@:.210&�(,�)>41@1/)4&+�,&&2�)>+�@(242�(,�@(::&@41(>�)>+�&>,(*@&=&>4Y�+12@(.>42�,(*�&)*:̀�/)̀=&>4Y�)>+�4%&�)>>.):�1>4&*&24�@(242�(,�4%&�+&B4�122.&+�4(�[>)>@&�4%&�<=/*(0&=&>42̂��$%&�/*(/(2&+�2@%&+.:&�(,�=)Z1=.=�+&B4�2&*01@&�)22&22=&>42�4%)4�@)>�B&�1=/(2&+�(>�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀�*&:)410&�4(�4%&�[>)>@1>;�(,�4%&�@(>24*.@41(>�)>+v(*�)@w.12141(>�(,�4%&�<=/*(0&=&>42�12�)2�,(::(A2x
$%&�/*(/(2&+�2@%&+.:&�(,�4%&�+&B4�2&*01@&�)22&22=&>42�2&@.*1>;�4%&�-&*1&2�hedf�'(>+2�4(�B&�1=/(2&+�(>�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀�12�)2�,(::(A2x

$%&�)22&22=&>42�=)̀�B&�/*&/)1+�1>�A%(:&�)4�)>̀�41=&Y�(*�1>�2(=&�1>24)>@&2�1>�/)*4Y�(*�=)̀�B&�/)1+�1>�>(4�=(*&�4%)>�4%1*4̀�3qe7�)>>.):�1>24)::=&>42�4(�[>)>@&�4%&�<=/*(0&=&>42̂��$%&2&�)>>.):�)22&22=&>42�A1::�B&�@(::&@4&+�(>�4%&�-)*)2(4)�c(.>4̀�4)Z�*(::�B̀�4%&�$)Z�c(::&@4(*̂��a:4&*>)410&:̀Y�4%&�?124*1@4�=)̀�@%((2&�4(�+1*&@4:̀�@(::&@4�)>+�&>,(*@&�4%&2&�)22&22=&>42̂��a::�),,&@4&+�/*(/&*4̀�(A>&*2�(,�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀�%)0&�4%&�*1;%4�4(�)//&)*�)4�4%&�/.B:1@�%&)*1>;�)>+�4%&�*1;%4�4(�[:&�A*144&>�(By&@41(>2�A14%�4%&�?124*1@4�A14%1>�4A&>4̀�3he7�+)̀2�(,�4%&�/.B:1@)41(>�(,�4%12�>(41@&̂a:2(�(>��CDCEF��G��������HF���I���������JK�LMNEOK�HF�FPM�	C#QJR��HSMFT��CJQUJKD��NHJKJKD��OOV�QORHFMU�HF����WW�	NMFO��QXU����MKJRM���QONJUH��!�����4%&�'()*+�A1::�%(:+�)�/.B:1@�=&&41>;�4(�@(>21+&*�B.21>&22�4%)4�=)̀�:)A,.::̀�B&�@(>21+&*&+�B̀�4%&�?124*1@4̂��a�@(/̀�(,�4%&�);&>+)�=)̀�B&�(B4)1>&+�B̀�@(>4)@41>;�4%&�(,[@&�(,�4%&�?124*1@4�n)>);&*Y�-/&@1):�?124*1@4�-&*01@&2Y�<>@̂Y�:(@)4&+�)4�hkedja�'.*>2�o()+Y�b):=�'&)@%�p)*+&>2Y�g:(*1+)�qqideY�3kld7�lqejifhhY�+.*1>;�>(*=):�B.21>&22�%(.*2̂��$%&�=&&41>;�)>+�/.B:1@�%&)*1>;�12�(/&>�4(�4%&�/.B:1@�)>+�A1::�B&�@(>+.@4&+�1>�)@@(*+)>@&�A14%�4%&�/*(0121(>2�(,�g:(*1+)�:)Â$%&*&�=)̀�B&�(@@)21(>2�A%&>�(>&�(*�=(*&�-./&*012(*2�A1::�/)*41@1/)4&�B̀�4&:&/%(>&̂�a4�4%&�)B(0&�:(@)41(>�A1::�B&�/*&2&>4�)�2/&)z&*�4&:&/%(>&�2(�4%)4�)>̀�1>4&*&24&+�/&*2(>�@)>�)44&>+�4%&�=&&41>;�)>+�B&�,.::̀�1>,(*=&+�(,�4%&�+12@.221(>2�4)z1>;�/:)@&�&14%&*�1>�/&*2(>�(*�B̀�4&:&/%(>&�@(==.>1@)41(>̂�$%&�=&&41>;�=)̀�B&�@(>41>.&+�1>�/*(;*&22�A14%(.4�)++141(>):�>(41@&�4(�)�41=&Y�+)4&Y�)>+�:(@)41(>�24)4&+�(>�4%&�*&@(*+̂b.*2.)>4�4(�/*(0121(>2�(,�4%&�a=&*1@)>2�A14%�?12)B1:141&2�a@4Y�)>̀�/&*2(>�*&w.1*1>;�2/&@1):�)@@(==(+)41(>2�)4�4%&�=&&41>;�(*�%&)*1>;�B&@).2&�(,�)�+12)B1:14̀�(*�/%̀21@):�1=/)1*=&>4�2%(.:+�@(>4)@4�4%&�?124*1@4�{,[@&�)4�3kld7�lqejifhh�)4�:&)24�,(*4̀j&1;%4�3is7�%(.*2�/*1(*�4(�4%&�=&&41>;̂��<,�̀(.�)*&�%&)*1>;�(*�2/&&@%�1=/)1*&+Y�/:&)2&�@(>4)@4�4%&�g:(*1+)�o&:)̀�-&*01@&�)4�djseejfkkjs__e�,(*�)1+�1>�@(>4)@41>;�4%&�?124*1@4�(,[@&̂<,�)>̀(>&�@%((2&2�4(�)//&):�)>̀�+&@121(>�(,�4%&�'()*+�A14%�*&2/&@4�4(�)>̀�=)44&*�@(>21+&*&+�)4�4%&�=&&41>;�(*�%&)*1>;Y�2.@%�/&*2(>�A1::�>&&+�)�*&@(*+�(,�4%&�/*(@&&+1>;2�)>+�2%(.:+�)@@(*+1>;:̀�&>2.*&�4%)4�)�0&*B)41=�*&@(*+�(,�4%&�/*(@&&+1>;2�12�=)+&Y�A%1@%�1>@:.+&2�4%&�4&241=(>̀�)>+�&01+&>@&�./(>�A%1@%�2.@%�)//&):�12�4(�B&�B)2&+̂

�����
���������|�W}
�����������������
���������������~�������
���������������������������	�����������������������������	��������������������������������������	��	����������������
�������������	���������������������������������������������������������
��������������������������������������
��
�����	���������������������������������������������	�������������������	������������	������������������������������������	��������������������������������	�������������������	���������������������������
���	��������������������������������	��������������
���	��������������������������	�����������������������
	�����������	����������������������������������	���������������������������	��������	�������	����������������������������	�������������	
����������������������
�������������4%&�?124*1@4�12�)�:(@):�.>14�(,�2/&@1):j/.*/(2&�;(0&*>=&>4�@*&)4&+�)>+�&Z1241>;�/.*2.)>4�4(�c%)/4&*�heeijiklY�m)A2�(,�g:(*1+)Y�)2�)=&>+&+�34%&�5-/&@1):�a@467�,(*�4%&�/.*/(2&�(,�@(>24*.@41>;Y�)@w.1*1>;Y�)>+�=)1>4)1>1>;�1>,*)24*.@4.*&�1=/*(0&=&>42�)>+�2&*01@&2��)>+��������1>�)@@(*+)>@&�A14%�-&@41(>�dd�(,�4%&�-/&@1):�a@4Y�4%&�?124*1@4�/*&01(.2:̀�&24)B:12%&+�\>14�(,�?&0&:(/=&>4�](̂�_�35\>14�](̂�_67��)>+��������4%&�?124*1@4�/*&01(.2:̀�:&01&+�+&B4�2&*01@&�2/&@1):�)22&22=&>42�(>�)::�+&0&:(/)B:&�:)>+�A14%1>�\>14�](̂�_�1>�(*+&*�4(�2&@.*&�/*(/(2&+�B(>+2�4(�B&�122.&+�4(�[>)>@&�4%&�@(>24*.@41(>�)>+�)@w.12141(>�(,�/.B:1@�1>,*)24*.@4.*&�1=/*(0&=&>42�34%&�5<=/*(0&=&>4267�A14%1>�\>14�](̂�_�3%&*&1>),4&*Y�4%&�5?&B4�a22&22=&>4267��)>+��������4%&�?&B4�a22&22=&>42�A&*&�:&01&+�)>+�1=/(2&+�1>�)@@(*+)>@&�A14%�4%)4�@&*4)1>�\>14�(,�?&0&:(/=&>4�](̂�_�n)24&*�-/&@1):�a22&22=&>4�n&4%(+(:(;̀�o&/(*4Y�+)4&+�?&@&=B&*�dqY�heds�)2�2.//:&=&>4&+�B̀�4%)4�@&*4)1>�g1>):�g1*24�-.//:&=&>4):�-/&@1):�a22&22=&>4�n&4%(+(:(;̀�o&/(*4�,(*�\>14�](̂�_Y�+)4&+�n)*@%�hsY�hedf��)>+��������@(>@.**&>4�A14%�4%&�)+(/41(>�(,�4%12�o&2(:.41(>Y�4%&�?124*1@4�%)2�&>4&*&+�1>4(�4%)4�@&*4)1>�a;*&&=&>4�o&;)*+1>;�4%&�<>@:.21(>�(,�c&*4)1>�o&):�b*(/&*4̀�1>�\>14�(,�?&0&:(/=&>4�](̂�_Y�+)4&+�t.:̀�diY�hehh�B̀�)>+�B&4A&&>�4%&�?124*1@4�)>+�n)>)2(4)�'&)@%�o)>@%:)>+2Y�mmmb�)//*(01>;�4%&�1>@:.21(>�(,�)//*(Z1=)4&:̀�id�)@*&2�4(�4%&�B(.>+)*̀�(,�\>14�](̂�_�3%&*&1>),4&*Y�4%&�5'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀67��)>+���������4%&�?124*1@4�>(A�%)2�)�>&&+�4(�:&0̀�)>+�1=/(2&�4%&�?&B4�

a22&22=&>42�(>�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀�1>�/*(/(*41(>�4(�4%&�/*(/&*4̀r2�B&>&[4�,*(=�2.@%�1=/*(0&=&>42��)>+��������4%&�'()*+�(,�-./&*012(*2�34%&�5'()*+67�(,�4%&�?124*1@4�)@@(*+1>;:̀�%&*&B̀�+&4&*=1>&2�4(�.>+&*4)z&Y�1>24)::Y�/:)>Y�&24)B:12%Y�@(>24*.@4�(*�*&@(>24*.@4Y�&>:)*;&�(*�&Z4&>+Y�&w.1/Y�)@w.1*&Y�(/&*)4&Y�)>+v(*�=)1>4)1>�4%&�<=/*(0&=&>42�A14%1>�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀�)2�+&2@*1B&+�1>�4%)4�@&*4)1>�\>14�(,�?&0&:(/=&>4�](̂�_�n)24&*�b:)>�(,�<=/*(0&=&>42Y�+)4&+�?&@&=B&*�dqY�hedsY�)2�)=&>+&+�B̀�4%)4�@&*4)1>�\>14�(,�?&0&:(/=&>4�](̂�_�a=&>+=&>4�4(�n)24&*�b:)>�(,�<=/*(0&=&>42�+)4&+Y�t.:̀�diY�hehhY�)2�2.//:&=&>4&+�B̀�4%&�b:)>�(,�<=/*(0&=&>42�,(*�'(>+�<22.&�](̂�dY�+)4&+�t)>.)*̀�hfY�hedfY�)2�)=&>+&+�B̀�4%)4�@&*4)1>�a=&>+=&>4�4(�b:)>�(,�<=/*(0&=&>42�,(*�'(>+�<22.&�](̂�dY�+)4&+�t.:̀�diY�hehhY�3@(::&@410&:̀Y�4%&�5b:)>�(,�<=/*(0&=&>4267Y�)::�(,�A%1@%�)*&�)44)@%&+�%&*&4(�)2��OVLOEJFM���PJ#JF���)>+�1>@(*/(*)4&+�%&*&1>�B̀�*&,&*&>@&��)>+��������14�12�1>�4%&�B&24�1>4&*&24�(,�4%&�?124*1@4�4(�/)̀�4%&�@(24�(,�4%&�<=/*(0&=&>42�B̀�1=/(21>;Y�:&0̀1>;Y�)>+�@(::&@41>;�4%&�>(>j)+�0):(*&=�?&B4�a22&22=&>42�)=(>;�4%&�B&>&[44&+�/*(/&*41&2�A14%�\>14�](̂�_Y�1>@:.+1>;�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀Y�/.*2.)>4�4(�c%)/4&*2�d_e�)>+�df_Y�g:(*1+)�-4)4.4&2Y�)>+�c%)/4&*�heeijiklY�m)A2�(,�g:(*1+)Y�)2�)=&>+&+��)>+��������4%&�?124*1@4�12�&=/(A&*&+�B̀�c%)/4&*2�d_e�)>+�df_Y�g:(*1+)�-4)4.4&2Y�)>+�c%)/4&*�heeijiklY�m)A2�(,�g:(*1+)Y�)2�)=&>+&+Y�4(�[>)>@&Y�,.>+Y�/:)>Y�&24)B:12%Y�)@w.1*&Y�@(>24*.@4�(*�*&@(>24*.@4Y�&>:)*;&�(*�&Z4&>+Y�&w.1/Y�(/&*)4&Y�)>+�=)1>4)1>�4%&�<=/*(0&=&>42�)>+�4(�1=/(2&Y�:&0̀�)>+�@(::&@4�4%&�?&B4�a22&22=&>42��)>+��������4%&�?124*1@4�%&*&B̀�+&4&*=1>&2�4%)4�B&>&[42�A1::�)@@*.&�4(�4%&�)22&22)B:&�*&):�/*(/&*4̀�:(@)4&+�A14%1>�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀Y�4%&�)=(.>4�(,�4%(2&�B&>&[42Y�)>+�4%)4�4%&�?&B4�a22&22=&>42�A1::�B&�=)+&�1>�/*(/(*41(>�4(�4%&�B&>&[42�*&@&10&+�)2�2&4�,(*4%�1>�4%&�?124*1@4r2�a=&>+&+�)>+�o&24)4&+�\>14�(,�?&0&:(/=&>4�](̂�_�n)24&*�-/&@1):�a22&22=&>4�n&4%(+(:(;̀�o&/(*4Y�+)4&+�t.:̀�diY�hehh�)2�2.//:&=&>4&+�B̀�4%)4�@&*4)1>�a=&>+&+�)>+�o&24)4&+�g1>):�g1*24�-.//:&=&>4):�-/&@1):�a22&22=&>4�n&4%(+(:(;̀�o&/(*4�,(*�\>14�](̂�_Y�+)4&+�t.:̀�diY�hehhY�)44)@%&+�%&*&4(�)2��OVLOEJFM���PJ#JF���)>+�1>@(*/(*)4&+�%&*&1>�B̀�*&,&*&>@&�)>+�(>�[:&�)4�hkedja�'.*>2�o()+Y�b):=�'&)@%�p)*+&>2Y�g:(*1+)�qqide�)>+�dfkeq�-̂�8&24�91::);&2�b)*zA)̀��aqY�9&>1@&Y�g:(*1+)�qihfq�3@(::&@410&:̀Y�4%&�5?124*1@4�o&@(*+2�{,[@&67��)>+��������4%&�?124*1@4�%&*&B̀�+&4&*=1>&2�4%)4�4%&�?&B4�a22&22=&>42�4(�B&�:&01&+�A1::�>(4�&Z@&&+�4%&�B&>&[4�4(�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀̂����������������������������������������������
	�������������������������������	�����������������I����?&B4�a22&22=&>42�2%)::�B&�:&01&+�4(�+&,*)̀�4%&�@(24�(,�4%&�<=/*(0&=&>42̂����$%&�>)4.*&�)>+�;&>&*):�:(@)41(>�(,Y�)>+�/:)>2�)>+�2/&@1[@)41(>2�,(*Y�4%&�<=/*(0&=&>42�/:)>>&+�,(*�\>14�](̂�_Y�1>@:.+1>;�,(*�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀Y�)*&�+&2@*1B&+�1>�c(=/(214&��Z%1B14�aY�A%1@%�12�(>�[:&�)4�4%&�?124*1@4�o&@(*+2�{,[@&̂��c(=/(214&��Z%1B14�'�12�):2(�(>�[:&�)>+�)0)1:)B:&�,(*�/.B:1@�1>2/&@41(>�)4�4%&�2)=&�:(@)41(>̂����$%&�4(4):�&241=)4&+�@(24�(,�4%&�<=/*(0&=&>42�12�udisYeeeYeee�34%&�5�241=)4&+�c(2467̂!���$%&�?&B4�a22&22=&>42�A1::�+&,*)̀�ud_iYeeeYeeeY�A%1@%�1>@:.+&2�4%&��241=)4&+�c(24Y�/:.2�[>)>@1>;j*&:)4&+�@(242Y�@)/14):1�&+�1>4&*&24Y�+&B4�2&*01@&�*&2&*0&�)>+�@(>41>;&>@̀ �̂W���$%&�=)>>&*�1>�A%1@%�4%&�?&B4�a22&22=&>42�2%)::�B&�)//(*41(>&+�)>+�/)1+�12�2&4�,(*4%�1>�c(=/(214&��Z%1B14�'Y�1>@:.+1>;�/*(0121(>2�,(*�2.//:&=&>4):�)22&22=&>4�*&2(:.41(>2̂����$%&�?&B4�a22&22=&>42�2%)::�B&�:&01&+�(>�)::�:(42�)>+�:)>+2�A14%1>�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀�)+y(1>1>;�)>+�@(>41;.(.2�(*�B(.>+1>;�)>+�)B.441>;�./(>�2.@%�1=/*(0&=&>42�(*�2/&@1)::̀�B&>&[44&+�4%&*&B̀�)>+�,.*4%&*�+&21;>)4&+�B̀�4%&�)22&22=&>4�/:)4�%&*&1>),4&*�/*(01+&+�,(*̂����$%&*&�12�(>�[:&Y�)4�4%&�?124*1@4�o&@(*+2�{,[@&Y�)>�)22&22=&>4�/:)4�2%(A1>;�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀�A%1@%�12�4(�B&�)22&22&+Y�A14%�@&*4)1>�/:)>2�)>+�2/&@1[@)41(>2�+&2@*1B1>;�4%&�<=/*(0&=&>42�)>+�4%&��241=)4&+�c(24�(,�4%&�<=/*(0&=&>42Y�)::�(,�A%1@%�2%)::�B&�(/&>�4(�1>2/&@41(>�B̀�4%&�/.B:1@̂G���c(==&>@1>;�A14%�4%&�̀&)*�1>�A%1@%�4%&�?&B4�a22&22=&>42�)*&�@&*41[&+�,(*�@(::&@41(>Y�4%&�?&B4�a22&22=&>42�2%)::�B&�/)1+�1>�>(4�=(*&�4%)>�4%1*4̀�3qe7�)>>.):�1>24)::=&>42̂��$%&�?&B4�a22&22=&>42�=)̀�B&�/)̀)B:&�)4�4%&�2)=&�41=&�)>+�1>�4%&�2)=&�=)>>&*�)2�)*&�)+j0):(*&=�4)Z&2�)>+�@(::&@4&+�/.*2.)>4�4(�c%)/4&*�df_Y�g:(*1+)�-4)4.4&2��/*(01+&+Y�%(A&0&*Y�4%)4�1>�4%&�&0&>4�4%&�.>1,(*=�>(>�)+j0):(*&=�)22&22=&>4�=&4%(+�(,�@(::&@41>;�4%&�?&B4�a22&22=&>42�12�>(4�)0)1:)B:&�4(�4%&�?124*1@4�1>�)>̀�̀&)*Y�(*�1,�+&4&*=1>&+�B̀�4%&�?124*1@4�4(�B&�1>�142�B&24�1>4&*&24Y�4%&�?&B4�a22&22=&>42�=)̀�B&�@(::&@4&+�)2�12�(4%&*A12&�/&*=144&+�B̀�:)Â����$%&�?124*1@4�n)>);&*�%)2�@).2&+�4(�B&�=)+&�)�/*&:1=1>)*̀�)22&22=&>4�*(::Y�1>�)@@(*+)>@&�A14%�4%&�=&4%(+�(,�)22&22=&>4�+&2@*1B&+�1>��OVLOEJFM���PJ#JF���%&*&4(Y�A%1@%�2%(A2�4%&�:(42�)>+�:)>+2�A14%1>�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀�4(�B&�)22&22&+Y�4%&�)=(.>4�(,�B&>&[4�4(�)>+�4%&�?&B4�a22&22=&>42�);)1>24�&)@%�:(4�(*�/)*@&:�(,�:)>+�)>+�4%&�>.=B&*�(,�)>>.):�1>24)::=&>42�1>4(�A%1@%�4%&�)22&22=&>4�=)̀�B&�+101+&+Y�A%1@%�)22&22=&>4�*(::�12�%&*&B̀�)+(/4&+�)>+�)//*(0&+�)2�4%&�?124*1@4r2�/*&:1=1>)*̀�)22&22=&>4�*(::̂�����$%&�'()*+�2%)::�)+(/4�)�2.B2&w.&>4�*&2(:.41(>�4(�[Z�)�41=&�)>+�/:)@&�)4�A%1@%�4%&�(A>&*2�(,�/*(/&*4̀�4(�B&�)22&22&+�(*�)>̀�(4%&*�/&*2(>2�1>4&*&24&+�4%&*&1>�=)̀�)//&)*�B&,(*&�4%&�'()*+�)>+�B&�%&)*+�)2�4(�4%&�/*(/*1&4̀�)>+�)+012)B1:14̀�(,�4%&�?&B4�a22&22=&>42�*&:)410&�4(�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀�(*�4%&�=)z1>;�(,�4%&�<=/*(0&=&>42Y�4%&�@(24�4%&*&(,Y�4%&�=)>>&*�(,�/)̀=&>4�4%&*&,(*&Y�(*�4%&�)=(.>4�4%&*&(,�4(�B&�)22&22&+�);)1>24�4%&�'(.>+)*̀�a=&>+=&>4�b*(/&*4̀�)2�1=/*(0&+̂�����$%&�?124*1@4�n)>);&*�12�%&*&B̀�+1*&@4&+�4(�@).2&�4%12�o&2(:.41(>�4(�B&�/.B:12%&+�4A1@&�3(>@&�)�A&&z�,(*�4A(�3h7�A&&z27�1>�)�>&A2/)/&*�(,�;&>&*):�@1*@.:)41(>�A14%1>�4%&�c14̀�(,�](*4%�b(*4�)>+�4(�/*(01+&�2.@%�(4%&*�>(41@&�)2�=)̀�B&�*&w.1*&+�B̀�:)A�(*�+&21*&+�1>�4%&�B&24�1>4&*&242�(,�4%&�?124*1@4̂�����](4%1>;�%&*&1>�2%)::�),,&@4�4%&�?&B4�a22&22=&>42�/*&01(.2:̀�:&01&+�)>+�1=/(2&+�B̀�4%&�?124*1@4̂�����$%12�o&2(:.41(>�2%)::�B&@(=&�&,,&@410&�./(>�142�/)22);&̂	�������������	����4%12�di4%�+)̀�(,�t.:̀Y�hehĥ������I� � ��������������� � � ��	�����������������v�v� � �������������� v�v� � �������������-&@*&4)*̀va22124)>4�-&@*&4)*̀� c%)1*=)>Y�'()*+�(,�-./&*012(*2����������������	�����������������AAÂA&2401::);&21+̂(*;	
����I���������������������
������������������G��W���
Page 342



 

1 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2022-25 

 
[UNIT NO. 7 2022 BOUNDARY AMENDMENT] 

 
A RESOLUTION CONFIRMING THE DISTRICT’S UNIT NO. 
7 PROJECT FOR CONSTRUCTION AND/OR ACQUISITION 
OF INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS; EQUALIZING, 
APPROVING, CONFIRMING, AND LEVYING SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS ON CERTAIN PROPERTIES ADDED TO 
UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7 OF THE DISTRICT 
SPECIALLY BENEFITED BY SUCH UNIT NO. 7 PROJECT 
TO PAY THE COST THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE 
PAYMENT AND THE COLLECTION OF SUCH SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENTS BY THE METHODS PROVIDED FOR BY 
CHAPTERS 170 AND 197, FLORIDA STATUTES, AND 
CHAPTER 2004-456, LAWS OF FLORIDA, AS AMENDED; 
CONFIRMING THE DISTRICT'S ISSUANCE OF SPECIAL 
ASSESSMENT REVENUE BONDS FOR SUCH PURPOSES; 
PROVIDING FOR THE APPLICATION OF TRUE-UP 
PAYMENTS; MAKING PROVISIONS FOR TRANSFERS OF 
REAL PROPERTY TO GOVERNMENTAL BODIES AND 
OTHER EXEMPT ENTITIES; PROVIDING FOR THE 
RECORDING OF AN ASSESSMENT NOTICE; PROVIDING 
FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN EFFECTIVE 
DATE. 

 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the District is a local unit of special-purpose government created and existing 
pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as amended (the “Special Act”) for the purpose of 
constructing, acquiring, and maintaining infrastructure improvements and services; and 
 
 WHEREAS, in accordance with Section 11 of the Special Act, the District previously 
established Unit of Development No. 7 (“Unit No. 7”); and 
 

WHEREAS, the District previously levied debt service special assessments on all 
developable land within Unit No. 7 in order to secure proposed bonds to be issued to finance the 
construction and acquisition of public infrastructure improvements (the “Improvements”) within 
Unit No. 7 (hereinafter, the “Debt Assessments”); and 
  

WHEREAS, the Debt Assessments were levied and imposed in accordance with that certain 

Page 343



 

2 
 

Unit of Development No. 7 Master Special Assessment Methodology Report, dated December 13, 
2018 relative to the “Master Unit No. 7 Project,” as supplemented by that certain Final First 
Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for Unit No. 7, dated March 28, 2019 relative 
to the “Series 2019 Project;” and 

 
WHEREAS, the Master Unit No. 7 Project and the Series 2019 Project are collectively 

referred to herein as the “Unit No. 7 Project;” and 
 
WHEREAS, the District previously issued its $31,040,000 West Villages Improvement 

District Special Assessment Revenue Bonds (Unit of Development No. 7), Series 2019 (Master 
Infrastructure) relative to certain lands within Unit No. 7 to fund a portion of the infrastructure 
improvements comprising the Series 2019 Project; and 

 
 WHEREAS, the District has previously entered into that certain Agreement Regarding the 
Inclusion of Certain Real Property in Unit of Development No. 7, dated July 14, 2022 by and 
between the District and Manasota Beach Ranchlands, LLLP approving the inclusion of 
approximately 41 acres to the boundary of Unit No. 7 (hereinafter, the “Boundary Amendment 
Property”); and 
 

WHEREAS, by the adoption of Resolution 2022-15, the District previously indicated its 
intention to construct certain types of infrastructure improvements within Unit No. 7, and to finance 
such infrastructure improvements by the issuance of the special assessment bonds would be repaid 
by the imposition of special assessments on benefited property within the District, including but not 
limited to the Boundary Amendment Property; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Supervisors (“Board”) noticed and conducted a public 
hearing pursuant to Chapters 170 and 197, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, 
as amended, relating to the imposition, levy, collection and enforcement of such assessments. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  AUTHORITY FOR THIS RESOLUTION.  This Resolution is adopted 

pursuant to Chapters 170 and 197, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as 
amended, including without limitation, Section 170.08, Florida Statutes. 
 

SECTION 2.  FINDINGS.  The Board hereby finds and determines as follows: 
 

(a)  The District is a local unit of special-purpose government organized and existing under 
and pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as amended. 

 
(b)  The District is authorized by Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as amended, to finance, 

Page 344



 

3 
 

fund, plan, establish, acquire, install, equip, operate, extend, construct, or reconstruct roadways, 
water and sewer systems, stormwater management systems, landscape and hardscape, and other 
infrastructure projects and services necessitated by the development of, and serving lands within, 
Unit No. 7 within the District. 
 

(c)  The District is authorized by Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as amended, to levy 
and impose special assessments to pay all, or any part of, the cost of such infrastructure projects and 
services and to issue special assessment revenue bonds payable from such special assessments as 
provided in Chapters 170 and 197, Florida Statutes and Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as 
amended. 
 

(d)  It is necessary to the public health, safety and welfare and in the best interests of the 
District that (i) the District provide the “Unit No. 7 Project,” the nature and location of which was 
initially described in Resolution 2022-15 and is shown in the District’s Unit of Development No. 7 
Master Plan of Improvements, dated December 13, 2018, as amended by that certain Unit of 
Development No. 7 Amendment to Master Plan of Improvements dated, July 14, 2022, as 
supplemented by the Plan of Improvements for Bond Issue No. 1, dated January 29, 2019, as 
amended by that certain Amendment to Plan of Improvements for Bond Issue No. 1, dated July 14, 
2022, the plans and specifications for which are on file in the offices of the District Manager located 
at 2501-A Burns Road, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 and at the District’s local records office 
located at 19503 S. West Villages Parkway #A3, Venice, Florida 34293; (ii) the cost of such Unit 
No. 7 Project be assessed against the Boundary Amendment Property specially benefited by such 
Unit No. 7 Project; and (iii) the District utilize the Series 2019 Bonds and/or the proceeds of a future 
issuance of special assessment bonds (collectively, the “Unit No. 7 Bonds”) to provide funds for 
such purposes pending the receipt of such special assessments. 
 

(e)  The provision of said Unit No. 7 Project, the levying of such Special Assessments (as 
herein defined) and the sale and issuance of the Unit No. 7 Bonds serves a proper, essential, and 
valid public purpose and is in the best interests of the District, its landowners and residents. 
 

(f)  In order to provide funds with which to pay a portion of the costs of the Unit No. 7 
Project which are to be assessed against the Boundary Amendment Property, pending the collection 
of such Special Assessments, the District previously issued its Series 2019 Bonds, and may issue 
additional series of special assessment bonds in the future to pay for additional portions of the Unit 
No. 7 Project. 
 

(g)  By Resolution 2022-15, the Board determined to provide the Unit No. 7 Project and to 
defray the costs thereof by making special assessments on the Boundary Amendment Property, and 
expressed an intention to utilize the Unit No. 7 Bonds to provide a portion of the funds needed for 
the Unit No. 7 Project prior to the collection of such Special Assessments.  Resolution 2022-15 was 
adopted in compliance with the requirements of Section 170.03, Florida Statutes, and prior to the 
time it was adopted, the requirements of Section 170.04, Florida Statutes, had been met. 
 

Page 345



 

4 
 

(h)  As directed by Resolution 2022-15, said Resolution 2022-15 was published as required 
by Section 170.05, Florida Statutes, and a copy of the publisher’s affidavit of publication is on file 
with the Secretary of the Board. 
 

(i)  As directed by Resolution 2022-15, a preliminary assessment roll was adopted and filed 
with the Board as required by Section 170.06, Florida Statutes. 
 

(j)  As required by Section 170.07, Florida Statutes, upon completion of the preliminary 
assessment roll, the Board adopted Resolution 2022-16 fixing the time and place of a public hearing 
at which owners of the properties that are to be assessed and other persons interested therein may 
appear before the Board and be heard as to (i) the propriety and advisability of making the 
infrastructure improvements, (ii) the cost thereof, (iii) the manner of payment therefore, and (iv) the 
amount thereof to be assessed against each specially benefited property or parcel, and provided for 
publication of notice of such public hearing and individual mailed notice in accordance with 
Chapters 170 and 197, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as amended. 
 

(k)  Notice of such public hearing was given by publication and also by mail as required by 
Section 170.07, Florida Statutes.  Affidavits as to such publications and mailings are on file in the 
office of the Secretary of the Board. 
 

(l)  On August 18, 2022, the public hearing, at the time and place specified in the resolution 
and notice referred to in paragraph (k) above, the Board met as an Equalization Board and heard and 
considered all complaints and testimony as to the matters described in paragraph (j) above.  The 
Board has made such modifications in the preliminary assessment roll as it deems necessary, just and 
right in the making of the final assessment roll. 
 

(m)  Having considered the estimated costs of the Unit No. 7 Project, the Unit No. 7 Bonds, 
and all complaints and evidence presented at such public hearing, the Board of Supervisors of the 
District further finds and determines: 
 

(i)  that the estimated costs of the Unit No. 7 Project are as specified in that certain 
Unit of Development No. 7 Master Plan of Improvements, dated December 13, 2018, 
as amended by that certain Unit of Development No. 7 Amendment to Master Plan of 
Improvements dated, July 14, 2022, as supplemented by the Plan of Improvements 
for Bond Issue No. 1, dated January 29, 2019, as amended by that certain Amendment 
to Plan of Improvements for Bond Issue No. 1, dated July 14, 2022, (collectively, the 
“Plan of Improvements”), all of which are attached hereto as Composite Exhibit A 
and incorporated herein by reference, which Plan of Improvements is hereby adopted 
and approved, and that the amount of such costs is reasonable and proper; and 
 
(ii) it is reasonable, proper, just and right to assess the cost of such Unit No. 7 Project 
against the Boundary Amendment Property using the method determined by the 
Board set forth in that certain Amended and Restated Unit of Development No. 7 

Page 346



 

5 
 

Master Special Assessment Methodology Report, dated July 14, 2022 as 
supplemented by that certain Amended and Restated Final First Supplemental 
Special Assessment Methodology Report for Unit No. 7, dated July 14, 2022, attached 
hereto as Composite Exhibit B and incorporated herein by reference (collectively 
the “Assessment Methodology Report”), which results in the Special Assessments set 
forth on the final assessment roll; and 

 
(iii)  it is hereby declared that the Unit No. 7 Project will constitute a special benefit 
to all parcels of real property listed on said final assessment roll, including the 
Boundary Amendment Property, and that the benefit, in the case of each such parcel, 
will be equal to or in excess of the Special Assessments thereon when allocated as set 
forth in Exhibit B; and 

 
(iv)  it is in the best interests of the District that the Special Assessments be paid and 
collected as herein provided. 

 
SECTION 3.  CONFIRMATION OF DISTRICT UNIT NO. 7 PROJECT.  That certain 

Unit No. 7 Project for construction of infrastructure improvements initially described in Resolution 
No. 2022-15, and more specifically identified and described in Exhibit A attached hereto, is hereby 
confirmed and the proper officers, employees and/or agents of the District are hereby authorized and 
directed to take such further action as may be necessary or desirable to cause the same to be made. 
 

SECTION 4.  ESTIMATED COST OF IMPROVEMENTS.  The total estimated costs of 
the Unit No. 7 Project and the costs to be paid by Special Assessments on all specially benefited 
property within Unit No. 7, including the Boundary Amendment Property, are set forth in the master 
reports attached hereto as Exhibits A and B, respectively, hereto. 
 

SECTION 5.  EQUALIZATION, APPROVAL, CONFIRMATION AND LEVY OF 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS.  The Special Assessments on the Boundary Amendment Property 
specially benefited by the Unit No. 7 Project, all as specified in the final assessment roll set forth in 
Exhibit B, are hereby equalized, approved, confirmed and levied.  Immediately following the 
adoption of this Resolution these Special Assessments, as reflected in Exhibit B, shall be recorded 
by the Secretary of the Board of the District in a special book, to be known as the “Improvement 
Lien Book.” The Special Assessment or assessments against each respective parcel shown on such 
final assessment roll and interest, costs and penalties thereon, as hereafter provided, shall be and 
shall remain a legal, valid and binding first lien on such parcel until paid and such lien shall be 
coequal with the lien of all state, county, district, municipal or other governmental taxes and superior 
in dignity to all other liens, titles, and claims.  Prior to the issuance of any future bonds, including 
refunding bonds, the District may, by subsequent resolution, adjust the acreage assigned to particular 
parcel identification numbers listed on the final assessment roll to reflect accurate apportionment of 
acreage within the District amongst individual parcel identification numbers. The District may make 
any other such acreage and boundary adjustments to parcels listed on the final assessment roll as 
may be necessary in the best interests of the District as determined by the Board by subsequent 

Page 347



 

6 
 

resolution. Any such adjustment in the assessment roll shall be consistent with the requirements of 
law.  In the event the issuance of bonds, including refunding bonds, by the District would result in a 
decrease of the Special Assessments, then the District shall by subsequent resolution, adopted within 
sixty (60) days of the sale of such bonds at a publicly noticed meeting and without the need for 
further public hearing, evidence such a decrease and amend the final assessment roll as shown in the 
Improvement Lien Book to reflect such a decrease. 
 

SECTION 6.  FINALIZATION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS.  When the entire Series 
2019 Project or portion of the Unit No. 7 Project funded with the proceeds of a future issuance of 
special assessment bonds have been constructed or otherwise provided to the satisfaction of the 
Board, the Board shall adopt a resolution accepting the same and determining the actual costs 
(including financing costs) thereof, as required by Sections 170.08 and 170.09, Florida Statutes, for 
such respective project(s).  Pursuant to the provisions of Section 170.08, Florida Statutes, regarding 
completion of a Unit No. 7 Project funded by a particular series of bonds, the District shall credit to 
each Special Assessment the difference, if any, between the Special Assessment as hereby made, 
approved and confirmed and the actual costs incurred in completing the project.  In making such 
credits, no credit shall be given for bond financing costs, capitalized interest, funded reserves or 
bond discounts.  Such credits, if any, shall be entered in the Improvement Lien Book.  Once the final 
amount of Special Assessments for the entire project has been determined, the term “Special 
Assessment” shall, with respect to each parcel, mean the sum of the costs of such respective project.  
 

SECTION 7.  PAYMENT OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND METHOD OF 
COLLECTION. 
 
 (a)  The Special Assessments may be paid in not more than thirty (30) substantially equal 
consecutive annual installments of principal and interest.  The Special Assessments may be paid in 
full without interest at any time within thirty (30) days after the completion of the respective portion 
of the Unit No. 7 Project and the adoption by the Board of a resolution accepting the respective 
portion of the Unit No. 7 Project; provided, however, that the Board shall at any time make such 
adjustments by resolution, at a noticed meeting of the Board, to that payment schedule as may be 
necessary and in the best interests of the District to account for changes in long and short term debt 
as actually issued by the District. At any time subsequent to thirty (30) days after the respective 
portion of the Unit No. 7 Project has been completed and a resolution accepting the respective 
portion of the Unit No. 7 Project has been adopted by the Board, the Special Assessments may be 
prepaid in full including interest amounts to the next succeeding interest payment date or to the 
second succeeding interest payment date if such a prepayment is made within forty-five (45) 
calendar days before an interest payment date. The owner of property subject to Special Assessments 
may prepay the entire remaining balance of the Special  Assessments at any time, or a portion of the 
remaining balance of the Special Assessment one time if there is also paid, in addition to the prepaid 
principal balance of the Special Assessment, an amount equal to the interest that would otherwise be 
due on such prepaid amount on the next succeeding interest payment date, or, if prepaid during the 
forty-five (45) day period preceding such interest payment date, to the interest payment date 
following such next succeeding interest payment date.  Prepayment of Special Assessments does not 

Page 348



 

7 
 

entitle the property owner to any discounts for early payment.  
 

 (b)  The District may elect to use the method of collecting Special Assessments authorized by 
Sections 197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida Statutes (the “Uniform Method”). The District has 
heretofore taken or will use its best efforts to take as timely required, any necessary actions to 
comply with the provisions of said Sections 197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida Statutes.  Such Special 
Assessments may be subject to all of the collection provisions of Chapter 197, Florida Statutes.  
Notwithstanding the above, in the event the Uniform Method of collecting its special or non-ad 
valorem assessments is not available to the District in any year, or if determined by the District to be 
in its best interest, the Special Assessments may be collected as is otherwise permitted by law.  The 
District may, in its sole discretion, collect Special Assessments by directly assessing landowner(s) 
and enforcing said collection in any manner authorized by law. 
 

(c)  For each year the District uses the Uniform Method, the District shall enter into an 
agreement with the Tax Collector of Sarasota County who may notify each owner of a lot or parcel 
within Unit No. 7 of the amount of the special assessment, including interest thereon, in the manner 
provided in Section 197.3635, Florida Statutes. 

 
SECTION 8.  APPLICATION OF TRUE-UP PAYMENTS.   
 

 (a)  Pursuant to true-up agreements that have or may be entered into by and between the 
District and i) Manasota Beach Ranchlands, LLLP and Thomas Ranch Land Partners Village 1, 
LLLP in conjunction with the issuance of the Series 2019 Bonds; and ii) landowners within Unit No. 
7 relative to the issuance of future series of special assessment bonds (collectively, the “True-Up 
Agreement”), there may be required from time to time certain true-up payments.  As parcels of land 
or lots are platted within Unit No. 7, the Special Assessments securing the Unit No. 7 Bonds shall be 
allocated as set forth in the Assessment Methodology Report for each respective project.  In 
furtherance thereof, at such time as parcels or land or lots are platted within Unit No. 7, it shall be an 
express condition of the lien established by this Resolution that any and all initial plats of any 
portion of the lands within Unit No. 7 of the District, as the boundaries of such unit may be amended 
from time to time, shall be presented to the District Manager for review, approval and calculation of 
the percentage of acres and numbers of units which will be, after the plat, considered to be 
developed.  No further action by the Board of Supervisors shall be required. The District’s review 
shall be limited solely to this function and the enforcement of the lien established by this Resolution. 
 The District Manager shall cause the Special Assessments to be reallocated to the units within Unit 
No. 7 being platted and the remaining property in accordance with Exhibit B, cause such 
reallocation to be recorded in the District’s Improvement Lien Book, and shall perform the true-up 
calculations described in the True-Up Agreement, which process is incorporated herein as if fully set 
forth.  Any resulting true-up payment shall become due and payable that tax year by the 
landowner(s) of record of the remaining property, in addition to the regular assessment installment 
payable with respect to the remaining developable acres within Unit No. 7.   
 
 (b)  The District will take all necessary steps to ensure that true-up payments are made in a 

Page 349



 

8 
 

timely fashion to ensure its debt service obligations are met.  The District shall record all true-up 
payments in its Improvement Lien Book. 
 
 (c)  The foregoing is based on the District’s understanding with the landowner(s) executing 
the True-Up Agreements at the time of issuance of the Unit No. 7 Bonds, that it intends to develop 
the unit types and amounts within Unit No. 7 shown in Exhibit B, on the net developable acres that 
it owns within such unit, and is intended to provide a formula to ensure that the appropriate ratio of 
the Special Assessments to developable acres is maintained if fewer unit type amounts are developed 
within Unit No. 7.  However, no action by the District prohibits more than the maximum unit type 
amounts shown in Exhibit B from being developed within Unit No. 7.  In no event shall the District 
collect Special Assessments pursuant to this Resolution in excess of the total debt service related to 
the Unit No. 7 Project, including all costs of financing and interest.  The District recognizes that such 
events as regulatory requirements and market conditions may affect the timing and scope of the 
development in Unit No. 7 of the District.  If the strict application of the true-up methodology to any 
assessment reallocation pursuant to this paragraph would result in Special Assessments collected in 
excess of the District’s total debt service obligation for the Unit No. 7 Project, the Board shall by 
resolution take appropriate action to equitably reallocate the Special Assessments.  Further, upon the 
District’s review of the final plat for the developable acres within Unit No. 7, any unallocated 
Special Assessments shall become due and payable and must be paid prior to the District’s approval 
of that plat.  
 
 (d)  The application of the monies received from true-up payments or assessments to the 
actual debt service obligations of the District, whether long term or short term, shall be set forth in 
the supplemental assessment resolution adopted for each series of Bonds actually issued.  Such 
subsequent resolution shall be adopted at a noticed meeting of the District, and shall set forth the 
actual amounts financed, costs of issuance, expected costs of collection, and the total amount of the 
assessments pledged to that issue, which amount shall be consistent with the lien imposed by this 
Resolution. 
 

SECTION 9. GOVERNMENT PROPERTY; TRANSFERS OF PROPERTY TO 
UNITS OF LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENT; PROPERTY EXCLUDED 
BY LAW.   Real property owned by units of local, state, and federal government shall not be subject 
to the Special Assessments without specific consent thereto.  In addition, property owned by a 
property owners association or a home owners association that is exempt from special assessments 
under Florida law shall not be subject to the Special Assessments.  If at any time, any real property 
on which Special Assessments are imposed by this Resolution is sold or otherwise transferred to a 
unit of local, state, or federal government (without consent of such governmental unit to the 
imposition of Special Assessments thereon), all future unpaid Special Assessments for such tax 
parcel shall become due and payable immediately prior to such transfer without any further action of 
the District. 
 

SECTION 10.  ASSESSMENT NOTICE. The District’s Secretary is hereby directed to 
record a general revised Notice of Assessments relative to Unit No. 7, including the Boundary 

Page 350



 

9 
 

Amendment Property, in the Official Records of Sarasota County, Florida.   
 

SECTION 11.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section or part of a section of this Resolution be 
declared invalid or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part of a 
section of this Resolution shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears that such 
other section or part of a section of this Resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent upon the 
section or part of a section so held to be invalid or unconstitutional. 
 

SECTION 12.  CONFLICTS.  All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to 
the extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed. Notwithstanding the foregoing, nothing herein 
shall affect the Debt Assessments previously levied and imposed by the District. 
 

SECTION 13.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its 
adoption. 

 
 
 
 
 
 

[Continued on Next Page]

Page 351



 

 
 

 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of August, 2022. 
 
 
ATTEST:    WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT  
     DISTRICT 

 
 

_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 

 
Composite    
Exhibit A:    Unit of Development No. 7 Master Plan of Improvements, dated December 13, 2018 
  Unit of Development No. 7 Amendment to Master Plan of Improvements, dated, July 

14, 2022 
  Plan of Improvements for Bond Issue No. 1, dated January 29, 2019 
  Amendment to Plan of Improvements for Bond Issue No. 1, dated July 14, 2022 
 
Composite Amended and Restated Unit of Development No. 7 Master Special Assessment  
Exhibit B: Methodology Report, dated June 14, 2022  
  Amended and Restated Final First Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology 

Report for Unit No. 7, dated June 14, 2022 
 
 

Page 352



 

 
 

Composite Exhibit A 
 

Unit of Development No. 7 Master Plan of Improvements, dated December 13, 2018 
Unit of Development No. 7 Amendment to Master Plan of Improvements, dated, July 14, 2022 

Plan of Improvements for Bond Issue No. 1, dated January 29, 2019 
Amendment to Plan of Improvements for Bond Issue No. 1, dated July 14, 2022

Page 353



 

 
 

Composite Exhibit B 
 

Amended and Restated Unit of Development No. 7 Master Special Assessment Methodology 
Report, dated July 14, 2022 

 
Amended and Restated Final First Supplemental Special Assessment Methodology Report for 

Unit No. 7, dated July 14, 2022 
 

Page 354



WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT UNIT OF 
DEVELOPMENT No. 7 

 

Master Plan of 
Improvements 

 

 

Prepared for: 
West Villages Improvement District 
c/o Special District Services, Inc. 
2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

 

Prepared by: 
Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
6900 Professional Parkway East 
Sarasota, FL 34240 

 
 

 

December 13, 2018 

Page 355



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_mstr-pln-imprvmnts_mak_v-4_20181213.docx

Table of Contents

SECTION A. INTRODUCTIONS .................................................................................................... 1
1. General..................................................................................................................................................1
2. Purpose and Scope ............................................................................................................................1
3. Lands in Unit of Development No. 7 ................................................................................................1

SECTION B. EXISTING CONDITIONS...................................................................................... 2
1. Topography ..........................................................................................................................................2
2. Soils and Vegetation...........................................................................................................................2
3. Land Use and Zoning ..........................................................................................................................2

SECTION C. INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS.................................................................................... 3
1. Public Infrastructure Improvements .................................................................................................3
2. Permitting ..............................................................................................................................................3
3. Estimated Cost of Improvements .....................................................................................................4

SECTION D. MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES ..................................................................... 5

SECTION E. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION………………………………………………………6

EXHIBIT A AERIAL LOCATION MAP .................................................................................... 7

EXHIBIT B UNIT 7 SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION......................................................... 9

Page 356



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

December 13, 2018

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_mstr-pln-imprvmnts_mak_v-4_20181213.docx 1

SECTION A. INTRODUCTIONS

1. General

The West Villages Improvement District (“WVID”) was created by and operates 
under Chapter 2004-458, Laws of Florida as amended (the “Act”) and operates 
pursuant to the Act and applicable provisions of Chapter 298, Florida Statutes. WVID 
was created to construct and maintain public works and utilities including water, 
sewer, drainage, irrigation, water management, parks, recreational facilities, 
roadway or related activities, as more particularly described in Chapter 2004-456, 
Laws of Florida.

2. Purpose and Scope

The purpose of this Bond Validation Report is to present the nature and extent of the 
improvements which may be implemented by WVID for and on behalf of the Unit 
of Development No. 7 (“Unit No. 7”), which improvements will thereafter be owned, 
operated and/or maintained by either WVID or another legally empowered 
governmental entity.

The text of this report generally describes the existing land within Unit No. 7 and the 
proposed improvements and recommendations. The report is not intended to be 
used for exact representation or for construction purposes since detailed 
construction documents for all of the proposed improvements have not yet been 
finalized.

3. Lands in Unit of Development No. 7

An Aerial Location Map showing the location of Unit No. 7 is included as Exhibit A. 
The Legal Description(s) and Sketch(s) are included as Exhibit B and reflect the lands 
to be included in Unit No. 7. These lands total approximately 1,476 acres.

Page 357



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

December 13, 2018

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_mstr-pln-imprvmnts_mak_v-4_20181213.docx 2

SECTION B. EXISTING CONDITIONS

1. Topography

The area within Unit No. 7 is relatively flat with site elevations ranging from 
approximately 9 feet to 12 feet. The land within the unit is primarily undeveloped 
pasture and rangelands, upland pine flatwood, and wetlands.

2. Soil and Vegetation

Based on the 1991 Soil Survey of Sarasota County, Florida, prepared by the United 
States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Soil Conservation Service (SCS), the 
predominant surficial soil types within the Unit No. 7 are identified as SCS Soil No. 10, 
EauGallie and Myakka Fine Sands and SCS Soils No. 31, Pineda Fine Sand. SCS Soil 
No. 10 is a nearly level, poorly drained soil that can be made up entirely of EauGallie 
and similar soils, entirely Myakka and similar soils, or a combination of EauGallie, 
Myakka and other soils. Typically, the EauGallie soil has a surface layer of black fine 
sand with a subsurface layer of gray fine sand to a depth of about 22 inches. The 
surface layer of the Myakka soil is typically dark grayish brown fine sand about 6 
inches thick while the subsurface layer is light gray fine sand about 18 inches thick. 
Pineda Fine Sand is a nearly level, poorly drained soil. Typically, the surface and 
subsurface layers are grey fine sands totaling approximately 22 inches thick. The 
subsoil consists of an upper layer of 14 inches of brown fine sand and a lower layer 
of 12 inches of mottled, light brownish gray fine sandy loam.

The property within Unit No. 7 currently consists of various vegetative communities 
comprised of both upland and wetland habitats. Several of the vegetation 
communities have been modified as a result of onsite agricultural activities including 
ditching and fire suppression. Areas that were historically extensive open forests or 
wiregrass prairies have since become heavily forested or have been cleared for 
cattle grazing and commercial nursery. Extensive ditching has also altered the 
hydrology of several of the wetland systems onsite, particularly where the ditches 
bisect wetlands or are adjacent to wetlands. 

3. Land Use and Zoning

Unit No. 7 is located within the City of North Port, Florida (“City”). Parcels within the 
boundary of Unit No. 7 are currently in various stages of development review and 
approval with the City, however, it is expected that the parcels will receive 
approvals from the City that are compatible with the comprehensive land use plan 
adopted by the City.

Page 358



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

December 13, 2018

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_mstr-pln-imprvmnts_mak_v-4_20181213.docx 3

SECTION C. INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS

1. Public Infrastructure Improvements

Unit No. 7 is intended to be formed in order to finance infrastructure design and 
construction required to provide public infrastructure for the Unit (the “Project”) and 
its ultimate property owners.

The improvements for the unit will be consistent with the City of North Port 
Comprehensive Plan and Implementing Ordinances, studies, plans, and may
include:

Public roadways, including thoroughfares, arterial, collector, or local streets

Stormwater Improvements

Water and sewer facilities

Irrigation facilities

Public roadway landscape, lighting, signage, and furnishings

Entry features

Engineering and contingencies 

Access to the project will be provided via River Road, US-41, West Villages Parkway, 
Preto Boulevard, Manasota Beach Road, and Playmore Drive. Potable water and 
sanitary sewer services will be provided by the City of North Port.

2. Permitting

Required permits already received or ones that will be applied for are summarized 
in Table 1.  It is our opinion that there are no technical reasons existing at this time 
which would prohibit the permitting and construction of the planned infrastructure, 
subject to continued compliance with agency criteria and conditions of the already 
approved plans and permits. 

Permits necessary to complete the Project have either been obtained as described 
above, or, in our opinion, are obtainable from the permitting agencies, subject to 
reasonable, normal and customary permit conditions.

Page 359



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

December 13, 2018

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_mstr-pln-imprvmnts_mak_v-4_20181213.docx 4

Table 1
Permitting Status

Permit Permit Number Date Approved

Village B Rezone Approval Ordinance 2015-19 6/8/15

VDPP Village E VDPP 17-159 Pending

VDPP Village F VDPP 17-160 Pending

VDPP Village G VDPP 17-161 Pending

West Villages Pkwy – Playmore Dr to Atlanta Braves
Spring Training Complex

MAS 17-075 10/12/18

West Villages Pkwy – Atlanta Braves Spring Training 
Complex to Manasota Beach Rd

PRE 18-260 Pending

Playmore Dr Realignment INF 17-129 9/21/17

Preto Blvd – US-41 to Playmore Dr including US-41 
Improvements

INF 17-128
FDOT 2018-A-194-001

2/19/18

Preto Blvd – Playmore Dr to Manasota Beach Rd PRE 18-261 TBD

Manasota Beach Rd – West Villages Pkwy to River Rd TBD TBD

Wastewater Treatment Plant FDEP FLA 984841-001-
DWIP

MAS 17-168

9/20/17

1/16/18

Water Treatment Plant TBD TBD

Parks (Dog Park on River Road) INF-15-153/ 
SCP-15-122

10/4/16

Various Water Management Improvements TBD TBD

Monuments TBD TBD

Landscaping on US-41 TBD TBD

Various Subdivision Improvements TBD TBD

Various Other Arterial and Collector Roads TBD TBD

3. Estimated Costs of Improvements 

Table 2 lists the components of the planned improvements for the Unit No. 7, 
together with their estimated costs of design and construction. The Table also 
includes an estimate of administrative, engineering and other fees, and 
contingencies associated with the improvements. 

Page 360



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

December 13, 2018

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_mstr-pln-imprvmnts_mak_v-4_20181213.docx 5

Table 2
Estimated Costs of Improvements (2018 $)

Item Description Estimated Construction
Costs (Note 2)

1 Collector and Arterial Roads (see Note No. 1) $  22,000,000

2 Wastewater Treatment Plant (Pro Rata Share-see Note 3) $  13,000,000

3 Water Treatment Plant (Pro Rata Share-see Note 3) $     4,000,000

4 Water Management $     6,000,000

5 Parks $     1,000,000

6 Hardscape and Landscape $     2,000,000

7 Various Subdivision Improvements (based on 2500 Lots at 
$30,000/ Lot)

$  75,000,000

Subtotal $ 123,000,000

8 Consultants and Contingencies (20%) $   25,000,000

Total $ 148,000,000

Note No. 1: Roadway costs include roads, water, sewer, irrigation, drainage, landscaping, 
and street lights.

Note No. 2: Cost rounded to nearest $1 million.

Note No. 3: Costs of wastewater and water plants represent Unit 7’s estimated 
proportionate share of plant(s) usage.

SECTION D. MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES

Maintenance and operational responsibilities of the Project will include the following:

1. Maintenance and operation of the Entry features and Landscaping and Irrigation 
associated with the roadway system are expected to be the responsibility of WVID.

2. Maintenance and operation of the potable water and sanitary sewer systems will 
be the responsibility of the City.

Page 361



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

December 13, 2018

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_mstr-pln-imprvmnts_mak_v-4_20181213.docx 6

3. Maintenance and operation of the stormwater management system will be the 
responsibility of the WVID.

4. Maintenance and operation of the off-site roadway improvements will be the 
responsibility of WVID, City or FDOT depending on the ownership of the road.

SECTION E. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

The Improvements as outlined are necessary for the functional development of the 
Project. The Project is being designed in accordance with current governmental 
regulatory requirements. The Project will serve its intended function so long as the 
construction is in substantial compliance with the design. Items of construction for the 
Project are based upon current development plans.

It is our professional opinion that the infrastructure costs provided herein for the District 
improvements for the Project are reasonable to complete the construction of the 
infrastructure described herein and that these infrastructure improvements will benefit 
and add value to the District. These estimated costs are based upon prices currently 
being experienced for similar items of work in Southwest Florida and expected inflation in 
the future. Actual costs may vary based on final engineering, planning and approvals 
from regulatory agencies.

Page 362



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

December 13, 2018

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_mstr-pln-imprvmnts_mak_v-4_20181213.docx 7

EXHIBIT A - AERIAL LOCATION MAP

Page 363



Page 364



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS

December 13, 2018

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_mstr-pln-imprvmnts_mak_v-4_20181213.docx 9

EXHIBIT B – UNIT 7 SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Page 365



Page 366



Page 367



Page 368



Page 369



Page 370



Page 371



Page 372



Page 373



Page 374



Page 375



Page 376



 

  

 

 

WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  
Unit of Development No. 7 
Amendment to Master Plan of Improvements 
JULY 14, 2022 

 

 

 

 
  

 

 

SUBMITTED BY 

Dewberry Engineers Inc. 
2201 Cantu Court 
Suite 107 
Sarasota, Florida 
Phone: 941.702.9672 
Contact: Richard Ellis 

SUBMITTED TO 

West Villages Improvement District 
19503 S. West Villages Parkway Suite #A3 
Venice, Florida 34293 
Phone: 941.244.2703   

Page 377



West Villages Improvement District Unit of Development No. 7 
Master Plan of Improvements 
July 14, 2022 
  

   1 
 

 

1. Purpose and Scope 

The purpose of this amendment is to revise and update the area and boundary in the Master Plan of 
Improvements prepared by Stantec Consulting Services Inc. on December 13, 2018. The new area will 
be 1524.70 acres. An updated sketch and legal description for the revised boundary is included in the 
attached Exhibit 1. There are no additional changes to the original Master Plan of Improvements.   
 

Page 378



Page 379



Page 380



Page 381



Page 382



WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT 

DISTRICT UNIT OF 
DEVELOPMENT No. 7 

 

Plan of Improvements for  
Bond Issue No. 1 

 

 

Prepared for: 
West Villages Improvement District 
c/o Special District Services, Inc. 
2501A Burns Road 
Palm Beach Gardens, FL 33410 

 

Prepared by: 
Stantec Consulting Services Inc. 
6900 Professional Parkway East 
Sarasota, FL 34240 

 
 

 

January 29, 2019 

Page 383



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR BOND ISSUE NO. 1

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_pln-imprvmnts_bond-issue-1_mak_20190129.docx

Table of Contents

SECTION A. INTRODUCTIONS .................................................................................................... 1
1. General..................................................................................................................................................1
2. Purpose and Scope ............................................................................................................................1
3. Lands in Unit of Development No. 7 ................................................................................................1

SECTION B. EXISTING CONDITIONS...................................................................................... 2
1. Topography ..........................................................................................................................................2
2. Soils and Vegetation...........................................................................................................................2
3. Land Use and Zoning ..........................................................................................................................2

SECTION C. INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS.................................................................................... 3
1. Public Infrastructure Improvements .................................................................................................3
2. Permitting ..............................................................................................................................................3
3. Estimated Cost of Improvements .....................................................................................................4

SECTION D. MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES ..................................................................... 5

SECTION E. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION………………………………………………………6

EXHIBIT A AERIAL LOCATION MAP .................................................................................... 7

EXHIBIT B UNIT 7 SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION......................................................... 9

Page 384



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR BOND ISSUE NO. 1

January 29, 2019

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_pln-imprvmnts_bond-issue-1_mak_20190129.docx 1

SECTION A. INTRODUCTIONS

1. General

The West Villages Improvement District (“WVID”) was created by and operates 
under Chapter 2004-458, Laws of Florida as amended (the “Act”) and operates 
pursuant to the Act and applicable provisions of Chapter 298, Florida Statutes. WVID 
was created to construct and maintain public works and utilities including water, 
sewer, drainage, irrigation, water management, parks, recreational facilities, 
roadway or related activities, as more particularly described in Chapter 2004-456, 
Laws of Florida.

2. Purpose and Scope

The purpose of this Bond Issue No. 1 Report is to present the nature and extent of the 
improvements which may be implemented by WVID for and on behalf of the Unit 
of Development No. 7 (“Unit No. 7”), which improvements will thereafter be owned, 
operated and/or maintained by either WVID or another legally empowered 
governmental entity.

The text of this report generally describes the existing land within Unit No. 7 and the 
proposed improvements and recommendations. The report is not intended to be 
used for exact representation or for construction purposes since detailed 
construction documents for all of the proposed improvements have not yet been 
finalized.

3. Lands in Unit of Development No. 7

An Aerial Location Map showing the location of Unit No. 7 is included as Exhibit A. 
The Legal Description(s) and Sketch(s) are included as Exhibit B and reflect the lands 
included in Unit No. 7. These lands total approximately 1,476 acres.

Page 385



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR BOND ISSUE NO. 1

January 29, 2019

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_pln-imprvmnts_bond-issue-1_mak_20190129.docx 2

SECTION B. EXISTING CONDITIONS

1. Topography

The area within Unit No. 7 is relatively flat with site elevations ranging from 
approximately 9 feet to 12 feet. The land within the unit is primarily undeveloped 
pasture and rangelands, upland pine flatwood, and wetlands.

2. Soil and Vegetation

Based on the 1991 Soil Survey of Sarasota County, Florida, prepared by the United 
States Department of Agriculture (USDA) Soil Conservation Service (SCS), the 
predominant surficial soil types within the Unit No. 7 are identified as SCS Soil No. 10, 
EauGallie and Myakka Fine Sands and SCS Soils No. 31, Pineda Fine Sand. SCS Soil 
No. 10 is a nearly level, poorly drained soil that can be made up entirely of EauGallie 
and similar soils, entirely Myakka and similar soils, or a combination of EauGallie, 
Myakka and other soils. Typically, the EauGallie soil has a surface layer of black fine 
sand with a subsurface layer of gray fine sand to a depth of about 22 inches. The 
surface layer of the Myakka soil is typically dark grayish brown fine sand about 6 
inches thick while the subsurface layer is light gray fine sand about 18 inches thick. 
Pineda Fine Sand is a nearly level, poorly drained soil. Typically, the surface and 
subsurface layers are grey fine sands totaling approximately 22 inches thick. The 
subsoil consists of an upper layer of 14 inches of brown fine sand and a lower layer 
of 12 inches of mottled, light brownish gray fine sandy loam.

The property within Unit No. 7 currently consists of various vegetative communities 
comprised of both upland and wetland habitats. Several of the vegetation 
communities have been modified as a result of onsite agricultural activities including 
ditching and fire suppression. Areas that were historically extensive open forests or 
wiregrass prairies have since become heavily forested or have been cleared for 
cattle grazing and commercial nursery. Extensive ditching has also altered the 
hydrology of several of the wetland systems onsite, particularly where the ditches 
bisect wetlands or are adjacent to wetlands. 

3. Land Use and Zoning

Unit No. 7 is located within the City of North Port, Florida (“City”). Parcels within the 
boundary of Unit No. 7 are currently in various stages of development review and 
approval with the City, however, it is expected that the parcels will receive 
approvals from the City that are compatible with the comprehensive land use plan 
adopted by the City.

Page 386



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR BOND ISSUE NO. 1

January 29, 2019

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_pln-imprvmnts_bond-issue-1_mak_20190129.docx 3

SECTION C. INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS

1. Public Infrastructure Improvements

WVID has formed Unit No. 7 in order to finance infrastructure design and 
construction required to provide public infrastructure for the Unit (the “Project”) and 
its ultimate property owners.

The improvements for the unit will be consistent with the City of North Port 
Comprehensive Plan and Implementing Ordinances, studies, plans, and may
include:

Public roadways, including thoroughfares, arterial, collector, or local streets

Stormwater Improvements

Water and sewer facilities

Irrigation facilities

Public roadway landscape, lighting, signage, and furnishings

Entry features

Engineering and contingencies 

Access to the project will be provided via River Road, US-41, West Villages Parkway, 
Preto Boulevard, Manasota Beach Road, and Playmore Drive. Potable water and 
sanitary sewer services will be provided by the City of North Port.

2. Permitting

Required permits already received or ones that will be applied for are summarized 
in Table 1. It is our opinion that there are no technical reasons existing at this time 
which would prohibit the permitting and construction of the planned infrastructure, 
subject to continued compliance with agency criteria and conditions of the already 
approved plans and permits. 

Permits necessary to complete the Project have either been obtained as described 
below, or, in our opinion, are obtainable from the permitting agencies, subject to 
reasonable, normal and customary permit conditions.

Page 387



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR BOND ISSUE NO. 1

January 29, 2019

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_pln-imprvmnts_bond-issue-1_mak_20190129.docx 4

Table 1
Permitting Status

Permit Permit Number Date Approved

Village B Rezone Approval Ordinance 2015-19 6/8/15

VDPP Village E VDPP 17-159 Pending

VDPP Village F VDPP 17-160 Pending

VDPP Village G VDPP 17-161 Pending

West Villages Pkwy – Playmore Dr to Atlanta Braves
Spring Training Complex

MAS 17-075 10/12/18

West Villages Pkwy – Atlanta Braves Spring Training 
Complex to Manasota Beach Rd

PRE 18-260 Pending

Playmore Dr Realignment INF 17-129 9/21/17

Preto Blvd – US-41 to Playmore Dr including US-41 
Improvements

INF 17-128
FDOT 2018-A-194-001

2/19/18

US-41/ West Villages Pkwy Intersection Improvements FDOT 2018-A-194-012 10/4/18

Preto Blvd – Playmore Dr to Manasota Beach Rd PRE 18-261 Pending

Manasota Beach Rd – West Villages Pkwy to River Rd TBD TBD

Wastewater Treatment Plant FDEP FLA 984841-001-
DWIP

MAS 17-168

9/20/17

1/16/18

Water Treatment Plant TBD TBD

Parks (Dog Park on River Road) INF-15-153/ 
SCP-15-122

10/4/16

Various Water Management Improvements TBD TBD

Monuments TBD TBD

Landscaping on US-41 TBD TBD

Village B Subdivision Improvements TBD TBD

3. Estimated Costs of Improvements 

Table 2 lists the components of the planned improvements for the Unit No. 7, 
together with their estimated costs of design and construction. The Table also 
includes an estimate of administrative, engineering and other fees, and 
contingencies associated with the improvements. 

Page 388



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR BOND ISSUE NO. 1

January 29, 2019

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_pln-imprvmnts_bond-issue-1_mak_20190129.docx 5

Table 2
Estimated Costs of Improvements (2019 $)

Item Description Estimated Construction
Costs (Note 2)

1 Collector and Arterial Roads (see Note No. 1) $ 22,000,000

2 Wastewater Treatment Plant (Pro Rata Share-see Note 3) $ 13,000,000

3 Water Treatment Plant (Pro Rata Share-see Note 3) $   4,000,000

4 Water Management $   6,000,000

5 Parks $   1,000,000

6 Hardscape and Landscape $   2,000,000

7 Consultants and Contingencies (20%) $   9,600,000

Subtotal $ 57,600,000

8 Village B Subdivision Improvements based on 111 Lots at 
$25,000/ Lot (see Note No. 1)

$   2,775,000

9 Consultants and Contingencies (20%) $      555,000

Subtotal $   3,330,000

Total $ 60,930,000

Note No. 1: Costs include roads, water, sewer, irrigation, drainage, landscaping, and street 
lights.

Note No. 2: Cost rounded to nearest $1 million with the exception of Village B Subdivision 
Improvements.

Note No. 3: Costs of wastewater and water plants represent Unit 7’s estimated 
proportionate share of plant(s) usage.

SECTION D. MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES

Maintenance and operational responsibilities of the Project will include the following:

1. Maintenance and operation of the Entry features and Landscaping and Irrigation 
associated with the roadway system are expected to be the responsibility of WVID.

Page 389



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR BOND ISSUE NO. 1

January 29, 2019

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_pln-imprvmnts_bond-issue-1_mak_20190129.docx 6

2. Maintenance and operation of the potable water and sanitary sewer systems will 
be the responsibility of the City.

3. Maintenance and operation of the stormwater management system will be the 
responsibility of the WVID.

4. Maintenance and operation of the off-site roadway improvements will be the 
responsibility of WVID, City or FDOT depending on the ownership of the road.

SECTION E. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION

The Improvements as outlined are necessary for the functional development of the 
Project. The Project is being designed in accordance with current governmental 
regulatory requirements. The Project will serve its intended function so long as the 
construction is in substantial compliance with the design. Items of construction for the 
Project are based upon current development plans.

It is our professional opinion that the infrastructure costs provided herein for the District 
improvements for the Project are reasonable to complete the construction of the 
infrastructure described herein and that these infrastructure improvements will benefit 
and add value to the District. These estimated costs are based upon prices currently 
being experienced for similar items of work in Southwest Florida and expected inflation in 
the future. Actual costs may vary based on final engineering, planning and approvals 
from regulatory agencies.

Page 390



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR BOND ISSUE NO. 1

January 29, 2019

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_pln-imprvmnts_bond-issue-1_mak_20190129.docx 7

EXHIBIT A - AERIAL LOCATION MAP

Page 391



Page 392



WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 7

MASTER PLAN OF IMPROVEMENTS FOR BOND ISSUE NO. 1

January 29, 2019

vj v:\2156\active\215614848\civil\report\final_document_report\rpt_wvid_unit-dev-7_bond-vldtn_pln-imprvmnts_bond-issue-1_mak_20190129.docx 9

EXHIBIT B – UNIT 7 SKETCH AND LEGAL DESCRIPTION

Page 393



Page 394



Page 395



Page 396



Page 397



Page 398



Page 399



Page 400



Page 401



Page 402



Page 403



Page 404



 

  

 

 

WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT  
Unit of Development No. 7 
Plan of Improvements for Bond Issue No. 1 
JULY 14, 2022 

 

 

 

 
  

 

 

SUBMITTED BY 

Dewberry Engineers Inc. 
2201 Cantu Court 
Suite 107 
Sarasota, Florida 
Phone: 941.702.9672 
Contact: Richard Ellis 

SUBMITTED TO 

West Villages Improvement District 
19503 S. West Villages Parkway Suite #A3 
Venice, Florida 34293 
Phone: 941.244.2703   

Page 405



West Villages Improvement District Unit of Development No. 7 
Plan of Improvements for Bond Issue No. 1 
July 14, 2022 
  

   1 
 

 

1. Purpose and Scope 

The purpose of this amendment is to revise and update the area and boundary in the Plan of 
Improvements prepared by Stantec Consulting Services Inc. on January 29, 2019. The new area will be 
1,524.70 acres. An updated sketch and legal description for the revised boundary is included in the 
attached Exhibit 1. There are no additional changes to the original Plan of Improvements for Bond Issue 
No. 1.   
 

Page 406



Page 407



Page 408



Page 409



Page 410



Page 411



Page 412



(1)
(2)

(3) (4)

Page 413



ERU

ERU

ERU ERU

ERU

Florida Statutes F.S.

F.S.

Page 414



ERUs

ERUs

ERUs

ERUs
ERUs

ERU
ERUs

Page 415



Page 416



Page 417



Page 418



Page 419



Page 420



Page 421



Page 422



Page 423



Page 424



Page 425



Page 426



Page 427



Page 428



Page 429



Page 430



Page 431



Page 432



Page 433



Page 434



Page 435



Page 436



Page 437



Page 438



(1)
(2)

(3)
(4)

Page 439



equivalent residential unit

Page 440



equivalent
residential unit

Page 441



F.S.

F.S.

Page 442



has not 

for the 2019 Master Project

for the 2019 Village B Project

Page 443



Page 444



Page 445



Page 446



Page 447



Page 448



Page 449



Page 450



Page 451



Exhbit "A"

Page 452



Exhbit "A"

Page 453



Exhbit "A"

Page 454



Exhbit "A"

Page 455



Exhbit "A"

Page 456



Exhbit "A"

Page 457



Exhbit "A"

Page 458



Exhbit "A"

Page 459



Exhbit "A"

Page 460



Exhbit "A"

Page 461



Exhbit "A"

Page 462



Exhbit "A"

Page 463



EXHIBIT B 
 

 
 
WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT (WVID) 
VILLAGE B (WITHIN UNIT NO. 7) 
 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 
ASSESSMENT ROLL 

 
 
A part of Sections 33 and 34, Township 39 South, Range 20 East, Sarasota County, Florida, 
described as follows: 
 
BEGIN at the West Quarter Corner of Section 34, Township 39 South, Range 20 East, Sarasota 
County, Florida; thence S.00º13’53”W. a distance of 81.44 feet; to the northerly Right of Way 
Line of State Road No. 45 (U.S. Highway No 41 ), per Order of Taking recorded in Official 
Records Book 1034, Page 762, of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida, same being a 
point on a curve to the right having: a radius of 2807.73 feet, a central angle of 24º13’02”: a chord 
bearing of N. 66º29’02”W., and a chord length of 1177.92 feet; thence along said northerly Right 
of Way Line of State Road No. 45, the following two (2) courses: (1) along the arc of said curve 
an arc length of 1186.74 feet; (2) thence N.54º22’31”W. a distance of 470.10 feet to the most 
southeasterly corner of Oasis at West Villages, Phase 1, recorded in Plat Book 51, at Page 231 of 
the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida; thence along the southeasterly Boundary line of 
said plat of Oasis at West Villages, Phase 1, the following three (3) courses: (1) N.23º29’29”E. a 
distance of 389.68 feet; (2) thence N.44º14’02”E. a distance of 254.25 feet; (3) thence 
N.42º23’22”W. a distance of 115.93 feet; to a point on the westerly Right of Way Line of County 
Road No. 777 (North River Road), as described in Official Records Instrument No. 2008060371 
of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida, same being a point on a curve to the left having: 
a radius of 49.00 feet, a central angle of 96º58’34”: a chord bearing of N.89º07’21”E., and a chord 
length of 73.38 feet; thence along said westerly Right of Way Line of County Road No. 777 the 
following four (4) courses: (1) along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 82.94 feet; (2) thence 
N.40º38’04”E. a distance of 308.73 feet; (3) thence N.73º00’35”E. a distance of 469.59 feet; (4) 
thence S.36º46’13”E. a distance of 1250.51 feet to a point on the South line of the North Half of 
the Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of said Section 34, Township 39 South, Range 20 
East; thence N.89º48’19”W., along said South line of the North Half of the Southwest Quarter of 
the Northwest Quarter of Section 34, a distance of 261.41 feet to the Southwest corner of said 
North Half of the Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of Section 34; thence 
S.00º13’53”W., along the West line of the Southwest Quarter of the Northwest Quarter of said 
Section 34, a distance of 659.37 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 
 
Parcel contains 1698701 square feet, or 38.9968 acres, more or less. 

Page 464



������������		�
� ������������������������������
����������

����������� !������������������ ��" ��#Page 465



������������		�
� ������������������������������
����������

����������� !������������������ ��" 	�#Page 466



������������		�
� ������������������������������
����������

����������� !������������������ ��" #�$Page 467



 

  

 

 

WEST VILLAGES 
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT 
Unit of Development No. 9 
Master Engineer’s Report 

JULY 14, 2022 

 

 

 

 
   

 

SUBMITTED BY 
Dewberry Engineers Inc.  
2201 Cantu Court  
Suite 107  
Sarasota, Florida   
Phone: 941.702.9672  
Contact: Richard Ellis 

SUBMITTED TO 
West Villages Improvement District  
19503 S. West Villages Parkway Suite #A3 
Venice, Florida 34293  
Phone: 941.244.2703    

Page 468



West Villages Improvement District  
Unit of Development No. 9 
July 14, 2022 

 

 S E C T I O N  N A M E  1 
 

 

Master Engineer’s Report 

Table of Contents 
1. GENERAL 2 

2. PURPOSE AND SCOPE 2 

3. LANDS IN UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 9 2 

4. EXISTING CONDITIONS 2 

4.1 Topography 2 

4.2 Soil and Vegetation 2 

4.3 Land Use and Zoning 3 

5. INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS 3 

5.1 Public Infrastructure Improvements 3 

5.2 Permitting 3 

5.3 Estimated Costs of Improvements 4 

6. MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES 5 

6.1 Public Infrastructure Improvements 5 

7. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION 6 

8. ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATION 6 

 

Table of Tables 
Table 5.1 Permitting Status .................................................................................... 4 

Table 5.2 Estimated Costs of Improvements ......................................................... 5 

Table of Exhibits 
Aerial Location Map ................................................................................... Exhibit A 

Unit 9 Legal Description ............................................................................. Exhibit B 

 

Page 469



West Villages Improvement District  
Unit of Development No. 9 
July 14, 2022 

 

 S E C T I O N  N A M E  2 
 

 

1. GENERAL 
The West Villages Improvement District (“WVID”) was created by and operates under Chapter 2004-458, 
Laws of Florida as amended (the “Act”) and operates pursuant to the Act and applicable provisions of 
Chapter 298, Florida Statutes and other Florida law. WVID was created to construct, operate, and 
maintain public works and utilities including water, sewer, drainage, irrigation, water management, parks, 
recreational facilities, roadway, or related activities, as more particularly described in Chapter 2004-456, 
Laws of Florida. 

2. PURPOSE AND SCOPE 
The purpose of this Master Plan of Improvements is to present the nature and extent of the improvements 
that may be constructed or acquired by WVID for and on behalf of the Unit of Development No. 9 (“Unit” 
or “Project”). These improvements will thereafter be owned, operated, and/or maintained by either WVID 
or another legally empowered governmental entity. 

The text of this report generally describes the existing land within Unit No. 9 and the proposed 
improvements and recommendations. The report is not intended to be used for exact representation or for 
construction purposes since detailed construction documents for all of the proposed improvements have 
not yet been finalized. 

3. LANDS IN UNIT OF DEVELOPMENT NO. 9 
An Aerial Location Map showing the location of Unit No. 9 is included as Exhibit A. The legal 
description(s) and sketch(es) are included as Exhibit B and reflect the lands included in Unit No. 9. These 
lands total approximately 470.9 acres. 

4. EXISTING CONDITIONS 
4.1 Topography 
The area within Unit No. 9 is relatively flat with site elevations ranging from approximately nine (9) feet to 
thirteen (13) feet. The land within the Unit is primarily undeveloped pasture and rangelands, upland pine 
flatwood, and wetlands. 

4.2 Soil and Vegetation 
Based on the 1991 Soil Survey of Sarasota County, Florida, prepared by the United States Department of 
Agriculture (USDA) Soil Conservation Service (SCS), the predominant surficial soil types within the Unit 
are identified as SCS Soil No. 10, EauGallie and Myakka Fine Sands, SCS Soils No. 31, Pineda Fine 
Sand, SCD Soils No. 36, and Pople Fine Sands. SCS Soil No. 10 is a nearly level, poorly drained soil that 
can be made up entirely of EauGallie and similar soils, entirely Myakka and similar soils, or a combination 
of EauGallie, Myakka and other soils. Typically, the EauGallie soil has a surface layer of black fine sand 
with a subsurface layer of gray fine sand to a depth of about 22 inches. The surface layer of the Myakka 
soil is typically dark grayish brown fine sand about 6 inches thick while the subsurface layer is light gray 
fine sand about 18 inches thick. Pineda Fine Sand is a nearly level, poorly drained soil. Typically, the 
surface and subsurface layers are grey fine sands totaling approximately 22 inches thick. The subsoil 
consists of an upper layer of 14 inches of brown fine sand and a lower layer of 12 inches of mottled, light 
brownish gray fine sandy loam. Pople Fine Sand is nearly level, poorly drained soil on low hammocks and 
in poorly defined drainageways and broad sloughs. Typically, the surface layer is very dark grayish brown 
fine sand approximately four (4) inches thick. The subsurface layer is light brownish gray fine sand 
approximately three (3) inches thick. The subsoil is brown and brownish yellow fine sand in the upper 21-
inches and gray fine sandy loam in the lower 28-inches. 

The property within Unit No. 9 currently consists of various vegetative communities comprised of both 
upland and wetland habitats. Several of the vegetation communities have been modified as a result of 
onsite agricultural activities including ditching and fire suppression. Areas that were historically extensive 
open forests or wiregrass prairies have since become heavily forested or have been cleared for cattle 

Page 470



West Villages Improvement District  
Unit of Development No. 9 
July 14, 2022 

 

 S E C T I O N  N A M E  3 
 

 

grazing and commercial nursery. Extensive ditching has also altered the hydrology of several of the 
wetland systems onsite, particularly where the ditches bisect wetlands or are adjacent to wetlands. 

4.3 Land Use and Zoning 
Unit No. 9 is located within the City of North Port, Florida (“City”). The land within the boundary of the Unit 
is currently being designed and prepared for development review and approval with the City. It is 
expected that the City will approve uses compatible with the adopted Comprehensive Land Use Plan. 

5. INFRASTRUCTURE PLANS 
5.1 Public Infrastructure Improvements 
WVID has formed Unit No. 9 to finance infrastructure design and construction to provide public 
infrastructure for the Unit and its ultimate property owners. 

The improvements for the Unit will be consistent with the City of North Port Comprehensive Plan and 
implementing ordinances, studies, plans, and may include: 

 Public roadways, including thoroughfares, arterial, collector, or local streets; 
 Drainage and stormwater improvements; 
 Water and sewer facilities; 
 Irrigation facilities; 
 Public roadway landscape, lighting, signage, and furnishings; 
 Entry features; and 
 Consulting and contingencies.  

Access to the project will be provided via River Road, US 41, West Villages Parkway, Preto Boulevard, 
Manasota Beach Road, and Playmore Drive. Potable water and sanitary sewer services will be provided 
by the City of North Port. 

5.2 Permitting 
Required permits, approved and proposed, are summarized in Table 5.1. It is our opinion that there are 
no technical reasons existing at this time that would prohibit the permitting and construction of the 
planned infrastructure, subject to continued compliance with agency criteria and conditions of the already 
approved plans and permits.  

Permits necessary to complete the Project have either been obtained as described below, or in our 
opinion, are obtainable from the permitting agencies, subject to reasonable, normal, and customary 
permit conditions. 

The remainder of this page has been left intentionally blank. 

  

Page 471



West Villages Improvement District  
Unit of Development No. 9 
July 14, 2022 

 

 S E C T I O N  N A M E  4 
 

 

Table 5.1 Permitting Status 

 

 

 

 

The remainder of this page has been left intentionally blank. 

 
  

Permitting Status 
PERMIT PERMIT NUMBERS DATE APPROVED 

West Villages Pkwy – From Playmore Drive to Atlanta Braves 
Spring Training Complex 

MAS 17-075 10/12/18 

West Villages Pkwy – From Atlanta Braves Spring Training 
Complex south approaching Manasota Beach Road 

INF 18-291 9/30/19 

Playmore Dr Realignment INF 17-129 9/21/17 

Preto Blvd – From south of Playmore Drive approaching 
Manasota Beach Road  

INF 17-128 2/19/18 

Manasota Beach Rd – From Preto Boulevard to River Road, 
including sections of Preto Boulevard and West Villages 
Parkway 

INF 20-036 6/16/20 

Wastewater Treatment Plant FDEP FLA B07114-001-DWIR 
MAS 17-168 

3/17/20 

Water Treatment Plant FDEP FLA 984841-001-DWIP 9/20/17 

Parks/Government TBD TBD 

Various Water Management Improvements INF-15-153/ 
SCP-15-122 

10/4/16 

US-41 Sidewalk Project  TBD TBD 

Village K Neighborhood Improvements    

     SWFWMD ERP - Mass Grading  43032522.048 9/21/2020 

     CONP Mass Grading INF Permit  INF-20-132 11/20/2020 

     CONP INF - Construction Permit  21-000006 Pending  

     CONP SCP - Construction Permit   21-0000028 Pending  

     SWFWMD ERP - Construction Plans 817644.000 Pending  

     FDEP Water Permit TBD  TBD  

     FDEP Wastewater Permit TBD  TBD  

Page 472



West Villages Improvement District  
Unit of Development No. 9 
July 14, 2022 

 

 S E C T I O N  N A M E  5 
 

 

5.3 Estimated Costs of Improvements 
Table 5.2 lists the components of the planned improvements for the Unit, together with their estimated 
costs of design and construction. The table also includes an estimate of administrative, consulting, 
engineering, legal and other fees, and contingencies associated with the improvements. 

Table 5.2 Estimated Costs of Improvements 

Note 1 – Roadway costs include roads, potable water, sanitary sewer, irrigation, drainage, landscaping, and street lighting.  

Note 2 – Costs of the wastewater treatment plant and water treatment plant are Unit 9’s estimated pro rata share of the  

plant’s usage.  

Note 3 – Costs are rounded to the nearest $1 million.  

6. MAINTENANCE RESPONSIBILITIES 
6.1 Public Infrastructure Improvements 
Maintenance and operational responsibilities of the Project will include the following: 

1. Maintenance and operation of the potable water and sanitary sewer systems will be the 
responsibility of the City; 

2. Maintenance and operation of the stormwater management system will be the 
responsibility of the WVID; 

Estimated Costs of Improvements (2022 Dollars) 
IMPROVEMENTS ESTIMATED COSTS 

Collector and Arterial Roads (See Note 1) $5,500,000 

Wastewater Treatment Plant (Pro Rata Share – See Notes 2 
and 3) 

$4,000,000 

Water Treatment Plant (Pro Rata Share – See Notes 2 and 
3) 

$3,500,000 

U.S. 41 Sidewalk Project $200,000 

Master Water Management $5,000,000 

Parks/Government $200,000 

Consultants and Administration (15%)  $2,800,000 

Subtotal  $21,200,000 

Village K Neighborhood Improvements  

     Earthwork $6,000,000 

     Drainage and Stormwater $6,500,000  

     Potable Water  $3,000,000 

     Wastewater  $7,500,000 

     Master Irrigation  $2,800,000 

     Consultants and Administration (15%)  $4,000,000 

Subtotal $29,800,000 

Total $51,000,000 

Page 473



West Villages Improvement District 
Unit of Development No. 9
July 14, 2022

S E C T I O N  N A M E 6

3. Maintenance and operation of the collector and arterial roadway, sidewalk, and 
landscaping improvements will be the responsibility of WVID, City, or FDOT depending 
on the ownership of the road; and

4. Maintenance of parks or government projects will be the responsibility of the WVID or 
City.

7. SUMMARY AND CONCLUSION
The improvements, as outlined, are necessary for the functional development of the Project, which is 
being designed in accordance with current governmental regulatory requirements. The Project will serve 
its intended function provided the construction is in substantial compliance with the design. Items of 
construction for the Project are based upon current development plans.

8. ENGINEER’S CERTIFICATION
It is our professional opinion that the infrastructure costs provided herein for the WVID improvements for 
the Project are reasonable to complete the construction of the infrastructure described herein and that 
these infrastructure improvements will benefit and add value to the WVID. These estimated costs are 
based upon prices currently being experienced for similar items of work in southwest Florida and 
expected inflation in the future. Actual costs may vary based on final engineering, planning, and 
approvals from regulatory agencies.

I hereby certify that the foregoing is a true and correct copy of the engineer’s report for the WVID.

Richard Ellis, P.E.
Florida Registration No. 34228

y y

Page 474



WEST VILLAGES
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT,

UNIT 9
DATE: June 3, 2022

N

470.9± AC.

WEST VILLAGES PARKWAY

S R
IVER

 R
D

.

S RIVER RD.

UNIT 9

EXHIBIT "A"

Page 475



EXHIBIT B 
DESCRIPTION: 

A part of Sections 9 and 10, Township 40 South, Range 20 East, City of North Port, County of Sarasota, 

Florida, described as follows: 

 

BEGIN at the Southwest corner of Section 9, Township 40 South, Range 20 East, City of North Port, 

Sarasota County, Florida; thence S.89°20'16" E., along the South line of the Southwest Quarter of said 

Section 9, a distance of 2642.30, to the South Quarter Corner of said Section 9; thence S.89°21'03" E., 

along the South line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 9, a distance of 2642.80 feet to the 

Southwest corner of Section 10, Township 40 South, Range 20 East; thence S.89°23'23" E., along the 

South line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 10, a distance of 2433.76 feet to a point on the West 

Right of Way Line of River Road, per Official Records Instrument No. 2008060371, recorded in the Public 

Records of Sarasota County, Florida; thence N.00°28'30" E., along said West Right of Way Line of River 

Road, a distance of 3520.99  feet; thence leaving said West Right of Way Line of River Road, N.89°31'30" 

W., a distance of 400.00 feet to the Southeast corner of lands described in Official Records Instrument 

No. 2021094420 of said Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida; thence along the boundary line of 

said lands described in Official Records Instrument No. 2021094420, the following seventy-eight (78) 

courses:  (1) S.77°24'35" W., a distance of 3.94 feet; (2) thence N.12°16'35" W., a distance of 31.76 feet; 

(3) thence N.57°13'39" W., a distance of 57.21 feet; (4) thence S.44°43'50" W., a distance of 57.18 feet; 

(5) thence S.03°54'26" W., a distance of 32.03 feet; (6) thence S.87°28'21" W., a distance of 41.07 feet; 

(7) thence S.17°07'17" W., a distance of 19.82 feet; (8) thence S.18°08'39" E., a distance of 38.73 feet; 

(9) thence S.37°29'27" W., a distance of 86.38 feet; (10) thence S.34°44'02" W., a distance of 78.09 feet; 

(11) thence S.42°51'19" W., a distance of 53.30 feet; (12) thence S.87°04'42" W., a distance of 30.53 

feet; (13) thence N.65°52'13" W., a distance of 69.92 feet; (14) thence S.72°49'34" W., a distance of 

89.54 feet; (15) thence N.53°46'02" W., a distance of 59.55 feet; (16) thence S.22°18'25" W., a distance 

of 32.46 feet; (17) thence S.88°26'04" W., a distance of 62.66 feet; (18) thence N.83°17'38" W., a 

distance of 54.93 feet; (19) thence N.80°45'21" W., a distance of 40.38 feet; (20) thence N.84°19'37" W., 

a distance of 59.01 feet; (21) thence S.44°55'03" W., a distance of 32.56 feet; (22) thence N.77°41'31" 

W., a distance of 17.55 feet; (23) thence N.31°40'29" W., a distance of 52.43 feet; (24) thence 

N.45°15'20" E., a distance of 33.58 feet; (25) thence N.12°32'20" W., a distance of 59.44 feet; (26) 

thence N.78°51'51" W., a distance of 84.00 feet; (27) thence S.81°34'09" W., a distance of 48.00 feet; 

(28) thence S.72°08'12" W., a distance of 81.27 feet; (29) thence S.78°46'38" W., a distance of 87.91 

feet; (30) thence N.52°00'16" W., a distance of 75.69 feet; (31) thence N.13°52'38" E., a distance of 

37.28 feet; (32) thence N.63°09'58" W., a distance of 56.66 feet; (33) thence N.73°58'46" W., a distance 

of 49.13 feet; (34) thence S.49°51'01" W., a distance of 43.67 feet; (35) thence S.86°45'06" W., a 

distance of 44.47 feet; (36) thence S.47°32'20" W., a distance of 69.51 feet; (37) thence S.28°59'45" W., 

a distance of 64.66 feet; (38) thence S.47°46'59" W., a distance of 26.32 feet; (39) thence S.49°07'42" 

W., a distance of 68.67 feet; (40) thence S.59°35'37" W., a distance of 48.68 feet; (41) thence 

S.42°44'21" W., a distance of 54.01 feet; (42) thence S.55°44'39" W., a distance of 49.07 feet; (43) 

thence S.56°21'21" W., a distance of 50.57 feet; (44) thence S.54°15'26" W., a distance of 92.86 feet; 

(45) thence S.44°01'35" W., a distance of 42.12 feet; (46) thence S.65°00'42" W., a distance of 48.69 

feet; (47) thence S.65°14'38" W., a distance of 37.28 feet; (48) thence S.78°55'02" W., a distance of 

32.95 feet; (49) thence S.12°24'17" W., a distance of 37.78 feet; (50) thence S.62°00'50" W., a distance 

of 35.33 feet; (51) thence N.59°58'12" W., a distance of 17.73 feet; (52) thence S.69°05'45" W., a 

Page 476



EXHIBIT B 
distance of 21.71 feet; (53) thence N.61°52'21" W., a distance of 15.90 feet; (54) thence N.59°40'06" W., 

a distance of 23.45 feet; (55) thence N.27°26'55" W., a distance of 16.43 feet; (56) thence N.53°13'40" 

W., a distance of 31.68 feet; (57) thence N.44°09'24" W., a distance of 22.55 feet; (58) thence 

N.50°58'46" W., a distance of 30.73 feet; (59) thence N.78°40'45" W., a distance of 20.61 feet; (60) 

thence N.63°50'16" W., a distance of 26.61 feet; (61) thence S.67°07'34" W., a distance of 33.94 feet; 

(62) thence S.78°50'03" W., a distance of 30.10 feet; (63) thence S.75°34'38" W., a distance of 49.23 

feet; (64) thence S.29°07'10" W., a distance of 35.69 feet; (65) thence S.23°27'06" W., a distance of 

32.25 feet; (66)  thence S.22°23'40" W., a distance of 21.95 feet; (67) thence S.32°08'26" W., a distance 

of 46.03 feet; (68) thence S.18°08'34" W., a distance of 33.80 feet; (69) thence S.52°01'11" W., a 

distance of 33.70 feet; (70) thence S.39°11'48" W., a distance of 47.65 feet; (71) thence S.45°44'56" W., 

a distance of 50.49 feet; (72) thence N.84°15'41" W., a distance of 48.05 feet; (73) thence N.51°00'48" 

W., a distance of 40.43 feet; (74) thence N.32°00'37" W., a distance of 28.03 feet; (75) thence 

N.84°05'43" W., a distance of 56.94 feet; (76) thence S.51°06'18" W., a distance of 50.50 feet; (77) 

thence S.58°22'39" W., a distance of 858.02 feet; (78) thence N.30°32'28" W., a distance of 1325.00 feet 

to the South Right of Way Line of Manasota Beach Road, as shown on Manasota Beach Ranchlands Plat 

No. 1, recorded in Plat Book 55, Page 367 of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida; thence along 

said South Right of Way Line of Manasota Beach Road the following four (4) courses: (1) thence 

S.54°50'52" W., a distance of 187.13 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right, having:  a radius of 

1165.00 feet, and a central angle of 56°04'48", a chord bearing of S.82°53'17" W., and a chord length of 

1095.31 feet; (2) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 1140.28 feet; (3) thence 

N.74°02'32" W., a distance of 149.78  feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left, having:  a 

radius of 85.00 feet, and a central angle of 39°46'27", a chord bearing of S.86°07'30" W., and a chord 

length of 57.83 feet; (4) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 59.01 feet to the East Right 

of Way Line of West Villages Parkway, as shown on said plat of Manasota Beach Ranchlands Plat No. 1; 

thence  along said East Right of Way Line of West Villages Parkway the following twenty (20) courses:  

(1) S.30°34'52" W., a distance of 945.90  feet to the beginning of a curve to the left, having:  a radius of 

2135.00 feet, and a central angle of 19°50'26", a chord bearing of S.20°39'39" W., and a chord length of 

735.63 feet; (2) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 739.32 feet, to the beginning of a 

reverse curve to the right, having:  a radius of 2265.00 feet, and a central angle of 05°25'28", a chord 

bearing of S.13°27'10" W., and a chord length of 214.36 feet; (3) thence along the arc of said curve, an 

arc length of 214.44 feet; (4) thence S.73°50'06" E., a distance of 79.04  feet to the beginning of a curve 

to the right, having:  a radius of 67.00 feet, and a central angle of 49°47'43", a chord bearing of 

S.48°56'15" E., and a chord length of 56.41 feet; (5) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 

58.23 feet; (6) thence S.24°02'24" E., a distance of 52.17  feet to the beginning of a curve to the left, 

having:  a radius of 53.00 feet, and a central angle of 20°57'59", a chord bearing of S.34°31'23" E., and a 

chord length of 19.29 feet; (7) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 19.39 feet; (8) thence 

S.45°00'23" E., a distance of 85.92  feet to the beginning of a curve to the left having:  a radius of 53.00 

feet, and a central angle of 18°04'21", a chord bearing of S.54°02'33" E., and a chord length of 16.65 

feet; (9) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 16.72 feet; (10) thence S.63°04'43" E., a 

distance of 9.91  feet to the beginning of a curve to the right, having:  a radius of 107.00 feet, and a 

central angle of 80°38'56", a chord bearing of S.22°45'15" E., and a chord length of 138.48 feet; (11) 

thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 150.61 feet; (12) thence S.17°34'13" W., a distance of 

51.16  feet to the beginning of a curve to the right, having:  a radius of 1007.00 feet, and a central angle 

of 10°01'39", a chord bearing of S.22°35'02" W., and a chord length of 176.01 feet; (13) thence along the 

Page 477



EXHIBIT B 
arc of said curve, an arc length of 176.24 feet, to the beginning of a reverse curve to the left, having:  a 

radius of 103.00 feet, and a central angle of 67°04'13", a chord bearing of S.05°56'15" E., and a chord 

length of 113.80 feet; (14) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 120.57 feet, to the 

beginning of a reverse curve to the right, having:  a radius of 47.00 feet, and a central angle of 

106°27'33", a chord bearing of S.13°45'25" W., and a chord length of 75.30 feet; (15) thence along the 

arc of said curve, an arc length of 87.33 feet, to the beginning of a reverse curve to the left, having:  a 

radius of 493.00 feet, and a central angle of 33°28'23", a chord bearing of S.50°15'00" W., and a chord 

length of 283.94 feet; (16) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 288.02 feet, to the 

beginning of a reverse curve to the right, having:  a radius of 107.00 feet, and a central angle of 

95°38'30", a chord bearing of S.81°20'04" W., and a chord length of 158.58 feet; (17) thence along the 

arc of said curve, an arc length of 178.61 feet; (18) thence N.50°50'41" W., a distance of 154.43  feet; 

(19) thence N.52°07'14" W., a distance of 115.22  feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the 

right, having:  a radius of 2265.00 feet, and a central angle of 14°52'19", a chord bearing of S.45°18'55" 

W., and a chord length of 586.26 feet; (20) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 587.91 

feet, to the beginning of a reverse curve to the left, having:  a radius of 2135.00 feet, and a central angle 

of 14°29'30", a chord bearing of S.45°30'20" W., and a chord length of 538.56 feet; thence continue 

along said East Right of Way Line of West Villages Boulevard and it’s southerly extension, along the arc 

of said curve, an arc length of 540.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

Parcel contains 20513797 square feet, or 470.9320 acres, more or less. 

Page 478



�

2
6
4
2
.3

0
'

S
�8

9
°2

0
'1

6
"�

E
2
6
4
2
.8

0
'

S
�8

9
°2

1
'0

3
"�

E
2
4
3
3
.7

6
'

S
�8

9
°2

3
'2

3
"�

E

3520.99' N�00°28'30"�E

C
1

C
1

L
5

C
2

945.90'

S�30°3
4'52"�W

C3

C4

L
6

C
5

L7

C6

L8 C
7

L
9

C8

L10 C9

C10

C11

C
12

C
1
3

L1
1

L
1
2

C
14

C
15

C
U

R
V

E
�T

A
B

L
E

L
IN

E
�T

A
B

L
E

D
E

S
C

R
IP

T
IO

N
:

4
0
0
.0

0
'

N
8
9
°3

1
'3

0
"W

L
1

L2

L
3

L4
L5

L
6

L7

L8

L9

L10
L1

1

L
1
2

L
1
3

L
1
4

L
1
5

L16

L
1
7

L
1
8

L
1
9

L
2
0

L2
1

L
2
2

L23L2
4

L25

L
2
6

L
2
7

L
2
8

L
2
9

L
3
0

L31

L
3
2

L
3
3

L3
4

L
3
5

L3
6 L37

L3
8

L3
9

L
4
0

L4
1

L
4
2

L
4
3

L
4
4

L4
5

L
4
6

L
4
7

L
4
8

L49

L
5
0

L
5
1

L
5
2

L
5
3

L
5
4

L55

L
5
6

L5
7

L5
8L

5
9

L
6
0

L
6
1

L
6
2

L
6
3

L64

L65

L66

L67

L68

L
6
9

L70 L7
1

L
7
2

L7
3

L74

L
7
5

L7
6

8
5
8
.0

2
'

S
5
8
°2

2
'3

9
"W

1325.00'

N30°3
2'28"W

L
7
7

W
E

L
L
E

N
�P

A
R

K
,�
V

IL
L
A

G
E

�"
K

"�
R

E
S

ID
E

N
T

IA
L

N
O

T
E

S
:

Page 479



Page 480



Page 481



(1)
(2)

(3) (4)

ERU

ERU

Page 482



ERU ERU

ERU

Florida Statutes F.S.

F.S.

Page 483



ERUs

ERUs

ERUs

ERUs
ERUs

ERU
ERUs

Page 484



Page 485



Page 486



Page 487



Page 488



Page 489



Page 490



Page 491



WEST VILLAGES
IMPROVEMENT DISTRICT,

UNIT 9

DATE: June 3, 2022

N

470.9± AC.

W
EST VILLAGES PARKW

AY

S
 R

IV
E

R
 R

D
.

S R
IV

ER R
D.

UNIT 9

EXHIBIT "A"

Page 492



EXHIBIT B 
DESCRIPTION: 

A part of Sections 9 and 10, Township 40 South, Range 20 East, City of North Port, County of Sarasota, 

Florida, described as follows: 

 

BEGIN at the Southwest corner of Section 9, Township 40 South, Range 20 East, City of North Port, 

Sarasota County, Florida; thence S.89°20'16" E., along the South line of the Southwest Quarter of said 

Section 9, a distance of 2642.30, to the South Quarter Corner of said Section 9; thence S.89°21'03" E., 

along the South line of the Southeast Quarter of said Section 9, a distance of 2642.80 feet to the 

Southwest corner of Section 10, Township 40 South, Range 20 East; thence S.89°23'23" E., along the 

South line of the Southwest Quarter of said Section 10, a distance of 2433.76 feet to a point on the West 

Right of Way Line of River Road, per Official Records Instrument No. 2008060371, recorded in the Public 

Records of Sarasota County, Florida; thence N.00°28'30" E., along said West Right of Way Line of River 

Road, a distance of 3520.99  feet; thence leaving said West Right of Way Line of River Road, N.89°31'30" 

W., a distance of 400.00 feet to the Southeast corner of lands described in Official Records Instrument 

No. 2021094420 of said Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida; thence along the boundary line of 

said lands described in Official Records Instrument No. 2021094420, the following seventy-eight (78) 

courses:  (1) S.77°24'35" W., a distance of 3.94 feet; (2) thence N.12°16'35" W., a distance of 31.76 feet; 

(3) thence N.57°13'39" W., a distance of 57.21 feet; (4) thence S.44°43'50" W., a distance of 57.18 feet; 

(5) thence S.03°54'26" W., a distance of 32.03 feet; (6) thence S.87°28'21" W., a distance of 41.07 feet; 

(7) thence S.17°07'17" W., a distance of 19.82 feet; (8) thence S.18°08'39" E., a distance of 38.73 feet; 

(9) thence S.37°29'27" W., a distance of 86.38 feet; (10) thence S.34°44'02" W., a distance of 78.09 feet; 

(11) thence S.42°51'19" W., a distance of 53.30 feet; (12) thence S.87°04'42" W., a distance of 30.53 

feet; (13) thence N.65°52'13" W., a distance of 69.92 feet; (14) thence S.72°49'34" W., a distance of 

89.54 feet; (15) thence N.53°46'02" W., a distance of 59.55 feet; (16) thence S.22°18'25" W., a distance 

of 32.46 feet; (17) thence S.88°26'04" W., a distance of 62.66 feet; (18) thence N.83°17'38" W., a 

distance of 54.93 feet; (19) thence N.80°45'21" W., a distance of 40.38 feet; (20) thence N.84°19'37" W., 

a distance of 59.01 feet; (21) thence S.44°55'03" W., a distance of 32.56 feet; (22) thence N.77°41'31" 

W., a distance of 17.55 feet; (23) thence N.31°40'29" W., a distance of 52.43 feet; (24) thence 

N.45°15'20" E., a distance of 33.58 feet; (25) thence N.12°32'20" W., a distance of 59.44 feet; (26) 

thence N.78°51'51" W., a distance of 84.00 feet; (27) thence S.81°34'09" W., a distance of 48.00 feet; 

(28) thence S.72°08'12" W., a distance of 81.27 feet; (29) thence S.78°46'38" W., a distance of 87.91 

feet; (30) thence N.52°00'16" W., a distance of 75.69 feet; (31) thence N.13°52'38" E., a distance of 

37.28 feet; (32) thence N.63°09'58" W., a distance of 56.66 feet; (33) thence N.73°58'46" W., a distance 

of 49.13 feet; (34) thence S.49°51'01" W., a distance of 43.67 feet; (35) thence S.86°45'06" W., a 

distance of 44.47 feet; (36) thence S.47°32'20" W., a distance of 69.51 feet; (37) thence S.28°59'45" W., 

a distance of 64.66 feet; (38) thence S.47°46'59" W., a distance of 26.32 feet; (39) thence S.49°07'42" 

W., a distance of 68.67 feet; (40) thence S.59°35'37" W., a distance of 48.68 feet; (41) thence 

S.42°44'21" W., a distance of 54.01 feet; (42) thence S.55°44'39" W., a distance of 49.07 feet; (43) 

thence S.56°21'21" W., a distance of 50.57 feet; (44) thence S.54°15'26" W., a distance of 92.86 feet; 

(45) thence S.44°01'35" W., a distance of 42.12 feet; (46) thence S.65°00'42" W., a distance of 48.69 

feet; (47) thence S.65°14'38" W., a distance of 37.28 feet; (48) thence S.78°55'02" W., a distance of 

32.95 feet; (49) thence S.12°24'17" W., a distance of 37.78 feet; (50) thence S.62°00'50" W., a distance 

of 35.33 feet; (51) thence N.59°58'12" W., a distance of 17.73 feet; (52) thence S.69°05'45" W., a 

Page 493



EXHIBIT B 
distance of 21.71 feet; (53) thence N.61°52'21" W., a distance of 15.90 feet; (54) thence N.59°40'06" W., 

a distance of 23.45 feet; (55) thence N.27°26'55" W., a distance of 16.43 feet; (56) thence N.53°13'40" 

W., a distance of 31.68 feet; (57) thence N.44°09'24" W., a distance of 22.55 feet; (58) thence 

N.50°58'46" W., a distance of 30.73 feet; (59) thence N.78°40'45" W., a distance of 20.61 feet; (60) 

thence N.63°50'16" W., a distance of 26.61 feet; (61) thence S.67°07'34" W., a distance of 33.94 feet; 

(62) thence S.78°50'03" W., a distance of 30.10 feet; (63) thence S.75°34'38" W., a distance of 49.23 

feet; (64) thence S.29°07'10" W., a distance of 35.69 feet; (65) thence S.23°27'06" W., a distance of 

32.25 feet; (66)  thence S.22°23'40" W., a distance of 21.95 feet; (67) thence S.32°08'26" W., a distance 

of 46.03 feet; (68) thence S.18°08'34" W., a distance of 33.80 feet; (69) thence S.52°01'11" W., a 

distance of 33.70 feet; (70) thence S.39°11'48" W., a distance of 47.65 feet; (71) thence S.45°44'56" W., 

a distance of 50.49 feet; (72) thence N.84°15'41" W., a distance of 48.05 feet; (73) thence N.51°00'48" 

W., a distance of 40.43 feet; (74) thence N.32°00'37" W., a distance of 28.03 feet; (75) thence 

N.84°05'43" W., a distance of 56.94 feet; (76) thence S.51°06'18" W., a distance of 50.50 feet; (77) 

thence S.58°22'39" W., a distance of 858.02 feet; (78) thence N.30°32'28" W., a distance of 1325.00 feet 

to the South Right of Way Line of Manasota Beach Road, as shown on Manasota Beach Ranchlands Plat 

No. 1, recorded in Plat Book 55, Page 367 of the Public Records of Sarasota County, Florida; thence along 

said South Right of Way Line of Manasota Beach Road the following four (4) courses: (1) thence 

S.54°50'52" W., a distance of 187.13 feet to the beginning of a curve to the right, having:  a radius of 

1165.00 feet, and a central angle of 56°04'48", a chord bearing of S.82°53'17" W., and a chord length of 

1095.31 feet; (2) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 1140.28 feet; (3) thence 

N.74°02'32" W., a distance of 149.78  feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the left, having:  a 

radius of 85.00 feet, and a central angle of 39°46'27", a chord bearing of S.86°07'30" W., and a chord 

length of 57.83 feet; (4) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 59.01 feet to the East Right 

of Way Line of West Villages Parkway, as shown on said plat of Manasota Beach Ranchlands Plat No. 1; 

thence  along said East Right of Way Line of West Villages Parkway the following twenty (20) courses:  

(1) S.30°34'52" W., a distance of 945.90  feet to the beginning of a curve to the left, having:  a radius of 

2135.00 feet, and a central angle of 19°50'26", a chord bearing of S.20°39'39" W., and a chord length of 

735.63 feet; (2) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 739.32 feet, to the beginning of a 

reverse curve to the right, having:  a radius of 2265.00 feet, and a central angle of 05°25'28", a chord 

bearing of S.13°27'10" W., and a chord length of 214.36 feet; (3) thence along the arc of said curve, an 

arc length of 214.44 feet; (4) thence S.73°50'06" E., a distance of 79.04  feet to the beginning of a curve 

to the right, having:  a radius of 67.00 feet, and a central angle of 49°47'43", a chord bearing of 

S.48°56'15" E., and a chord length of 56.41 feet; (5) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 

58.23 feet; (6) thence S.24°02'24" E., a distance of 52.17  feet to the beginning of a curve to the left, 

having:  a radius of 53.00 feet, and a central angle of 20°57'59", a chord bearing of S.34°31'23" E., and a 

chord length of 19.29 feet; (7) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 19.39 feet; (8) thence 

S.45°00'23" E., a distance of 85.92  feet to the beginning of a curve to the left having:  a radius of 53.00 

feet, and a central angle of 18°04'21", a chord bearing of S.54°02'33" E., and a chord length of 16.65 

feet; (9) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 16.72 feet; (10) thence S.63°04'43" E., a 

distance of 9.91  feet to the beginning of a curve to the right, having:  a radius of 107.00 feet, and a 

central angle of 80°38'56", a chord bearing of S.22°45'15" E., and a chord length of 138.48 feet; (11) 

thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 150.61 feet; (12) thence S.17°34'13" W., a distance of 

51.16  feet to the beginning of a curve to the right, having:  a radius of 1007.00 feet, and a central angle 

of 10°01'39", a chord bearing of S.22°35'02" W., and a chord length of 176.01 feet; (13) thence along the 

Page 494



EXHIBIT B 
arc of said curve, an arc length of 176.24 feet, to the beginning of a reverse curve to the left, having:  a 

radius of 103.00 feet, and a central angle of 67°04'13", a chord bearing of S.05°56'15" E., and a chord 

length of 113.80 feet; (14) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 120.57 feet, to the 

beginning of a reverse curve to the right, having:  a radius of 47.00 feet, and a central angle of 

106°27'33", a chord bearing of S.13°45'25" W., and a chord length of 75.30 feet; (15) thence along the 

arc of said curve, an arc length of 87.33 feet, to the beginning of a reverse curve to the left, having:  a 

radius of 493.00 feet, and a central angle of 33°28'23", a chord bearing of S.50°15'00" W., and a chord 

length of 283.94 feet; (16) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 288.02 feet, to the 

beginning of a reverse curve to the right, having:  a radius of 107.00 feet, and a central angle of 

95°38'30", a chord bearing of S.81°20'04" W., and a chord length of 158.58 feet; (17) thence along the 

arc of said curve, an arc length of 178.61 feet; (18) thence N.50°50'41" W., a distance of 154.43  feet; 

(19) thence N.52°07'14" W., a distance of 115.22  feet to the beginning of a non-tangent curve to the 

right, having:  a radius of 2265.00 feet, and a central angle of 14°52'19", a chord bearing of S.45°18'55" 

W., and a chord length of 586.26 feet; (20) thence along the arc of said curve, an arc length of 587.91 

feet, to the beginning of a reverse curve to the left, having:  a radius of 2135.00 feet, and a central angle 

of 14°29'30", a chord bearing of S.45°30'20" W., and a chord length of 538.56 feet; thence continue 

along said East Right of Way Line of West Villages Boulevard and it’s southerly extension, along the arc 

of said curve, an arc length of 540.00 feet to the POINT OF BEGINNING. 

 

Parcel contains 20513797 square feet, or 470.9320 acres, more or less. 

Page 495



�

2642.30'S�89°20'16"�E
2642.80'S�89°21'03"�E

2433.76'S�89°23'23"�E

35
20

.9
9'

N
�0

0°
28

'3
0"

�E

C1

C1

L5C2

94
5.

90
'

S
�3

0°
34

'5
2"

�W

C
3

C
4

L6 C5

L7
C

6 L8

C7
L9

C
8

L1
0

C
9

C
10

C
11

C12

C13

L11

L12

C14

C15

CURVE�TABLE

LINE�TABLE

DESCRIPTION:

400.00'
N89°31'30"W

L1

L2

L3

L4
L5

L6

L7 L8

L9

L1
0

L1
1

L12

L13

L14

L15L1
6

L17

L18
L19

L20

L2
1

L22

L23

L2
4

L25

L26

L27
L28

L29
L30

L3
1L32

L33
L34

L35L3
6

L3
7

L3
8

L39L40

L4
1L42

L43L44

L4
5L46

L47

L48

L4
9

L50L51
L52

L53L54

L55

L56

L57L58

L59

L60
L61

L62

L63

L6
4

L6
5

L6
6

L6
7

L6
8

L69L7
0

L7
1

L72

L73L74

L75
L76

858.02'

S58°22'39"W

1325.00'

N
30°32'28"W

L77

WELLEN�PARK,�VILLAGE�"K"�RESIDENTIAL

NOTES:

Page 496



 

1 
 

 
RESOLUTION 2022-26 

 
A RESOLUTION AUTHORIZING THE DISTRICT’S SERIES 
2022 PROJECT FOR CONSTRUCTION AND/OR 
ACQUISITION OF INFRASTRUCTURE IMPROVEMENTS; 
EQUALIZING, APPROVING, CONFIRMING, AND LEVYING 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS ON PROPERTY WITHIN UNIT OF 
DEVELOPMENT NO. 9 OF THE DISTRICT SPECIALLY 
BENEFITED BY SUCH SERIES 2022 PROJECT TO PAY THE 
COST THEREOF; PROVIDING FOR THE PAYMENT AND 
THE COLLECTION OF SUCH SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS BY 
THE METHODS PROVIDED FOR BY CHAPTERS 170 AND 
197, FLORIDA STATUTES, AND CHAPTER 2004-456, LAWS 
OF FLORIDA, AS AMENDED; CONFIRMING THE 
DISTRICT'S INTENTION TO ISSUE SPECIAL ASSESSMENT 
REVENUE BONDS; MAKING PROVISIONS FOR 
TRANSFERS OF REAL PROPERTY TO GOVERNMENTAL 
BODIES AND OTHER EXEMPT ENTITIES; PROVIDING 
FOR THE RECORDING OF AN ASSESSMENT NOTICE; 
PROVIDING FOR SEVERABILITY, CONFLICTS AND AN 
EFFECTIVE DATE. 
 

RECITALS 

WHEREAS, the West Villages Improvement District (“District”) previously indicated its 
intention to construct certain types of infrastructure improvements within Unit of Development No. 
9 (“Unit No. 9”) within the District, and to finance such infrastructure improvements through the 
issuance of bonds, which bonds would be repaid by the imposition of special assessments on 
benefited property within the District; and 
 

WHEREAS, the District Board of Supervisors (“Board”) noticed and conducted a public 
hearing pursuant to Chapters 170 and 197, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, 
as amended, relating to the imposition, levy, collection and enforcement of such assessments. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF 
SUPERVISORS OF THE WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT 
DISTRICT AS FOLLOWS: 

 
SECTION 1.  AUTHORITY FOR THIS RESOLUTION.  This Resolution is adopted 

pursuant to Chapters 170 and 197, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as 
amended, including without limitation, Section 170.08, Florida Statutes. 
 

Page 497



 

2 
 

SECTION 2.  FINDINGS.  The Board hereby finds and determines as follows: 
 

(a)  The District is a local unit of special-purpose government organized and existing under 
and pursuant to Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as amended. 

 
(b)  The District is authorized by Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as amended, to finance, 

fund, plan, establish, acquire, install, equip, operate, extend, construct, or reconstruct roadways, 
sidewalk and streetlighting improvements, stormwater management improvements, water 
distribution improvements (including a water treatment plant), sewer distribution improvements 
(including a wastewater treatment plant), parks, irrigation facilities, landscaping, hardscaping, entry 
features, and other infrastructure improvements and services necessitated by the development of, and 
serving lands within, Unit No. 9 within the District. 
 

(c)  The District is authorized by Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as amended, to levy 
and impose special assessments to pay all, or any part of, the cost of such infrastructure projects and 
services and to issue special assessment revenue bonds payable from such special assessments as 
provided in Chapters 170 and 197, Florida Statutes and Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, as 
amended. 
 

(d)  It is necessary to the public health, safety and welfare and in the best interests of the 
District that (i) the District provide the “Series 2022 Project,” the nature and location of which was 
initially described in Resolution 2022-17 and is shown in the District’s Unit of Development No. 9 
Master Engineer’s Report, dated July 14, 2022, and which Series 2022 Project’s plans and 
specifications are on file in the offices of the District Manager located at 2501-A Burns Road, Palm 
Beach Gardens, Florida 33410 and at the District’s local records office located at 19503 S. West 
Villages Parkway #A3, Venice, Florida 34293; (ii) the cost of such Series 2022 Project be assessed 
against the lands within Unit No. 9 specially benefited by such Series 2022 Project; and (iii) the 
District issue bonds to provide funds for such purposes pending the receipt of such special 
assessments. 
 

(e)  The provision of said Series 2022 Project, the levying of such Special Assessments (as 
herein defined) and the sale and issuance of such bonds serves a proper, essential, and valid public 
purpose and is in the best interests of the District, its landowners and residents. 
 

(f)  In order to provide funds with which to pay a portion of the costs of the Series 2022 
Project which are to be assessed against the benefitted properties within Unit No. 9, pending the 
collection of such Special Assessments, it is necessary for the District from time to time to sell and 
issue its Special Assessment Revenue Bonds, in one or more series, including but not limited to its 
Series 2021 Special Assessment Revenue Bonds (the “Series 2022 Bonds”). 
 

(g)  By Resolution 2022-17, the Board determined to provide the Series 2022 Project and to 
defray the costs thereof by making special assessments on benefited property within Unit No. 9 and 
expressed an intention to issue the Series 2022 Bonds to provide a portion of the funds needed for 

Page 498



 

3 
 

the Series 2022 Project prior to the collection of such Special Assessments.  Resolution 2022-17 was 
adopted in compliance with the requirements of Section 170.03, Florida Statutes, and prior to the 
time it was adopted, the requirements of Section 170.04, Florida Statutes, had been met. 
 

(h)  As directed by Resolution 2022-17, said Resolution 2022-17 was published as required 
by Section 170.05, Florida Statutes, and a copy of the publisher’s affidavit of publication is on file 
with the Secretary of the Board. 
 

(i)  As directed by Resolution 2022-17, a preliminary assessment roll was adopted and filed 
with the Board as required by Section 170.06, Florida Statutes. 
 

(j)  As required by Section 170.07, Florida Statutes, upon completion of the preliminary 
assessment roll, the Board adopted Resolution 2022-18 fixing the time and place of a public hearing 
at which owners of the property within Unit No. 9 that are to be assessed and other persons 
interested therein may appear before the Board and be heard as to (i) the propriety and advisability of 
making the infrastructure improvements, (ii) the cost thereof, (iii) the manner of payment therefore, 
and (iv) the amount thereof to be assessed against each specially benefited property or parcel within 
Unit No. 9 and provided for publication of notice of such public hearing and individual mailed notice 
in accordance with Chapters 170 and 197, Florida Statutes, and Chapter 2004-456, Laws of Florida, 
as amended. 
 

(k)  Notice of such public hearing was given by publication and also by mail as required by 
Section 170.07, Florida Statutes.  Affidavits as to such publications and mailings are on file in the 
office of the Secretary of the Board. 
 

(l)  On August 18, 2022, at the public hearing, at the time and place specified in the 
resolution and notice referred to in paragraph (k) above, the Board met as an Equalization Board and 
heard and considered all complaints and testimony as to the matters described in paragraph (j) above. 
 The Board has made such modifications in the preliminary assessment roll as it deems necessary, 
just and right in the making of the final assessment roll. 
 

(m)  Having considered the estimated costs of the Series 2022 Project, estimates of financing 
costs and all complaints and evidence presented at such public hearing, the Board of Supervisors of 
the District further finds and determines: 
 

(i)  that the estimated costs of the Series 2022 Project are as specified in that certain 
Unit of Development No. 9 Master Engineer’s Report, dated July 14, 2022, attached 
hereto as Exhibit A and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Engineer’s 
Report”), which Engineer’s Report is hereby adopted and approved, and that the 
amount of such costs is reasonable and proper; and 

 
(ii) it is reasonable, proper, just and right to assess the cost of such Series 2022 
Project against the properties specially benefited thereby within Unit No. 9 using the 

Page 499



 

4 
 

method determined by the Board set forth in that certain final Unit of Development 
No. 9 Master Special Assessment Methodology Report, dated July 14, 2022, attached 
hereto as Exhibit B and incorporated herein by this reference (the “Master 
Assessment Methodology Report”), which results in the Special Assessments set 
forth on the final assessment roll; and 

 
(iii)  it is hereby declared that the Series 2022 Project will constitute a special benefit 
to all parcels of real property listed on said final assessment roll and that the benefit, 
in the case of each such parcel, will be equal to or in excess of the Special 
Assessments thereon when allocated as set forth in Exhibit B; and 

 
(iv)  it is in the best interests of the District that the Special Assessments be paid and 
collected as herein provided. 

 
SECTION 3.  AUTHORIZATION OF DISTRICT SERIES 2022 PROJECT.  That 

certain Series 2022 Project for construction of infrastructure improvements initially described in 
Resolution No. 2022-17, and more specifically identified and described in Exhibit A attached 
hereto, is hereby authorized and approved and the proper officers, employees and/or agents of the 
District are hereby authorized and directed to take such further action as may be necessary or 
desirable to cause the same to be made following the issuance of a series of bonds, including the 
Series 2022 Bonds, referred to herein. 
 

SECTION 4.  ESTIMATED COST OF IMPROVEMENTS.  The total estimated costs of 
the Series 2022 Project and the costs to be paid by Special Assessments on all specially benefited 
property within Unit No. 9 are set forth in Exhibits A and B, respectively, hereto. 
 

SECTION 5.  EQUALIZATION, APPROVAL, CONFIRMATION AND LEVY OF 
SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS.  The Special Assessments on the parcels within Unit No. 9 specially 
benefited by the Series 2022 Project, all as specified in the final assessment roll set forth in Exhibit 
B, are hereby equalized, approved, confirmed and levied.  Immediately following the adoption of 
this Resolution these Special Assessments, as reflected in Exhibit B, shall be recorded by the 
Secretary of the Board of the District in a special book, to be known as the “Improvement Lien 
Book.” The Special Assessment or assessments against each respective parcel shown on such final 
assessment roll and interest, costs and penalties thereon, as hereafter provided, shall be and shall 
remain a legal, valid and binding first lien on such parcel until paid and such lien shall be coequal 
with the lien of all state, county, district, municipal or other governmental taxes and superior in 
dignity to all other liens, titles, and claims.  Prior to the issuance of any bonds, including refunding 
bonds, the District may, by subsequent resolution, adjust the acreage assigned to particular parcel 
identification numbers listed on the final assessment roll to reflect accurate apportionment of acreage 
within the District amongst individual parcel identification numbers. The District may make any 
other such acreage and boundary adjustments to parcels listed on the final assessment roll as may be 
necessary in the best interests of the District as determined by the Board by subsequent resolution. 
Any such adjustment in the assessment roll shall be consistent with the requirements of law.  In the 

Page 500



 

5 
 

event the issuance of bonds, including refunding bonds, by the District would result in a decrease of 
the Special Assessments, then the District shall by subsequent resolution, adopted within sixty (60) 
days of the sale of such bonds at a publicly noticed meeting and without the need for further public 
hearing, evidence such a decrease and amend the final assessment roll as shown in the Improvement 
Lien Book to reflect such a decrease. 
 

SECTION 6.  FINALIZATION OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS.  When the entire Series 
2022 Project has both been constructed or otherwise provided to the satisfaction of the Board, the 
Board shall adopt a resolution accepting the same and determining the actual costs (including 
financing costs) thereof, as required by Sections 170.08 and 170.09, Florida Statutes.  Pursuant to 
the provisions of Section 170.08, Florida Statutes, regarding completion of a Series 2022 Project 
funded by a particular series of bonds, the District shall credit to each Special Assessment the 
difference, if any, between the Special Assessment as hereby made, approved and confirmed and the 
actual costs incurred in completing the Series 2022 Project.  In making such credits, no credit shall 
be given for bond financing costs, capitalized interest, funded reserves or bond discounts.  Such 
credits, if any, shall be entered in the Improvement Lien Book.  Once the final amount of Special 
Assessments for the entire Series 2022 Project has been determined, the term “Special Assessment” 
shall, with respect to each parcel, mean the sum of the costs of the Series 2022 Project.  
 

SECTION 7.  PAYMENT OF SPECIAL ASSESSMENTS AND METHOD OF 
COLLECTION. 
 
 (a)  The Special Assessments may be paid in not more than thirty (30) substantially equal 
consecutive annual installments of principal and interest.  The Special Assessments may be paid in 
full without interest at any time within thirty (30) days after the completion of the Series 2022 
Project and the adoption by the Board of a resolution accepting the Series 2022 Project; provided, 
however, that the Board shall at any time make such adjustments by resolution, at a noticed meeting 
of the Board, to that payment schedule as may be necessary and in the best interests of the District to 
account for changes in long and short term debt as actually issued by the District. At any time 
subsequent to thirty (30) days after the Series 2022 Project has been completed and a resolution 
accepting the Series 2022 Project has been adopted by the Board, the Special Assessments may be 
prepaid in full including interest amounts to the next succeeding interest payment date or to the 
second succeeding interest payment date if such a prepayment is made within forty-five (45) 
calendar days before an interest payment date. The owner of property subject to Special Assessments 
may prepay the entire remaining balance of the Special  Assessments at any time, or a portion of the 
remaining balance of the Special Assessment one time if there is also paid, in addition to the prepaid 
principal balance of the Special Assessment, an amount equal to the interest that would otherwise be 
due on such prepaid amount on the next succeeding interest payment date, or, if prepaid during the 
forty-five (45) day period preceding such interest payment date, to the interest payment date 
following such next succeeding interest payment date.  Prepayment of Special Assessments does not 
entitle the property owner to any discounts for early payment.  

 
 (b)  The District may elect to use the method of collecting Special Assessments authorized by 

Page 501



 

6 
 

Sections 197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida Statutes (the “Uniform Method”). The District has 
heretofore taken or will use its best efforts to take as timely required, any necessary actions to 
comply with the provisions of said Sections 197.3632 and 197.3635, Florida Statutes.  Such Special 
Assessments may be subject to all of the collection provisions of Chapter 197, Florida Statutes.  
Notwithstanding the above, in the event the Uniform Method of collecting its special or non-ad 
valorem assessments is not available to the District in any year, or if determined by the District to be 
in its best interest, the Special Assessments may be collected as is otherwise permitted by law.  The 
District may, in its sole discretion, collect Special Assessments by directly assessing landowner(s) 
and enforcing said collection in any manner authorized by law. 
 

(c)  For each year the District uses the Uniform Method, the District shall enter into an 
agreement with the Tax Collector of Sarasota County who may notify each owner of a lot or parcel 
within Unit No. 9 of the District of the amount of the special assessment, including interest thereon, 
in the manner provided in Section 197.3635, Florida Statutes. 

 
SECTION 8.  APPLICATION OF TRUE-UP PAYMENTS.   
 

 (a)  Pursuant to the Master Assessment Methodology Report, attached hereto as Exhibit B, 
there may be required from time to time certain true-up payments.  As parcels of land or lots are 
platted within Unit No. 9, the Special Assessments securing the Series 2022 Bonds shall be allocated 
as set forth in the Master Assessment Methodology Report.  In furtherance thereof, at such time as 
parcels or land or lots are platted within Unit No. 9, it shall be an express condition of the lien 
established by this Resolution that any and all initial plats of any portion of the lands within Unit No. 
9 of the District, as the boundaries of such unit may be amended from time to time, shall be 
presented to the District Manager for review, approval and calculation of the percentage of acres and 
numbers of units which will be, after the plat, considered to be developed.  No further action by the 
Board of Supervisors shall be required. The District’s review shall be limited solely to this function 
and the enforcement of the lien established by this Resolution.  The District Manager shall cause the 
Special Assessments to be reallocated to the units within Unit No. 9 being platted and the remaining 
property in accordance with Exhibit B, cause such reallocation to be recorded in the District’s 
Improvement Lien Book, and shall perform the true-up calculations described in Exhibit B, which 
process is incorporated herein as if fully set forth.  Any resulting true-up payment shall become due 
and payable that tax year by the landowner(s) of record of the remaining property, in addition to the 
regular assessment installment payable with respect to the remaining developable acres within Unit 
No. 9.   
 
 (b)  The District will take all necessary steps to ensure that true-up payments are made in a 
timely fashion to ensure its debt service obligations are met.  The District shall record all true-up 
payments in its Improvement Lien Book. 
 
 (c)  The foregoing is based on the District’s understanding with the landowner, that it intends 
to develop the ERUs within Unit No. 9 shown in Exhibit B, on the net developable acres within 
such unit, and is intended to provide a formula to ensure that the appropriate ratio of the Special 

Page 502



 

7 
 

Assessments to developable acres is maintained if fewer ERUs are developed within Unit No. 9.  
However, no action by the District prohibits more than the maximum ERU’s shown in Exhibit B 
from being developed within Unit No. 9.  In no event shall the District collect Special Assessments 
pursuant to this Resolution in excess of the total debt service related to the Series 2022 Project, 
including all costs of financing and interest.  The District recognizes that such events as regulatory 
requirements and market conditions may affect the timing and scope of the development in Unit No. 
9 of the District.  If the strict application of the True-Up Methodology to any assessment reallocation 
pursuant to this paragraph would result in Special Assessments collected in excess of the District’s 
total debt service obligation for the Series 2022 Project, the Board shall by resolution take 
appropriate action to equitably reallocate the Special Assessments.  Further, upon the District’s 
review of the final plat for the developable acres within Unit No. 9, any unallocated Special 
Assessments shall become due and payable and must be paid prior to the District’s approval of that 
plat.  
 
 (d)  The application of the monies received from true-up payments or assessments to the 
actual debt service obligations of the District, whether long term or short term, shall be set forth in 
the supplemental assessment resolution adopted for each series of Bonds actually issued.  Such 
subsequent resolution shall be adopted at a noticed meeting of the District, and shall set forth the 
actual amounts financed, costs of issuance, expected costs of collection, and the total amount of the 
assessments pledged to that issue, which amount shall be consistent with the lien imposed by this 
Resolution. 
 

SECTION 9. GOVERNMENT PROPERTY; TRANSFERS OF PROPERTY TO 
UNITS OF LOCAL, STATE, AND FEDERAL GOVERNMENT; PROPERTY EXCLUDED 
BY LAW.   Real property owned by units of local, state, and federal government shall not be subject 
to the Special Assessments without specific consent thereto.  In addition, property owned by a 
property owners association or a home owners association that is exempt from special assessments 
under Florida law shall not be subject to the Special Assessments.  If at any time, any real property 
on which Special Assessments are imposed by this Resolution is sold or otherwise transferred to a 
unit of local, state, or federal government (without consent of such governmental unit to the 
imposition of Special Assessments thereon), all future unpaid Special Assessments for such tax 
parcel shall become due and payable immediately prior to such transfer without any further action of 
the District. 
 

SECTION 10.  ASSESSMENT NOTICE. The District’s Secretary is hereby directed to 
record a general Notice of Assessments relative to Unit No. 9 in the Official Records of Sarasota 
County, Florida, which shall be updated from time to time in a manner consistent with changes in the 
boundaries of such unit.   
 

SECTION 11.  SEVERABILITY.  If any section or part of a section of this Resolution be 
declared invalid or unconstitutional, the validity, force and effect of any other section or part of a 
section of this Resolution shall not thereby be affected or impaired unless it clearly appears that such 
other section or part of a section of this Resolution is wholly or necessarily dependent upon the 

Page 503



 

8 
 

section or part of a section so held to be invalid or unconstitutional. 
 

SECTION 12.  CONFLICTS.  All resolutions or parts thereof in conflict herewith are, to 
the extent of such conflict, superseded and repealed. 
 

SECTION 13.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This Resolution shall become effective upon its 
adoption. 
 
 PASSED AND ADOPTED this 18th day of August, 2022. 
 
 
ATTEST:    WEST VILLAGES IMPROVEMENT  
     DISTRICT 

 
 

_____________________________  ____________________________________ 
Secretary/Assistant Secretary  Chairman, Board of Supervisors 
 

 

 
Exhibit A: Unit of Development No. 9 Master Engineer’s Report, dated July 14, 2022 
Exhibit B: Unit of Development No. 9 Master Special Assessment Methodology Report, dated 

July 14, 2022 

Page 504



 

 
 

Exhibit A 
 

Unit of Development No. 9 Master Plan of Improvements, dated July 14, 2022 

Page 505



 

 
 

Exhibit B 
 

Unit of Development No. 9 Master Special Assessment Methodology Report,  
dated July 14, 2022 

Page 506


	West Villages Improvement District - August 18, 2022 Regular Board Meeting & Public Hearing Book
	Agenda
	Proof of Publication
	July 14, 2022 Regular Board Meeting Minutes
	General District Matters
	Public Hearing – Fiscal Year 2022/2023
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-19 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Final Budget
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-20 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Assessment Roll

	Public Hearing – Uniform Method
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-21 – Intent to Utilize the Uniform Method of Levying,Collecting, and Enforcing Non Ad Valorem Assessments

	Consider Resolution No. 2022-22 – Adopting a Fiscal Year 2022/2023 Meeting Schedule
	Review of Meeting Notes for Irrigation Meeting with Gran Paradiso Property Owners Association Directors and Residents Held June 13, 2022
	Consider Approval of Agreement with Gravina Smith Matte & Arnold for Public Relations Services

	Unit of Development No. 1
	Public Hearing – Revised Plan of Improvements
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-23 – Adopting Revised Plan of Improvements and Setting Public Hearing on Adoption of Revised Assessment Report of Benefits

	Consider Resolution No. 2022-24 – Approving Form of FDOT Maintenance Agreement
	Consider Approval of Change Order No. 12 to Garney Companies, Inc. for Village F Lift Stations and RCWM Extension (Final Change Order)

	Unit of Development No. 7
	Public Hearing – Imposing Special Assessments on Added Property
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-25 – Imposing Special Assessments on Added Property


	Unit of Development No. 9
	Public Hearing – Imposing Debt Service Assessments
	Proof of Publication
	Consider Approval of Final Master Engineer's Report
	Consider Approval of Final Master Assessment Methodology Report
	Consider Resolution No. 2022-26 – Imposing Debt Service Assessments






